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Information Document

This Information Document was prepared jointly by Enel S.p.A and Enel Green Power S.p.A. in accordance
with art. 70, paragraph 6, as well as Schedule 3B to the Regulation approved by Consob through resolution
no. 11971 dated May 14, 1999, as subsequently amended and supplemented, in order to provide to the
shareholders of the companies taking part in the demerger and to the market extensive and detailed
disclosure on the demerger transaction.

Given the importance of the transaction described below, although it does not constitute a significant
transaction for Enel S.p.A. within the meaning set forth in the above-mentioned provisions of law, the latter
has nonetheless decided to provide adequate disclosure to its shareholders by publishing, on a voluntary
basis, this Information Document prior to the shareholders’ meeting called to approve the demerger of Enel
Green Power S.p.A. in favor of Enel S.p.A.

This Information Document was prepared by Enel Green Power S.p.A. since the transaction described below
is significant within the meaning set forth in the above-mentioned provisions of law.

Disclaimer

This Information Document was drafted in accordance with Italian laws and regulations and, therefore, may
not be disseminated, in whole or in part, either in the original or as a copy, directly or indirectly, in other
jurisdictions and, in particular, in Australia, Japan, Canada or the United States of America and/or provided
to investors who are residents of such countries.

The dissemination of this Information Document in any jurisdiction (excluding Italy), including Australia,
Japan, Canada or the United States of America, may be subject to specific rules and restrictions. Any person
who comes into possession of this Information Document must verify in advance whether or not such rules
and restrictions exist and, in any case, comply with the same.

The failure to comply with such rules and restrictions may constitute a criminal offense in such jurisdiction.

Forward-looking Statements

This Information Document contains forecasts, estimates and other forward-looking statements on the
business of Enel S.p.A. and Enel Green Power S.p.A., including on their aggregated businesses following the
completion of the demerger. Such forward-looking statements refer to objectives, intentions and expectations
regarding future projects, trends, events, result of operations or financial conditions, on the basis of what is
currently envisaged by the management, as well as upon assumptions made by the management, and upon
information currently available to them. Such forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and
uncertainties which, in many cases, fall beyond the control of the companies taking part in the demerger.
Therefore, excessive reliance should not be placed upon such statements. The actual results may differ
significantly from those indicated in the forecasts due to a range of different factors such as, merely by way
of example and without any limitations: the failure to obtain authorizations, consents or shareholders’
approval, changes in macroeconomic conditions and economic growth, as well as other changes in business
conditions, changes in the legal framework and the institutional context (both in Italy and abroad), and
many other factors, the majority of which fall beyond the control of the companies taking part in the
transaction.



SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED PRO-FORMA DATA AND DATA PER SHARE

The following tables provide a brief summary of the consolidated pro-forma income statement and balance
sheet data and pro-forma indicators per share of the Enel Group as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

The data, which have been extracted from Chapter 5 of this Information Document, were elaborated in
accordance with commonly accepted rules and on the basis of reasonable assumptions. Nonetheless, due to
the limits related to the very nature of pro-forma data, if the Demerger had taken place as of the dates used as
a reference for their preparation, the same results represented below would not necessarily have been
attained.

It should also be recalled that the pro-forma data only illustrate effects of the Demerger that may be isolated
and measured in an objective manner and, therefore, do not reflect the forward-looking economic effects
deriving from the complete integration of Enel Green Power within the Enel Group.

For a complete description of the assumptions and criteria followed in the determination of the pro-forma
data, see Chapter 5 below.

Euro millions . L. .
Consolidated historical data as of Consolidated pro-forma data as of
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2015
Net income for the six month period (shareholders of
the Parent Company and non-controlling interests) 2,629 2,630
Quota attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company
Group 1,833 1,947
Quota attributable to non-controlling interests 796 683
Share capital 9,403 10,174
Other reserves 4,308 5,770
Equity attributable to the shareholders of
the Parent Company 32,973 35,206
Non-controlling interests 20,407 18,174
Gross operating margin per share 0.85 0.78
Operating income per share 0.54 0.50
Net income attributable to shareholders of the Parent
Company per share 0.19 0.19
Diluted net income attributable to shareholders of the
Parent Company per share 0.19 0.19
Ordinary net income attributable to shareholders of the
Parent Company per share 0.17 0.16




Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent

Company per share 351 3.46
Euro millions

Consolidated historical data as of Consolidated pro-forma data as of

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2014

Net income for the year (shareholders of the Parent
Company and non-controlling interests) 772 775
Quota attributable to shareholders of the Parent
Company 517 628
Quota attributable to non-controlling interests 255 147
Share capital 9,403 10,174
Other reserves 3,362 4,694
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the
Parent Company 31,506 33,609
Non-controlling interests 19,639 17,536
Gross operating margin per share 1.68 1.55
Operating income per share 0.33 0.30
Net income attributable to shareholders of the Parent
Company per share 0.05 0.06
Diluted net income attributable to shareholders of the
Parent Company per share 0.05 0.06
Ordinary net income attributable to shareholders of the
Parent Company per share 0.32 0.31
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent
Company per share 3.35 3.30
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DEFINITIONS

Set forth below is a list of the definitions and terms used in this Information Document. Such definitions and
terms, unless otherwise specified, shall have the meanings indicated below.

Auditing Firm

Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A. with registered office at via Po, 32, Rome.

Barclays

Barclays Bank PLC, with registered office at 5 The North Colonnade,
Canary Wharf, London E14 4BB (United Kingdom).

Borsa Italiana

Borsa Italiana S.p.A., with registered office at Piazza degli Affari, 6, Milan.

Cash cost

Sum of costs of maintenance and operating investments incurred to perform
the service.

Civil Code or c.c

The Italian Civil Code adopted through royal decree no. 262 dated March
16, 1942, as subsequently amended and supplemented.

Companies Taking Part in
the Demerger

Collectively, Enel and Enel Green Power.

Condition Precedent

The circumstance that total liquidation value of the Enel Green Power shares
in relation to which the Right of Sale and the Right of Withdrawal is duly
exercised by the shareholders of Enel Green Power entitled to do so does not
exceed Euro 300,000,000 (three hundred million/00).

Consob

Commissione Nazionale per le Societa e la Borsa with registered office at
Via G.B. Martini, 3, Rome.

Corporate Governance Code

The Corporate Governance Code of listed companies prepared by the
corporate governance Committee of listed companies.

Credit Suisse

Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited, with registered office at One
Cabot Square, London E14 4QJ (United Kingdom).

Date of Effect of the
Demerger

The start date of civil law effects of the Demerger, which will correspond
with the last of the registrations envisaged under art. 2506-quater of the
Civil Code, or such subsequent date that may be indicated in the deed of
Demerger.

Date of the Information
Document

The date of publication of the Information Document.

Demerger or Transaction

The partial non-proportional demerger of Enel Green Power in favor of
Enel.




Demerger Plan

The plan concerning the partial non-proportional demerger of Enel Green
Power in favor of Enel, approved in accordance with art. 2506-bis of the
Civil Code, by the Boards of Directors of the Companies Taking Part in the
Demerger on November 17, 2015.

Recurring EBITDA

The Gross Operating Margin, net of all the extraordinary factors non
recurring and non strictly related to the activity and the core business.

Enel or Beneficiary
Company

Enel S.p.A., with registered office at Viale Regina Margherita, 137, Rome.

Enel Green Power or EGP
or Demerged Company

Enel Green Power S.p.A., with
Margherita,125, Rome.

registered office at Viale Regina

Enel Green Power
International

Enel Green Power International B.V., with registered office at Herengracht
471, 1017 BS Amsterdam, The Netherlands.

Enel Green Power Group or
EGP Group

Collectively, Enel Green Power and the companies directly or indirectly
controlled by it within the meaning set forth in art. 2359 of the Civil Code
and art. 93 of the TUF.

Enel Group

Collectively, Enel and the companies directly or indirectly controlled by it
within the meaning set forth in art. 2359 of the Civil Code and art. 93 of the
TUF.

Exchange Ratio

The exchange ratio determined by Enel’s Board of Directors and by EGP’s
Board of Directors in relation to the Demerger, as better described in the
Information Document.

Explanatory Reports on the
Demerger

The Explanatory Reports drafted pursuant to and for purposes of arts. 2501-
quinquies and 2506-ter of the Civil Code and art. 70, paragraph 2, of the
Issuers Regulation by the Boards of Directors of the Companies Taking Part
in the Demerger.

Extraordinary
Shareholders’ Meetings

Collectively, the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of Enel and the
shareholders’ meeting, in extraordinary session, of Enel Green Power called
on January 11, 2016, to resolve upon the Demerger Plan.

Gross operating margin or
EBITDA

The “operating income” plus * depreciation, amortizations and impairment
losses”.

IAS/IFRS

All of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), all of the
International Accounting Standards (IAS), all of the interpretations of the
International Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and of the
Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) recognized in the European
Union and in force as of the reference dates of the Information Document.

Information Document

This information document.

Issuers Regulation

Regulation approved by the Consob through resolution no. 11971 dated May
14, 1999, as subsequently amended and supplemented.

—9-



Net Financial Position
determined in accordance
with ESMA Standard

The net financial position determined in accordance with the provisions of
paragraph 127 of the recommendations of the CESR/05-054b implementing
EC Regulation no. 809/2004, and in line with Consob provisions dated July
26, 2007.

Net Financial Debt EGP

The Net Financial Position determined in accordance with ESMA Standards,
net of non-current financial receivables and long-term securities of the EGP
Group.

Net Financial Debt Enel

The Net Financial Position determined in accordance with ESMA Standards,
net of non-current financial receivables and long-term securities of the Enel
Group.

Ordinary Net Income

The net results deriving from the core busines

J.P. Morgan J.P. Morgan Ltd., with registered office at 25 Bank Street, Canary Wharf,
London E14 5JP (United Kingdom).
Lazard Lazard S.r.l., with registered office Via dell’Orso, 2, Milan.

Liquidation Value

The liquidation value of the shares with respect to which the Right of Sale or
the Right of Withdrawal will be exercised, determined in accordance with
art. 2437-ter, paragraph 3, of the Civil Code, making reference solely to the
arithmetic average of closing prices of Enel Green Power shares on the
MTA in the six months preceding the publication of the notice of call of the
Shareholders’ Meeting of Enel Green Power, equal to Euro 1.780 per EGP
share, and announced to the market on November 18, 2015.

Markets Regulation

Regulation adopted through Consob resolution no. 16191 dated October 29,
2007, as subsequently amended and supplemented.

Mediobanca — Banca di Credito Finanziario S.p.A., with registered office at

Mediobanca Piazzetta Enrico Cuccia, 1, Milan.

MEE The Ministry of the Economy and Finance (Ministero dell’Economia e delle
Finanze).

MTA Electronic Stock Market (Market Telematico Azionario), organized and

managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.

Ordinary Net Results of the
Group

The “Net results of the Group” attributable solely to core business
operations.

Right of Sale

The right granted to the shareholders of Enel Green Power who do not take
part in the approval of the Demerger, to have their shares purchased by Enel,
pursuant to and for purposes of art. 2506-bis, paragraph 4, of the Civil Code.

Right of Withdrawal

The right of withdrawal granted to the shareholders of Enel Green Power
who do not take part in the approval of the Demerger, pursuant to and for
purposes of art. 2437, paragraph 1, letter a), of the Civil Code.

RPT Procedure EGP

The procedure governing related party transactions approved by the Board
of Directors di Enel Green Power at the meeting held on December 1, 2010,
(following the opinion rendered by the Internal Control Committee at the
meeting held on November 23, 2010), as most recently amended at the
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meeting held on February 3, 2014 (upon a proposal formulated by the
Related Parties Committee at the meeting held on January 29, 2014).

RPT Regulation

Regulation concerning the governance of related party transactions adopted
by Consob through resolution no. 17221 dated March 12, 2010, as
subsequently amended and supplemented.

Set of Assets Demerged

The balance sheet elements described in Paragraph 2.2.1 of the Information
Document which, as the result of the Demerger, will be assigned to Enel.

Strategic Plans

Collectively, the Strategic Plan EGP and the Strategic Plan Enel.

Strategic Plan EGP

The Strategic Plan of EGP for the period 2016-2020, approved by the Board
of Directors di EGP on November 12, 2015.

Strategic Plan Enel

The Strategic Plan of Enel for the period 2016-2020, approved by the Board
of Directors of Enel on November 12, 2015.

TUF

Legislative Decree no. 58 of February 24, 1998, as subsequently amended
and supplemented.

Tuir

D.P.R. no. 917 of December 22, 1986, (Testo Unico delle imposte sui redditi
— Consolidated Act on Income Taxes), as subsequently amended and
supplemented.
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GLOSSARY

Set forth below is a list of technical terms used within the Information Document. Such terms, unless
otherwise specified, shall have the meanings indicated below.

Distribution The transport and transformation of electricity on high, medium
and low voltage grids for delivery to final customers.
Generation The production of electricity, regardless of how it is generated.

Gigawatt or GW

Unit of measure of power output equal to one billion Watts
(1,000 megawatts).

Gigawatt hour or GWh

Unit of measure of energy equal to one million Kilowatt hours.

Green certificates

Green certificates are annual certificates issued by the GSE
which certify the production from renewable sources of 1 MWh
of energy. Starting in 2002, pursuant to decree 79/99, producers
and importers are under an obligation to input into the grid
energy produced from renewable sources in quantities equal to a
percentage of the total electricity produced or imported in the
previous year using conventional sources. The obligation applies
to importations and productions of electricity net of exportations,
self-consumption of the power plant and cogeneration exceeding
100 GWh.

Gross production

The sum of electrical energy (including that generated through
pumping) produced by all generator groups involved (first
thermal motor and one or more generators of electrical energy
mechanically paired), measured at the output terminals of the
main generators.

GSE

Gestore dei Servizi Energetici (formerly GRTN), established
pursuant to art. 3 of the Bersani Decree, is the joint stock
company that is wholly owned by the MEF (Ministry of the
Economy and Finance), that issues incentives for the production
of electricity from renewable sources and similar sources and
handles the qualification of plants using renewable sources and
their production of electricity.

Hydroelectric plants (programmable
and non-programmable)

Programmable hydroelectric plants are basin-based (a bacino)
and tank-based (a serbatoio) plants, while non-programmable
plants are flowing water-based (ad acqua fluente) plants. Basin-
based plants are those that exploit the natural water flows of lakes
or artificial basins, the capacity of which, in some cases, is
increased through barriers and dikes. The flowing water-based
hydroelectric plants have some capacity to regulate flows, and
therefore the exploited capacity coincides with the capacity
available in the water channel; therefore, the turbine generates
energy in a manner and timeframe that are completely dependent
upon the availability of the water channel.

Kilowatt or kW

Unit of measure of power output equal to one thousand Watts.
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Kilowatt hour or kWh

Unit of measure of energy that expresses the quantity of
electricity produced in one hour at a power output of 1,000
Watts.

Megawatt or MW

Unit of measure of power output equal to one million Watts.

Megawatt hour or MWh

Unit of measure of energy that expresses the quantity of
electricity equal to 1,000 kilowatt hours (See item Kilowatt
hour).

Net installed capacity (in MW)

The total installed capacity net of auxiliary services of the plants.

Net production

The gross production of electrical energy less the energy
absorbed by auxiliary generation services and losses in the main
transformers.

Photovoltaic module

Photovoltaic modules constitute the main element of the plant
since their exposure to solar radiation gives rise to the production
of energy.

Within the module, there are photovoltaic cells, generally
consisting of very fine “slices” of silicon (a semi-conductor
obtained using sand through a chemical-physical process) which
give rise to the direct conversion of luminous energy into electric
energy. Depending upon the characteristics of the material used
to realize the cell, reference is made to  modules in
monocrystalline, polycrystalline and amorphous silicon. There
exists another type of photovoltaic modules called “Thin Film”
modules, produced using technology that allows for the creation
of thinner, economical cells comprise of several lawyers of
different semi-conductor materials (both silicon-based and
others).

Photovoltaic plants

Solar photovoltaic plants comprised of a set of photovoltaic
modules (See item photovoltaic modules) and additional
elements.

Pipeline

The set of all development projects for the production of energy
using renewable sources identified by the Group following the
conclusion of the preliminary study or “screening” phase,
classified under three categories (Potential, Likely and Highly
Confident) depending upon the different level of development
and, therefore, the likelihood of success of each project, as
assessed by the Company on the basis of its experience gained in
the development sector.

Renewable sources

Sun, wind, water resources, geothermal resources, tides, wave
power, biomass and organic wastes. Under Directive
2009/28/EC, “energy from renewable sources” is defined as
energy originating from non-fossil renewable sources and, in
other words, wind, solar, aerothermal, geothermal, hydrothermal,
oceanic, hydraulic, biomass, discharge gas, gas left over from
purification processes and biogas energy.

Terawatt or TW

Unit of measure of the power output equal to one billion kW.
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Terawatt hour or TWh Unit of measure of energy equal to one billion kWh.
Watt Unit of measure of active electricity power output.
Watt hour Unit of measure that expresses the quantity of electrical energy

produced in one hour at power output of 1 watt.

Wind form or wind plant or wind
power plant

A wind farm is a set of interconnected aerogenerators (wind
towers or wind turbines) located in a defined territory that
produce electricity by exploiting wind power. The generation of
electricity changes depending upon the wind and the generation
capacity of the aerogenerators.
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INTRODUCTION

This Information Document (the “Information Document”) was prepared by Enel S.p.A. (“Enel” or the
“Beneficiary Company”) and by Enel Green Power S.p.A. (“Enel Green Power”, “EGP” or the
“Demerged Company”, and collectively with Enel, the “Companies Taking Part in the Demerger”) in
accordance with art. 70, paragraph 6, and Schedule 3B of the regulation approved through Consob resolution
no. 11971 dated May 14, 1999, as subsequently amended and supplemented (the “Issuers Regulation”), in
order to provide to the shareholders of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger and to the market an
extensive and detailed disclosure on the partial, non-proportional demerger of Enel Green Power in favor of
its controlling shareholder Enel, in accordance with art. 2506-bis, paragraph 4, of the Civil Code (the
“Demerger” or the “Transaction”).

The Transaction described in the Information Document entails:

- the assignment by Enel Green Power in favor of Enel of the Set of Assets Demerged (as defined and
described in detail below), essentially consisting of (i) the totalitarian shareholding held by EGP in
Enel Green Power International B.V. (“Enel Green Power International”), a holding company
organized and existing under Dutch law which holds shareholdings in companies operating in the
renewable energies sectors in North America, Central America and South America, Europe, South
Africa and India, and (ii) assets, liabilities, agreements, legal relationships pertaining to such
shareholding;

- the retention by Enel Green Power of all remaining assets and liabilities other than those comprising
the Set of Assets Demerged (and, therefore, essentially, the Italian assets and the limited remaining
foreign shareholdings).

As of the Date of Effect of the Demerger (as defined below), the quota of Enel Green Power’s share capital
corresponding to the Set of Assets Demerged will be exchanged on the basis of the Exchange Ratio defined
in Paragraph 2.2.4 below; the Enel shares issued to service the Demerger exchange will be assigned to Enel
Green Power’s shareholders in accordance with the non-proportional assignment criterion also indicated in
Paragraph 2.2.4. By virtue of such non-proportional assignment, all of the Enel Green Power shares held by
shareholders other than Enel will be exchanged with Enel shares, while Enel will exchange solely a portion
of its shares held in Enel Green Power; such shares will be simultaneously cancelled in accordance with the
provisions of art. 2504-ter, paragraph 2, of the Civil Code, as cited for demergers in art. 2506-ter, paragraph
5, of the Civil Code, without proceeding with the assignment of the same. As a result, on the Date of Effect
of the Demerger: (i) the Beneficiary Company will increase its share capital by the amount indicated in
Paragraph 2.2.2 below; (ii) all of the Enel Green Power shares exchanged with Enel shares will be cancelled,
resulting in a reduction of the share capital of Enel Green Power by the amount indicated in Paragraph 2.2.4
below; and (iii) Enel will be the sole shareholder of Enel Green Power, while all of the other shareholders of
the Demerged Company will become shareholders of Enel.

The effectiveness of the Demerger is, in any case, conditioned upon, in addition to the completion of the
relevant corporate procedures, the condition that the total Liquidation Value of the Enel Green Power shares
with respect to which the Right of Withdrawal and Right of Sale (as defined below) have been duly
exercised does not exceed Euro 300,000,000 (three hundred million/00). The Condition Precedent will be
deemed likewise satisfied — even if the above limit is exceeded — if Enel, within 60 calendar days from the
last registration with the Companies Register of Rome of the shareholders’ meeting resolution approving the
Demerger pursuant to art. 2502 of the Civil Code, declares its intention to proceed to purchase all of the
shares for which the Right of Withdrawal or the Right of Sale (as defined below) have been exercised.

For further information on the Exchange Ratio and the non-proportionality of the Demerger, see Paragraph
2.1.2 below.

As explained in detail below, the transaction is aimed at achieving complete integration of the renewable
energies sector within the Enel Group.

The two figures set forth below illustrate the Enel Group’s corporate structure before and after the
completion of the Demerger, assuming that: (a) the current ownership structure of Enel and EGP remains
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unchanged until the completion of the Demerger; and (b) none of EGP’s shareholders exercises the Right of
Withdrawal or the Right of Sale (as defined below):

Status Quo Post-Transaction
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On the Date of Effect of the Demerger, EGP shares will cease to be traded on the Electronic Stock Exchange
(Market Telematico Azionario) organized and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. (“MTA”) and on the
Spanish continuous electronic trading system (Sistema de Interconexion Bursatil, SIBE).

On November 17, 2015, the Boards of Directors of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger approved the
Demerger Plan related to the Transaction (the “Demerger Plan”). The Demerger Plan (together with the
documentation attached thereto) — attached to this Information Document as Schedule 3 — was registered
with the Companies Register of Rome on December 7, 2015. The Demerger Plan was made available at the
registered offices of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger and published on Enel’s website
(www.enel.com) and on Enel Green Power’s website (www.enelgreenpower.com) on December 11, 2015.

For further information on the documents made available to the public, see Paragraph 2.4 below.

The timeframe of the Demerger, which is expected to be completed by the end of the first quarter of 2016, is,
essentially and subject to possible changes that may become necessary on account of corporate and/or
regulatory requirements, the following:

- on January 11, 2016, the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings of Enel and Enel Green Power have
been convened, in a single session;

- from the date of registration of the relevant resolutions in the Companies Register of Rome, (i) a
term of sixty days will start to run, within which the corporate creditors of the two companies may
present oppositions against the Demerger in accordance with art. 2503 of the Civil Code, as cited in
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art. 2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Civil Code and (ii) a term of fifteen days will start to run, within
which the shareholders of Enel Green Power who do not take part in the approval of the Demerger
may exercise the Right of Withdrawal and/or the Right of Sale;

upon the completion of the above-mentioned activities, the deed of Demerger will be executed.
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1. RISKFACTORS

In order to have a full understanding of the Transaction, the recipients of the Information Document are
asked to consider the specific factors of risk or uncertainty deriving from the Demerger.

The factors of risk or uncertainty described below should be read in conjunction with the information set
forth in the Information Document.

Additional risks and uncertainties which are currently not foreseeable or which are considered unlikely at
present may likewise affect the business, economic and financial conditions and prospects of Enel and/or
EGP.

References to Chapters and Paragraphs refer to the chapters and paragraphs of the Information Document.
1.1. RISKS RELATED TO THE DEMERGER
1.1.1. RI1SKS RELATED TO THE CONDITION PRECEDENT

The effectiveness of the Demerger is conditioned upon the circumstance that the total Liquidation Value of
the Enel Green Power shares with respect to which the Right of Withdrawal or the Right of Sale are validly
exercised by EGP’s shareholders who do not take part in the approval of the Demerger does not exceed Euro
300,000,000 (three hundred million/00) (the “Condition Precedent”).

Enel and Enel Green Power will announce the data on whether or not the Condition Precedent is met,
through a notice published on their respective websites and in at least one national newspaper.

The Condition Precedent will be deemed satisfied nonetheless — even in the event that the above-mentioned
limit is exceeded — if Enel, within 60 calendar days of the last registration with the Companies Register of
Rome of the shareholders meetings’ resolutions approving the Demerger pursuant to art. 2502 of the Civil
Code, declares its intention to proceed with the purchase of all the shares for which the above-mentioned
rights have been exercised.

If the above-mentioned Condition Precedent is not satisfied or Enel does not declare its intention to proceed
with the purchase of all of the shares for which the above-mentioned rights have been exercised, the
Demerger will not be perfected.

(See Paragraph 2.1.2.1 of the Information Document).

1.1.2. RISKS RELATED TO A POSSIBLE OPPOSITION BY CREDITORS

Under the combined provisions of arts. 2506-ter and 2503 of the Civil Code, the Demerger may be
implemented only upon the expiry of 60 days of the last of the registrations provided under art. 2502-bis of
the Civil Code. By such deadline, the creditors of Enel and Enel Green Power existing prior to the
registration provided under art. 2506-bis, paragraph 5, of the Civil Code may raise an opposition against the
implementation of the Demerger.

In the event of opposition, delays may arise in the timetable of corporate procedures in preparation of the
completion of the Demerger. It should be noted, moreover, that in the event of opposition, if the competent
Court concludes that the risk of prejudice to the creditors is baseless or if the debtor company has granted a
suitable guarantee, it may nonetheless order that the Demerger take place despite the opposition, in
accordance with the provisions of arts. 2503, paragraph 2, and 2445, paragraph 4, of the Civil Code.

(See Paragraph 2.1.2.1 of the Information Document).

1.1.3. RISKS RELATED TO THE JOINT OBLIGATIONS ARISING FROM THE DEMERGER

The Set of Assets Demerged will be assigned to the Beneficiary Company on the basis of the book values as
of September 30, 2015. The net book value of the Set of Assets Demerged is Euro 3,664,162,218.

Under art. 2506-quater, paragraph 3, of the Civil Code, starting on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, each
of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger is jointly liable — subject to the limit of the actual value of the
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net shareholders’ equity assigned to it or retained by it — for the debts existing as of the date of the Demerger
that have not been satisfied by the company that owes them. The joint liability pursuant to art. 2506-quater,
paragraph 3, of the Civil Code is secondary since it arises solely in the event of debts that are “not satisfied”
by the company that owes them and requires the prior unsuccessful enforcement against the original debtor
company. However, such rule, under an exemption from the provisions of the Civil Code, does not apply
with reference to certain specific debts and liabilities: by way of example (i) under art. 30, paragraph 2, of
Legislative Decree No. 231 dated June 8, 2001, the beneficiary company of a demerger has unlimited
liability for sanctions issued against the demerged company on the condition that the business unit in the
context of which the criminal act was committed has been transferred to the beneficiary company, and (ii)
under art. 173, paragraph 13, of Presidential Decree No. 917 dated December 22, 1986 and art. 15 of
Legislative Decree No. 472 dated December 18, 1997, solely with regard to debts of a tax nature and under
an exemption from the provisions of the Civil Code, the Beneficiary Company may be jointly liable with the
Demerged Company even over the limits of the net shareholders’ equity transferred.

(See Paragraph 2.1.2.1 of the Information Document).

1.1.4. RISKS RELATED TO THE VALUATION METHODS USED TO ESTABLISH THE EXCHANGE RATIO
AND TO THE VALUATION OF THE SET OF ASSETS DEMERGED

Valuation of the Exchange Ratio

On November 17, 2015, the Boards of Directors of Enel and EGP, after examining and accepting the
valuations rendered by their respective advisors, and —for EGP — also acknowledging the favorable opinion
by its Related Parties Committee, issued unanimously and attached to this Information Document as
Schedule 11, approved the Exchange Ratio, meaning the ratio that suitably expresses the reciprocal weights
of the two Companies Taking Part in the Demerger, of 0.486 newly issued Enel shares for each EGP share
exchanged. No cash adjustments are envisaged.

In order to determine the economic value of the ordinary shares of the Companies Taking Part in the
Demerger and, therefore, of the Exchange Ratio, on the one hand, and the value of the Set of Assets
Demerged with respect to EGP, in order to set the number of EGP shares to be cancelled, on the other, Enel
and EGP followed generally accepted valuation methodologies, with particular regard to those most
commonly used at national and international levels in similar transactions, giving priority to the principle of
consistency and comparability of the valuation criteria, applied compatibly with the distinctive elements of
the individual Companies Taking Part in the Demerger.

The valuations carried out to determine the Exchange Ratio are subject to the standard criticalities intrinsic in
this type of analysis. In particular, the results of the valuation procedure followed, must be considerated in
the light of some limits and difficulties summarized as follows:

1. the provisional data, the estimates and the economic forecasts used for the relative valuation, present by
their nature elements of uncertainty on the actual predictability of the expected operating and income
performance, even in relation to the possible changes in the relevant context;

2. the high volatility in the actual context of the financial markets, subject to significant changes with a
potential impact on some valuations measures including, for example, the parameters used for the
determination of the WACC,;

3. the “Sum of the Parts” approach, used in the Discounted Cash Flow methodology (“Methodology
DCF”), required a complex allocation of certain economic, financial and balance sheet data to the
individual assets evaluated,

4. in the application of the methodology of the prices-target indicated in the financial analysts research, the
reports published before the approval of the new strategic plans of Enel Green Power and Enel have
been taken into account, and whose estimates and expectations may differ, even significantly, from the
strategic plans recently approved by the Board of Directors of the Companies Taking Part in the
Demerger;
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5. the methodologies based on the market multiples or deriving from the comparable transactions have not
been considered relevant since the comparability inherent to the Companies Taking Part in the
Demerger resulted invalidated by differences related mainly to the regulatory context, the durations and
the features of the incentives, the different geographical and technological characteristics and to the
developments projects compared to net installed capacity.

The valuations carried out reflect financial and economic assumptions and expectations based upon the
information available as of November 17, 2015, which may change or being affected by market conditions as
well as exogenous and endogenous events affecting the current and future trends, on the performance and on
the economic and financial prospects of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger.

No mechanism for adjusting Exchange Ratio by the Date of Effect of the Demerger is envisaged. The market
prices of Enel shares and EGP shares have been and are subject to volatility and fluctuations also as a result
of the general trend in the capital markets. Therefore, it cannot be ruled out that, while the Exchange Ratio
remains congruous based upon the methodologies used for its determination, the market value of the
Beneficiary Company’s shares to be assigned in exchange at the time of completion of the Demerger, may
result be lower or higher than the market value as of the date on which the Exchange Ratio was set.

Valuation of the Set of Assets Demerged

On November 15, 2015, Enel’s and EGP’s Board of Directors, with the support of their respective advisors,
and — as for EGP — examined the favorable opinion unanimously issued by the Related Party Transactions
Committee and attached to this Information Document under Schedule 11, determined the value of the Set of
Assets Demerged.

For the purposes of the valuation of the equity value of the Set of Assets Demerged and the comparison of
the same with the overall valuation of Enel Green Power’s equity value, in line with the valuation approach
used to determine the Exchange Ratio and taking into consideration the specific characteristics of Enel Green
Power and the Set of Assets Demerged — and in particular taking into account the fact that the Set of Assets
Demerged is not a listed company — it was only possible to use the DCF Methodology.

For a more detailed description of the valuation methodologies used by for the purposes of determining the
Exchange Ratio and the value of the Set of Assets Demerged, the results deriving from the application of the
above-mentioned methodologies and the valuation difficulties encountered, reference is made to the
Explanatory Report prepared by the Board of Directors of Enel and EGP in accordance with art. 2506-ter of
the Civil Code, and to the fairness opinion on the Exchange Ratio issued by the advisors of the Companies
Taking Part in the Demerger, attached to this Information Document.

(See Paragraph 2.2.5 of the Information Document).

1.1.5. RISKS RELATED TO THE PRESENTATION OF PRO-FORMA DATA IN THE INFORMATION
DOCUMENT

The Information Document includes the pro-forma tables related to the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated cash flow statement as of June 30, 2015 and as of December
31, 2014 of the Enel Group, accompanied by the relevant explanatory notes (together, also referred to as the
“Consolidated Pro-forma Tables”), prepared in order to represent the potential effects of the Demerger.

The Consolidated Pro-forma Tables were prepared solely for explanatory purposes in order to provide a
simulation of the significant effects of the Demerger on the income, balance sheet and cash flow statement of
the Enel Group, as if the same had occurred on a virtual basis on June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, as
regards the balance sheet effects and as of January 1, 2015 and January 1, 2014 as regards the income effects
(income statement) and financial effects (cash flow statement). In accordance with the method for preparing
pro-forma data set forth in Consob Notice No. DEM/1052803 dated July 5, 2001, the Consolidated Pro-
forma Tables were prepared by adjusting the historical data as of June 30, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014
of the Enel Group, extracted from the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union as of such date, and
applying the pro-forma adjustments in order to simulate retroactively the effects of the Demerger.
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The information set forth in the Consolidated Pro-forma Tables constitutes a simulation of the significant
effects that may derive from the Demerger, provided solely for explanatory purposes. In particular, since the
Consolidated Pro-forma Tables were prepared in order to reflect retroactively the significant effects of
subsequent transactions, despite compliance with commonly accepted rules and the use of reasonable
assumptions, there are limits related to the very nature of pro-forma data. Therefore, there exists a risk that if
the Demerger had actually occurred as of the dates used as a reference for the preparation of the
Consolidated Pro-forma Tables, the same results represented in the Consolidated Pro-forma Tables would
not necessarily have been obtained.

Moreover, the Consolidated Pro-forma Tables are not meant to represent in any way whatsoever a forecast of
the future results of the Enel Group and, therefore, must not be used in this manner.

Lastly, considering that the purposes of pro-forma data differ from those of historical financial statements
and the difference procedures used to calculate the effects, the consolidated pro-forma balance sheet must be
read and interpreted separately with respect to the consolidated pro-forma income statement and the
consolidated pro-forma cash flow statement, without seeking out accounting connections between the same.

(See Chapters 5 and 6 of the Information Document).

1.1.6. RISKS RELATED TO THE CIRCUMSTANCE THAT THE OPERATION IS BETWEEN RELATED
PARTIES

In light of the de jure control exercised by the Beneficiary Company over the Demerged Company, the
Demerger constitutes a transaction between related parties.

As to regards Enel, the Demerger transaction, while being carried out with a related party, is exempted from
the application of the special Procedure for transactions with related party — adopted in accordance with the
RPT Regulation — since the transaction is being concluded with a subsidiary in which there do not exist
significant interests of other related parties (within the meaning set forth in art. 14, paragraph 2, of the RPT
Regulation and art. 13.3, letter d), of the above-mentioned Procedure). In consideration of the foregoing, no
involvement on the part of Enel’s Related Parties Committee was required for the approval of the Demerger
Plan. As regards Enel Green Power, the Demerger constitutes a transaction of “major importance” with a
related party pursuant to RPT Regulation and the RPT Procedure EGP.

In light of the above, Enel Green Power’s Related Parties Committee, comprised solely of independent
directors and competent in related party transactions issues, was involved in the negotiations and review
phase related to the Transaction and, on November 16, 2015, issued unanimously its reasoned favorable
opinion on (i) the Enel Green Power’s interest to conclude the Transaction, as well as (ii) the
advantageousness and substantial fairness of its conditions. On November 24, 2015 Enel Green Power has
made available to the public the information document provided under art. 5 of the RPT Regulation, at Enel
Green Power’s registered office at Viale Regina Margherita, 125, Rome, as well as on its website
(www.enelgreenpower.com) and on  the authorized  storage  mechanism  NIS-Storage
(www.emarketstorage.com).

(See Paragraph 2.1.2.1 of the Information Document).

1.2. RISKS RELATED TO THE COMPANIES TAKING PART IN THE DEMERGER AND TO THEIR
BUSINESS SECTOR

1.2.1. RISKS RELATED TO INDEBTEDNESS

The main risk related to indebtedness is the risk of company’s failure to meet its own obligations in
connection with its financial liabilities. Such risk is mitigated, in accordance with the limits assigned, by
guaranteeing an adequate level of liquidity and resources that are unconditionally available in the short term,
including liquidity and short-term deposits, committed credit lines and a portfolio of highly liquid assets.
Over the long term, the risk of default is mitigated by guaranteeing a balanced debt maturity profile and the
access to a variety of different funding sources, characterized by different markets, currencies and
counterparties.
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As of September 30, 2015, Enel’s Net Financial Debt totaled Euro 39,357 million (Euro 39,849 million as of
June 30, 2015 and Euro 37,383 million as of December 31, 2014). Enel’s Net Financial Debt is determined
on a net basis after deducting non-current financial receivables and long-term securities, totaling Euro 2,188
million as of September 30, 2015, Euro 2,621 million as of June 30, 2015 and Euro 2,701 million as of
December 31, 2014.

The Net Financial Debt calculated on the basis of ESMA Standards (which does not take into account non-
current financial receivables and long-term securities) totaled Euro 41,545 million as of September 30, 2015
(Euro 42,470 million as of June 30, 2015 and Euro 40,084 million as of December 31, 2014).

As of September 30, 2015, the repayment plan for the Enel Group’s long-term loans envisaged repayments
totaling Euro 5,401 million within the following 12 months, with available liquidity totaling Euro 8,310
million and committed credit lines available and not used totaling Euro 13.2 billion.

As of September 30, 2015, EGP’s Net Financial Debt amounted to Euro 7,345 million (Euro 7,004 million as
of June 30, 2015 and Euro 6,038 million as of December 31, 2014). EGP’s Net Financial Debt is determined
on a net basis after deducting non-current financial receivables (Euro 80 million as of September 30, 2015,
Euro 430 million as of June 30, 2015 and Euro 425 million as of December 31, 2014).

Net Financial Debt calculated on the basis of ESMA Standards (which does not take into account non-
current financial receivables and long-term securities) amounted to Euro 7,425 million (Euro 7,434 million
as of June 30, 2015 and Euro 6,463 million as of December 31, 2014).

As of September 30, 2015, repayment plan for the Enel Green Power Group’s long-term loans envisaged the
repayment of Euro 327 million within the following 12 months, with available liquidity of Euro 359 million
and committed credit lines available and not used totaling Euro 1.7 billion.

Despite the careful management of the liquidity and the debt maturities timetable, there is no guarantee that
the Enel Group will be in a position to fulfill its debt obligations, to obtain additional loans or to obtain them
at satisfactory conditions. Moreover, a rise in the overall level of indebtedness may have adverse effects on
Enel’s credit rating, a possible rise in costs related to loans in place, and limit Enel’s access to funding
sources and Enel’s capacity to fulfill its debt obligations. For a detailed description of the main components
of Enel’s Net Financial Debt and Enel Green Power’s Net Financial Debt, reference is made to the
information set forth in the Consolidated Financial Statement as of December 31, 2014 of the Enel Group
and the Consolidated Financial Statement as of December 31, 2014 of the Enel Green Power Group,
published respectively on the websites www.enel.com and www.enelgreenpower.com.

(See Chapter 4 of the Information Document).

1.2.2. RISKS RELATED TO THE FAILURE TO HONOR FINANCIAL COVENANTS AND COMMITMENTS
PROVIDED UNDER THE LOAN AGREEMENTS

The main long-term financial debts of the Enel Group and of the EGP Group entail covenants, which are
commonly adopted in international practice, as termination clauses and/or change of control and change of
ownership commitments, as well as potential limits to the disposal of the same agreements and/or the related
legal relationships during extraordinary transactions, imposed upon the debtor companies (including, merely
by way of example, Enel, Endesa and the other companies of the Enel Group, as well as EGP, Enel Green
Power International B.V. and other EGP Group’s companies) and, in some cases, upon the guarantors
companies (i.e. Enel and EGP).

The occurrence of one or more events of default or any circumstance constituting a mandatory early
repayment event (including a change of control of the related borrower) envisaged under the loan agreements
in place, the breach of covenants envisaged under the same could give rise to an obligation for Enel and/or
EGP to repay the sums disbursed early and/or cause the termination of the related existing loan agreement,
which would give rise to adverse effects on the business, balance sheet, results of operations and financial
condition of the Enel Group and/or of the EGP Group.

The main covenants undertaken by the Enel and EGP Groups, which are monitored yearly and half —yearly
as disposed by each loan agreement, are described in the respective consolidated Financial Statements as of
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December 31, 2014, published on the websites www.enel.com and www.enelgreenpower.com, to which
reference is made. It should be noted that, as of June 30, 2015, no covenant has been breached.

1.2.3. RISKS RELATED TO INTEREST RATES

As of June 30, 2015, 29% of Enel’s gross financial debt and 50% of EGP’s gross financial indebtedness is
expressed at floating interest rates (respectively, 31% and 46% as of December 31, 2014).

The Enel and EGP Groups have implemented policies on the management of interest rate risk having the
twofold objective of reducing the amount of indebtedness subject to fluctuations in interest rates and
containing the cost of funding, limiting the cost of funding, limiting the volatility of results, reductions in
profitability and increases in financial costs. Such objective is achieved through the strategic diversification
and balancing of the portfolio of financial liabilities by contractual type, term and interest rate terms,
modifying the risk profile of specific exposures through the execution of over-the-counter derivative
instruments in accordance with the assigned limits.

In particular, taking into account the effective hedging agreements covering interest rates related to cash
flows, as of June 30, 2015, the percentage of gross financial indebtedness not covered by the above-
mentioned derivative instruments was 24% for Enel (23% as of December 31, 2014) and 35% for Enel Green
Power (31% as of December 31, 2014) with respect to exposures.

Although the Enel and EGP Groups have an active risk management policy, in the event of a rise in interest
rates, the rise in financial costs imposed upon the same related to floating rate indebtedness not subject to
interest rate hedging may have adverse effects on the balance sheet, results of operations and financial
condition of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger and the respective Groups.

1.2.4. RISKS RELATED TO EXCHANGE RATES

The Enel and EGP Groups are exposed to exchange rate risk deriving from the presence of financial
instruments and cash flows denominated in foreign currencies and assets. In particular, the exchange rate risk
derives principally from debt denominated in foreign currency, cash flows related to the purchase and/or sale
of fuels and energy on the international markets, cash flows related to investments or other items in foreign
currency, such as dividends from non-consolidated foreign affiliates or cash flows related to the purchase or
sale of shareholdings. In order to reduce exchange rate risk deriving from the above-mentioned exposures,
Enel and EGP implement various types of derivative contracts, typically on the over-the-counter market, in
accordance with the limit assigned; moreover, the management aims to achieve an ongoing offsetting
between credit and debit positions for each currency in which Enel and EGP operate, in order to pursue a
substantial balance between inflows and outflows related to transactions with foreign counterparties.

Based upon an analysis of the Enel Group’s financial indebtedness, as of June 30, 2015, the 39% (35% as of
December 31, 2014) of gross indebtedness is expressed in currencies other than Euro; in particular, the part
of debt expressed in U.S dollar is equal to 18%, the part of debt expressed in UK pound is equal to 12% and
the part of debt expressed in Colombian peso is equal to 3%.

With regard to EGP Group, as of June 30, 2015, 30% (27% as of December 31, 2014) of the gross long-term
indebtedness is expressed in currencies other than Euro; in particular, the part of debt expressed in U.S dollar
is equal to 25% and the part of debt expressed in Brazilian real is equal to 3%.

Taking into account the portion of indebtedness expressed in currencies other than the relevant currency of
the individual Companies and of the related hedging transactions, the percentage of indebtedness exposed to
exchange rate risk as of June 30, 2015 was approximately 13.6% for Enel and 0.6% for Enel Green Power
(respectively 13% and 0.7% as of December 31, 2014).

Although they apply on an ongoing basis their policy on the hedging of risks deriving from fluctuations in
exchange rates through financial instruments available on the market, it cannot be ruled out that significant
future changes in exchange rates — in particular of the Euro with respect to the Dollar and the currencies of
emerging countries — may produce adverse effects on the business, results of operations, balance sheet and
financial condition of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger and of their respective Groups.
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In addition, since the currency of the consolidated financial statement of the Enel and EGP Groups is the
Euro, marked fluctuations in exchange rates may give rise to, including at the time of conversion of financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries, material effects on the results of operations, balance sheet and financial
condition of the above-mentioned Groups.

1.2.5. RISKS RELATED TO THE RATING

As of the Date of the Information Document, Enel’s long-term rating is: (i) “BBB”, with a positive outlook,
according to Standard & Poor’s Rating Services; (ii) “BBB+”, with a stable outlook, according to Fitch
Ratings; and (iii) “Baa2”, with a stable outlook, according to Moody’s Investors Services Ltd.

In particular, on May 5, 2015, Standard & Poor’s has revised the outlook on Enel to “positive” (from the
previous “stable”) and has confirmed the “BBB” of the long-term credit rating. The change in outlook
reflects the positive opinion on the strategy implemented by Enel of reducing its business risk profile, thanks
to the significant contribution of regulated business operations and an appropriate diversification from
geographical and technological standpoint, which according to the agency strengthen Enel’s credit position
over the timeline 2015-2017.

On June 23, 2015, Fitch confirmed its “BBB+” long-term credit rating on Enel, maintaining a stable outlook.

On March 27, 2015, Moody’s announced that it has revised its outlook on Enel to “stable” (from the
previous “negative”), and that it has confirmed the “Baa2” long-term credit rating following the
announcement of the Strategic Plan 2015-2019. According to Moody’s, the change in Enel’s outlook reflects
the strategic focus of the new plan, that will allow for the rebalancing of investments toward businesses that
are less exposed to commaodities risk.

The agencies Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, Moody’s Investors Services Ltd and Fitch Ratings which
have assigned a rating to Enel are all registered with ESMA.

Certain of the Enel Group’s loan agreements in place provide for changes in the spread in the event of
changes in the ratings assigned by Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s. In addition, in certain loan agreements,
it is envisaged that Enel’s rating must remain above certain levels. Any downgrades by the rating agencies
beyond the thresholds provided under the agreements could give rise to a change in the spread, or have
additional adverse effects on the results of operations, balance sheet and financial condition of Enel and the
Enel Group (such as, for example, the need to provide additional guarantees).

The possibility of gaining access to capital markets and other forms of funding, as well as the costs of the
same, depend, inter alia, upon the rating assigned to the Enel Group and, therefore, any downgrades in such
rating may constitute a limitation on the possibility to access the capital markets and may increase the cost of
funding and/or refinancing of the indebtedness in place, which could have adverse effects on the results of
operations, balance sheet and financial condition of Enel and the Enel Group.

1.2.6. RISKS RELATED TO CHANGES IN PRICES OF FUELS AND ELECTRICITY OR TO THE
INTERRUPTION IN SUPPLIES

Due to the nature of its business, the Enel Group is exposed to the risk that changes in the prices of fuels and
electricity on the international markets may adversely affect its results of operations.

With particular reference to electricity, depending upon the countries in which the Enel and EGP Groups
operate, the prices may be subject to significant fluctuations and may change on the basis of several factors,
including market demand, the cost of raw materials used by producers of energy that use non-renewable
sources, the price of green certificates or similar forms of incentive by the regulatory authorities.

In order to mitigate such exposure, the Enel Group has developed a strategy of stabilizing margins that
provides for the use of early contracting for purchases of fuels and supplies to final customers or to
wholesale market operators. In addition, it has put in place a formal procedure that provides for the
measurement of residual commodity risk, the definition of a limit on maximum acceptable risk and the
conclusion of hedging transactions using derivative contracts.

—24—



In order to mitigate risks of interruptions in the supply of fuels, the Enel Group has also developed a strategy
for the diversification of sources for the procurement of fuels and supplies, using suppliers located in various
geographical areas, and developing initiatives aimed at the construction of transport and storage
infrastructures.

In such context, however, a significant change in the prices of fuels and/or electricity, so as to render
insufficient the hedging strategy implemented by the Enel Group, and the occurrence of circumstances that
may give rise to an interruption in the sourcing of fuels, may have adverse effects on income margins and on
the return on investments by the Enel Group and EGP and/or may lead the latter companies to change or
reduce their development objectives in certain areas, which could have adverse effects on the business,
results of operations, balance sheet and financial condition of Enel and the Enel Group.

1.2.7. CREDIT RISK

Commercial transactions in commodities and financial transactions expose the Enel Group and the EGP
Group to credit risk, meaning the possibility that the unexpected change in the creditworthiness of a
counterparty may have effects on the credit position, in terms of insolvency (default risk) or changes in the
market value of the same (spread risk).

In order to minimize credit risk, the general policy in place at the Enel Group level provides for an
assessment of the creditworthiness of counterparties — on the basis of information provided by third party
companies and internal assessment models — and the structured monitoring of exposures to risk, in order to
identify in a timely manner possible impairments in the quality of receivables in place, also with respect to
predefined threshold values (limits). In order to further mitigate credit risk the policy provides for, in certain
cases, the possible request for appropriate guarantees or, with respect to specific portions of the customer
portfolio, pro soluto (non-recourse) sales of the receivable and/or insurance coverage with primary credit
insurance companies.

With reference to the credit risk originating from open positions in financial transactions, including
derivative instruments, the reduction in risk is pursued through the selection of counterparties with solid
creditworthiness, selected from among primary national and international financial institutions,
diversification of the portfolio, the execution of margining agreements which provide for the exchange of
cash collateral or the application of netting criteria.

Despite such risk management policies, the default of one or more significant counterparties of the Enel
Group may have an adverse effect on the Group’s results of operations and financial condition, which in turn
would adversely impact Enel’s balance sheet and economic and financial condition.

1.2.8. RISKS RELATED TO LITIGATION

In the ordinary course of business, the Enel and EGP Groups are parties to various civil and administrative
legal proceedings, and to a number of criminal and arbitral proceedings.

The Companies Taking Part in the Demerger have included in their consolidated financial statements a fund
with provisions covering the risk associated with legal proceedings in order to cover the liabilities that may
derive, on the basis of indications provided by in-house and external legal advisors, from the legal
proceedings and other litigation matters pending. As of June 30, 2015, such fund amounted to a total of Euro
828 million for Enel and Euro 22 million for Enel Green Power. A number of legal proceedings to which the
Enel Group or the Enel Green Power Group are parties for which a possible adverse outcome is considered
merely possible, remote or unquantifiable have not been included in such litigation fund. The description of
such legal proceedings is available in the information set forth in the Consolidated Financial Statement as of
December 31, 2014 of the Enel Group and the Consolidated Financial Statement as of December 31, 2014 of
the Enel Green Power Group, as well as in the financial statements and interim directors’ reports, published
on the websites www.enel.com and www.enelgreenpower.com.

Although the Enel and EGP Groups are of the view that any liabilities related to the outcome of the disputes
pending should not have a material adverse effect on the results of operations, balance sheet and/or financial
statement of the respective Groups, it cannot be ruled out that the Enel and/or EGP Groups may in the future
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face costs and indemnity obligations that are not covered or insufficiently covered by the litigation fund,
which could have adverse effects, which could be material, on the results of operations, balance sheet and
financial condition of the above-mentioned Groups.

1.2.9. RISKS RELATED TO THE ACTUAL REALIZATION OF THE STRATEGIC PLANS OF ENEL AND
ENEL GREEN POWER, FORWARD-LOOKING DATA AND DECLARATIONS OF SUPERIORITY,
AND INFORMATION ON THE TREND IN THE RELEVANT MARKET OF THE COMPANIES TAKING
PART IN THE DEMERGER

On November 12, 2015, the Boards of Directors of Enel and Enel Green Power approved the respective
Strategic Plans, which set forth strategic guidelines and growth objectives of the respective Groups for the
period of reference, as well a number of the income forecasts described in the Information Document.

Enel’s and EGP’s Strategic Plans are based upon assumptions concerning the general economic context and
trends in the positioning of the business. The most noteworthy of these include, clearly, the trend in prices of
electricity, gas, fuels and raw materials, average costs of investments in plants, trend of the demand for
electricity and gas in markets where the respective Groups operate, the trend in macroeconomic variables,
and the trend in the regulatory framework.

In consideration of the above-mentioned assumptions underlying Enel’s and EGP’s Strategic Plans and the
related medium-term timeline, if one or more of the assessments, estimates or forecasts underlying such
assumptions failure to materialize, or ended up only partially materializing, or if they were to materialize at
conditions differing from those assumed, including following events which are currently not foreseeable or
quantifiable concerning the general market climate or business of the Groups of the Companies Taking Part
in the Demerger, the information and trends indicated in Enel’s and EGP’s Strategic Plans and in the
Information Document may not be in line with those that actually materialize in the future.

Moreover, the Information Document sets forth forecasts and estimates on the income of the Groups of the
Companies Taking Part in the Demerger, as well as declarations of superiority and estimates on the
competitive positioning of the Groups of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger, formulated by the
Groups on the basis of their specific expertise in their business sectors, available data and past experience.
Such information has not been verified by independent third parties. The results, competitive positioning and
trend in performance of the Groups of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger may differ, possibly
significantly, in the future with respect to those envisaged in such statements on account of known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors referred to, inter alia, in this Risk Factors Section. The
Auditing Firm’s report on the forward-looking data set forth in this Information Document is attached hereto
as Schedule 10.

To ensure the successful integration of the Set of Assets Demerged, Enel will have to focus particular
attention on management issues and dedicate resources to integrate the assets and business operations into
the Enel Group. The integration process may therefore be subject to delays with regard to the achievement of
the advantages expected from the Demerger.

(See Chapters 4 and 6 of the Information Document).

1.2.10. RISKS RELATED TO THE LEGAL AND REGULATORY FRAMEWORK GOVERNING THE BUSINESS
SECTORS IN WHICH THE ENEL AND EGP GROUPS OPERATE

The Enel and EGP Groups operate in a highly regulated business sector. They are required to comply with
numerous laws and regulations in each of the countries where they operate and the plants in operation and
under development owned by the Enel and EGP Groups must likewise comply with numerous laws and
regulations in force in the same countries, which are moreover subject to change.

The regulatory framework applicable to the sector covers many aspects of the business operations of the Enel
and EGP Groups along the entire electricity supply chain and, as regards Enel, the gas supply chain. Such
regulations impact upon both the manner in which the business operations of the Enel and EGP Groups are
conducted, and the returns attained by some of them. In particular, the regulatory framework governs the
construction of production plants (as regards the obtainment of building permits and additional
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administrative authorizations), as well as their commissioning, and environmental protection (regulations on
landscape protection and noise pollution), as well as the generation and distribution of electricity and gas. In
particular, the regulatory framework applicable to the production of electricity using renewable sources
varies from country to country and is subject to future developments, which at times are not easily
predictable, which may as a result have positive or negative effects for the Enel and EGP Groups.

The growing tendency on the part of regulatory authorities to implement procedures for the development of
production from renewable sources based upon competitive processes and the declining trend in unit costs of
solar and wind technologies will mean that the relevance of fixed incentive mechanisms (such as green
certificates and feed-in tariffs) for the profitability of such energy sources will tend to continue decline over
time.

Despite the foregoing, fixed incentive mechanisms, on which the regulatory frameworks of certain countries
continue to be based, may have a material impact on the income prospects of electricity generation using
renewable sources for operators in this sector. In particular, the sources of renewable energy which present a
lower Load Factor than that of traditional sources are in some cases characterized by profitability that
depends upon incentive policies implemented in the various countries, to a greater extent than non-renewable
generation sources. Such dependence varies significantly on the basis of any factors such as, for example, the
market price of energy, the availability of resources, unitary investments and the costs of operation. Even if
incentive policies for energy deriving from renewable sources have been applied continuously over the last
few years, certain of them already have a fixed term and may end in the next few years, and there is no
guarantee that such policies will continue to remain in place in the future in the countries where the Enel
Green Power Group operates or that the plants that the Enel Green Power Group will start to operate in the
future may benefit from the incentives currently in place, beyond the incentive periods that are already
known at present.

The possible enactment of more restrictive or less favorable regulatory provisions, as well as the imposition
of obligations to adapt or modify existing plants or to fulfill additional formalities or requirements related to
the operation of the plants (such as new monitoring and control procedures) may give rise to changes in
operating conditions and an increase in investments, costs of production or otherwise hamper the
development of the business operations of the Enel and EGP Groups.

Therefore, possible future changes in the regulatory framework applicable to the sector in which the Groups
of the Companies Party to the Demerger operate at the international, national or local levels, may have
adverse effects on the business, results of operations, balance sheet and/or financial condition of the
respective Groups.

Moreover, the high level of complexity and fragmented nature of the national and local regulatory
frameworks applicable to Renewable Energies, coupled with the sometimes less than uniform interpretations
of the same by the competent authorities, complicates business decisions by sector operators, causing
situations of uncertainty and legal proceedings, with possible adverse effects on the business, results of
operations, balance sheet and/or financial condition of the Enel and EGP Groups.

(See Chapter 4 of the Information Document).

1.2.11. RISKS RELATED TO THE OPERATION OF THE ELECTRICITY AND GAS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE
AND THE RENEWABLE ENERGY GENERATION PLANTS OPERATING UNDER ADMINISTRATIVE
CONCESSIONS AND THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF ELECTRICITY PLANTS

The Enel Group operates in Italy a portion of the electricity distribution service and its own hydroelectric
plants under a concession regime.

The Enel Group’s distribution service is carried out, at the global level, mainly under a concession regime,
under long-term contracts (from 30 to 95 years and, in some cases, for an indefinite term).

In particular, the Enel Group’s concessions in Italy expire (i) on December 31, 2030, as regards the
electricity distribution service and (ii) between 2029 and 2040, as regards the hydroelectric plants. The Enel
Group’s hydroelectric plant in Spain operate under an administrative concession regime, with a range of
expiry dates running until 2067. In Brazil, the Enel Group is the concession holder for the electricity
distribution service until 2028.
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In Chile, Colombia and Peru, on the other hand, the applicable regulatory framework does not provide for an
expiry on the term of operation of the concessions, subject to the possibility for the public authorities to
revoke the concession.

As regards the Enel Green Power Group, the hydroelectric and geothermoelectric plants in Italy are operated
under a concession regime, with expiry in, respectively, 2029 for the majority of the former plants and 2024,
under Legislative Decree No. 22 of 2010, for the latter plants. Upon expiry, the concessions will be granted
on the basis of special public procedures, in accordance with art. 12 of the so-called Bersani Decree
(Legislative Decree No. 79 of 1999) for the hydroelectric concessions and art. 9 of Legislative Decree No. 22
of 2010 for geothermoelectric concessions. Furthermore, Enel Green Power Group owns renewable energy
generation plants in different countries. In relation to this, it should be noted that the expiration of the
concessions for plants in Spain have various expiring dates, depending upon the plant, ranging from 2016 to
2067. As regards Latin America, it should be recalled that the Enel Green Power Group owns renewable
energy generation plants such as, for example hydroelectric, wind and photovoltaic plants in various
countries, including Brazil, Chile, Costa Rica, Guatemala, Uruguay, Mexico and Panama. Such plants
operate under a concession regime with expiries ranging depending upon the country and the type of plant; in
particular, in such countries, the Enel Green Power Group owns administrative concessions with expiries, for
(i) hydroelectric plants, ranging from 2017 to 2057, (ii) wind plants, ranging from 2032 to 2050 and (iii)
solar plants, from 2025 to 2054.

Despite continuous attention focused on the correct operation of the above-mentioned plants and compliance
with the applicable legal framework, it cannot be ruled out that the concessions pursuant to which they are
operated may be revoked or cancelled or not renewed at the respective expiries.

The possible revocation, cancellation or non-renewal of such concessions or the grant of concessions at less
favorable economic conditions for the Groups of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger, including
upon the renewal of concessions that expire, may have a negative impact on the business, the performance
and the financial situation of the Groups of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger.

Moreover, the development, construction and operation of electricity plants are subject to particularly
complex administrative procedures which require the obtainment of numerous permits from the competent
national and local authorities.

Such procedures vary from country to country and the related applications may be rejected by the competent
authorities for numerous reasons or may be approved with delays, possibly significant ones, with respect to
the envisaged timetables. The obtainment of permits may also be delated or hindered by possible changes in
the regulatory frameworks in force in the individual countries where the Group operates or even by
oppositions on the part of local residents in the areas affected by the projects.

The possible failure to obtain or late obtainment of such permits, concessions and/or authorizations necessary
for the plants under development, the revocation, cancellation or non-renewal of permits and authorizations
obtained by the Groups of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger for existing plants, as well as the
possible opposition by third parties against the rulings granting such permits, concessions and authorizations,
may lead the Groups of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger to change or reduce their development
objectives in certain areas or technologies, and/have a negative impact on the business, the performance and
the financial situation of the Groups of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger.

1.2.12. RISKS RELATED TO THE INTERRUPTIONS IN THE OPERATION OF GRID INFRASTRUCTURES
AND PLANTS

In conducting their business, the Enel and EGP Groups are exposed to risks of malfunctions and unexpected
interruptions in services resulting from events falling beyond their control, such as accidents, breakdowns or
malfunctioning of control devices or systems, manufacturing defects in the components of the plants, natural
disasters, terrorist attacks and other similar extraordinary events.

The restoration of plants following such events may give rise to an increase in costs, potential losses, and the
need to change the investment plans of the Enel and EGP Groups. Furthermore, the malfunctions or
interruptions in service of the plants may expose the Enel and EGP Groups to the risk of legal proceedings,
which in the event of unfavorable outcomes, may lead to indemnity obligations. Although the Enel and EGP
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Groups believe that they have appropriate insurance coverage in place, the same may turn out to be
insufficient upon the occurrence of such circumstances.

The occurrence of one or more of the circumstances described above may have a negative impact on the
business, the performance and the financial situation of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger and their
respective Groups.

1.2.13. RISKS RELATED TO THE PROTECTION OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND THE IMPACT OF PLANTS
UPON THE SURROUNDING ENVIRONMENT AND RESIDENTS

The business operations of the Enel and EGP Groups are strictly regulated from an environmental standpoint
at the national, EU and international levels. The legal framework on environmental matters concerns
atmospheric emissions of pollutants, the pollution of waters and the disposal of wastes generated by the
business operations related to the generation and distribution of electricity (including procedures related to
the decommissioning of nuclear plants).

The Enel and EGP Groups incur considerable costs to adapt their structures and to render their business
operations compliant with the requisites imposed under various environmental laws. Such laws require the
implementation of the prevention and remediation measures and structures and influence the decisions and
corporate strategies of the Enel and EGP Groups.

In such regard, also taking into account the particular attention focused by public opinion on environmental
matters, it cannot be ruled out that the enactment, at the national or EU level, or in the countries where the
Enel and EGP Groups operate, of more stringent regulatory provisions that result in a rise in costs or levels
of liability faced by the Enel and EGP Groups on environmental matters, with consequent greater costs of
prevention and of environmental restoration imposed upon the Enel and EGP Groups. Enel is not able to
predict the nature and possible effects of such potential future events or regulatory provisions on its results of
operations. The impossibility for the Enel and EGP Groups to recover, on the basis of tariff systems in force
in Italy and in other countries where they operate, possible increased costs incurred for environmental
protection, may have a negative impact on the business, the performance and the financial situation of the
Enel and EGP Groups.

As for the reduction in carbon dioxide emissions, the EU regulatory framework imposes costs for the
electricity sector upon the system for the exchange of CO, quotas, which in the future may become
increasingly stringent. The possible future imposition of increasingly onerous costs related to carbon dioxide
emissions, as well as the rise in the instability of the quotas market, may have a negative impact on the
business, the performance and the financial situation of Enel and the Enel Group.

The Enel Group operates in the generation of electricity using nuclear plants through Endesa and Slovenské
elektrarne A.S. (“SE”). As of September 30, 2015, Endesa held quotas in seven nuclear energy production
plant the capacity of which totals 3,318 MW. As of the same date, Enel Group — through SE — owned in
Slovakia four reactors in operation, for a total net capacity of 1,816 MW and, as of the Date of the
Information Document, works are in progress for the construction of units 3 and 4 of the nuclear plant of
Mochovce having a total net capacity of 876 MW. With reference to the SE, it must be highlighted that, on
December 18, 2015, Enel Group, through its subsidiary Enel Produzione S.p.A., entered into an agreement
with EP Slovakia BV (“EP Slovakia”), company controlled by Energeticky a prumysovy holding a.s.
(“EPH™) related to the sale of the shareholding held by Enel Produzione in SE, equal to 66% of the share
capital of such company. The sale has been made through the contribution in a newly incorporated company
(“HoldCo”) of the whole shareholding held by Enel Produzione in SE. The transaction, whose completion is
subject to the approval of the EU’s Antitrust Authority, is set to take palace in two phases: during the first
phase, Enel Produzione will sell a 50% stake of HoldCo’s share capital to EP Slovakia; during the second
phase, Enel Produzione or EP Slovakia, after 12 month from the achieving of the Trial Operation Pemit
related to units 3 and 4 of the nuclear power plant of Mochovce, could exercise a put option or a call option.
In accordance to the timing of the work, it is expected that such options will become exercisable within the
end of the first semester of the 2019. After the exercise of one of the options, Enel Produzione will sell the
remaining 50% stake of HoldCo’s share capital to EP Slovakia. Moreover pursuant to the agreement, if the
options will not become exercisable within the above mentioned terms, they will become exercisable anyway
starting from June 30, 2022.
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Even if Enel believes that all of SE’s and Endesa’s nuclear plants employ internationally accepted
technologies and are operated in compliance with the standards in force in Western Europe, the
shareholdings in such companies expose the Enel Group to the risk related to the possession and operation of
plants that generate nuclear energy, including the risks related to the manipulation, treatment, transport,
disposal and storage of radioactive materials and spent fuels, as well as the potentially harmful effects for the
environment and human health.

In this regard, it should be noted that in the nuclear sector, in line with international treaties on the matter, the
liability that may be attributed to the nuclear operator is subject to a maximum amount that is defined
differently by the legislation of the individual countries. In particular, for Slovakia, the limit is set at Euro 75
million per event and in Spain at Euro 1,200 million per event. On the basis of international treaties, nuclear
operators are under a duty to take out specific insurance policies covering their liability, with maximum
coverage in the amount of the above-mentioned maximum liability.

The occurrence of one or more of the circumstances described above may have a negative impact on the
business, the performance and the financial situation of Enel and the Enel Group.

Lastly, the construction of plants through which the Enel and EGP Groups operate may, in certain cases,
alter or modify the surrounding natural habitat and, in particular, may affect the landscape, give rise to
accidents, noise pollution and changes in the existing flora and fauna.

In certain areas, the construction of plants is met with opposition on the part of associations or groups of
local residents in consideration of the alleged change in the state of the territory and landscape existing prior
to the construction of the plants.

Although the development of energy production plants is preceded by environmental impact and landscape
studies, and on the surrounding communities, as well as the organization of meetings with residents and with
other parties who may have interests affected by the development of the project, the plants under
construction may not be viewed favorably or accepted by the communities affected. In addition, while the
legal framework of the various countries where the Enel and EGP Groups operate provide for procedures
that safeguard the environment and the landscape surrounding the plants, any opposition reiterated over time
by the local communities may lead to the enactment of more restrictive rules or may render more difficult the
obtainment of the necessary administrative authorizations and lead to a rise in costs.

Any opposition to the construction and/or operation of certain plants of the Groups of the Companies Taking
Part in the Demerger, as well as a rise in oppositions before the competent bodies may hamper or delay the
development of projects, with consequent negative impact on the business, the performance and the financial
situation of the Enel and EGP Groups.

1.2.14. RISKS RELATED TO CHANGES IN WEATHER

The consumption of electricity and natural gas varies considerably also on the basis of changes in weather.
Therefore, substantial and repeated changes in climatic conditions may lead to significant differences in
demand for energy and in the production mix, with a negative impact on the business, the performance and
the financial situation of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger and their respective Groups.

Moreover, the availability of hydroelectric, wind and sun sources varies on the basis of weather conditions in
the places where the relevant plants are located and, in particular, on the basis of rainfall for the first type,
wind for the second type and solar radiation for the third type, while the geothermal source is not subject to
changes related to changes in weather.

Therefore, possible adverse weather conditions may lead to lower productivity and, therefore, profitability of
Enel and EGP Groups’ plants, also with reference to the measurements made during the development phase
of the projects on the availability of the source and the forecasts on weather conditions and the consequent
profitability of the plants, which may not materialize.

While technological diversification enables the Enel and EGP Groups to mitigate the risks related to the
above-mentioned changes, the possibility of prolonged adverse weather conditions with regard to the various
sources in which the same operate may give rise to a reduction in the electricity volumes produced by the
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Enel and EGP Groups, with consequent negative impact on the business and on the performance and on
financial situation of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger and their respective Groups .

1.2.15. RISKS RELATED THE POLITICAL, SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC INSTABILITY IN THE COUNTRIES
WHERE THE GROUPS OF THE COMPANIES TAKING PART IN THE DEMERGER OPERATE

The Groups of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger operate in a number of emerging countries which
are exposed to risks related to, inter alia, social inequality, political instability, as well as significant
fluctuations in inflation deriving from economies that are not very diversified and a high level of dependence
upon commodities. Such countries may have financial markets that are not well developed, an inadequate
protection of creditors due to the absence of efficient insolvency procedures, limitations on investments and
significant fluctuations in exchange rates.

The Companies Taking Part in the Demerger cannot rule out the possibility that the occurrence of one or
more of the circumstances referred to above in one or more of the countries in which the respective Groups
operate may have adverse effects on the business, results of operations, balance sheet and financial condition
of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger and their respective Groups.

1.2.16. RISKS RELATED TO MACROECONOMIC CLIMATE

The financial crisis that impacted the banking system and financial markets from 2008 until 2013, as well as
the consequent worsening of macroeconomic conditions that gave rise to a contraction in consumption and
industrial production at the worldwide level, have also caused a restriction in conditions for access to credit,
causing a widespread and persistent volatility in the financial markets with particular repercussions in the
debt and equity segments.

In addition, the trend in electricity and gas consumption remains, particularly for emerging economies and
much less so for mature markets, influenced by the trend in industrial production, which constitutes one of
the main indicators of economic trends at the worldwide level.

The above mentioned international financial difficulties have recently, along with other factors, led to an
economic recession in certain mature geographic markets where the Groups of the Companies Taking Part in
the Demerger operate and a contraction in growth in certain emerging countries.

The current macroeconomic environment, characterized by low commodity prices and a weak Euro against
the U.S. dollar, has encouraged the recovery of European economies, by supporting the export growth and
the domestic demand recovery, increasing the confidence of both consumers and producers. In Latin
America, the end of the economic cycle characterized by high commaodity prices, which for years has been
supported by a growing demand for raw materials mainly from China and other Asian economies, led the
main economic and industrial indicators to slow down.

If a new slow-down in industrial production were to occur in advanced/mature countries and if the slow-
downs in economic activities were to continue in the emerging countries, the contrition in energy
consumption may last in one or more of the markets where the Groups of the Companies Taking Part in the
Demerger operate, with a consequent adverse effect on the business, results of operations, balance sheets and
financial conditions of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger and their respective Groups.

1.2.17. RISKS RELATED TO TAXATION AND TAXES APPLIED IN THE COUNTRIES WHERE THE ENEL
AND EGP GROUPS OPERATE

The Enel and EGP Groups are subject to the payment of taxes and duties in various jurisdictions and
determine the amounts due on the basis of the interpretation of the tax laws and regulations in force in the
countries where they operate. The Enel and EGP Groups may, therefore, incur adverse effects deriving from
tax audits or assessments as a result of possible different interpretations of the tax laws applicable to them,
including the payment of interest and sanctions. As a result of the foregoing, and also in the event of the
enactment of new tax laws or changes in existing tax laws, the financial position of the Enel and EGP
Groups and their ability to repay their debts may be materially impacted.
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1.2.18. RISKS RELATED TO THE CLASSIFICATION OF THE PIPELINE

The Enel Green Power Group has developed internally the specific criteria and procedures for the
classification of its pipeline, which may differ from those used by other operators in the sector and which are
not verified or ratified by third parties.

In particular, the Enel Green Power Group has developed a methodology for the classification of projects on
the basis of their different stages of development and, therefore, their probability of being successfully
completed, which classifies them as “Potential”, “Likely” and “Highly Confident”. The total projects
comprising the pipeline (totaling, as of September 30, 2015, approximately 21 GW) multiplied by the
likelihood of their success (20% for “Potential” projects, 50% for “Likely” projects and 90% for “Highly
Confident” projects) is identified by the Group as the net pipeline. As of September 30, 2015, the value of
the Group’s net pipeline totaled approximately 7 GW.

The classification of pipeline projects is updated on a periodic basis, through a verification for each project
of the state of progress in light of the following factual elements, and identified on the basis of the operating
experience gained by the Enel Green Power Group’s structure: (i) exclusivity rights in the project; (ii) rights
to the land; (iii) valuation of the site and resources; (iv) obtainment of permits and (v) connection to the
transmission grids.

Although the classification of the projects is carried out on the basis of rigorous procedure and elements that
are as objective as possible, it cannot be ruled out that the estimates and forecasts made by the Enel Green
Power Group on the likelihood of success of the Enel Green Power Group’s development products may turn
out to be inaccurate, which could have adverse effects on the Enel Green Power Group’s development
projects and, consequently, on the business, results of operations, balance sheet and/or financial condition of
the Enel Green Power Group.

1.2.19. RISKS RELATED TO TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS

The technologies used in the production of energy using renewable sources are continuously evolving and
are subject to rapid changes and to an ongoing process of improvement, particularly with reference to the
improvement of performance, including through the use of accumulation systems, integration in urban
environments and the use of new resources such as oceans.

In order to remain competitive, the cost of energy produced and to develop its business, the Enel Green
Power Group must continuously update its technologies and engage in innovation activities in order to render
them more efficient, including by investing in projects aimed at the integration of energy accumulation
systems with existing power plants fueled by renewable sources, in order to improve their efficiency, while
preventing, to the maximum extent possible, risks related to technological discontinuities. Therefore,
innovation constitutes one of the key elements in the Enel Green Power Group’s pursuit of sustainable
growth.

The Enel Green Power Group realizes innovation programs which it finances mainly through its own funds
and public funds (of both Italian and EU origin). In particular, in year 2014, total outlays for the realization
of innovation programs incurred by the Enel Green Power Group amounted to Euro 16.9 million, or
approximately 0.6% of the consolidated revenues for that year (outlays in 2015 are in line with those
incurred in 2014). Over the period 2016 — 2019, it is expected that the outlays to be dedicated to these
activities will be even greater, totaling approximately Euro 120 million.

If the Enel Green Power Group were not in a position to acquire or develop adequately the technologies
available on the market in the context of the various sources in which it operates, it may have to change or
reduce its development objectives in certain technologies or incur a reduction in the efficiency of its plants,
which could have adverse effects on the business, results of operations, balance sheet and financial condition
of the Enel Green Power Group. Furthermore, the cost of development or acquisition of necessary
technologies is significant and may rise, which could have adverse effects on the business, results of
operations, balance sheet and financial condition of the Enel Green Power Group.
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1.2.20. RISKS RELATED TO RELATIONSHIPS WITH STRATEGIC PARTNERS

In certain of the countries in which they operate, the Enel and EGP Groups pursue their own development
programs through, inter alia, co-development or joint venture agreements (in certain albeit limited cases,
with non-controlling shareholdings) with local or international operators. The decision to enter into
agreements with third party developers or operators is generally driven by the opportunity of benefiting from
the experience and consolidated presence of such operators on the local market.

The possible failure to reach an agreement with international or local partners on the procedures and
timelines for the development of a project or on the management of the same could have an adverse effect on
the above-mentioned Groups’ capacity to develop certain projects.

The Enel and EGP Groups may, therefore, have to change or reduce their development objectives in certain
areas or technologies, which could have possible adverse effects on their respective business operations,
results of operations, balance sheets and financial conditions.

Moreover, the Enel and EGP Groups have entered into in a number of countries development agreements
with local partners, which provide for specific obligations for such partners. If such partners were to fail to
honor their commitments under the agreements entered into, delays may arise in the pursuit of the
development objectives, which could have possible adverse effects on the Enel and EGP Groups’ respective
business operations, results of operations, balance sheets and financial conditions. The possible exit by
strategic partners from such joint venture agreements may also give rise to the renegotiation with third
parties of possible agreements entered into by the joint venture that contain clauses that allow for the
termination of the agreements in the event of change of control.

(See Chapter 4 of the Information Document).

1.2.21. CONTROL BY THE MEF OVER ENEL

As of the Date of this Information Document, Enel is subject to de facto control, within the meaning set forth
in art. 93 of the TUF, on the part of the MEF, which holds a 25.5% stake in Enel’s share capital (such
shareholding, moreover, will be reduced as a result of the Demerger, as indicated in Paragraph 2.1.3 below).

As long as it continues to remain the main shareholder of Enel, the MEF may influence the resolutions of the
Shareholders’ Meeting, including on the distribution of dividends. The MEF’s favorable vote, where
exercised, may also be determinant with regard to the election of the majority of the directors, in accordance
with the slate voting mechanism provided under art. 14 of the By-laws.

Enel is not subject to the exercise of any direction or coordination activities on the part of the MEF, within
the meaning set forth in art. 2497 of the Civil Code, pursuant to the provisions of art. 19, paragraph 6, of
Draft law no. 78/2009 (converted by Law no. 102/2009) which clarified that the Italian State is not subject to
the provisions set forth in the Civil Code on the direction and coordination of companies.

(See Paragraph 2.1.3 of the Information Document).

1.3. RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
1.3.1. RISKS RELATED TO THE EQUITY INVESTMENT

Following the completion of the Demerger, the holders of EGP shares (with the exception of Enel and those
who may exercise the Right of Withdrawal or the Right of Sale) will become the holders of Enel shares.
Enel’s business following the Demerger will have characteristics that differ significantly from that of EGP
prior to the Demerger and, therefore, after the Demerger, the market price of Enel shares may be affected by
factors other than those that influence the market price of EGP shares as of the Date of the Information
Document.

Moreover, the shares issued to service the Demerger, like the other ordinary Enel shares outstanding, present
the risk elements intrinsic in investments in listed shares of the same type. The holders of ordinary Enel
shares may sell their investments on the regulated markets on which Enel shares are listed. The share price
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may be subject to fluctuations, which may be significant, and the shares may be subject to difficulties in
selling equity investments which are common and generalized, regardless of the company or the amount of
the securities being sold, and sale offers may not be met with adequate and timely buy bids on the market.

(See Chapter 2 of the Information Document).
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2. INFORMATION ON THE DEMERGER

2.1, SUMMARY DESCRIPTION OF THE PROCEDURES AND TERMS OF THE DEMERGER
2.1.1. Description companies taking part in the Demerger

2.1.1.1.  Enel S.p.A.

Company name, legal form, registered office, share capital and ownership structure

Enel S.p.A., a joint stock company organized under Italian law whose shares are listed on the MTA.

Enel has its registered office at Viale Regina Margherita 137, Rome, Tax Code and Registration with the
Register of Companies of Rome No. 00811720580; Chamber of Commerce (R.E.A.) No. 756032, VAT
Code No. 00934061003.

As of the Date of this Information Document, Enel’s share capital amounts to Euro 9,403,357,795, entirely
paid in, comprised of 9,403,357,795 ordinary shares having a nominal value of Euro 1.00 each.

For information on the composition of the shareholding structure, see Chapter 2, paragraph 2.1.3, of this
Information Document.

Corporate Term and financial year
The company’s corporate term is set to last until December 31, 2100.

The financial year ends on December 31 of each year.

Corporate Purpose

Enel’s corporate purpose is the acquisition and management of shareholdings and interests in Italian or
foreign companies and firms and the performance in favor of subsidiary companies and firms of functions of
strategic guidance and coordination of their industrial organization structures and business operations.

Enel, through its subsidiaries or affiliates, operates, in particular:

a) in the electricity industry, including the activities of production, importation, exportation, distribution and
sale, as well as transmission within the limits of existing legislation;

b) in the energy industry in general, including fuels, and in the field of environmental protection, as well as
in the water sector;

¢) in the communications, telematics and information-technology industries and those of multimedia and
interactive services;

d) in network-based sectors (electricity, water, gas, district heating, telecommunications) or those which, in
any case, provide urban services locally;

e) in other sectors in any way related to or connected with the activities carried out in the sectors mentioned
above, allowing the facilities, resources and expertise employed in the sectors mentioned above and allowing
the profitable use of the goods produced and the services provided in the sectors mentioned above;

f) in the carrying out of activities involving systems and installations design, construction, maintenance and
management; the production and sale of equipment; research, consulting and assistance; as well as the
acquisition, sale, marketing and trading of goods and services, all activities connected with the sectors
referred to in letters a), b), c) and d) above.

In the interest of its affiliates or subsidiaries, Enel may furthermore carry out directly any activity connected
with or instrumental to its own business or that of its affiliates or subsidiaries themselves. Moreover, in
pursuing its corporate purpose, Enel may also carry out all transactions that are instrumentally necessary or
useful or at any rate related.
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Board of Directors

Enel’s Board of Directors, appointed by the shareholders’ meeting held on May 22, 2014 and later
supplemented by the shareholders’ meeting held on May 28, 2015, through the appointment of a new
director to replace a director who had previously resigned, will remain in office until the date of the
shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial statement for year ended December 31, 2016. As of the
date of this Information Document, Enel’s Board of Directors is comprised of the following members:

Name Office

Maria Patrizia Grieco Chairman @

Francesco Starace Chief Executive Officer and General Manager
Alfredo Antoniozzi Director @

Alessandro Banchi Director @

Alberto Bianchi Director @

Paola Girdinio Director @

Alberto Pera Director @

Anna Chiara Svelto Director @

Angelo Taraborrelli Director @

@ Independent director within the meaning set forth in arts.147-ter, paragraph 4, and 148, paragraph 3, of the TUF.

@ Independent director within the meaning set forth in arts. 147-ter, paragraph 4, and 148, paragraph 3, of the Consolidated Finance
Act, and art. 3 of the Corporate Governance Code.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Committees established within Enel’s Board of Directors are the Control and Risks Committee, the
Nomination and Compensation Committee, the Related Parties Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee. In particular:

- the Control and Risks Committee is comprised of four independent directors: Angelo Taraborrelli
(Chairman), Paola Girdinio, Alberto Pera and Anna Chiara Svelto. The committee has the task of
supporting, through an adequate review process, and with prepositive and consultative functions, the
assessments and decisions of Enel’s Board of Directors regarding the internal control and risk
management system and the approval of periodic financial reports.

- the Nomination and Compensation Committee is comprised of four independent directors: Alessandro
Banchi (Chairman), Paola Girdinio, Alberto Pera and Anna Chiara Svelto. The committee has the task
of supporting Enel’s Board of Directors, through proper enquiry and with prepositive and consultative
functions, in its assessments and decisions on the size and composition of the Board itself, and on the
policy on the remuneration of Directors and key Executives. The committee, in the context of its
functions, elaborates, submits to the Board of Directors and monitors the application of incentive
systems directed at management, including any stock-based remuneration plans.

- the Related Parties Committee is comprised of four independent directors: Alberto Bianchi
(Chairman), Alfredo Antoniozzi, Alessandro Banchi and Angelo Taraborrelli. The committee has the
task of performing the functions provided under the relevant Consob provisions and Enel’s specific
procedure for transactions with related parties, with particular regard to the issuance of a reasoned
opinion on transactions that are relevant for purposes of such procedure.
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- the Corporate Governance Committee is comprised of three directors: Maria Patrizia Grieco
(Chairman), Alfredo Antoniozzi, Alberto Bianchi. The committee has the task of assisting Enel’s
Board of Directors through preliminary functions, of a prepositive and consultative nature, in its
assessments and decisions related to the corporate governance of Enel and the Group and to corporate
social responsibility issues.

Executive in charge of preparing the corporate accounting documents

The functions of executive in charge of preparing Enel’s corporate accounting documents are performed by
the head of Enel’s “Administration, Finance and Control” function, Alberto De Paoli.

Board of Statutory Auditors

Enel’s Board of Statutory Auditors, appointed by the shareholders’ meeting held on April 30, 2013, will
remain in office until the date of the shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial statement for year
ended December 31, 2015. As of the date of this report, Enel’s Board of Statutory Auditors is comprised of
the following members:

Name Office

Sergio Duca Chairman

Lidia D’Alessio Statutory Auditor
Gennaro Mariconda Statutory Auditor
Giulia De Martino Alternate Auditor
Pierpaolo Singer Alternate Auditor
Franco Tutino Alternate Auditor

Auditing Firm

The firm engaged to audit Enel’s accounts for the period 2011-2019 is Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A., a
company with registered office at Via Po n. 32, Rome, authorized and regulated by the Ministry of the
Economy and Finance (“Ministero dell’Economia e delle Finanze” or “MEF”) and registered with the
special register of auditing firms kept by the MEF.

The Auditing Firm has performed auditing activities on Enel’s standalone financial statement and
consolidated financial statement as of December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 in accordance with art. 14 of
Legislative Decree 39/2010, on the short-form half-year consolidated financial statement as of June 30, 2015,
as well as on the short-form consolidated financial statement as of September 30, 2015.

In particular, the Auditing Firm has issued:

(i) its audit reports, without observations, on Enel’s standalone and consolidated financial statements for
years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively, on April 4, 2013, April 10, 2014 and April 8,
2015;

(ii) its report, without observations, on the limited review of the short-form half-year consolidated financial
statement as of June 30, 2015, on August 3, 2015; and

(iii) its report, without observations, on the limited review of the short-form half-year consolidated financial
statement as of September 30, 2015, on December, 17 2015.

The mandate for the auditing of Enel’s standalone and consolidated financial statement was granted to the
same Auditing Firm for years 2011-2019, by Enel’s shareholders’ meeting held on April 29, 2011 in
accordance with arts. 14 and 17 of Legislative Decree 39/2010. The same mandate also includes the limited

—37-



review of Enel’s short-form half-year financial statement as of June 30, of each year for the nine years 2011-
2019.

2.1.1.2. Enel Green Power S.p.A.

Company name, legal form, registered office, share capital and shareholding structure

Enel Green Power S.p.A., a joint stock company organized and existing under Italian law whose shares are
listed on the MTA and on the Spanish continuous electronic trading system (Sistema de Interconexion
Bursatil, SIBE), subject to guidance and coordination on the part of Enel pursuant to art. 2497 et seq. of the
Italian Civil Code.

Enel Green Power’s registered office is located at Viale Regina Margherita, 125, Rome, Tax Code and
Register of Companies of Rome No. 10236451000, Chamber of Commerce (R.E.A.) of Rome N0.1219253,
VAT Code No. 10236451000.

As of the date of this Information Document, EGP’s share capital amounts to Euro 1,000,000,000, entirely
paid in, comprised of 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares having a nominal value of Euro 0.20 each.

For information on the shareholding structure, see Chapter 2, paragraph 2.1.3, of this Information Document.

Corporate Term and financial year
The company’s corporate term is set to last until December 31, 2100.

The financial year ends on December 31 of each year.

Corporate Purpose

Enel Green Power’s corporate purpose is the conduct and development of activities of production and sale of
electric power generated from renewable sources.

To such end, Enel Green Power may, either directly or indirectly through subsidiaries or affiliates, operate
either in Italy or abroad and perform any other connected, instrumental, similar, complementary or however
useful activity to the pursuit of its corporate purpose.

Enel Green Power may, furthermore, carry out research, consultancy and assistance activities in all sectors
pertaining to its corporate purpose, and any other activity that allows for a better use and valorization of the
assets, resources and competencies employed.

Enel Green Power may furthermore carry out directly, on behalf of its subsidiaries or affiliates, any activity
connected with or instrumental to its activities or those of the subsidiaries or affiliates.

In pursuing its corporate purpose, Enel Green Power may, carry out all those operations which are necessary
or useful in an instrumental function or in any way connected.

Board of Directors

EGP’s Board of Directors currently in office was appointed by the shareholders’ meeting held on April 24,
2013 and was later supplemented (i) by the shareholders’ meeting held on May 8, 2015, through the
appointment of three directors previously co-opted by the Board of Directors to replace another three
directors who had resigned and (ii) by the Board of Directors’s meeting held on June 16, 2015, through the
co-optation of a director, to replace another director who had resigned in May 2015; the appointment of this
latter director will be proposed to the ordinary shareholders’ meeting called on January 11, 2016. The Board
of Directors will remain in office until the date of the shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial
statement for year ended December 31, 2015. As of the date of this report, EGP’s Board of Directors is
comprised of the following members:
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Name Office
Alberto De Paoli Chairman
Francesco Venturini Chief Executive Office and General Manager
Luca Anderlini Director @
Carlo Angelici Director
Ludovica Parodi Borgia Director
Giovanni Battista Lombardo Director
Giovanni Pietro Malagnino Director
Paola Muratorio Director ¥
Francesca Romana Napolitano Director
Luciana Tarozzi Director ¥

@ Independent director within the meaning set forth in arts. 147-ter, paragraph 4, and 148, paragraph 3, of the Consolidated Finance
Act, and art. 3 of the Corporate Governance Code.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Committees established within EGP’s Board of Directors are the Control and Risks Committee, the
Nomination and Compensation Committee and the Related Parties Committee. In particular:

- the Control and Risks Committee, is comprised of three non-executive and independent directors:
Giovanni Battista Lombardo (Chairman), Luciana Tarozzi and Giovanni Pietro Malagnino. The
committee has the task of supporting, through an adequate review process and with prepositive and
consultative functions, the assessments and decisions by the Board of Directors regarding the internal
control and risk management system and the approval of periodic financial reports.

- the Nomination and Compensation Committee, is comprised of three non-executive and independent
directors: Carlo Angelici (Chairman), Luca Anderlini and Paola Muratorio. The committee has the
task of assisting the Board of Directors, through proper and with prepositive and consultative
functions, in its assessments and decisions on the size and composition of the Board itself, and on the
policy on the remuneration of Directors and key Executives. The committee, furthermore, in the
context of its functions, elaborates, submits to the Board of Directors and monitors the application of
incentive systems directed at management, including any stock-based remuneration plans.

- the Related Parties Committee is comprised of three non-executive, independent directors: Carlo
Angelici (Chairman), Luca Anderlini and Giovanni Pietro Malagnino. The committee has the task of
performing the functions provided under the relevant Consob provisions and EGP’s specific procedure
for transactions with related parties, with particular regard to the issuance of a reasoned opinion on
transactions that are relevant for purposes of such procedure.

Executive in charge of preparing corporate accounting documents

The functions of executive in charge of preparing EGP’s corporate accounting documents are performed by
the head of EGP’s “Administration, Finance and Control” function, Giulio Antonio Carone.

Board of Statutory Auditors
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EGP’s Board of Statutory Auditors, appointed by the shareholders’ meeting held on May 13, 2014, will
remain in office until the shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial statement for the year ended
December 31, 2016. As of the date of this report, the Board of Statutory Auditors is comprised of the
following members:

Name Office

Franco Fontana Chairman

Maria Rosaria Leccese Statutory Auditor
Giuseppe Ascoli Statutory Auditor
Anna Rosa Adiutori Alternate Auditor
Pietro La China Alternate Auditor
Alessio Temperini Alternate Auditor

Auditing Firm

The firm engaged to audit Enel Green Power’s accounts for the period 2011-2019 is Reconta Ernst & Young
S.p.A., a company with registered office at Via Po n. 32, Rome, authorized and regulated by the MEF and
registered with the special register of auditing firms kept by the MEF.

The Auditing Firm has performed auditing activities on Enel Green Power’s standalone financial statement
and consolidated financial statement as of December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 in accordance with art. 14 of
Legislative Decree 39/2010, on the short-form half-year consolidated financial statement as of June 30, 2015,
as well as on the short-form consolidated financial statement as of September 30, 2015.

In particular, the Auditing Firm has issued:

(i) its audit reports, without observations, on Enel Green Power’s standalone and consolidated financial
statements for years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively, on April 2, 2013, April 9, 2014
and April 8, 2015;

(i) its report, without observations, on the limited accounting review of the short-form half-year
consolidated financial statement as of June 30, 2015, on August 3, 2015; and

(iii) its report, without observations, on the limited accounting review of the short-form half-year
consolidated financial statement as of September 30, 2015, on December 17, 2015.

The mandate for the auditing of Enel Green Power’s standalone and consolidated financial statement was
granted to the same Auditing Firm for years 2011-2019, by Enel Green Power’s shareholders’ meeting held
on April 27, 2011 in accordance with arts. 14 and 17 of Legislative Decree 39/2010. The same mandate also
includes the limited accounting review of EGP short-form half-year financial statement as of June 30, of
each year for the nine years 2011-2019.

2.1.2. Description of the structure, terms and conditions of the Demerger
2.1.2.1 Procedures, conditions and terms of the Demerger
Type, procedures and terms of the Demerger

The transaction illustrated in this Information Document, related to the integration of Enel Green Power into
the Enel Group, will be achieved — taking into account the regulatory bounds set forth by Legislative Decree
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no. 79 of March, 16, 1999" — by a partial non-proportional demerger of Enel Green Power in favor of its
controlling shareholder Enel, with the issue upon exchange, and non-proportional assignment to the
Demerged Company’s shareholders of newly issued shares in the Beneficiary Company.

In this regard, the Boards of Directors of Enel and Enel Green Power held on November 17, 2015 approved,
in accordance with art. 2506-bis and art. 2506-ter of the Civil Code, the Demerger Plan, which entails:

- the assignment by Enel Green Power in favor of Enel of a set of assets demerged (the “Set of Assets
Demerged”, as better described in Paragraph 2.2 below), essentially consisting of (i) the totalitarian
shareholding held by EGP in Enel Green Power International, a holding company organized and
existing under Dutch law which holds shareholdings in companies operating in the renewable energies
sectors in North America, Central America and South America, Europe, South Africa and India, and
(ii) assets, liabilities, agreements, legal relationships pertaining to such shareholding; and

- the retention by EGP of all remaining assets and liabilities other than those comprising the Set of
Assets Demerged (and, therefore, essentially, the Italian assets and the limited remaining foreign
shareholdings).

As of the Date of Effect of the Demerger (as defined below), the quota of EGP’s share capital corresponding
to the Set of Assets Demerged will be exchanged on the basis of the Exchange Ratio defined in Paragraph
2.2.4 below; the Enel shares issued to service the Demerger exchange will be assigned to EGP’s shareholders
in accordance with the non-proportional assignment criterion also indicated in Paragraph 2.2.4. By virtue of
such non-proportional assignment, all of the EGP shares held by shareholders other than Enel will be
exchanged with Enel shares, while Enel will exchange solely a portion of its shares held in EGP; such shares
will be simultaneously cancelled in accordance with the provisions of art. 2504-ter, paragraph 2, of the Civil
Code, without proceeding with the assignment of the same. As a result, on the Date of Effect of the
Demerger: (i) the Beneficiary Company will increase its share capital by the amount indicated in Paragraph
2.2.2 below; (ii) all of the EGP shares exchanged with Enel shares will be cancelled, resulting in a reduction
of the share capital of EGP; and (iii) Enel will be the sole shareholder of EGP, while all of the other
shareholders of the Demerged Company will become shareholders of Enel.

The effectiveness of the Demerger is, in any case, conditioned upon not only the completion of the corporate
procedures, but also the Condition Precedent (as defined below).

The Demerger Plan was prepared on the basis of the financial statements of the Companies Taking Part in
the Demerger as of September 30, 2015, which were drafted and approved — pursuant to and for purposes of
art. 2501-quater of the Civil Code, cited with regard to demergers in art. 2506-ter, paragraph 1, of the Civil
Code - by the Boards of Directors of Enel and Enel Green Power which approved the Demerger Plan.

For a description of the methodologies used to determine the Exchange Ratio and the criterion for the non-
proportional assignment of the shares at the time of exchange, reference is made to Paragraph 2.2.4 below.

On December 7, 2015, the Demerger Plan, for both Companies Taking Part in the Demerger, was registered
in the Companies Register of Rome in accordance with art. 2501-ter, paragraph 3, of the Civil Code, cited in
art. 2506-bis, paragraph 5, of the Civil Code

On December 11, 2015 the Demerger Plan, the financial statements drafted in accordance with art. 2501-
quater of the Italian Civil Code, the explanatory reports by EGP’s and Enel’s Board of Directors drafted in
accordance with art. 2501-quinquies of the Civil Code, the expert’s report drafted in accordance with article
2501-sexies of the Civil Code, and the financial statements for the three years 2014, 2013 and 2012 of the
two companies taking part in the Demerger, have been filed by Enel and EGP, at the respective registered
offices and published on the websites www.enel.com and www.enelgreenpower.com, in accordance with
article 2501-septies of the Civil Code, cited in article 2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Civil Code, and in the
authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com). In addition, in accordance
with the provisions of art. 2506-ter, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code, an appraisal report on the Set of

! Legislative Decree No. 79 of March 16, 1999, imposes to Enel to act as an holding, with mere functions of strategic
planning and coordination of the industrial structure and activities performed by its subsidiaries. Such Legislative
Decree also provides for the company separation of the activities of generation, transmission, distribution and sale,
according to which Enel may not carry out the operating activities conducted by EGP at the Date of the Information
Document.
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Assets Demerged have been drafted by an independent expert, which have been filed with the companies
register of Rome and published through filing at the registered offices of Enel and EGP and on the websites
www.enelgreenpower.com and www.enel.com during the 30 days preceding the extraordinary Shareholders’
Meetings of Enel and EGP called to approve the Demerger and, lastly, filed with the authorized storage
mechanism called “NIS-Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com).

In accordance with art. 57 paragraph 1 letter a) of the Issuers Regulation, the publication of a listing
prospectus in connection with the Demerger is not envisaged since the number of Enel shares issued to
service the Demerger exchange represent less than 10% of the value of Enel shares issued in the last 12
months.

The extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger have been called
on January 11, 2016, in a single call, to approve the Demerger. From the date of registration of the relevant
resolutions in the Companies Register of Rome, (i) a term of sixty days will start to run, within which the
corporate creditors of the two companies may present oppositions against the Demerger in accordance with
art. 2503 of the Civil Code, as cited in art. 2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Civil Code and (ii) a term of fifteen
days will start to run, within which the shareholders of Enel Green Power who do not take part in the
approval of the Demerger may exercise the Right of Withdrawal and/or the Right of Sale.

In compliance with art. 47 of Law No. 428/1990 as subsequently amended and supplemented, Enel and EGP
will complete the trade union disclosure and consultation procedure with regard to the Demerger.

Upon the completion of the above activities, the deed of Demerger will be executed.

As a result of the Demerger, EGP’s shares will cease to be traded on the MTA, and on the Spanish
continuous electronic trading system (Sistema de Interconexién Bursétil, SIBE).

The Demerger as a transaction between related parties

As regards Enel, the Demerger transaction, while being carried out with a related party, is exempt from the
application of the special Procedure for transactions with related party - adopted in accordance with the
Regulation on related party transactions approved by Consob through resolution no. 17221 dated March 12,
2010, as subsequently amended and supplemented (the “RPT Regulation™) - since the transaction is being
concluded with a subsidiary in which there do not exist significant interests of other related parties (within
the meaning set forth in art. 14, paragraph 2, of the RPT Regulation and art. 13.3, letter d), of the above-
mentioned Procedure). In consideration of the foregoing, no involvement on the part of Enel’s Related
Parties Committee was required for the approval of the Demerger Plan.

As regards Enel Green Power, under the RPT Regulation and the related party transaction procedure
approved by Enel Green Power’s Board of Directors on December 1, 2010, most recently amended on
February 3, 2014 ( “EGP’s RPT Procedure”), the Demerger constitutes for Enel Green Power a transaction
of “major importance” with a related party.

Indeed, Enel exercises over Enel Green Power a de jure control pursuant to art. 2359, paragraph 1, no. 1, of
the Civil Code and art. 93 of the TUF. In light of the foregoing, Enel Green Power’s Board of Directors
approved the Demerger Plan upon a reasoned favorable opinion issued by Enel Green Power’s Related
Parties Committee on the latter’s interest in concluding the transaction, as well as on the advantageousness
and substantial fairness of its conditions.

Specifically, the Demerger was submitted to Enel Green Power’s Related Parties Committee which
examined it with support from the independent financial advisors Lazard and Prof. Enrico Laghi, as well as
the independent legal advisor Prof. Agostino Gambino; the latter advisors were selected on the basis of their
proven capacity, professional expertise and experience in analogous or similar transactions.

The independent directors of Enel Green Power (Giovanni Battista Lombardo, Paola Muratorio and Luciana
Tarozzi) were also invited to attend, as they often did, the meetings of Enel Green Power’s Related Parties
Committee, in order to reach a broad consensus on the assessments and analyses delegated to the committee.

Enel Green Power’s Related Parties Committee, in accordance with art. 8, paragraph 1, letter b) of the RPT
Regulation, as well as art. 6 of the RPT Procedure EGP, was involved in the negotiations and review phase,
through timely, complete and adequate information flows, which enable the Committee to remain
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continuously up-to-date on the status of activities performed. The information flows concerned, inter alia,
the main terms and conditions of the transaction, the timetable envisaged for its realization, the valuation
process proposed, the reasons underlying the same transaction, as well as any risks for Enel Green Power and
its subsidiaries. In this context, Enel Green Power’s Related Parties Committee exercised its right to request
information and formulate observations, receiving prompt replies to its requests and observations from the
management involved in the transaction.

Upon the conclusion of its activities, Enel Green Power’s Related Parties Committee, taking into account,
inter alia, the valuation results reached by the financial advisors appointed by the Committee and, in
particular, of the fairness opinion issued by the same on the fairness of the Exchange Ratio, on November
16, 2015, issued unanimously its reasoned favorable opinion on Enel Green Power’s interest to conclude the
transaction, as well as the advantageousness and substantial fairness of its conditions, which was
subsequently sent to Enel Green Power’s Board of Directors and is attached to this Information Document as
Schedule 11.

For a complete description of the procedure followed, as well as the activities performed by Enel Green
Power’s Related Parties Committee and the contents of the opinion, reference is made to the disclosure
document provided under art. 5 of the RPT Regulation, which was made available to the public on
November 24, 2015, at Enel Green Power’s registered office at Viale Regina Margherita, 125, Rome, as well
as on its website (www.enelgreenpower.com) and on the authorized storage mechanism NIS-Storage
(www.emarketstorage.com).

Revocation of EGP shares from listing

As a result of the Demerger, the shares of Enel Green Power will cease to be listed on the MTA and on the
Spanish continuous electronic trading system (Sistema de Interconexion Bursétil, SIBE).

Conditions of the Demerger

The effectiveness of the Demerger is conditioned upon the circumstance that the total Liquidation Value of
the EGP shares with respect to which the Right of Withdrawal and the Right of Sale are validly exercised
does not exceed Euro 300,000,000 (three hundred million/00) (the “Condition Precedent”). In such regard,
merely for the sake of clarity, it should be recalled that, as illustrated in this Information Document and
announced to the market on November 18, 2015, the unitary liquidation value per EGP share, determined in
accordance with art. 2437-ter, paragraph 3, of the Civil Code, is Euro 1.780.

Enel and EGP will announce the data related to the satisfaction or the non-satisfaction of the Condition
Precedent, through a notice published on their respective websites and in at least one national daily
newspaper.

The Condition Precedent will be deemed nonetheless satisfied — even in the event that the above-mentioned
limit is exceeded - if Enel, within 60 calendar days of the last registration with the Companies Register of
Rome of the shareholders’ meeting resolutions approving the Demerger pursuant to art. 2502 of the Italian
Civil Code, declares its intention to proceed with the purchase of all of the shares for which the above-
mentioned rights have been exercised.

Procedure for assigning the Enel shares to Enel Green Power’s shareholders, date of entitlement to the same
and rights related to such shares

The assignment to EGP’s shareholders other than Enel of the newly issued shares of the Beneficiary
Company will take place, under a regime of dematerialization and through authorized intermediaries, starting
on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, with the timing and procedures to be announced to the market
through the publication of a special notice on the Demerged Company’s website and in at least one national
newspaper.

The newly issued Enel shares will be listed on the MTA like the shares of the Beneficiary Company already
outstanding.

No charges will be imposed upon EGP’s shareholders in connection with the exchange procedures.

—43 -



A service will be made available to EGP’s shareholders in order to allow for rounding to the immediately
lower or higher number of Enel shares due upon the application of the Exchange Ratio, without any
additional expenses, stamp duties or fees being charged. Alternatively, different procedures may be activated
in order to ensure the overall successful outcome of the transaction.

Considering that, as already mentioned, the EGP shares are currently admitted to trading also on the Spanish
regulated markets and that the Enel shares assigned at the time of the exchange will not be admitted to
trading on such markets, the Spanish Regulatory Authority (Comision Nacional del Mercado de Valores) has
notified that, in line with the previous similar cases that have occurred on the Spanish markets, it is necessary
to appoint a dedicated “connection/reference” intermediary (referred to as the “entidad de enlace”), in order
to enable the shareholders who, as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger, will hold EGP shares admitted to
trading on the above-mentioned Spanish markets (through the Spanish centralized management system,
Iberclear) to sell on the MTA, during the month following the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the Enel
shares received in exchange, without any additional costs related to the sale on a foreign market. After the
above-mentioned one-month period, the above-mentioned shareholders may purchase or sell the Enel shares
in Italy on the MTA through authorized intermediaries, incurring the costs of the transaction. With regard to
the foregoing, the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger will appoint such intermediary in time to execute
the foregoing activities and will promptly inform the market of such appointment.

The Enel shares issued to service the Exchange Ratio will have regular entitlement.

The Enel shares issued to service the Exchange Ratio will attribute to their holders rights that are identical to
those associated with Enel shares outstanding at the time of their issuance.

Date on which the legal effects of the Demerger will start

The start date of the civil law effects of the Demerger will correspond with the date of the last of the
registrations envisaged under art. 2506-quater of the Italian Civil Code, or such other later date that may be
indicated in the deed of Demerger ( “Date of Effect of the Demerger”). For such purpose, the Shareholders’
Meetings of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger will grant a specific mandate to the boards of
directors in order to define the Date of Effect of the Demerger, if the same falls after the last of the
registrations in the Companies Register.

Starting on the same date, the transactions pertaining to the balance sheet elements assigned to the
Beneficiary Company will be entered in the financial statement of the same Beneficiary Company, with all
related accounting and tax effects.

Accounting treatment of the Demerger and date on which the accounting effects start for Enel and Enel
Green Power

For the purposes of art. 2501-ter, paragraph 1, no. 6 of the Civil Code, cited in art. 2506-quater of the Civil
Code, the accounting effects of the Demerger will start on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, since the
accounting effects of the Demerger will be attributed to the financial statement of the Beneficiary Company
starting on such date.

Tax impacts of the Demerger on Enel and Enel Green Power

For purposes of direct taxes and pursuant to art. 173, paragraph 1, of D.P.R. No. 917 of December 22, 1986,
(the “Tax Code” or “Tuir”), the Demerger is neutral from a tax standpoint for the companies taking part in
it and, therefore, does not give rise to either a realization or a distribution of capital gains or capital losses of
the assets of the Demerged Company being assigned.

The balance sheet elements of the Demerged Company to be assigned to the Beneficiary Company will
maintain the values most recently assigned for tax purposes to the Demerged Company.

The so-called subjective positions of the Demerged Company and the related instrumental obligations will be
assigned the two Beneficiary Company and to the Demerged Company on a pro-rata basis in proportion to
their respective quotas transferred or maintained of the net shareholders’ equity for accounting purposes,
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except in the case of subjective positions specifically or generally related to elements of the demerged assets
which, as such, will remain attached to such elements under their respective holders.

As regards the effects of the Demerger for the shareholders of the Demerged Company, the Demerger is
neutral from a tax standpoint, since it does not constitute either a realization or distribution of capital gains or
capital losses, and does not give rise to the attainment of revenues; as for the tax value of the shares of the
Demerged Company held by shareholders other than Enel, it should be noted that according to the current
opinion expressed by the Revenues Agency, such cost would not change as a result of the transaction and it
would be attributed to the Enel shares acquired as a result of the transaction.

However, with reference to the shareholders of the Demerged Company who are not residents of Italy, we
suggest that they carry out appropriate verifications on the tax regime in force in their respective countries of
residence.

For all matters not expressly indicated herein, for purposes of income taxes, the provisions of art. 173 of the
Tuir shall apply.

Demerger transactions are not specifically subject to the regional tax on productive activities (“IRAP”).
However, as clarified by the Revenues Agency, for such purposes as well, a general principle of tax
neutrality would apply, pursuant to which the Demerger does not give rise to any taxable element, or the
automatic attribution of higher values entered on the financial statement as a result of such transaction.

For purposes of indirect taxation, the Transaction falls outside the scope of application of VAT pursuant to
art. 2, paragraph 3, letter f), of D.P.R. No. 633 of October 26, 1972, and is subject to registry tax in a fixed
amount pursuant to art. 4, letter b), first part, of the Rate attached to D.P.R. No. 131/1986.

Assessments on the Right of Withdrawal and the Right of Sale
Right of Withdrawal

Any shareholders of EGP who do not take part in the approval of the Demerger will have a Right of
Withdrawal, pursuant to art. 2437, paragraph 1, letter a), of the Italian Civil Code, (the “Right of
Withdrawal”), since Enel, the Beneficiary Company of the Demerger, has a clause in its corporate purpose
that allows for the conduct of business operations that differ significantly from what is described in EGP’s
corporate purpose clause.

The Right of Withdrawal may be exercised at the unit settlement value for Enel Green Power shares,
determined, pursuant to art. 2437-ter, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, exclusively with reference to the
arithmetic average of closing prices of Enel Green Power shares on the MTA over the six months preceding
the publication of the notice of call of Enel Green Power’s shareholders’ meeting (the “Liquidation
Value”).

In accordance with the provisions of art. 127-bis, paragraph 2, of the Consolidated Finance Act, any person
in whose favor, after the date indicated in art. 83-sexies, paragraph 2, of the Consolidated Finance Act for
the right to take part in Enel Green Power’s shareholders’meeting called to approve the Demerger Plan (or,
in other words, after December 29, 2015), but prior to the commencement of works at such Shareholders’
Meeting, a registration in the relevant accounting records of Enel Green Power shares is made, will be
deemed included among those who did not take part in the approve of the resolution and, therefore, will be
entitled to exercise the Right of Withdrawal.

In accordance with art. 2437-bis of the Italian Civil Code, persons entitled to exercise the Right of
Withdrawal may exercise such right, with respect to all or a portion of the shares held, through a registered
letter (the “Notice of Withdrawal”) which must be sent to Enel Green Power’s registered office within
fifteen calendar days from the date of registration of the related shareholders’ meeting resolution.

Subject to the provisions of art. 127-bis of the TUF, the withdrawing shareholder shall send to the Company,
through the same procedures provided for the transmission of the Notice of Withdrawal and within the
deadlines provided under the law, through, an appropriate notice by the authorized intermediary where the
shares are deposited that certifies (i) the ownership in a securities account of the shares subject to the Right
of Withdrawal, as of the date of the Shareholders’ Meeting the resolution of which justifies the exercise of
such Right of Withdrawal and (ii) ownership in a securities account of the shares subject to the exercise of
the Right of Withdrawal as of the date of the Notice of Withdrawal.
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The Notice of Withdrawal shall contain the following information:
- the details of the withdrawing shareholder, including his/her tax code;

- the domicile of the withdrawing shareholder for notifications related to the procedure for the
liquidation of the shares subject to the Right of Withdrawal, including a telephone number and e-mail
address;

- the number of shares for which the Right of Withdrawal is exercised,;

- the IBAN code of the bank account to which the Liquidation Value of the shares subject to the Right
of Withdrawal is to be paid.

The Notice of Withdrawal must also contain an indication of the intermediary where the shares subject to the
Right of Withdrawal are deposited and the certification that such shares are free and clear of pledges or other
encumbrances in favor of third parties. If the shares subject to withdrawal are subject to pledges or other
encumbrances in favor of third parties, the withdrawing shareholder shall also include as an attachment to the
Notice of Withdrawal a declaration by the secured creditor or the person/party in whose favor the
encumbrance has been imposed, through which such person/party grants his/its irrevocable and
unconditional consent to the release of the shares from the pledge and/or from the encumbrance and to the
related liquidation in accordance with the instructions given by the withdrawing shareholder.

Information on the procedures and deadlines for the exercise of the Right of Withdrawal will be announced
by Enel Green Power in accordance with the procedures provided under applicable laws and regulations in
force. In accordance with art. 2437-bis, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, the Right of Withdrawal may
not be exercised and, if already exercised, will be null and void if, within ninety days, Enel Green Power
were to revoke the resolution justifying such exercise.

If one or more of EGP’s shareholders were to exercise the Right of Withdrawal, the liquidation process will
be carried out in accordance with art. 2437-quater of the Italian Civil Code. In particular, the terms of the
pre-emption offer that will be addressed to all of EGP’s shareholders, will be announced in accordance with
the procedures provided under the applicable legal framework, with the clarification in such regard that the
related announcements/notices will be published in at least one national daily newspaper and on EGP’s
website www.enelgreenpower.com, and on the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-Storage”
(www.emarketstorage.com).

Right of Sale

Enel Green Power’s shareholders who do not take part in the approval of the Demerger will be entitled to
have their own Enel Green Power shares purchased by Enel pursuant to and for purposes of art. 2506-bis,
paragraph 4, of the Italian Civil Code (the “Right of Sale”).

The Right of Sale may concern all or even only a portion of the EGP shares held by the shareholders of the
Demerged Company who exercise the Right of Sale. The price per share of the EGP share will be equal to
the Liquidation Value determined in accordance with art. 2437-ter, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, on
the basis of the provisions of art. 2506-bis, paragraph 2, second sentence, of the Italian Civil Code.

The Right of Sale may be exercised at the same terms and conditions for the exercise of the Right of
Withdrawal. In any case, the Right of Sale and the Right of Withdrawal may not be exercised for the same
share.

It should be noted in such regard that the process of liquidating the shares for which the Right of Sale is
exercised will take place in the same context as the process of liquidating the shares for which the Right of
Withdrawal is exercised, as governed by art. 2437-quater, of the Italian Civil Code.

* * %

With reference to the process of liquidating Enel Green Power shares for which the Right of Withdrawal or
the Right of Sale has been exercised, Enel declares its intention to exercise, in full, its option right for the
guota to which it is entitled, and to exercise its right of pre-emption on any Enel Green Power shares for
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which the option right has not been exercised in accordance with art. 2437-quater, third paragraph, of the
Italian Civil Code.

The effect of the Right of Sale and of the Right of Withdrawal, and therefore the related liquidation are
conditioned upon the satisfaction of the Condition Precedent and, in any case, the completion of the
Demerger.

On November 18, 2015, the unit settlement Liquidation Value of Enel Green Power’s ordinary shares with
respect to which the right of withdrawal or right of sale may be exercised was announced. Such value was
determined in the amount of Euro 1.780 per share, pursuant to and for purposes of, respectively, arts. 2437-
ter, paragraph 5, and art. 2506-bis, paragraph 4, second sentence, of the Civil Code

Amendments to Enel’s by-laws

Following the Demerger, Enel will increase its share capital through the issuance of up to a maximum of
770,588,712 new ordinary shares, with regular entitlement and nominal value of Euro 1.00 each, applying
the Exchange Ratio and procedures for the assignment of the shares referred to in points 4 and 5 of the
Demerger Plan.

The by-laws of the Beneficiary Company post-Demerger are attached as Schedule D to the Demerger Plan
which is, in turn, attached to this Information Document.

It should be stressed that numerical expressions certifying the changes in capital and the number of shares
comprising it, deriving from the Demerger, to the by-laws of the Beneficiary Company, which will enter into
force as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger will be specified in their final amount in the deed of Demerger,
in accordance with the principles and criteria described in the Demerger Plan; to such end, the Shareholders’
Meetings of the companies taking part in the Demerger will grant a special mandate to the boards of
directors in order to define the capital amounts and the number of shares comprising it.

Amendments to Enel Green Power’s by-laws

As a result of the completion of the Demerger, Enel Green Power’s share capital will be reduced from its
current total amount of Euro 1,000,000,000 (one billion/00) to a total of Euro 272,000,000 (two hundred
seventy two million/00), comprised of 1,360,000,000 (one billion three hundred sixty million/00) ordinary
shares having a value per share of Euro 0.20 (zero/20) each, on account of the 3,640,000,000 Enel Green
Power shares representing the quota of the share capital of the Demerged Company corresponding to the Set
of Assets Demerged forming the subject matter of exchange that will be cancelled in full as of the Date of
Effect of the Demerger. Moreover, Enel Green Power’s shareholders’ meeting called to approve the
Demerger will called to resolve upon the adoption, with effect starting on the Date of Effect of the Demerger,
of new by-laws that set forth provisions that are more consistent with those of by-laws of a non-listed
company since, following the Demerger, the Enel Green Power shares will cease to be traded on the MTA
and on the Spanish continuous electronic trading system (Sistema de Interconexion Bursétil, SIBE). It should
be noted that Enel Green Power’s by-laws post-Demerger are substantially in line with that of other
companies of the Enel Group whose shares are not listed on regulated markets.

The by-laws of the Demerged Company post-Demerger (attached as schedule B to the Demerger Plan, in
turn attached as a schedule to this Information Document), will be amended, inter alia, as follows:

a) amendment to art. 5 on the reduction of the share capital of the Demerged Company following the
completion of the Demerger, in the amount indicated above;

b) the insertion of a new art. 8, which, in accordance with the applicable provisions of law, provides
that the domicile of the shareholders as regards relationships with the company is that set forth in the
shareholders’ ledger;

C) amendments to art. 16 (formerly art. 15 of the by-laws ante-Demerger) in order to provide that the
Board of Directors may be called if the majority of its members or the Board of Statutory Auditors so
requests, and that the meetings of the Board of Directors may be held in totalitarian form;
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d) the following amendments aimed at reflecting the circumstance that, starting on the Date of Effect of
the Demerger, the provisions of law on companies whose shares are listed on regulated markets or
widely held by the public to a significant extent will not apply to Enel Green Power:

1) in art. 9 (formerly art. 8 of the by-laws ante-Demerger), the insertion of the provisions
related to the term and procedures for calling the shareholders’ meeting, as well as the
possibility that shareholders’ meetings may be held using telecommunications means;

2) in art. 11 (formerly art. 10 of the by-laws ante-Demerger), the deletion of the provisions on
voting proxies, solicitation of proxies and the electronic exercise of voting rights;

3) in art. 13 (formerly art. 12 of the by-laws ante-Demerger), the deletion of the single call of
the shareholders’ meeting unless the Board of Directors decides that it may be held on more
than one call;

4) in art. 14 (formerly art. 13 of the by-laws ante-Demerger), the deletion of the provision
related to the slate voting mechanism for the election of the members of the Board of
Directors;

5) in art. 20 (formerly art. 19 of the by-laws ante-Demerger), the elimination of the provisions

related to the related parties procedure, as well as those concerning the executive in charge of
drafting corporate accounting documents;

6) in art. 25 (formerly art. 24 of the by-laws ante-Demerger), the deletion of the provision
related to the slate voting mechanism for the election of the members of the Board of
Statutory Auditors and the reduction from three to two of the number of Alternate Auditors;
and

e) a number of minor amendments concerning, in particular, the chairmanship of the shareholders’
meeting (art. 12, formerly art. 11 of the by-laws ante-Demerger), the corporate body delegated to
determine the remuneration due to the members of the Board of Directors (art. 23 formerly art. 12 of
the by-laws ante-Demerger), the distribution to the shareholders of interim dividends (art. 26,
formerly art. 25 of the by-laws ante-Demerger) and regulatory references on the balance between
genders (art. 30, formerly art. 29 of the by-laws ante-Demerger).

2.1.3. Provisions on the composition of the significant ownership structure and on Enel’s and
Enel Green Power’s control structure following the Demerger

As of the date of this Information Document, the shareholders who hold, directly or indirectly, voting shares
of Enel exceeding 2% of its share capital, on the basis of the communications received in accordance with
art. 120 of the Consolidated Finance Act and the information available to Enel, are the following:

Shareholder Enel (pre-Demerger) % of the share capital with voting right

Ministero dell’Economia e delle Finanze 25.500%

As of the date of this Information Document, the shareholders who hold, directly or indirectly, voting shares
in Enel Green Power exceeding 2% of its share capital, on the basis of notifications received in accordance
with art. 120 of the Consolidated Finance Act and the information available to Enel Green Power, are the
following:

Shareholder EGP % of the voting share capital

Ministero dell’Economia e delle Finanze™ 68.29%

WTotal shareholding held through the subsidiary Enel S.p.A.
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The following table indicates, in percentage terms, the expected shareholdings of Enel’s main shareholders
(considering, solely for explanatory purposes, the shareholders who hold, directly or indirectly,
shareholdings exceeding 2% of Enel’s share capital post-Demerger) as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger,
on the basis of the Exchange Ratio. The percentages set forth below have been calculated assuming that: (a)
the current ownership structure of Enel and Enel Green Power does not incur any changes until the
completion of the Demerger; and (b) none of Enel Green Power’s shareholders exercises the Right of
Withdrawal or the Right of Sale.

Shareholder Enel (post-Demerger) % of the voting share capital

Ministero dell’Economia e delle Finanze 23.569%

Following the Demerger, Enel will directly hold 100% of the share capital of Enel Green Power.
2.1.4. Effects of the Demerger on the shareholders’ agreements

As of the Date of the Information Document, on the basis of the notifications in accordance with art. 122 of
the Consolidated Finance Act and the applicable provisions of the Issuers Regulation, there do not appear to
be any shareholders’ agreements related to Enel and Enel Green Power.

2.2. DESCRIPTION OF THE BALANCE SHEET ELEMENTS TO BE TRANSFERRED TO ENEL
2.2.1. Balance sheet elements to be transferred to Enel

The Demerger will be approved by resolution on the basis of the financial statements of Enel and Enel Green
Power as of September 30, 2015, attached as schedules E and F to the Demerger Plan, which is in turn
attached to this Information Document.

The Demerger will give rise to the assignment to Enel of the Set of Assets Demerged, consisting in almost
all of Enel Green Power’s foreign shareholdings and financial assets, while EGP will keep its Italian assets
and the remaining foreign shareholdings.

In particular, the balance sheet elements and related legal relationships which, as a result of the Demerger,
will be assigned to the Beneficiary Company are the following:

1) totalitarian shareholding in the company organized and existing under Dutch law, Enel Green Power
International BV;

2) short-term financial receivable owed by the company Enel Green Power North America Ltd. in
connection with a financial restructuring transaction concluded in 2014; the exchange rate risk
related to such financial receivable is hedged through a currency forward contract. In particular,
such financial restructuring operation and the reduction of the share capital of Enel Green Power
North America Ltd. was necessary to achieve the financial balance between funding sources and
related investments, following the implementation of a partnership involving the sale of a minority
stake, although for significant amount, of a portfolio of renewable energy assets in North America;

3) legal relationships related to the long-term credit line with Enel Green Power International, which,
as of September 30, 2015, has been entirely used;

4) legal relationships with the six employees pertaining to the business unit comprising the Set of
Assets Demerged and the consequent asset-side and liability-side balance sheet items referring to
the same;

5) guarantees granted by EGP in the interest of Enel Green Power International and its subsidiaries as
security for a number of commitments undertaken (the “Guarantee”). Such guarantees constitute,
in particular, parent company and bank guarantees, which have been issued in respect of
commitments raised mainly in the context of passive loan agreements, supply or service agreements,
agreements for the development cycle of electrical systems (such as the participation in tenders for
the construction of the plant, environmental guarantees, guarantees required from concessions) as
well as energy sale agreements.

— 49—



The detailed description of the asset-side and liability-side balance sheet elements and related legal
relationships comprising the Set of Assets Demerged which will remain assigned to the Beneficiary
Company as a result of the Demerger is set forth in schedule G to the Demerger Plan which is, in turn,
attached as a schedule to this Information Document.

In any case, where the assignment of assets, liabilities, rights or obligations is not discernible from the
Demerger Plan, such elements shall be deemed assigned to the Beneficiary Company where the same pertain
to the Set of Assets Demerged.

It should be further noted that any windfall assets or contingent liabilities that may arise after the Date of
Effect of the Demerger shall remain, respectively, for the benefit of or borne by the Beneficiary Company
provided that they pertain to the Set of Assets Demerged.

The composition of the shareholders’ equity for accounting purposes of EGP and Enel, after the Demerger, is
set forth in specific tables (respectively called “Composition of the shareholders’ equity of the Demerged
Company ante and post Demerger” and “Composition of the shareholders’ equity of the Beneficiary
Company ante and post Demerger”) set forth in Schedules H and | to the Demerger Plan which is, in turn,
attached as a schedule to this Information Document.

It should be noted, in conclusion, that:

- the Set of Assets Demerged includes the contractual relationships pertaining thereto, including the
employment relationships with the six human resources, as indicated in detail in the Demerger Plan;

- the asset-side and liability-side balance sheet elements and the legal relationships comprising the Set
of Assets Demerged will be those existing on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, therefore also taking
into account the changes that will take place between the date of reference of the balance sheet as of
September 30, 2015 of the Demerged Company and the Date of Effect of the Demerger, as a result of
the trends in day-to-day business operations. Therefore, any differences in the value/existence of such
elements and relationships comprising the Set of Assets Demerged, between September 30, 2015 and
the Date of Effect of the Demerger, shall give rise to the registration of a credit/debit item between the
Demerged Company and the Beneficiary Company.

The formal registration of the totalitarian shareholding in the company organized under Dutch law, Enel
Green Power International, assigned as a result of the Demerger by Enel Green Power to Enel, will be
carried out in accordance with applicable provisions of law.

Before executing the deed of Demerger, Enel and Enel Green Power will take all actions necessary and/or
advisors in order to enable Enel to take over the Guarantees included within the Set of Assets Demerged and
the consequent release of Enel Green Power from the obligations envisaged thereunder, negotiating with the
counterparties all appropriate agreements and/or legal deeds.

For those Guarantees with respect to which by the Date of Effect of the Demerger it is not possible to perfect
what is referred to above, Enel and Enel Green Power will take all actions that may be necessary or useful to
ensure that Enel replaces Enel Green Power in the obligations arising under the Guarantees. It remains
agreed that if Enel Green Power were not released from the obligations arising under the above-mentioned
Guarantees, all related costs, liabilities and responsibilities will be taken over in their entirety by the
Beneficiary Company.

2.2.2. Changes in Enel Green Power’s shareholders’ equity, Enel’s capital increase

The changes to the composition of the Net Shareholders’ Equity of the Demerged Company deriving from
the Demerger are attributable to the following:

- decrease in share capital of Euro 728,000,000 (seven hundred twenty eight million/00),
corresponding to the nominal value of the cancelled shares;

- decrease in Other Reserves, including the quota corresponding to the Legal Reserve attributable to
the decrease in share capital, in the amount of Euro 2,936,162,218 (two billion nine hundred thirty six
million one hundred sixty two thousand two hundred eighteen/00);

- decrease in Other Reserves, in the amount of Euro 6,784,000 (six million seven hundred eighty four
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thousand /00), corresponding to the estimate of costs qualifiable as transaction costs directly attributable to
the Demerger, net of the related tax effect.

The following table illustrates the composition of EGP’s shareholders’ equity for accounting purposes after

the Demerger.

Retained
earnings
/(loss Net
Share Other carried income for
capital reserves forward) | the period Total
Shareholders’ equity ante demerger 1’000‘000’08 4,637,089,228 1‘095‘239'8‘71 139’667’48 6,871,996,562
Cancellation of shares (728,000,00()) (2,936,162,21&; ) ) (3,664,162,218)
Recognition of transaction costs related to the
Demerger -1 (6,784,000) - -1 (6,784,000)
Shareholders’ equity post demerger 272,000,000 | 1694143010 | 1095239871 138.067:481 5 901 050,344

The changes in the composition of the Shareholders’ Equity of the Beneficiary Company deriving from the
Demerger, assuming that no shareholder of Enel Green Power exercises the Right of Withdrawal or the Right

of Sale, are attributable to:

- an increase in the Share Capital, in the amount of Euro 770,588,712 (seven hundred seventy million
five hundred eighty eight thousand seven hundred twelve/00), corresponding to the nominal value of

the newly issued shares attributed to EGP’s shareholders other than Enel,;

- an increase in Other Reserves, in the amount of Euro 2,302,519,071 (two billion three hundred two
million five hundred nineteen thousand seventy one /00), corresponding to the excess over the
theoretical issue price of the shares (equal to Euro 3.988 Euro per share corresponding to the Stock
Exchange price quote for the Enel share on September 30, 2015) with respect to their nominal value;

- decrease in the Other Reserves, in the amount of Euro 7,250,000 (seven million two hundred fifty
thousand /00), corresponding to an estimate of the costs qualifiable as transaction costs directly
attributable to the Demerger, net of the related tax effect.

The following table illustrates the composition of Enel’s shareholders’ equity for accounting purposes

following the Demerger.

Share capital re?steils/;s Re/tg:)r;cé(i:?:ir;hngs Ne:th;;):?SJor Total
forward)
Shareholders’ equity ante demerger 9,403,357,795| 9,197,808,130 5,303,025,796 1,066,017,771 | 24,970,209,492
Issuance of new shares 770,588,712 | 2,302,519,071 - -| 3,073,107,783
Ancillary costs related to the demerger - (7,250,000) - - (7,250,000)
Shareholders’ equity post demerger | 10,173,946,507 | 11,493,077,201 5,303,025,796 1,066,017,771 | 28,036,067,275
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2.2.3. Actual values of net shareholders’ equity assigned to Enel and of the shareholders’
equity that will remain with Enel Green Power

It is certified, pursuant to art. 2506-ter, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code, that: (i) the actual value of the
shareholders’ equity assigned to Enel as a result of the Demerger is not lower than the related book value
(which as of September 30, 2015 is equal to Euro 3,664,162,218 (three billion six hundred sixty four million
one hundred sixty two thousand two hundred eighteen /00); and (ii) the actual value of the shareholders’
equity that will remain with EGP as a result of the Demerger is not lower than the related book value (which
as of September 30, 2015 is Euro 3,201,050,344 (three billion two hundred one million fifty thousand three
hundred forty four/00).

2.2.4. The assignment criterion and the Exchange Ratio

Since this transaction is a demerger with a non-proportional assignment, as of the Date of Effect of the
Demerger, the portion of EGP’s share capital corresponding to the Set of Assets Demerged, consisting of
3,640,000,000 shares of EGP (the “EGP Shares exchanged”), will be exchanged on the basis of the
Exchange Ratio indicated below, in accordance with the following proportions:

(i)  EGP’s shareholders other than Enel will exchange all of their shares held in EGP;

(i)  Enel will exchange only a portion of the shares held in EGP, corresponding to the number of EGP
Shares exchanged, after deducting the EGP Shares exchanged by EGP’s shareholders other than Enel.

As indicated in the Demerger Plan, for purposes of determining the above-mentioned number of EGP Shares
exchanged, respectively, by Enel and EGP’s shareholders other than Enel, and therefore the criterion for the
non-proportional assignment of the newly issued shares of the Beneficiary Company to the shareholders of
the Demerged Company, the Boards of Directors of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger, after
having reviewed the reports by the respective financial advisors indicated above and with their support, have
assigned to such Set of Assets Demerged a value corresponding to 72.8 percent of the entire value of EGP
before the Demerger (see Paragraph 2.2.5 below).

The Boards of Directors of Enel and EGP, at the meetings held on November 17, 2015, after having
reviewed the reports provided by the respective financial advisors indicated above and with their support (see
Paragraph 2.2.5 below) — and, as regards the Demerged Company, acknowledging the Related Parties
Committee’s reasoned unanimous favorable opinion, attached to this Information Document in Schedule 11
— approved the following Exchange Ratio: 0.486 newly issued Enel shares for each EGP Share exchanged
(the “Exchange Ratio”).

No cash adjustments are envisaged.

As a result, on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the Beneficiary Company will increase its share capital
through the issuance of up to 1,769,040,000 (one billion seven hundred sixty nine million forty thousand)
shares — with regular entitlement and a nominal value of Euro 1.00 each - in favor of the shareholders of the
Demerged Company on the basis of the Exchange Ratio. The amount of Enel’s capital increase to service the
Exchange Ratio may not exceed the value attributed to the Set of Assets Demerged under the appraisal report
by the independent expert drafted in accordance with the provisions of art. 2506-ter, paragraph 2, of the
Italian Civil Code.

In particular:

a) the shareholders of EGP other than Enel will be assigned — by applying the Exchange Ratio — a total
of up to a maximum of 770,588,712 newly issued Enel shares, in exchange for the cancellation, at
the time of the exchange, of a total of 1,585,573,483 EGP shares held by such shareholders, while

b) Enel will be assigned a total of 998,451,288 Enel shares — with simultaneous cancellation of the
same pursuant to the prohibition provided under art. 2504-ter, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code,
as cited in art. 2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code —, in exchange for the cancellation, at
the time of exchange, of 2,054,426,517 EGP shares held by it.

Taking into account the foregoing, on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the share capital of the Beneficiary
Company will be increased by up to a maximum of 770,588,712 newly issued Enel shares, all of which are
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destined for the shareholders of the Demerged Company other than Enel.

The number of Enel shares to be assigned may change depending upon the number of EGP shares acquired
by Enel following the conclusion of the pre-emption offer of the EGP shares that may be subject to the Right
of Sale and Right of Withdrawal.

Since, as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger, all of the above-mentioned 3,640,000,000 EGP shares
representing the portion of EGP’s share capital corresponding to the Set of Assets Demerged forming the
subject matter of the exchange will be cancelled in their entirety, on such date, the Demerged Company’s
share capital will be reduced from its current total amount of Euro 1,000,000,000 (one billion/00) to a total of
Euro 272,000,000 (two hundred seventy two million/00), comprised of 1,360,000,000 (one billion three
hundred sixty million/00) ordinary shares having a value per share of Euro 0.20 (zero/20) each.

As a result of the exchange by EGP shareholders other than Enel of all shares held by them in EGP, and the
consequent cancellation of the same, Enel — as a result of the Demerger — will be the sole shareholder of the
Demerged Company.

It should also be noted that on November 30, 2015, the Court of Rome appointed PKF Italia S.p.A. as the
common expert engaged to issue the report on the fairness of the Exchange Ratio, in accordance with art.
2501-sexies of the Civil Code, as cited in art. 2506-ter, paragraph 3, of the Civil Code.

Lastly, it should be noted that the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger proceeded to appoint KPMG
S.p.A., as common independent expert and endowed with adequate and proven professional expertise
engaged to issue the appraisal report on the value of the assets comprising the Set of Assets Demerged, in
accordance with art. 2343-ter, paragraph 2, letter b) of the Civil Code.

2.2.5. Valuation methodologies used to determine the Exchange Ratio and the value of the Set
of Assets Demerged

Enel’s Board of Directors

Enel’s Board of Directors retained Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited and J.P. Morgan Limited (the
“Enel Advisors”) as its financial advisors with regard to the economic, financial and valuation aspects of the
Demerger, in line with the international best practices. Please note that the engagements of the Enel Advisors
are regulated uniformly, in line with the international practice, also with regard to the indemnity clauses,
which in any case do not cover the liability for fraud or gross negligence.

On November 17, 2015, the Enel Advisors delivered to Enel’s Board of Directors specific opinions (so
called fairness opinion) on the fairness, from a financial standpoint, of the Exchange Ratio determined by the
Board itself. The fairness opinions delivered by the Advisors (the “Opinions”) were independently prepared
by them on the basis of several valuation methodologies, in line with market practice, assumptions and
parameters, and reach similar conclusions. The Opinions are attached as schedules to this Information
Document as Schedule 6.

The reference date of the valuations performed for the purpose of determining the Exchange Ratio is the
same as that of the Explanatory Reports on the Demerger, assuming that, for each of the Companies Taking
Part in the Demerger, no events, facts or acts have occurred of such a nature as to materially change the
assets, liabilities, economic or financial condition of the companies analyzed, or the Set of Assets Demerged,
in the period between the latest available stand alone and consolidated financial statements and the date of
the above-mentioned Explanatory Reports on the Demerger.

With regard to the determination of the Exchange Ratio specified in Paragraph 2.2.4 and the relative
valuation of the equity value of the Set of Assets Demerged with respect to Enel Green Power, in
consideration of the purpose of the valuations, the specific characteristics of the entities being appraised and
in line with the best valuation practice at the national and international levels for similar transactions, several
valuation methodologies were used, including both analytical and market-based.

In particular, with reference to the determination of the Exchange Ratio, the following methodologies have
been selected individually:

(a) Stock Exchange Share Price Methodology;
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(b) the DCF Methodology through a “Sum of the Parts” approach;

(c) analysis of the implied Exchange Ratio derived from Enel and EGP target prices published by brokers
and by the major investment banks.

Consideration has been given to the fact that Enel and Enel Green Power will not distribute any dividends for
fiscal year 2015 before the Demerger effective date and it was deemed appropriate to solely express ranges
for the Exchange Ratio, derived from the homogeneous application of each valuation methodology adopted,
and not the absolute values resulting from them, since only the former are considered representative:
fundamental condition for the definition of the exchange ratio is the quantification of the relative value of the
individual companies taking part in the transaction, with the final goal not to calculate an economic value in
absolute terms for each of them, but rather homogeneous and comparable values in relative terms.

Lastly, in consideration of the procedures and timetable envisaged for the exercise of the Right of
Withdrawal and the Right of Sale, and since it is not possible to quantify their future impact, the effects of
such rights that might potentially be exercised by Enel Green Power’s shareholders who do not vote in favor
of the relevant resolutions have not been taken into account.

The valuations of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger have been carried out on a stand-alone basis
or, in other words, on the basis of the business plans separately prepared by Enel Green Power and Enel,
irrespective of the outcome of the Transaction.

For the purposes of the valuation of the equity value of the Set of Assets Demerged and the comparison of
the same with the overall valuation of Enel Green Power’s equity value, we proceeded, in line with the
valuation approach used to determine the Exchange Ratio and taking into consideration the specific
characteristics of Enel Green Power and the Set of Assets Demerged — and in particular the fact that the Set
of Assets Demerged is not a listed company and, therefore, it was not possible to apply either the Stock
Exchange Share Price Methodology or the methodology of the target prices published by brokers and the
major investment banks — to use the DCF Methodology. Such valuations have been made with the support of
the Enel Advisor and are in line with the outcome of the analysis made by the same.

For a more detailed description of the valuation methodologies used by Enel for the purposes of determining
the Exchange Ratio and the value of the Set of Assets Demerged, the results deriving from the application of
the above-mentioned methodologies and the valuation difficulties encountered, reference is made to the
Explanatory Report prepared by Enel’s Board of Directors in accordance with art. 2506-ter of the Civil Code,
attached to this Information Document as Schedule 1.

Board of Directors of Enel Green Power

For the purpose of the valuation analysis performed by the board of directors to determine the Exchange
Ratio, Enel Green Power’s Board of Directors retained as independent financial advisors Barclays and
Mediobanca (the “EGP Advisors”). Please note that the engagements of the EGP Advisors are regulated
uniformly in line with the international practice, also with regard to the indemnity clauses, which in any case
do not cover the liability for fraud or gross negligence.

The EGP Advisors, issued to Enel Green Power’s Board of Directors specific fairness opinions on the
fairness, from a financial standpoint, of the Exchange Ratio determined by the Board; such fairness opinions
were prepared using several methodologies, in line with market practice. In particular, Enel Green Power’s
Board of Directors acknowledged and adopted the valuation methodologies used by the EGP Advisors for
the purposes of determining ranges of Exchange Ratio. The fairness opinions issued by the EGP Advisors
are attached to this Information Document as Schedule 7. The fairness of the Exchange Ratio from a
financial standpoint was also confirmed by the fairness opinions issued by the independent financial advisors
appointed by EGP’s Related Parties Committee, Lazard and Prof. Laghi, which opinions are attached to the
disclosure document referred to in art. 5 of EGP’s RPT Procedure, available at EGP’s registered office, on its
website www.enelgreenpower.com, and on the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-Storage”
(www.emarketstorage.com).

The reference date of the valuations performed for purposes of determining the Exchange Ratio is the same
as that of the Explanatory Reports on the Demerger, assuming that, for each of the Companies Taking Part in
the Demerger, no events, facts or acts have occurred of such a nature as to materially change the assets,
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liabilities, economic or financial condition of the company analyzed, or the Set of Assets Demerged, over the
period between the latest available stand alone and consolidated financial statements and the date of the
above-mentioned Explanatory Reports on the Demerger.

As regards the determination of the Exchange Ratio referred to in Paragraph 2.2.4 above, the valuation
methodologies used are based upon the best valuation practice in Italy and at the international level in the
context of similar transactions, considering the specific business and operating characteristics of Enel Green
Power and Enel. In this case, the following valuation methodologies were identified as the main ones to be
used:

a) the discounted cash flows method, by applying the “Sum of the Parts” criterion, and

b) the Stock Exchange share price method, considering, with exclusive reference to Enel Green Power,
also premia observed in other transactions occurred in the renewable energy sector.

The analysis of the Exchange Ratio resulting from the observation of the target prices of the Enel Green
Power share and the Enel share published by financial analysts was used as a control methodology.

The fundamental goal of the valuations performed is to identify relative and comparable economic values for
the purpose of the determination of the Exchange Ratio. Therefore, priority was given to consistency and
comparability of each of the methodologies applied as opposed to the determination of the absolute value of
the companies considered individually. However, this approach does not necessary require the use of
identical valuation methodologies for Enel Green Power and Enel, or the attribution, for a given valuation
methodology, of the same importance for the purpose of the valuation of both companies, but rather the use
of criteria and methodologies that reflect the same valuation approach and that are the most appropriate,
taking into account the differences that distinguish them, in order to reach comparable values for the
determination of the Exchange Ratios. Indeed, the selected methodologies must not be analyzed individually,
but rather considered as the part of a single overarching valuation process.

The valuations were performed with the goal of expressing a comparative estimate of the value of Enel
Green Power and Enel; they must therefore be considered only in relative terms and solely with reference to
the Demerger, and do not refer in any manner whatsoever to absolute values of either of the Companies
Taking Part in the Demerger nor can be considered representative of any current, future or expected market
price. Moreover, the valuations of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger were carried out on a stand-
alone basis that is, on the basis of the business plans separately prepared by Enel Green Power end Enel,
regardless of the outcome of the Transaction.

In consideration of the procedures and timetable envisaged for the exercise of the Right of Withdrawal and
the Right of Sale, and since it is not possible to quantify their future impact, as well as the effects of such
rights that might potentially be exercised by Enel Green Power’s shareholders who do not vote in favor of
the relevant resolution have not been taken into account.

As regards the determination of the economic value of the Set of Assets Demerged, given the non-listed
nature such the business unit and the need to express (in percentage terms) its relative value compared to the
value of Enel Green Power pre-Demerger, for the purpose of ensuring consistency among the criteria, only
the discounted future cash flows methodology was used, applying a “Sum of the Parts” approach. Such
methodology, for the purpose of determining the percentage ratio between the value of the Set of Assets
Demerged and Enel Green Power (pre-Demerger), was also used for Enel Green Power (pre-Demerger).
Such valuations have been made with the support of the EGP Advisors and are in line with the outcome of
the analysis made by the same.

For a more in-depth description of the valuation methodologies used by Enel Green Power for the purpose of
determining the Exchange Ratio and the economic value of the Set of Assets Demerged, the results deriving
from the application of the above-mentioned methodologies and the valuation difficulties encountered,
reference is made to the Explanatory Report issued by Enel Green Power’s Board of Directors in accordance
with art. 2506-ter of the Civil Code, attached to this Information Document as Schedule 2, as well as the
disclosure document referred to in art. 5 of EGP’s RPT Procedure, which is available at EGP’s registered
office, on its website www.enelgreenpower.com, and on the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-
Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com).
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2.2.6. Report by the expert on the Exchange Ratio and estimate report on the value of the Set of
Assets Demerged

On December 10, 2015, PKF Italia S.p.A. in its capacity as common expert appointed by the Court of Rome
through a ruling dated November 30, 2015, issued the report on the fairness of the Exchange Ratio, in
accordance with art. 2501-sexies of the Civil Code, as cited in art. 2506-ter, paragraph 3, of the Civil Code

Moreover, on December 10, 2015, KPMG S.p.A., in its capacity as independent common expert of adequate
and proven professional expertise, appointed by the Companies Taking Part in the Demerged, issued the
estimate report on the value of the assets comprising the Set of Assets Demerged, in accordance with art.
2343-ter, paragraph 2, lett. b) of the Civil Code

The above-mentioned reports, which are in line with the assessment made by the administrative bodies of the
Companies Taking Part in the Demerger are attached to this Information Document as, respectively,
Schedule 4 and Schedule 5.

2.3. REASONS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE TRANSACTION
2.3.1. Reasons underlying the Demerger

A number of phenomena are causing significant changes to the energy paradigm at a global level: an
increasing demand for energy driven by economic growth and the process of urban development in emerging
countries, a high level of volatility in the price of commodities, growing competitiveness in renewable
sources, the development of new technologies, energy efficiency, greater attention and awareness focusing
on environmental issues.

In this new “world”, the renewable energy sector has achieved a more predominant role, as a result of both
growing competitiveness of less mature technologies — wind and solar — brought by rapid technological
advances, as well as their contributions to the energy model in terms of environmental sustainability.

Large utilities operators have taken action to exploit the opportunities offered by the renewables business, by
establishing companies entirely dedicated to the development and management of renewable energy plants.
In this context, in 2008, Enel created EGP, a corporate vehicle in which it concentrated its business related to
the production of electricity using renewable sources, and later proceeded to have EGP listed on the stock
exchange in 2010.

Over the last several years, a number of signs of changes have arisen in the above mentioned energy model,
even recorded in some comparable transactions in Europe, initially triggered by the rapid large-scale
development of renewable sources, resulting in issues related to the need to adapt networks. This was
coupled with the emergence of new phenomena such as, among others, distributed power generation, energy
efficiency, electric cars and energy storage, which are increasingly determining a radical transformation in
behavior of consumers, who are becoming increasingly active as “producers” and “operators/managers” of
their own electricity demand. In addition, the need has arisen to develop new technologies which allow the
electricity system to evolve toward a model that better integrates traditional generation sources and, therefore,
plannable sources, with renewable sources, which latter sector continues to show a high growth rate at the
worldwide level.

Such growth is seen principally in two main areas. Firstly, on emerging markets (characterized by economic
growth and significant urban development), renewable sources constitute the fastest answer to the rise in
electricity demand. Secondly, even on mature markets, there exist development opportunities for renewable
sources, supported by a process toward the gradual dismantling of traditional power generation capacity
(such as, for example, coal-fired plants) and its replacement with new renewable capacity, using, in
particular, wind and solar sources, characterized by faster commissioning timetables, contained execution
risks and competitive costs.

The increasingly rising need to achieve integration among renewable sources and traditional sources, as well
as the distribution networks and the market (the “single integrated system”), is swiftly leading to the
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modernization of the electricity grid, through digitalization and the “smart meter”, effectively transforming
energy utilities companies like Enel from simple producers and distributors of energy to services suppliers
and systems optimizers. This phenomenon is creating new business opportunities those utilities operators
will be ready to exploit only if they are positioned as global operators that are integrated in the electricity
system.

Within this context, the Enel Group is well-positioned in the main strategic areas of the new model, as one of
the few global operators in the sector, as well as one of the more diversified operators from a technological
standpoint, with a customer base exceeding 60 million. Moreover, the Group is optimally positioned to take
advantage of numerous growth opportunities at the worldwide level, by exploiting its high level of
geographical diversification. Indeed, it is present in all geographical areas featuring significant growth
prospects, most recently the Asian continent, where the Group has recently established a base, entering the
Indian renewable energy market.

In recent years, EGP has achieved significant results, from both an operating and economic-financial
standpoint, achieving its growth and internationalization objectives. Indeed, since its listing until today, it has
achieved growth of 82.7% in its renewable installed capacity, from 5.8 GW to its current 10.6 GW, and 38%
growth in EBITDA, from Euro 1.3 billion in 2010 (8% of the Group’s EBITDA) to Euro 1.8 billion expected
to be achieved in 2015 (12% of the Group’s EBITDA), coupled by an international presence (expressed as a
percentage out of installed capacity) which rose from 54% in 2010 to the current approximately 70%.

In consideration of the significant market opportunities and in line with the growing focus on renewable
energies, over the next timeline of the plan, a rise in investments in the development of renewable energies is
expected, which are supposed to account for about 50% of the Enel Group’s investments in growth.

The process aimed at complete integration of the renewable energy business is therefore consistent with the
Enel Group’s development strategy and supported by significant justifications, which are not only strategic
in nature (as described above) but also industrial and financial, offering opportunities for the creation of
value.

2.3.2. Prospects and plans of the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger

The industrial reasons of the integration of EGP into the Enel Group focus on two main objectives: growth
and integration, in the strict sense.

The first strategic macro-area would allow for greater creation of value for the Group through the potential
further acceleration of investments, and the implementation of the Active Portfolio Management strategy. In
a context in which EGP’s proven capacity to develop and realize projects exceeds its investment capacity
from a “stand-alone” perspective (in order to preserve the company’s solidity) and considering Enel Group’s
financial capacity, the complete integration between Enel and EGP would enable the latter to realize
additional growth initiatives in the renewable business which are not sustainable in its current structure. The
acceleration of investments would consist of a greater potential allocation of capital to EGP in the range of
Euro 1.3 billion over the period from 2018 and 2019, which would be invested in development projects in
emerging countries.

The second macro-area aimed at the creation of value is that of the integration in the strict sense, which
consists of the realization of operational and management synergies attainable through: the capacity to
synergically exploit their respective business expertise/know-how, yielding cost efficiencies; the possibility
of jointly managing various production chains, resulting in risk reduction; the opportunity to benefit from the
Group’s financial solidity.

Another way to potentially achieve streamlining /optimization would be through (i) the reduction of risks
related to the volatility of the prices in the energy market in countries/markets in which Enel and EGP
operate through the centralized management of hedging; (ii) the optimization of the maintenance plan at an
integrated level of the renewable and traditional generating plants and (iii) a greater commercial
competitiveness ensured by the synergetic management of renewable and traditional assets.

Lastly, the integration between Enel and EGP would be in line with Enel’s goal of gradually reducing and
rationalizing of the minority shareholdings in its affiliates, also for purposes of achieving greater symmetry
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between the financial commitments aimed at the development of EGP and the profitability and cash
generation of the Group.

From Enel Green Power’s perspective, the Demerger will give rise to greater efficiency (with respect to both
the administrative area and business operations), as well as greater organizational and operational flexibility,
also as a result of the loss of its listed company status. In particular, once the Demerged becomes effective,
Enel Green Power will start a process of simplifying its governance with the objective of achieving a greater
focus on the domestic business of renewable energies which is less complex — and, therefore, faster and more
dynamic — with regard to the decision-making process and exercise of strategic, management and technical-
operating controls. Likewise, the rationalization of the functions and processes will ensure, in any case, that
Enel Green Power’s will be in a position to maintain its high level of specialization (both in the production
area and on the market) smoothly and without operating discontinuities.

While a number of modest operating benefits are attainable immediately upon the completion of the
Demerger, the Companies Taking Part in the Demerger expect to implement the above-mentioned plans,
particularly the more important ones concerning the acceleration of investments in the development of
renewable energies, over the medium term and, in other words, beyond the twelve months following the Date
of Effect of the Demerger.

2.4. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC

It should be noted that on November 24, 2015, Enel Green Power made available to the public at its
registered office and published on its website the disclosure document referred to in art. 5 of the Related
Parties Regulation. Specifically, the above-mentioned document prepared by the Demerged Company is
available at EGP’s registered office, on the website www.enelgreenpower.com, and on the authorized storage
mechanism called “NIS-Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com).

The following documents are published, in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations, on Enel’s
website (www.enel.com) and Enel Green Power’s website (www.enelgreenpower.com) and filed and made
available on the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com), and at
Enel’s registered office at Viale Regina Margherita, 137, Rome, and at Enel Green Power’s registered office
at Viale Regina Margherita, 125, Rome, in order to enable all those entitled to do so to review them:

(M the Demerger Plan prepared pursuant to art. 2506-bis of the Civil Code, approved by the Boards
of Directors of Enel and Enel Green Power on November 17, 2015 and registered with the
Companies Register of Rome on December 7 2015;

(i) the Explanatory Report prepared by Enel’s directors in accordance with arts. 2501-quinquies and
2506-ter of the Civil Code and drafted on the basis of Schedule 3A to the Issuers Regulation;

(ili)  the Explanatory Report prepared by Enel Green Power’s directors in accordance with arts. 2501-
quinquies and 2506-ter of the Civil Code and drafted on the basis of Schedule 3A to the Issuers
Regulation;

(iv) the report by the expert prepared in accordance with arts. 2501-sexies and 2506-ter of the Civil
Code;

(v) the estimate report pursuant to art. 2343-ter, paragraph 2, letter b), of the Civil Code;
(vi) Enel’s financial statement pursuant to arts. 2501-quater and 2506-ter of the Civil Code;

(vii)  Enel Green Power’s financial statement pursuant to arts. 2501-quater and 2506-ter of the Civil
Code;

(viii)  the stand-alone and consolidated financial statements of Enel and Enel Green Power related to
years 2012, 2013 and 2014, together with the related directors’ reports and the reports issued by
the Auditing Firm;

(ix) the financial statement as of June 30, 2015, of Enel and of Enel Green Power, as well as the
limited review report issued by the Auditing Firm, in accordance with art. 2501-ter of the Civil
Code;
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(x) the interim directors’ report, as of September 30, 2015, of Enel and Enel Green Power.

On November 18, 2015, Enel Green Power announced the unit settlement Liquidation Value of EGP’s
ordinary shares that may be subject to withdrawal or sale, pursuant to and for purposes of, respectively, arts.

2437-ter, paragraph 5, and art. 2506-bis, paragraph 4, second sentence, of the Civil Code, of Euro 1.780 per
share.

Lastly, this Information Document has been made available to the public at the registered offices of the
Companies Taking Part in the Demerger, on the websites www.enel.com and www.enelgreenpower.com, as
well as on the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com). See the
Disclaimer on page 2 of this Information Document.
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3. MATERIAL EFFECTS OF THE DEMERGER

The Demerger will not have material effects on the key factors that influence and characterize Enel’s
business or on the type of business operations conducted by the same.

Chapter 5 below (Enel’s consolidated pro-forma income statement and balance sheet) describes, for
illustration purposes, a simulation of the significant effects of the Demerger on the income, balance sheet and
financial situation of the Enel Group.
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4. DESCRIPTION OF THE ENEL GROUP

Enel operates, through its subsidiaries and companies in which it holds stakes, in the energy sector, and as
holding company, conducts various businesses directly or indirectly related to such sector.

The Enel Group is a multinational in the energy sector and one of the leading global integrated operators in
the electricity and gas sectors in the world, with business operations concentrated principally in Europe and
Latin America.

As of September 30, 2015, the Enel Group operates in over thirty countries, in four continents, has power
generation plants (thermoelectric, hydroelectric, nuclear, geothermic, wind, photovoltaic plants and other
plants fueled by renewal sources) with net installed capacity totaling approximately 89 GW, and distributes
electricity and gas through a network of approximately 1.9 million kilometers.

With 61 million customers throughout the world, the Enel Group has the broadest customer base among its
European competitors and is ranked among the leading electricity operators in Europe, in terms of installed
capacity and reported EBITDA .

Over the nine months ended September 30, 2015, the Enel Group’s net electricity production totaled 213.7
TWh, while energy distributed on the electricity grid totaled 313.5 TWh.

The following table sets forth the Enel Group’s main operating data, broken down for Italy and the rest of the
world, for 2014 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2015.

NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2015 2014
REST OF THE REST OF
ITALY ToTAL ITALY TOTAL
WORLD THE WORLD
Net electricity generated (TWh) 525 161.2 213.7 71.8 211.3 283.1
Electricity transported on the distribution network (Twh) ~ 169.4 1441 3135 2218 1736 3954
Electricity sold (Twh)® 65.9 129.1 195.0 87.6 173.4 261.0

(1) Excluding sales to distributors

As of September 30, 2015, EGP operates through 761 operating plants on the European, American, African
and Asian continents, with installed capacity of 10.6 GW, sub-divided into wind, solar, geothermal,
hydroelectric and biomass.

The Enel Group also imports and sells natural gas in Italy and abroad. In the nine months ended September
30, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014, respectively, 6.3 and 7.8 billion cubic meters of gas were sold to
final customers.

The Enel Group realized revenues totaling Euro 55,998 million in the nine months ended September 30,
2015 and Euro 75,791 million as of December 31, 2014. The Group’s net income totaled Euro 2,089 million
in the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and Euro 772 million as of December 31, 2014. As of
September 30, 2015, the Enel Group employs a total of 68,384 employees, 33,218 of whom are based in Italy
and 35,166 abroad.

History of the Enel Group

Enel’s origin dates back to the creation, in 1962, of thee Ente Nazionale per I’Energia Elettrica, an Italian
government entity which was granted, on an exclusive basis, the concession for the generation, importation,
exportation, transport, transformation, distribution and sale of electricity in Italy. The Entity, which was
controlled by the Italian government, pursued and completed a process of development and diversification
through the development of new power plants.

(11 Source: market data elaborated by Enel.
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In 1992, Legislative Decree No. 333 transformed the government entity into a joint stock company (entirely
held by the MEF) maintaining under the latter, called Enel S.p.A., all of the business operations previously
conducted by the Ente Nazionale per I’Energia Elettrica.

The company later underwent a significant transformation following the enactment of Legislative Decree No.
79 dated March 16, 1999 (known as the Bersani Decree) which, envisaging a gradual liberalization of the
electricity market, gave rise to the following:

— the creation of individual subsidiaries for purposes of ensuring accounting and management
independence for the specific production, transmission, distribution and sale operations;

— the transfer of the management and control of the national grid for the transmission and dispatch of
electricity to the Gestore della Rete di Trasmissione Nazionale, a company wholly owned by the MEF,
and consequent sale of 94.88% of the shareholding held by Enel in Terna S.p.A., the company that owns
the above-mentioned grid;

— the sale by the production company of energy (approximately 15 GW of the Group’s generation
capacity) and numerous municipal distribution companies.

In November 1999, the process of privatizing Enel led to its listing on the Italian stock market and on the
New York Stock Exchange (with subsequent de-listing in December 2007) of approximately the 32% of its
share capital, followed by the registration of Enel shares with the Kanto Local Finance Bureau of Tokyo.

Later, considering the changed characteristics of the Italian energy market resulting from the introduction of
the above-mentioned Bersani Decree, Enel embarked upon an important phase of internationalization, with
the overarching aim of focusing on its core business, which led to numerous acquisitions and joint ventures.

In the context of such process, Enel acquired, over the period from 2007 to 2009, control over Endesa, the
leading Spanish energy operator, with significant business operations in Latin America as well.

Such acquisition, together with other smaller transactions involving numerous European production
companies (using a range of different energy sources), distribution companies and sales companies, enabled
Enel to considerably bolster its position on the main energy markets in the world.

In parallel with its journey toward internationalization, the Enel Group has maintained its leadership position
in Italy, albeit honoring the limits imposed by the above-mentioned Bersani Decree, in all areas of the energy
sector and, in 2010, it was authorized for the listing on the Italian stock market and on the Spanish stock
market of approximately 31% of the shares of Enel Green Power, the Group company holding all assets and
business operations pertaining to the renewable energies sector.

From 2010 until today, the Group has continued to strengthen its position on the worldwide energy markets,
through investments in markets and businesses featuring high growth potential (in particular in the renewable
energies sector) and the sale of non-strategic assets. Lastly, recently, the Group started a reorganization of its
business operations in Latin America, including through the acquisition of minority stakes held by third
parties in Enel Group companies. In particular, over the course of 2015, a corporate reorganization plan was
commenced aimed at separating the electricity generation and distribution operations conducted in Chile
from those conducted in other Latin American countries. Such reorganization which is expected to be
concluded by the end of the first half of 2016, includes in a first stage, the demerger of Enersis, Endesa Chile
and Chilectra’s Chilean activities from those of the other countries in Latin America, followed, in a second
stage, by the merger of the non-Chilean companies resulting from the mentioned demergers into Enersis
Americas. As of the Date of the Information Document, the proposed reorganization has received the
approval of the boards of directors of Enersis, Endesa Chile and Chilectra, and, with regard to the first stage
of the corporate reorganization, the approval of the relevant extraordinary shareholders meeting, which
resolved upon the demergers on December 18, 2015

Business overview
The organizational structure of the Enel Group

Starting in July 2014, the Enel Group has implemented a new organizational structure, based upon a
Divisions/Geographic Areas model, with a clear identification of roles and responsibilities with a view to:
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pursuing and maintaining its technological leadership in the sectors in which the Enel Group
operates, ensuring excellences in its business operations;

maximizing the level of service provided to customers in local markets.

Thanks to this new structure, the Enel Group may benefit from a lower level of complexity in the
performance of managerial actions and in the analysis of key factors in the generation of value.

m— Regions /Countries —=

= Global Divisions a

Italy —

Iberian
Peninsula

Latin
America

Eastern
Europe

In particular, the Enel Group’s new organizational structure is based upon a model that takes into account:

e Global Divisions (Global Generation, Infrastructures and Global Grids, Renewable Energies, Global

Trading, Upstream Gas), which has the task of managing and developing the assets, optimizing their
performance and the return on invested capital, in the various geographical areas where the Enel
Group operates; the Divisions also have the task of improving the efficiency of the managed
processes and agreeing upon the best practices at the worldwide level. Such organization also allows
the Group to benefit from a centralized industrial vision on the projects of its various businesses.
Every single project is assessed not only on the basis of the financial return, but also taking into
account the best technologies available at the Enel Group level;

Regions and Countries (ltaly, Spain, Latin America, Eastern Europe), which has the task of
managing within each country where the Enel Group operates relationships with local institutional
bodies and regulatory authorities, as well as the sale of electricity and gas, also providing support in
terms of staff activities and other services to the Divisions;

The following functions are also included in such model, providing support to the business:

Global Service Functions (Purchases and ICT), which has the task of managing the information and
communication technology activities and purchases at the Enel Group level,

Holding Functions (Administration, Finance and Control, Human Resources and Organization,
Communications, Legal and Corporate Affairs, Relationships with the European Union, Innovation
and Sustainability), which has the task of managing the governance processes at the Enel Group
level.
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The Enel Group’s Strategy

In order to compete effectively in the current and future macro-economic context and, in the meantime, to
exploit new business opportunities in the energy sector, the Enel Group has adopted the Strategic Plan 2016-
2019, which was presented to the financial community on November 18, 2015.

The new four-year plan was drafted so as to provide continuity with the plan 2015-2019, which was
presented in March 2015, and continues to focus on increasing profitability for shareholders, by taking
advantage of the Group’s global presence, its leadership in all technologies and the diversification of
business lines and geographic areas. In particular, the business strategy followed by the Enel Group is based
upon five fundamental pillars:

i) the achievement of high levels of operating efficiency, through the optimal management of
investments for the maintenance of assets and costs; and

ii)  the strengthening of the Enel Group’s drive towards “industrial” growth already announced in March,
thanks to a marked increase in investments in development;

iii)  the simplification of the Enel Group’s corporate structure;
iv)  the proactive management of the portfolio with a view to creating value; and

v)  the continuation of the Group’s attractive dividends policy, with certainty over the short term and high
visibility over the medium/long-term.

For further information, see Chapter 6 of the Information Document.

Key economic and financial data of the Enel Group

Set forth below are the key economic and financial data of the Enel Group for the nine months closed as of
September 30, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014.

Summary consolidated income statement of the Enel Group as of September 30, 2015

Euro millions First nine months

2015 2014 restated
Total revenues 55,998 54,075
Total costs 49,768 46,842
Net income/(expense) from commaodity contracts measured at fair value 78 (93)
Operating income 6,308 7,140
Financial income 2,924 2,294
Financial expense 4,922 4,798
Total financial income/(costs) (1,998) (2,504)
Share of income/(expense) from equity investments accounted for using the equity 36 49
method
Income before tax 4,346 4,685
Income taxes 1,424 2,070
Net income from continuing operations 2,922 2,615
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Net income from discontinued operations

Net income for the period (shareholders of the Parent Company and non-

controlling interests) 2,922 2,615
Attributable to shareholder of Parent Company 2,089 1,947
Attributable to non-controlling interests 833 668
(Bélj:g)earnings/(loss) per share attributable to shareholder of the Parent Company 0.22 0.21
(DEiLlﬁ)e)d earnings/(loss) per share attributable to shareholder of the Parent Company 0.22 0.21
Basic earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations attributable to the 0.22 0.21
shareholder of the Parent Company (Euro)
Diluited earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations attributable to the 0.22 021
shareholder of the Parent Company (Euro)
Summary Consolidated Balance Sheet of the Enel Group as of September 30, 2015
Euro millions

as of 30.09.2015 as of 31.12.2014
ASSETS
Non-current assets
- Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 87,676 89,844
- Goodwill 13,815 14,027
- Equity investments accounted for using the equity method 675 872
- Other non-current assets™” 13,458 12,932
Total non-current assets 115,624 117,675
Current assets
- Inventories 3,491 3,334
- Trade receivables 12,412 12,022
- Cash and cash equivalents 8,309 13,088
- Other current assets® 13,123 13,737
Total current assets 37,335 42,181
Assets held for sale 7,404 6,778
TOTAL ASSETS 160,363 166,634

NET SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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- Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company 32,152 31,506
- Non-controlling interests 19,123 19,639
Total net shareholders’ equity 51,275 51,145
Non-current liabilities

- Long-term borrowings 44,514 48,655
- Provisions and deferred tax liabilities 16,181 16,958
- Other non-current liabilities 3,330 3,905
Total non-current liabilities 64,025 69,518
Current liabilities

- Short-term borrowings and current portions of long-term borrowings 8,054 8,377
- Trade payables 10,110 13,419
- Other current liabilities 21,246 18,885
Total current liabilities 39,410 40,681
Liabilities held for sale 5,653 5,290
TOTAL LIABILITIES 109,088 115,489
TOTAL NET SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 160,363 166,634

(1) Including long-term financial receivables and securities as of September 30, 2015, respectively, of Euro 2,029 million and Euro 159 million.

(2) Including the current portion of long-term financial receivables, short-term financial receivables and securities as of September 30, 2015,

respectively, of Euro 1,089 million, Euro 1,624 million and Euro 1 million.

Summary Consolidated cash flow statement of the Enel Group as of September 30, 2015

Euro millions First nine months
2015 restzz;)tifi1r

Income before taxes 4,346 4,685

Adjustments for:

Depreciation, amortizations and impairment losses of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets 5317 4,005

Financial (income)/expense 1,737 2,055

Interest and other financial expenses and income paid and collected (2,263) (2,099)

Exchange rate adjustments of foreign currency assets and liabilities (including cash and cash 852 997

equivalents)

Changes of the net working capital:
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- inventories (14) (126)
- trade receivables (1,154) (1,788)
- trade payables (2,818) (2,104)
Other changes (826) (2,695)
Cash flow from operating activities (A) 5,177 2,930
Investments in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (5,081) (4,012)
Investments in entities (or business units) less cash and cash equivalents acquired (57) (150)
Disposals of entities (or business units) less cash and cash equivalents sold 437 23
(Increase)/Decrease in other investing activities 48 52
Cash flow from (investing)/disinvesting activities (B) (4,653) (4,087)
Change in net financial debts (3,339) 3,462
Transactions related to non-controlling interests 355 (501)
Dividends and interim dividends paid (2,192) (1,901)
Cash flow from financing activities (C) (5,176) 1,060
Impact of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents (D) (146) 2
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D) (4,798) (95)
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term securities at the start of the period (1) 13,255 7,900
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term securities at the end of the period (2) 8,457 7,805

(1) Including “Cash and cash equivalents” of Euro 13,088 million as of January 1, 2015, “Short-term securities” of Euro 140 million as of January

1, 2015 and “Cash and cash equivalents” of “Assets held for sale” of Euro 27 million as of January 1, 2015.

(2) Including “Cash and cash equivalents” of Euro 8,309 million as of September 30, 2015, “Short-term securities” of Euro 1 million as of
September 30, 2015 and “Cash and cash equivalents" of "Assets held for sale" of Euro 147 million as of September 30, 2015.

Consolidated income statement of the Enel Group as of December 31, 2014

Euro millions
2014 2013 restated

Revenues
Revenues from sales and services 73,328 75,427
Other revenues and income 2,463 3,236

[Subtotal] 75,791 78,663
Costs
Electricity, gas and fuel purchases 36,928 38,954

—67 -



Services and other materials 17,179 16,698
Personnel 4,864 4,555
Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses 12,670 6,951
Other operating expenses 2,362 2,821
Capitalized costs (1,524) (1,434)
[Subtotal] 72,479 68,545
Net income/(expense) from commodity contracts measured at fair value (225) (378)
Operating income 3,087 9,740
Financial income from derivatives 2,078 756
Other financial income 1,248 1,693
Financial expense from derivatives 916 1,210
Other financial expense 5,540 4,043
Share of income/(losses) of equity investments accounted for using the equity method (35) 217
Income before taxes (78) 7,153
Income taxes (850) 2,373
Net income from continuing operations 772 4,780
Net income from discontinued operations - -
Net income for the year (shareholders of the Parent Company and non- 779 4780
controlling interests) '
Attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company 517 3,235
Attributable to non-controlling interests 255 1,545
(Bélj:g )earnings/(loss) per share attributable to shareholder of the Parent Company 0.05 0.34
(DEilIJL:tOe)d earnings/(loss) per share attributable to shareholder of the Parent Company 0.05 0.34
Basic earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations attributable to the 0.05 0.34
shareholder of the Parent Company (Euro)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations attributable to the 0.05 0.34

shareholder of the Parent Company (Euro)

Consolidated Balance Sheet of the Enel Group as of December 31, 2014

Euro millions
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Asof 31.12.2014 as0f31.12.2013

restated

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 73,089 80,263
Investment property 143 181
Intangible assets 16,612 18,055
Goodwill 14,027 14,967
Deferred tax assets 7,067 6,186
Equity investments accounted for using the equity method 872 1,372
Derivatives 1,335 444
Other non-current financial assets 3,645 5,970
Other non-current assets 885 817

[Total] 117,675 128,255
Current assets
Inventories 3,334 3,555
Trade receivables 12,022 11,378
Tax receivables 1,547 1,709
Derivatives 5,500 2,690
Other current financial assets 3,984 5,607
Other current assets 2,706 2,557
Cash and cash equivalents 13,088 7,873

[Total] 42,181 35,369
Assets classified as held for sale 6,778 241
TOTAL ASSETS 166,634 163,865
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES As of 31.12.2014 As of 31.12.2013 restated

Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company

Share capital

9,403

9,403

Reserves

3,362

7,084




Retained earnings (losses carried forward) 18,741 19,454
[Total] 31,506 35,941
Non-controlling interests 19,639 16,891
Total shareholders’ equity 51,145 52,832
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 48,655 50,905
Post-employment and other employee benefits 3,687 3,677
Provisions for risks and charges 4,051 6,504
Deferred tax liabilities 9,220 10,795
Derivatives 2,441 2,216
Other non-current liabilities 1,464 1,259
[Total] 69,518 75,356
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 3,252 2,484
Current portion of long-term borrowings 5,125 4,658
Provisions for risks and charges 1,187 1,467
Trade payables 13,419 12,363
Income tax payable 253 286
Derivatives 5,441 2,940
Other current financial liabilities 1,177 1,100
Other current liabilities 10,827 10,359
[Total] 40,681 35,657
Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale 5,290 20
Total liabilities 115,489 111,033
TOTALSHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 166,634 163,865

Consolidated cash flow statement of the Enel Group as of December 31, 2014

Euro millions

2014 2013 restated
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Income before taxes for the year (78) 7.154
Adjustments for:

Amortizations and impairment losses of intangible assets 1,709 1,598
Depreciation and impairment losses of property, plant and equipment 10,212 4,698
Exchange rate adjustments of foreign currency assets and liabilities (including cash and cash equivalents) 1,285 (264)
Accruals to provisions 911 1,023
Net financial (income)/expense 2,580 2,322
(Gains)/Losses from disposals and other non-monetary items (720) (92)
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in current assets 15,899 16,439
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions (1,740) (1,889)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (62) (266)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (1,440) (531)
(Increase)/Decrease in financial and non financial assets/liabilities 212 (602)
Increase/(Decrease) di trade payables 1,315 (871)
Interest income and other financial income collected 1,300 1,275
Interest expense and other financial expenses paid (4,030) (3,695)
Income taxes paid (1,396) (2,606)
Cash flow from operating activities (a) 10,058 7,254
- of which discontinued operations - -
Investments in in property, plant and equipment (6,021) (5,311)
Investments intangible assets (680) (610)
Investments in entities (or business units) less cash and cash equivalents acquired (73) (206)
Disposals of entities (or business units) less cash and cash equivalents sold 312 1,409
(Increase)/Decrease in other investment activities 325 615
Cash flow from investing/disinvesting activities (b) (6,137) (4,103)
- of which discontinued operations - -
Financial debt (new long-term borrowing) 4,582 5,336
Financial debt (repayments and other net changes) (2,400) (9,619)
Collections/(payments) for sale/(acquisition) non-controlling interests 1.977 1,814
Incidental expenses in disposal of equity interest without the loss of control (50) (85)
Dividends and interim dividends paid (2,573) (2,044)
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Cash flow from financing activities (c) 1,536 (4,598)

- of which discontinued operations - -

Impact of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents (d) (102) (421)
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c+d) 5,355 (1,868)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year @ 7,900 9,768
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year @ 13,255 7,900

(1) Including “Cash and cash equivalents” of Euro 7,873 million as of January 1, 2014 (Euro 9,726 million as of January 1, 2013), “Short-term
securities” of Euro 17 million as of January 1, 2014 (Euro 42 million as of January 1, 2013) and “Cash and cash equivalents” of “Assets held for
sale” of Euro 10 million as of January 1, 2014 (not existing as of January 1, 2013).

(2) Including “Cash and cash equivalents” of Euro 13,088 million as of December 31, 2014 (Euro 7,873 million as of December 31, 2013), “Short-
term securities” of Euro 140 million as of December 31, 2014 (Euro 17 million as of December 31, 2013) and “Cash and cash equivalents” of
“Assets held for sale” of Euro 27 million as of December 31, 2014 (Euro 10 million as of December 31, 2013).

Key economic, financial and operating data of Enel by business area

The results attained by Enel over the first nine months of 2015 are stated by business area on the basis of an
approach used by management to monitor the Group’s performance, taking into account the operating model
implemented and described above.

In particular, in accordance with international accounting standard IFRS 8 in terms of “management
approach”, the launch of the new organizational structure has changed the reporting structure and the
representation and analysis of the Enel Group’s economic and financial data starting from the beginning of
2015. Specifically, the results by business sector set forth below are organized by identifying as the “primary
reporting segment” the Region and Country data, with the exception of the Renewable Energies Division,
which benefits from its centralized management under the subholding Enel Green Power and, therefore, in
terms of responsibility, enjoys greater autonomy than the other Divisions.

The following figure illustrates the structure as described above.
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Taking into account that the operating model described above has changed the reporting structure, the
analysis of the Enel Group’s economic and financial results and, similarly, the representation of consolidated
results only starting from the beginning of 2015, the data presented by the Enel Group for year 2014 are
represented on the basis of the previous organizational structure.

In particular, the previous operating model, which was adopted at the start of 2012, envisaged a Group
organization structured as follows:

) Holding Functions, in charge of guiding and controlling the strategic operations for the entire Enel
Group;

o Global Service Functions, in charge of providing services to the Enel Group, maximizing synergies
and economies of scale;

o Global Divisions, consisting of six Divisions (Generation, Energy Management and Italian Market;
Infrastructures and Grids; Spain and Latin America; International; Renewable Energies; Engineering
and Research) which were supported by the Upstream Gas Functions (which pursued a selective
vertical integration aiming to boost competitiveness, safety and flexibility in strategic sourcing to
cover Enel’s gas requirements) and Carbon Strategy (operating on the worldwide markets for CO2
certificates).

On the basis of the criteria determined under IFRS 8, the results of the Generation, Energy Management and
Italian Market Division were represented separately, distinguishing between what was attributable to the
generation and energy management business operations and what was attributable to the distribution of
electricity on the Italian market, in line with the procedures in place for internal reporting to top management.

In summary, in the transition from the previous organizational model to the current organizational model,
without considering any transfers of smaller companies, the main changes concerned:

) the Market, Generation and Energy Management and Infrastructures and Grids Divisions, which
operate virtually entirely in Italy, which are now included within the Country Italy;

. the Iberia and Latin America Division, also following the reorganization carried out in 2014, which is
now broken down into Spain and Latin America;

o the service operations and support for residents in Italy which are now classified within the Country

— Segment Reporting —a [ o Segment Reporting —a
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Generation & Energy

Management Italy

Infrastructure &
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Italy, rather than in the residual segment.

Lastly, it should be noted that based upon the criteria determined under IFRS 8, the possibility of the
simplification of reporting deriving from the meaningfulness limits set forth under the same international
accounting standard has been taken into account and, therefore, the item “Other, elisions and adjustments”,
includes not only the effects deriving from the elision of intersectoral economic relationships, but also the
data on the Holding Enel SpA and the Upstream Gas Division, for 2015, and the data related to the Holding
Enel SpA, the Services Area and other business operations, the Engineering and Research Division and the
Upstream Gas Function, for 2014.

Economic and financial data

Revenues
Euro millions First nine months

2015 2014
Italy 28,430 27,029
Iberian Peninsula 15,192 15,105
Latin America 7,974 6,885
Eastern Europe 3,541 3,932
Renewable Energies 2,258 2,016
Other, eliminations and adjustments (1,397) (892)
Total 55,998 54,075
Euro millions

2014 2013

Sales 15,226 16,921
Generation and Energy Management 22,606 22,798
Infrastructures and networks 7,366 7,698
Iberia and Latin America 30,547 30,674
International 5,278 6,296
Renewable Energies 2,921 2,769
Other, eliminations and adjustments (8,153) (8,493)
Total 75,791 78,663
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Gross operating margin

Euro millions First nine months
2015 2014
Italy 4,558 4,935
Iberian Peninsula 2,797 2,495
Latin America 2,292 2,026
Eastern Europe 1,125 783
Renewable Energies 1,470 1,312
Other, eliminations and adjustments (81) 42
Total 12,161 11,593
Euro millions
2014 2013
Sales 1,081 866
Generation and Energy Management 1,163 1,084
Infrastructures and networks 3,979 4,008
Iberia and Latin America 6,294 6,638
International 1,204 1,293
Renewable Energies 1,938 1,780
Other, eliminations and adjustments 98 1,022
Total 15,757 16,691

Operating income
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Euro millions First nine months

2015 2014
Italy 3,098 3,324
Iberian Peninsula 1,574 1,089
Latin America 1,580 1,338
Eastern Europe (594) 484
Renewable Energies 751 885
Other, eliminations and adjustments (101) 20
Total 6,308 7,140
Euro millions

2014 2013
Sales 455 362
Generation and Energy Management (1,539) 493
Infrastructures and networks 2,943 3,028
Iberia and Latin America 2,789 3,767
International (2,682) (23)
Renewable Energies 1,124 1,205
Other, eliminations and adjustments 3) 908
Total 3,087 9,740
Investments
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Euro millions

First nine months

2015 2014
Italy 957 915
Iberian Peninsula 575 513
Latin America 1,289 911
Eastern Europe 135 598
Renewable Energies 1,700 1,060
Other, eliminations and adjustments 24 15
Total 4,680 4,012
Euro millions

2014 2013

Sales 111 99
Generation and Energy Management 285 313
Infrastructures and networks 996 1,046
Iberia and Latin America 2,602 2,160
International 936 924
Renewable Energies 1,658 1,294
Other, eliminations and adjustments 113 84
Total 6,701 5,920

Operating data

First nine months of 2015

Net electricity

generated by Enel

(TWh)

Electricity transported
on Enel’s distribution
network (TWh)

Electricity sold

Gas sold to final

by Enel (TWh) - customers (billions of

@)

cubic meters)

Employees at
year end (no.)
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Italy 42.4 169.4 65.9 2.8 29,834
Iberian Peninsula 55.9 74.7 69.8 35 10,062
Latin America 44.9 58.5 475 - 12,297
Eastern Europe 45.6 10.9 11.8 - 10,301
Renewable 24.9 - : : 4,262
Energies

Other,

eliminations and - - - - 1.628
adjustments

Total 213.7 3135 195.0 6.3 68,384

(1) Excluding sales to distributors.

(2) Includes 3,981 units pertaining to the perimeter classified as “held for sale” as of September 30, 2015.

2014
. . EleCtriCity EIeCtriCity GaS SOId to Employees at year
Ng;::’zcérc;ctl)ty transported on sold by Enel  inal customers end (no.)
gEneI (TWhg’ Enel’s distribution (Twh) (billions of
network (TWh) o cubic meters) 2

Market - - 87.1 35 3,633
Generation and Energy 58.4 i 05 ) 5,314
Management
Infrastructures and Grids - 221.8 - - 17,398
Iberla_n Peninsula and Latin 130.0 159.5 1571 43 22.801
America
International 62.9 14.1 16.3 - 10,403
Renewable Energies 31.8 - - - 3,609
Other, eliminations and ) ) ) ) 5803
adjustments '
Total 283.1 395.4 261.0 7.8 68,961

(1) Excluding sales to distribu

tors.

(2) Includes 4,430 units pertaining to the perimeter classified as “held for sale” as of December 31, 2014.
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5. ENEL’S CONSOLIDATED PRO-FORMA INCOME STATEMENT AND BALANCE
SHEET DATA

5.1. CONSOLIDATED PRO-FORMA BALANCE SHEET AND INCOME STATEMENT
5.1.1. Introduction

This Chapter sets forth tables providing the consolidated pro-forma data of the balance sheet, income
statement and cash flow statement and related explanatory notes of the Enel Group for the half year ended
June 30, 2015 and for the year ended December 31, 2014 ( Enel’s Consolidated Pro-forma Tables).

Enel’s Consolidated Pro-forma Tables have been prepared for purposes of their inclusion in this Information
Document drafted in accordance with art. 70 and schedule 3B of the Issuers Regulation, in order to represent
the main effects related to the Demerger.

The tables setting forth the pro-forma data have been prepared in order to represent to investors, in
accordance with applicable standards, the effects of the Demerger, as if the same had taken place in the
period to which the pro-forma data presented refer; in this case, with regard to the consolidated balance sheet
effects, the end date of the reference period and, with regard to the consolidated income statement and cash
flow statement effects, the start date of the reference period.

Therefore:

- inthe table related to the consolidated pro-forma balance sheet as of June 30, 2015, the columns related
to the pro-forma adjustments reflect the effects of the Demerger as if it had occurred on June 30, 2015;

- in the tables related to the consolidated pro-forma income statement and cash flow statement for the half
year ended June 30, 2015, the columns related to the pro-forma adjustments reflect the effects of the
Demerger as if it had occurred on January 1, 2015 and, therefore, with effect for the entire first half of
2015;

- in the table related to the consolidated pro-forma balance sheet as of December 31, 2014, the columns
related to the pro-forma adjustments reflect the effects of the Demerger as if it had occurred on
December 31, 2014;

- in the tables related to the consolidated pro-forma income statement and cash flow statement for the year
ended December 31, 2014, the columns related to the pro-forma adjustments reflect the effects of the
Demerger as if it had occurred on January 1, 2014 and, therefore, with effect for all of year 2014.

In consideration of the different method of determining the effects deriving from the Demerger for purposes
of the preparation of the pro-forma balance sheet and the pro-forma income statement and the consolidated
pro-forma cash flow statement, there do not exist any accounting connections between them and, therefore,
the documents must be read separately.

The information set forth in Enel’s Consolidated Pro-Forma Tables represent a simulation provided solely
for explanatory purposes, with the objective of reflecting retroactively the effects of transactions that
occurred on subsequent dates. Despite compliance with commonly accepted rules and the use of reasonable
assumptions, there are limits related to the very nature of pro-forma data and there exists a risk that, if the
Demerger had actually occurred on the dates used as reference dates for the preparation of the Consolidated
Pro-forma Tables, the same results represented in the Consolidated Pro-forma Tables would not necessarily
have been attained.

The information set forth in the Consolidated Pro-forma Tables and in the related explanatory notes is not
meant, in any way whatsoever, to provide a forecast of the Enel Group’s future results and, therefore must
not be used for such purpose.

5.1.2. Basis for presentation and accounting standards used

In accordance with the pro-forma data preparation method set forth in CONSOB Notice no. DEM/1052803
dated July 5, 2001, the Consolidated Pro-forma Tables were drafted by adjusting the historical data extracted
from the Interim consolidated financial statement of the Enel Group for the half-year period ended June 30,
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2015 and from the annual consolidated financial statement of the Enel Group for the year ended December
31, 2014, applying to the same the pro-forma adjustments deriving from the Demerger.

The accounting standards followed for the preparation of the Consolidated Pro-forma Tables as of June 30,
2015 and as of December 31, 2014 are the same ones used for the preparation of, respectively, the Interim
consolidated financial statement as of June 30, 2015 and the annual consolidated financial statement as of
December 31, 2014 of the Enel Group, which were prepared in accordance with “International Financial
Reporting Standards” adopted by the European Union (hereinafter, “IFRS-EU”). It should be noted that
such accounting standards IFRS-EU are the same ones used by Enel Green Power for the purpose of drafting
its financial statement, without differences in terms of choices and accounting standards between the two
Groups s.

From an accounting point of view, the Demerger is qualified as a “business combination under common
control” transaction and, therefore, it falls outside the scope of application of IFRS 3 and IFRIC 17.

The Consolidated Pro-forma Tables have been prepared using the same figures used in the corresponding
consolidated financial statement as of the reference date. In addition, it should be noted that the consolidation
perimeters of the Enel Group as of June 30, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014 do not change as a result of
the Demerger, given that the Set of Assets Demerged is comprised of assets and liabilities that are already
fully consolidated within the group parent company Enel on such dates.

In the consolidated pro-forma table as of June 30, 2015, the consolidated pro-forma balance sheet, the
consolidated pro-forma income statement and the consolidated pro-forma cash flow statement are prepared
on the basis of the following columns:

- column “A” includes the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2015, the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated cash flow statement for the half year ended on such date of the Enel
Group, extracted without making any adjustment and/or restatement from the Interim consolidated
financial statement approved by Enel’s Board of Directors at the meeting held on July 29, 2015, and
subject to a limited review by the auditing firm Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A., which issued on August
3, 2015 its report concluding that nothing came to their attention that caused them to believe that the
financial statements mentioned above were not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standard applicable to interim financial reporting (IAS 34) as adopted
by the European Union, with no emphasis of matter paragraphs.

- Column “B” includes the adjustments made to the Shareholders’ Equity and the Net income of the Enel
Group following the Demerger.

- Column “C”, of the consolidated pro-forma Income Statement table and the consolidated pro-forma
Cash Flow Statement table, includes respectively the effects deriving from the reduction of costs,
determined on the basis of current methods of managing the individual assets/business operations in the
Enel Group, following the de-listing of Enel Green Power and its complete integration within the Enel
Group and the corresponding financial impact deriving from such cost reduction.

- The column “total” includes the consolidated pro-forma balance sheet as of June 30, 2015, the
consolidated pro-forma income statement and the pro-forma cash flow statement for the first half of
2015.

In the consolidated pro-forma table as of December 31, 2014, the consolidated pro-forma balance sheet, the
consolidated pro-forma income statement and the consolidated pro-forma cash flow statement are prepared
on the basis of the following columns:

- column “A” includes the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2014, the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated cash flow statement for the half year ended on such date of the Enel
Group, extracted without making any adjustment and/or restatement from the short-form half year
consolidated financial statement approved by Enel’s Board of Directors at the meeting held on March
18, 2015, and subjected to a limited review by the auditing firm Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A., which
issued on April 8, 2015 its report with a unmodified opinion with no emphasis of matter paragraphs.

- Column “B” includes the adjustments made to the Shareholders’ Equity and the Net income of the Enel
Group following the Demerger.
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- Column “C”, of the consolidated pro-forma Income Statement table and the consolidated pro-forma
Cash Flow Statement table, includes respectively the effects deriving from the reduction of costs,
determined on the basis of current methods of managing the individual assets/business operations in the
Enel Group, following the de-listing of Enel Green Power and its complete integration within the Enel
Group and the corresponding financial impact deriving from such cost reduction.

- The column “Total” includes the consolidated pro-forma balance sheet as of December 31, 2014 and the
consolidated pro-forma income statement and the consolidated pro-forma cash flow statement for year
2014.

Lastly, it should be noted that the tax effect on the pro-forma adjustments presented in the above-mentioned
Consolidated Pro-forma Tables, if any, was determined using the theoretical tax rate in force on the reference
date and is included in the same column in which the pro-forma adjustments to which such tax effect relates
are detailed.

5.1.3. Pro-forma Consolidated Tables as of June 30, 2015

The following table sets forth the consolidated pro-forma balance sheet of the Enel Group as of June 30,
2015.

Pro-forma adjustments

Consolidated Balance Consolidated pro-forma
Sheet of Enel as of June Adjustments to balance sheet of Enel as of June
Euro millions 30, 2015 shareholders’ equity 30, 2015
(A (B) Total

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 74,686 74,686
Investment property 142 142
Intangible assets 16,330 16,330
Goodwill 14,070 14,070
Deferred tax assets 7,060 7,060
Equity investments accounted for using
the equity method 814 814
Derivatives 2,444 2,444
Other non-current financial assets 3,602 3,602
Other non-current assets 1,007 1,007

120,155 120,155

Current assets
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Inventories 3,429 3,429
Trade receivables 11,652 11,652
Tax receivables 1,670 1,670
Derivatives 6,001 6,001
Other current financial assets 2,553 2,553
Other current assets 2,914 2,914
Cash and cash equivalents 9,427 9,427
37,646 37,646
Assets classified as held for sale 6,635 6,635
TOTAL ASSETS 164,436 164,436
Pro-forma adjustments
Consolidated S
Balance Sheet of Adjustments to_ balz;?:;zf(;tzr:ei
Eneglé\sz%fl\&]_)une shareholders’ equity of Enel as of
Euro millions ' June 30, 2015
(A) (B) Total
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company
Share capital 9,403 771 10,174
Other reserves 4,308 1.462 5,770
Retained earnings (loss carried forward) 19,262 19,262
Total shareholders’ equity 32,973 2.233 35,206
Non-controlling interests 20,407 (2.233) 18,174
53,380 - 53,380
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 46,176 46,176
Post-employment and other employee benefits 3,667 3,667
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Provisions for risks and charges 4,015 4,015
Deferred tax liabilities 9,454 9,454
Derivatives 1,610 1,610
Other non-current liabilities 1,602 1,602
66,524 66,524
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 3,498 3,498
Current portion of long-term borrowings 4,673 4,673
Provisions for risk and charges 1,142 1,142
Trade payables 10,683 10,683
Income tax payable 800 800
Derivatives 5,977 5,977
Other current financial liabilities 948 948
Other current financial liabilities 11,371 11,371
39,092 39,092
Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale 5,440 5,440
Total liabilities 111,056 111,056
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 164,436 - 164,436

The following table sets forth the consolidated pro-forma income statement of the Enel Group as of June 30,

2015.
Pro-forma adjustments
Adjustments
to net Consolidated pro-
Consolidated income income of forma income
statement of Enel as of the Enel Cost statement of Enel as of
Euro millions June 30, 2015 Group Reduction June 30, 2015
(A) (B) ©) Total
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Revenues

Revenues from sales and services 36,325 36,325
Other revenues and income 1,307 1,307
37,632 37,632
Costs
Electricity, gas and fuel purchases 18,642 18,642
Services and other materials 8,254 1) 8,253
Personnel 2,338 2,338
Amortizations and losses in value 2,877 2,877
Other operating expenses 1,258 1) 1,257
Capitalized costs (645) (645)
32,724 2) 32,722
Net income/(expense) from commodity contracts
measured at fair value 176 176
Operating income 5,084 2 5,086
Financial income from derivatives 2,027 2,027
Other financial income 683 683
Financial expense from derivatives 1,028 1,028
Other financial expense 2,959 2,959
Share of income/(losses) of equity investments
accounted for using the equity method 8 8
Income before tax 3,815 2 3,817
Income taxes 1,186 1 1,187
Net income from continuing operations 2,629 1 2,630

Net income from discontinued operations - -

Net income for the year (shareholders of the

Parent Company and non-controlling interests) 2,629 1 2,630
Attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company 1,833 113 1 1,947
Attributable to non-controlling interests 796 (113) 683

The following table sets forth the consolidated pro-forma cash flow statement of the Enel Group as of June
30, 2015.
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Pro-forma adjustments

Consolidated cash flow Adjustments to the

Consolidated pro-forma

statement of Enel as of shareholders’ Costs cash flow statement of

Euro millions June 30, 2015 equity Reduction  Enel as of June 30, 2015
(A) (B) (©) Total

Income before taxes for the period 3,815 2 3,817
Adjustments for:
Amortization and impairment losses of
intangible assets 378 378
Depreciation and impairment losses of
property, plant and equipment 2,110 2,110
Financial (income)/expense 1,145 1,145
Interest income and other financial
income collected 931 931
Interest expenses and other financial
costs paid (2,528) (2,528)
(Gains)/Losses from disposals and other
non-monetary items (1,202) (1,202)
Income taxes paid (635) (635)
Accruals to provisions 527 527
Exchange rate adjustments of foreign
currency assets and liabilities (including
cash and cash equivalents) 982 982
Changes in net working capital: (2,478) (2,478)
- Inventories 78 78
- Trade receivables 106 106
- Trade payables (2,467) (2,467)
- Provisions (629) (629)
- Other assets and liabilities 434 434
Cash flow from operating activities (a) 3,045 2 3,047
Investments in property, plant and
equipment (2,841) (2,841)
Investments in intangible assets (251) (251)
Investments in entities (or business
units) less cash and cash equivalents
acquired (36) (36)
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Disposals of entities (or business units)
less cash and cash equivalents sold 437 437

(Increase)/Decrease in other investing
activities 24 24

Cash flow from investing/disinvesting
activities (b) (2,667) (2,667)

Financial debt (new long-term
borrowing) 462 462

Financial debt (repayments and other net
changes) (3,105) (3,105)

Collections/(Payments) for
sale/(acquisition) of non controlling

interest 369 (20) 349
Dividends and interim dividends paid (2,011) 51 (1,960)
Cash flow from financing activities (c) (4,285) 31 (4,254)

Impact of exchange rate fluctuations
on cash and cash equivalents (d) 90 90

Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents (a+b+c+d) (3,817) 31 2 (3,784)
Cash and cash equivalents at the

beginnign of the period 13,255 13,255
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

the period 9,438 31 2 9,471
5.1.4. Explanatory notes on the pro-forma adjustments as of June 30, 2015

Adjustments to Shareholders’ equity and Net income (Column B)

The Demerger will take place with the grant of newly issued Enel shares to all of Enel Green Power’s
shareholders in an amount that is not proportional to the shareholdings currently held by EGP’s shareholders
in the Demerged Company. In particular, Enel Green Power’s minority shareholders will receive newly
issued Enel shares at the exchange ratio indicated below: similar Enel, as EGP shareholder will receive, on
the basis of the same exchange ratio, newly issued treasury shares, which will be cancelled simultaneously
upon issuance.

On the other side, all of the EGP shares that are exchanged with Enel shares will be cancelled.

The shareholders of Enel Green Power who do not take part in the approval of the Demerger will have the
following rights:

- the right to sell to Enel his own Enel shares Green Power in exchange for a cash price (Liquidation
Value) determined by applying the criterion provided under art. 2437-ter, paragraph 3, of the Civil
Code; or, alternatively

- the right of withdrawal , receiving the same price.
In both cases, the Liquidation Value of the Enel shares Green Power will be equal to Euro 1.780.

It should be noted that the Transaction provides for a condition precedent, represented by the circumstance
that the total liquidation value of the Enel Green Power shares in relation to which the Right of Sale and the
Right of Withdrawal is duly exercised by the shareholders of Enel Green Power entitled to do so does not
exceed Euro 300,000,000 (three hundred million/00). Such condition precedent will be deemed likewise
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satisfied — even if the above limit is exceeded — if Enel, within 60 calendar days from the last registration
with the Companies Register of Rome of the shareholders’ meeting resolution approving the Demerger
pursuant to art. 2502 of the Civil Code, declares its intention to proceed to purchase all of the shares for
which the Right of Withdrawal or the Right of Sale (as defined below) have been exercised

As a result of such Transaction, therefore:
- Enel will hold the entire remaining capital of Enel Green Power;

- the minority shareholders of Enel Green Power prior to the Demerger will become holders of newly
issued Enel shares, with dilution for the pre-existing Enel shareholders.

In the absence of certainty as to the number of shareholders of Enel Green Power who will exercise the right
to sell their shares or the Right of Withdrawal, the pro-forma data elaborated are based upon the assumption
that all of the minority shareholders of Enel Green Power take part in the approval of the Demerger, and thus
will obtain Enel shares in exchange for their Enel Green Power shares.

However, we proceeded to formulate and to illustrate here below, with reference to each Table reported, a
sensitivity analysis of the phenomenon, indicating the effects of a possible exercise of the above-mentioned
rights in relation to 1% of the shares of Enel Green Power held by the minority shareholders, which, in
general terms, may imply a cost for Enel amounting to approximately Euro 28 million.

Share capital

Enel’s share capital will rise as a result of the issuance of new shares, with regular entitlement and nominal
value of Euro 1.00 each, which will be assigned to the shareholders of the Demerged Company in an amount
that is not proportional to their shareholding in Enel Green Power’s share capital.

In particular, by applying the established exchange ratio of 0.486 new Enel shares for each EGP share:

a) EGP’s shareholders other than Enel will be assigned — by applying the Exchange Ratio — a total
maximum number of up to 770,588,712 newly issued Enel shares, upon the cancellation, upon
exchange, of a total of 1,585,573,483 EGP shares held by such shareholders, while

b) Enel will be assigned a total of 998,451,288 Enel shares, upon the cancellation, upon exchange of
2,054,426,517 EGP shares held by it, — which Enel shares will be simultaneous cancelled in
compliance with the prohibition provided under art. 2504-ter, paragraph 2, of the Civil Code, as cited
in art. 2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Civil Code —.

The pro-forma adjustments that affect the share capital reflect what is described above. In particular,
considering the cancellation of the share assigned to Enel, the share capital has been adjusted in order to
represent the increase due exclusively to the newly issued shares assigned to Enel Green Power’s minority
shareholders the nominal value of which amounts to a total of Euro 771 million.

If 1% of the Enel Green Power’s shares held by minority shareholders is subject to the exercise of the Right
of Withdrawal or of the Right of Sale as described above, Enel’s share capital would increase, with respect to
the corresponding historical value, by the amount of Euro 763 million. In consideration of the Condition
Precedent, the maximum percentage of shares held by minority shareholders of Enel Green Power in relation
to which the Right of Withdrawal or of the Right of Sale may be duly exercised without such Condition
Precedent to occur, is equal to approximately 10.63%.

Other reserves
The pro-forma adjustments related to the item “other reserves” are attributable to:

- anincrease in the share premium reserve by an amount equal to Euro 2,362 million, equal to the excess
over the theoretical issue price of the shares (determined as the stock exchange value of Enel’s share as
of June 30, 2015), equal to Euro 4.064 per share, with respect to their nominal value;

- a decrease of the reserve for acquisitions of “non-controlling interests” by Euro 886 million,
representing the difference between the total value of the issue price of the newly issued shares, the
ancillary costs as described below and the book value as of June 30, 2015 of the shareholders’ equity
pertaining to Enel Green Power’s minority shareholders;
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- the costs related to the Transaction qualifying as ancillary costs directly attributable to the Demerger in
an amount, net of the related tax effect, of Euro 14 million. In particular, they include the estimate of
costs incurred for services rendered by the legal and financial advisors, of costs incurred to enable Enel
Green Power’s shareholders to carry out the exchange transactions, and the costs incurred in order to
enable EGP’s shareholders who hold shares through the Spanish deposit system (Iberclear), to sell the
Enel shares received in exchange on the Italian Stock Exchange without additional costs related to the
sale on a foreign market, within one month of the exchange.

If 1% of the Enel Green Power’s shares held by minority shareholders is subject to the exercise of the Right
of Withdrawal or of the Right of Sale as described above, the share premium reserve would increase, with
respect to the corresponding historical value, by the amount of Euro 2,338 million and, consequently, the
negative reserve from acquisitions of “non controlling interests” would increase, with respect to the
corresponding historical value, by Euro 854 million.

Non-controlling interests and Net income for the first half of 2015

As a result of the cancellation of the EGP shares held by the minority shareholders, Enel will be the only
shareholder of Enel Green Power, increasing its stake from 68.29% to 100%.

Consequently, the quota attributable to non-controlling interests included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
was adjusted in order to reattribute to the Enel Group the quota of the net shareholders’ equity pertaining to
the minority shareholders of Enel Green Power (ante-demerger), in the amount of Euro 2,233 million,
including the income of the first half of 2015.

Similarly, in the table setting forth the consolidated pro-forma income statement, the net income for the first
half of 2015 was reattributed to the Group and to Third Parties in order to take into account the increase in
Enel’s shareholding in EGP. In particular, the portion of net income for the first half of 2015 pertaining to
the Group was increased by Euro 113 million, against a decrease in the same amount of the portion
attributable to third party stakes.

Effects on the consolidated cash flow statement

The pro-forma adjustments made to the consolidated cash flow statement as of June 30, 2015 reflect the
outlays that the Group would have incurred for the ancillary costs described above, equal to Euro 20 million,
as well as the reattribution to Enel of the dividends disbursed to the minority shareholders of EGP with a
consequent rise in the Group’s cash and a cash equivalents for an amount of Euro 51 million. It should be
noted that the pro-forma adjustments made to the consolidated cash flow statement do not include the taxes
related to such ancillary costs, on the assumption that the related effects on the cash flows would have
occurred in the following financial year.

If 1% of the Enel Green Power’s shares held by minority shareholders is subject to the exercise of the Right
of Withdrawal or of the Right of Sale as described above, the item “Cash and cash and equivalents” would
increase by an additional Euro 5 million with respect to the relevant historical data, equal to the balance of
the above pro-forma adjustments (Euro 33 million) and the outlays incurred in connection with the above
shares (approximately Euro 28 million).

Adjustments to the consolidated income statement of the first half of 2015 (column C)

The pro-forma adjustments to the consolidated income statement of the Enel Group for the half year closed
as of June 30, 2015 aim to represent the reduction in costs that would have been registered in such period if
the Demerger had occurred on January 1, 2015. Such adjustments objectively reflect the isolable and
measurable effects of the Demerger and, therefore, do not reflect the economic effects of synergies expected
to derive from the complete integration of EGP within the Enel Group, in accordance with the method for
determining pro-forma data described in Consob Notice no. DEM/1052803 dated July 5, 2001.

Set forth below is a detailed description of the adjustments made to the consolidated income statement of the
Enel Group for the first half of 2015.

Costs for services and other materials
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The item in question was adjusted by including in such column the costs incurred in the first half of 2015 by
Enel Green Power exclusively due to its status as a listed company, in the amount of Euro 1 million. In
particular, such decrease concerns mainly fees, professional and technical services and auditors’ services
(only with respect to the services rendered and which would not have been necessary if the company had not
been listed).

Other operating costs

The item in question was adjusted in order to reflect an overall decline in the operating costs by Euro 1
million attributable to the costs incurred in the first half of 2015 by Enel Green Power solely on account of
its status as a listed company. In particular, such reduction refers essentially to the compensation paid to
corporate bodies (including compensation granted to the corporate bodies governed by and rendered
mandatory by the legal framework applicable to listed companies) and contributions due to the Regulatory
Authority that oversees the Italian Stock Exchange.

Net income of the first half of 2015

As a result of the reduction of the costs described above and taking into account the related tax effect, the
“Net income for the period (Group and Third Parties)” entered in the consolidated income statement of the
first half of 2015 was increased by Euro 1 million.

In consideration of the fact that the reduction in costs will affect solely Enel Green Power, and taking into
account that in the Pro-forma income statement such company is considered wholly owned by Enel since the
start of the year, the above-mentioned increase in net income was entirely attributed to the Enel Group.

Effects on the consolidated cash flow statement

The pro-forma adjustments to the consolidated income statement as of June 30, 2015 described above were
also reflected in the consolidated pro-forma cash flow statement as of June 30, 2015, assuming that the same
had been settled in cash, giving rise to a positive effect on the available liquidity of the Enel Group in the
amount of Euro 2 million. It should be noted that the above pro-forma adjustments do not include the related
taxes, on the assumption that the related effects on the cash flows would have occurred in the following
financial year.

5.1.5. Pro-forma financial data as of December 31, 2014

The following table sets forth the consolidated pro-forma balance sheet of the Enel Group as of December 31,
2014.

Pro-forma adjustments

Euro million Consolidated Adjustments to Consolidated pro-
Balance Sheet of shareholders’ equity forma balance sheet
Enel as of of Enel as of
December 31, December 31, 2014
2014
(A) (B) Total
ASSETS
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 73,089 73,089
Investment property 143 143
Intangible assets 16,612 16,612
Goodwill 14,027 14,027
Deferred tax assets 7,067 7,067
Equity investments accounted for using the equity 872 872
method
Derivatives 1,335 1,335
Other non-current financial assets 3,645 3,645
Other non-current assets 885 885
117,675 117,675
Current assets -
Inventories 3,334 3,334
Trade receivables 12,022 12,022
Tax receivables 1,547 1,547
Derivatives 5,500 5,500
Other current financial assets 3,984 3,984
Other current assets 2,706 2,706
Cash and cash equivalents 13,088 13,088
42,181 42,181
Assets classified as held for sale 6,778 6,778
TOTAL ASSETS 166,634 166,634

Pro-forma adjustments
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Conoslidated

Consolidated Pro-forma
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet of
of Enel as of Enel as of
December 31, Adjustments to December 31,
Euro million 2014 shareholders’ equity 2014
A (B) Total
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent
Company
Share capital 9,403 771 10,174
Other reserves 3,362 1,332 4,694
Retained earnings (loss carried forward) 18,741 18,741
31,506 2,103 33,609
Non-controlling interests 19,639 (2,103) 17,536
Total shareholders equity 51,145 - 51,145
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 48,655 48,655
Post-employment and other employee benefits 3,687 3,687
Provisions for risks and charges 4,051 4,051
Deferred tax liabilities 9,220 9,220
Derivatives 2,441 2,441
Other non-current liabilities 1,464 1,464
69,518 69,518
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 3,252 3,252
Current portion of long-term borrowings 5,125 5,125
Provisions for risk and charges 1,187 1,187
Trade payables 13,419 13,419
Income tax payable 253 253
Derivatives 5,441 5,441
Other current liabilities 1,177 1,177
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Other current financial liabilities 10,827 10,827
40,681 40,681

Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for

sale 5,290 5,290

Total liabilities 115,489 115,489

TOTAL NET SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES 166,634 - 166,634

The following table sets forth the consolidated pro-forma income

December 31, 2014.

statement of the Enel Group as of

Pro-forma adjustments

Adjustments
Consolidated to the net Consolidated pro-
income statement income of forma income
of Enel as of the Enel Ccosts statement of Enel as
Euro millions December 31, 2014 Group Reduction of December 31, 2014
(A) (B) (©) Total
Revenues
Revenues from sales and services 73,328 73,328
Other revenues and income 2,463 2,463
75,791 75,791
Costs
Electricity, gas and fuel purchases 36,928 36,928
Services and other materials 17,179 2) 17,177
Personnel 4,864 1) 4,863
Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses 12,670 12,670
Other operating expenses 2,362 1) 2,361
Capitalized costs (1,524) (1,524)
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72,479 @) 72,475

Net income/(expense) from commodity contracts

measured at fair value (225) (225)
Operating income 3,087 4 3,091
Financial income from derivatives 2,078 2,078
Other financial income 1,248 1,248
Financial expense from derivatives 916 916
Other financial expense 5,540 5,540
Share of income/(losses) of equity investments

accounted for using the equity method (35) (35)
Income before tax (78) 4 (74)
Income taxes (850) 1 (849)
Net income from continuing operations 772 3 775

Net income from discontinued operations - -

Net income for the year (shareholders of the Parent

Company and non-controlling interests) 772 3 775
Attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company 517 108 3 628
Attributable to non-controlling interests 255 (108) 147

The following tables sets forth the consolidated pro-forma cash flow statement of the Enel Group as of
December 31, 2014.

Pro-forma adjustments

Consolidated

Consolidated pro-forma
cash flow cash flow
statement of  Adjustments statement of
Enel as of to Enel as of
December shareholders’ Costs December
Euro millions 31, 2014 equity Reduction 31, 2014
(A) (B) ©) Total
Income before taxes for the year (78) 4 (74)
Adjustments for:
Amortization and impairment losses of intangible assets 1,709 1,709
Depreciation and impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment 10,212 10,212
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Exchange rate adjustments of foreign currency assets and

liabilities (including cash and cash equivalents) 1,285 1,285
Accruals to provisions 911 911
Financial (income)/expenses 2,580 2,580
(Gains)/Losses from disposals and other non-monetary items (720) (720)
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in net current
assets 15,899 15,903
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions (1,740) (1,740)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (62) (62)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (1,440) (1,440)
(Increase)/Decrease in financial and non-financial assets/liabilities 212 212
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 1,315 1,315
Interest income and other financial income collected 1,300 1,300
Interest expense and other financial expense paid (4,030) (4,030)
Income taxes paid (1,396) (1,396)
Cash flow from from operating activities (a) 10,058 10,062
Investments in property, plant and equipment (6,021) (6,021)
Investments in intangible assets (680) (680)
Investments in entities (or business units) less cash and cash
equivalents acquired (73) (73)
Disposals of entities (or business units) less cash and cash
equivalents sold 312 312
(Increase)/Decrease in other investing activities 325 325
Cash flow from from investing/disinvesting activities (b) (6,137) (6,137)
Financial debt (new long-term borrowing) 4,582 4,582
Financial debt (repayments and other net changes) (2,400) (2,400)
iﬁ:tc;lrlgzscttions/(Payments) for sale/(acquisition) of non controlling 1,977 (20) 1,957
Incidental expenses in disposal of equity interests without loss of
control (50) (50)
Dividends and and interim dividends paid (2,573) 41 (2,532)
Cash flow from from financing activities (c) 1,536 21 1,557
Impact of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash
equivalents (d) (102) (102)




Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c+d) 5,355 21 4 5,380

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7,900 7,900
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13,255 21 4 13,280
5.1.6. Explanatory notes on the pro-forma adjustments as of December 31, 2014

Set forth below are the notes on the pro-forma adjustments as of December 31, 2014 and the year ended on
such date. See paragraph 3.1 above for a thorough description of the Transaction.

Pro-forma adjustments: assumptions formulated and determination of the pro-forma adjustments
included in the Consolidated Pro-forma Tables

Adjustments to the shareholders’ equity and to the Net income of the Enel Group (Column B)
Share capital

The pro-forma adjustments concerning the share capital as of December 31, 2014 reflect what is described in
paragraph 3.1 above. In particular, considering the cancellation of the shares assigned to Enel, the share
capital was adjusted in order to represent the increase due exclusively to the newly issued shares assigned to
the minority shareholders of Enel Green Power the nominal value of which amounts to a total of Euro 771
million.

If 1% of the Enel Green Power’s shares held by minority shareholders is subject to the exercise of the Right
of Withdrawal or of the Right of Sale described above, Enel’s share capital would rise, with respect to the
corresponding historical value, by Euro 763 million.

Other reserves
The pro-forma adjustments related to the item “other reserves” are attributable to:

- an increase in the share premium reserve by Euro 2,079 million equal to the excess over the theoretical
issue price of the shares (determined as the stock exchange value of the Enel share as of December 31
2014), equal to 3.696 Euro per share, with respect to their nominal value;

- decrease in the reserve for acquisitions of “non-controlling interests” by Euro 733 million, representing
the difference between the total value of the issue price of the newly issued shares, the ancillary costs as
described below and the book value as of December 30, 2014 of the shareholders’ equity pertaining to
Enel Green Power’s minority shareholders;

- the costs related to the transaction qualifying as ancillary costs directly attributable to the Demerger in
the amount, net of the related tax effect, of Euro 14 million. In particular, they include estimate of the
costs incurred for the services rendered by the legal and financial advisors, cost incurred in order to
enable Enel Green Power’s shareholders to carry out the exchange transactions, as well as the costs
incurred in order to enable EGP’s shareholders who hold shares through the Spanish deposit system
(Iberclear), to sell the Enel shares received in exchange on the Italian Stock Exchange without
additional costs deriving from the sale on a foreign market, within one month of the exchange.

If 1% of the Enel Green Power’s shares held by minority shareholders is subject to the exercise of the Right
of Withdrawal or of the Right of Sale as described above, the share premium reserve would rise, with respect
to the corresponding historical value, by the amount of Euro 2,057 million and, consequently, the negative
reserve for acquisitions of “non controlling interests” would rise, with respect to the corresponding historical
value, by Euro 703 million.

Non-controlling interests and Net income for year 2014

As a result of the cancellation of the EGP shares held by the minority shareholders, Enel will be the only
shareholder of Enel Green Power, increasing its stake from 68.29% to 100%.

—-05—



Consequently, the Quota attributable to “Non-controlling interests” included in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet was adjusted in order to reattribute to Enel Group the portion of the net shareholders’ equity pertaining
to Enel Green Power’s minority shareholders (ante-Demerger), in the amount of Euro 2,103 million,
including the income for year 2014.

Similarly, in the table setting for the consolidated pro-forma income statement, the Net income for year
2014 were reattributed to the Enel Group and to third parties in order to take into account the increase in
Enel’s shareholding in EGP. In particular, the portion of net income for year 2014 pertaining to the Enel
Group was increased by Euro 108 million, against a decrease by the same amount in the portion attributable
to third party stakes.

Effects on the consolidated cash flow statement

The pro-forma adjustments made to the consolidated cash flow statement as of December 31, 2014 reflect
the outlays that the Enel Group would have incurred in connection with the ancillary costs described above,
equal to Euro 20 million, as well as the reattribution to Enel of the dividends disbursed by EGP to the
minority shareholders with a consequent increase in the Group’s Cash and cash equivalents in the amount of
Euro 41 million. It should be noted that the above pro-forma adjustments to the consolidated cash flow
statement do not include the taxes related to such ancillary costs, on the assumption that the related effects on
the cash flows would have occurred in the following financial year.

If 1% of the Enel Green Power’s shares held by minority shareholders is subject to the exercise of the Right
of Withdrawal or of the Right of Sale as described above, the item “Cash and cash and equivalents” would
rise, with respect to the corresponding historical value, by Euro 3 million, equal to the balance between the
above pro-forma adjustments, equal to Euro 25 million, and the outlays due in connection with such shares
(approximately Euro 28 million).

Adjustments to the consolidated income statement for year 2014 (column C)

The pro-forma adjustments to the consolidated income statement of the Enel Group for the year ended
December 31, 2014 aim to represent the reduction in costs that would have been registered in such period if
the Demerger had taken place on January 1, 2014. Such adjustments objectively reflect the isolable and
measurable effects of the Demerger and, therefore, do not reflect the economic effects of synergies expected
to derive form the complete integration of EGP within the Enel Group, in accordance with the method of
determining pro-forma data described in Consob Notice no. DEM/1052803 dated July 5, 2001.

Set forth below is a detailed description of the adjustments made to the consolidated income statement of the
Enel Group for year 2014.

Costs for services and other materials

The item in question was adjusted by including in such column the costs incurred in year 2014 by Enel
Green Power exclusively on account of its status as a listed company, in the amount of Euro 2 million. In
particular, such decrease concerns mainly fees, consultancies, professional and technical services and
auditing services (only with regard to services rendered that would not have been necessary if the company
had not been listed).

Costs of personnel

The item in question was adjusted in order to reflect the reduction in compensation paid to the directors and
employees of the Enel Group, due to their membership on corporate bodies, in an amount totaling Euro 1
million.

Other operating costs

The item in question was adjusted in order to reflect an overall decrease in operating costs in the amount of
Euro 1 million, related to the costs incurred in year 2014 by Enel Green Power exclusively on account of its
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status as a listed company. In particular, such reduction refers essentially to the compensation paid to
corporate bodies (including the compensation granted to corporate bodies governed by and rendered
mandatory by the legal framework applicable to listed companies) and contributions due to the Regulatory
Authority that oversees the Italian Stock Exchange.

Net income for year 2014

As a result of the reduction of the costs described above and taking into account the related tax effect, the
“Net income for the year (Group and Third Parties)” entered in the consolidated income statement for year
2014 rose by Euro 3 million.

In consideration of the fact that the reduction of the costs will concern solely Enel Green Power, and taking
into account that in the pro-forma income statement such company is considered wholly owned by Enel
since the start of the year, the above-mentioned increase in net income was entirely attributed to the Enel
Group.

Effects on the consolidated cash flow statement

The pro-forma adjustments to the consolidated income statement as of December 31, 2014 described above,
based on the assumption that they have been settled in cash, were also reported in the consolidated cash flow
statement pro-forma as of December 31, 2014, causing a positive effect on the Enel Group’s available
liquidity in the amount of Euro 4 million. It should be noted that the above pro-forma adjustments do not
include the related taxes, on the assumption that the related effects on the cash flows would have occurred in
the following financial year.

PRO-FORMA INDICATORS PER SHARE
5.1.7. Historical and pro-forma data per share

Set forth below are the historical and pro-forma consolidated data per share of the Enel Group as of June 30,
2015 (and for the half year closed on such date) and those as of December 31, 2014 (and for the year ended
on such date) affected by changes deriving from the completion of the Demerger.

The historical indicators were calculated on the average number of the ordinary shares, respectively, in the
first half of 2015 and in year 2014, equal to 9,403,357,795 while the pro-forma indicators were determined
assuming that the average number of ordinary shares was equal to 10,173,946,508, corresponding to the
number of shares issued after the Demerger.

Consolidated Consolidated pro-
historical indicators forma indicators per
per share as of June  share as of June 30,

30, 2015 2015

Gross operating margin per share 0.85 0.78
Operating income per share 0.54 0.50
Net income attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company per share 0.19 0.19
Diluted net income attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company per share 0.19 0.19
Ordinary net income attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company per share 0.17 0.16
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company per share 351 3.46
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Consolidated
historical indicators Consolidated pro-
as of December 31, forma indicators as
2014 of December 31, 2014

Gross operating margin per share 1.68 1.55
Operating income per share 0.33 0.30
Net income attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company per share 0.05 0.06
Diluted net income attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company per share 0.05 0.06
Ordinary net income attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company per share 0.32 0.31
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company per share 3.35 3.30
5.1.8. Brief comment on the significant changes in the pro-forma indicators per share with

respect to historical data per share resulting from the Demerger

As highlighted in the table presented in the preceding paragraph, certain of the per share indicators of the
Enel Group as of June 30, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014 would have incurred a change if the Demerger
transaction had been concluded in the respective reference periods.

Such changes are attributable to the rise in the number of shares issued by the group parent company Enel
and the latter’s achievement of a totalitarian shareholding in Enel Green Power that give rise to an increase
in the Group’s shareholders’ equity. It should be noted that the change in pro-forma net income and the
Tables setting forth the Pro-forma income statement with respect to the corresponding historical values does
not have a significant impact on the change in the per share indicators.

5.2. AUDITING FIRM’S REPORT ON THE PRO-FORMA INCOME STATEMENT, BALANCE SHEET AND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT DATA

The Auditing Firm’s reports issued on December 23, 2015, and related to the examination of the pro-forma
income statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement data as of December 31, 2014 and June 30, 2015,
respectively in the form of a “positive opinion” and “negative assurance”, with reference to the
reasonableness of the underlying assumptions used, the properness of the method used as well as the
properness of the valuation criteria and the accounting standards used for purposes of drafting such data, are
attached hereto as Schedule 9.
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6. PROSPECTS OF ENEL AND THE ENEL GROUP
6.1. GENERAL INDICATION ON THE TREND IN ENEL’S BUSINESS SINCE YEAR END 2014

With reference to Enel Group’s business trend following December 31%, 2014, no material events have
occurred other than those announced to the public through the publication of the interim financial report as of
September 30, 2015 on November 13, 2015, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, on Enel’s
website (www.enel.com) and filed and made available on the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-
Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com).

6.2. PROSPECTS FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

The Demerger will have no effect on the prospects of the Enel Group and the EGP Group for the fiscal year
2015, as announced to the market on November 18, 2015, through the presentation of the Strategic Plan
2016-2019. For information on the key economic-financial data envisaged for year 2015, see Paragraph 6.3.5
of the Information Document.

6.3. ESTIMATES AND FORWARD-LOOKING DATA
6.3.1. Introduction

On November 18, 2015, the Enel Group presented to the financial community the Strategic Plan for the
period 2016-2019, which includes Group’s strategic guidelines and the economic growth, financial and
balance sheet Group objectives. Such strategic plan includes, inter alia, forecasts on a number of
consolidated economic indicators, such as the Group’s EBITDA and net income. The document used for the
presentation, “Capital Market Day — Strategic Plan 2016-2019”, is available to the public on the Enel
Group’s website www.enel.com in the section Investor Relations.

Enel’s Strategic Plan was prepared through a process involving all of the Enel Group’s Business Lines and
Countries/ Regions, each of which prepares its own plan proposals starting from the strategic guidelines
defined by the Parent Company. Such plans are, lastly, consolidated in the Group’s Strategic Plan. The
preparation of Enel’s Strategic Plan is based upon, inter alia, certain assumptions related to future events that
the management expects will materialize and actions that management intends to take the moment in which
the Plan is prepared, as well as general assumptions related to future events and actions by the management
that will not necessarily materialize, which will depend essentially upon variables falling beyond the
management’s control.

The Strategic Plan was drafted in continuity with the previous plan for the period 2015-2019 presented on
March 19, 2015 to the financial community and continues to focus on bolstering profitability for the
shareholders, by taking advantage of the Enel Group’s global presence, its leadership in all technologies and
the diversification of business lines and geographical areas (see Chapter 4 of the Information Document).

6.3.2. Guidelines of the Strategic Plan 2016-2019

The Strategic Plan 2016-2019 was prepared on the basis of five strategic guidelines cited above and
described in greater detail below:

i) the achievement of high levels of operational efficiency, through the optimization of fixed costs and
maintenance investments of assets. In the Plan, the Enel Group expanded its target for operational
efficiency up to Euro 1.8 billion of savings over the period 2014-2019, to be achieved through:

— a careful reduction in maintenance investments which will allow for Euro 800 million of savings
through technological best practices and improvements in maintenance throughout the entire
portfolio of assets. These efficiencies will allow for a further reduction in fixed costs.

— A higher target for the reduction of fixed costs for 2019 by Euro 1 billion, from Euro 9.3 billion
in 2014 to Euro 8.3 billion in 2019. Improvements in efficiency will be realized in Renewables, in
the Grids, in Conventional Generation, and will also derive from a rationalization of personnel
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i)

and technological optimization, through the closure of inefficient plants and the digitalization of
grids.

The relaunch of a growth path of the Enel Group, thanks to a decisive increase in investments in
development. A fundamental feature of the updated growth strategy is the rebalancing of investments
in favor of growth ones, which are expected to be increased by Euro 2.7 billion, and to reach
approximately Euro 17 billion over the period 2016-2019, with a transition toward a lower level of
technological and geographical risk. The Group has an extensive and diversified portfolio of small and
medium-sized projects, which offers flexibility in the allocation of investments, with the aim to
maximizing returns. In addition, the portfolio of projects shows a reduction in the timeframe
necessary to generate EBITDA (on average, below two years), sustaining an improvement in self-
financing through the acceleration of cash flows. Over the course of the period 2016-2019,
approximately 95% of new growth investments will be allocated to activities with reduced risk profiles
and with stable returns, such as the conventional and renewable generation supported by long-term
power purchasing agreements (PPA) and the grids. The Strategic Plan envisages a 30% rise in
investments in Italy, where the installation of second generation electricity meters will be anticipated
and is expected to produce fair returns on regulated business.

The simplification of the Enel Group’s structure - the first step toward simplifying the Group’s
structure in order to improve its operating efficiency and reduce its complexity was the reorganization
of Endesa, which was completed at the end of 2014 through the creation of a business that is entirely
focused on Iberian Peninsula. The Enel Group’s management undertook additional steps toward
continuing this process, proposing the full integration of Enel Green Power and its generation
portfolio, and the reorganization of business operations in Latin America.

— It is envisaged that the proposed full integration of EGP into the Enel Group with a 100%
shareholding, may yield numerous benefits, such as:

e an acceleration in the growth of renewables;

e a faster introduction to all units/structures of the Enel Group of best practices that have been
defined and tested by EGP, thus generating greater cost efficiencies;

e optimization of assets and lower volatility in the generation of energy, thus improving the
competitiveness of prices;

e greater integration between grids and plants fueled by renewable sources, opening up new
business opportunities gradually as the distributed generation becomes widespread, calling for
more sophisticated energy management systems;

o reinforced retail products and services for the development of intelligent, integrated and green
solutions for customers who want to optimize their energy consumption.

— The reorganization of the Enel Group in Latin America, including, in a first stage, the demerger
of Enersis Endesa Chile e Chilectra’s Chilean business operations from those of the other
countries in Latin America, followed, in a second stage, by the merger of the non-Chilean
companies resulting from the mentioned demergers into Enersis Americas. As of the Date of the
Information Document, the proposed reorganization has received the approval of the boards of
directors of Enersis, Endesa Chile and Chilectra, and, with regard to the first stage of the
corporate reorganization, the approval of the relevant extraordinary shareholders meeting. The
reorganization is expected to yield the following benefits:

¢ asimplified governance, which will facilitate the decision-making and operating processes;

e an approach compatible with the characteristics of the Chilean market (low risk, stable
regulatory regime, mature market and high cash flows) and those of the rest of Latin America
(higher volatility, higher rates of growth in demand, a robust portfolio of projects aimed at
achieving growth);

e greater operating efficiencies;
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e the reduction in cross shareholdings of Enersis, Endesa Chile and Chilectra in the companies
in which the latter companies hold equity stakes.

iv)  The active portfolio management with a view to creating value — the asset rotation target has been
increased to approximately Euro 6 billion from Euro 5 billion under the previous plan. In relation to
such target, during the 2015 Enel Group completed the sale of assets for an amount of approximately
Euro 3.7 billion, of which Euro 1.6 billion related to transaction which have already been completed.
The plan of divestments and the reinvestment of capital is already creating value by accelerating the
strategic positioning of the Enel Group, reducing the business risks and sustaining higher returns
through the financing of additional growth-driven investments with strategic priority, such as the grids
in Europe and renewables throughout the world. In addition, it is envisaged that the proceeds from
future portfolio management initiatives may sustain initiatives aimed at simplifying the Enel Group’s
structure.

v)  Remuneration of the shareholders — The dividend policy announced in March 2015 is confirmed under
the 2016-2019 plan, which offers certainty in the short term and significant growth potential over the
medium term. The 2015 dividend will be equal to the greater sum as between Euro 0.16 per share and
50% of total ordinary net income realized in year 2015. For 2016, the dividend will be equal to the
greater sum as between Euro 0.18 per share (after taking into account the shares to be issued to service
the integration of Enel and EGP) and 55% of total ordinary net income realized in 2016. On the basis
of this policy, it is expected that the payout ratio will rise by 5 percentage points each year, reaching
65% in 2018.

The Plan was prepared in accordance with IFRS accounting standards used by the Enel Group in drafting its
consolidated financial statement.

6.3.3. General assumptions underlying the preparation of estimates and forward-looking data
that fall beyond management’s control

The preparation of the Strategic Plan required the use of general assumptions related to events and
management actions that will not necessarily materialize. In particular, the main general assumptions used
concern developments in the economic, energy and regulatory scenario in the countries where the Enel
Group operates.

The above-mentioned forecasts — elaborated by Enel’s management on the basis of their knowledge,
experience and assessments — are also based upon publications by the main national and international
economic institutions and the main economic and energy research entities.

In particular, the Strategic Plan was drafted on the basis of certain general variables representing the trend in
general economic and energy scenario over the next few years. The elements considered concern essential
growth rates in GDP in the main economies of interest, exchange rates, Brent price quotes, the main fuels
and wholesale electricity prices. The following table sets forth the main assumptions of such macroeconomic
and energy variables.

GDP growth rates (% YoY) 2015 2016 2017
Italy 0.6% 1.1% 1.2%
Spain 3.1% 2.5% 2.1%
Electricity demand (% YoY) 2015 2016 2017
Italy 1.4% 0.7% 0.9%
Spain 2.9% 1.8% 1.7%
Latin America 3.0% 3.0% 3.6%
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Exchange rate 2015 2016 2017

EURO/Dollar (USD) 1.11 1.09 1.13
EURO/BRL 3.72 4.25 4.42
EUR/COP 3,049 3,375 3,456
Commodities 2015 2016 2017
Brent ($/Barrel) 55 63 66
Coal ($/ton) 59 60 64
GAS TTF (EMWh) 20 21 21
CO2 (£/Mton) 8 9 11
Power Prices on the Wholesale Markets 2015 2016 2017
Italy (E/MWh) 52 50 52
Spain (€/MWh) 49 49 52
6.3.4. Hypothetical assumptions underlying the elaboration of Estimates and Forward-looking
Data

The Forward Looking Data rely upon assumptions concerning a set of future events and actions, which
should be taken by Enel, including, inter alia, hypothetical assumptions related to future events and actions
of the administrative bodies that will not necessarily occur and events and actions which are not, entirely or
in part, under the control of the administrative bodies of Enel, related to the performance of the main
financial and economic values or of other elements which may influence their evolution (collectively, the
“Hypothetical Assumptions”).

Generally, such Hypotetical Assumptions, include:

Q) the completion of the Demerger;

(i) the implementation of the synergies indicated in the strategic plan and the implementation of the
optional investment plan deriving from the completion of the Demerger;

(iii)  the achievement of high levels of operating efficiency, through the optimal management of operative
costs and investments for the maintenance of assets;

(iv)  an active portfolio management through the sale of asset as condition for new acquisitions, achieving
the above mentioned asset rotation strategy;

(v) a substantial continuity between the definition criteria of electricity’s distribution and metering fees
established in Italy by the applicable law and those provided for the fifth regulatory period 2016-
2021, which will be adopted by the Authority for electrical energy, gas and water resources.

Set forth below is a brief description of the main strategic actions and the relatives hypothetical assumptions
identified by each Global Division for the achievement of the Group’s targets, as defined above:

Global Renewable Energies Division — Enel Green Power boasts an asset portfolio (10.6 GW) that is well
diversified in geographical terms and technologies and an important gross pipeline of over 21 GW which
constitutes the basis for a sustained and significant future development, further strengthening the Enel
Group’s leadership position in the sector. The Enel Group’s strategic guidelines pertaining to the Renewables
business consist of:
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- operational efficiency - reduction in operating costs in unit terms (per MW) of 20% in 2019 with
respect to 2014,

- industrial growth - a total investments program of Euro 9.8 billion for the period 2016-2019, of which
Euro 9.1 billion will be dedicated to the development of new capacity totaling 7.7 GW including an
option for further growth investments of Euro 1.3 billion and 0.9 GW eligible for activation upon the
completion of the Transaction. In addition, the business line will constitute an integral part of the
process of developing new innovative business models, such as that of electricity storage, micro-grids
and distributed generation;

- Asset Rotation — proactive management of the portfolio aimed at exiting non-strategic geographical
areas and new investments in areas characterized by a higher profitability, with a subsequent increase
in the generation of cash flow.

Global Infrastructures and Grids Division — with approximately1.9 million km of grid, 61 million final
customers, 410 TWh of distributed power, 38 million of smart meters installed, Enel is one of the leading
operators in grid infrastructures at the worldwide level. The Group’s strategic guidelines in the Grids
business consist of:

- operational efficiency — with the ongoing pursuit of cost leadership through a reduction in expenditure
per customer thanks to projects featuring operational excellence and the optimization of investments.
The above-mentioned initiatives are reflected in the Strategic Plan with an estimated reduction in Cash
cost per customer of approximately 19%;

- industrial growth — with a total investment plan of Euro 12.6 billion, of which Euro 5.8 billion will be
dedicated to develop, mainly in Spain and Latin America, approximately one half of the development
projects are focused on the smart grids and on the digitalization of the grids. It is envisaged that the
development plan will lead to the installation of an additional 28 million smart meters at the
worldwide level, of which 21 million second generation meters will be installed in Italy.

Global Generation Division — the Enel Group’s generation division features a balanced and technologically
diversified asset portfolio with an installed capacity of 79 GW. The business line’s goal is an ongoing
technical, environmental and economic performance of the fleet with a view to ensuring: maximized
performance of the plants, on the basis of market conditions and demand, a reduction in CO2 emissions and
the achievement of leadership levels in the cost structure.

The Group’s strategic guidelines in the Generation business consist of:

- operational efficiency —reducing by 14% the unit Cash cost per MW and reducing installed capacity
by 23% thanks to the alignment with best practices at a global level for operations management (also
through benchmarking analyses and the introduction of across-the-board and centralized processes),
improving the efficiency of sourcing/purchases and the Capacity Strategy, that allows for the
identification of profitable assets and those that are no longer strategic to be divested or made
available for portfolio management;

- industrial growth - total investments plan of Euro 4.5 billion over the period 2016 - 2019, of which
over 50% will be concentrated in Latin America and over 30% in Spain. The investment on
development (equal approximately to Euro 1.6 billion) will focus on low risk projects thanks to the use
of long-term power purchasing agreements (PPA) and reduced capital intensity, with a main focus on
Latin America.

Global Trading Division — with the new organizational structure implemented by the Enel Group (see
Chapter 4 of the Information Document) trading supersedes the previous structure in which energy
management and trading were managed at national regional level, transitioning toward a worldwide and
integrated management of the generation portfolio, of raw materials sourcing and trading on the global
markets, capable of maximizing the risk-return profile. The Global Business Line manages over 300 TWh of
electricity, approximately 40 million tons of coal and 30 billion cubic meters of gas on the international
markets.

The main value creation drivers are: i) the integration, thanks to the new organization and the centralized
management of risk, ii) the revision of the global commodities sourcing strategy, with the aim of fully
exploiting the Enel Group’s critical mass on the global markets and to update/renew its portfolio of long-
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term agreements iii) the exploitation of all opportunities to optimize its generation fleet on the energy and
services markets.

Retail Business (sale of electricity, gas and services) — Sales to final customers, managed within regional
and national perimeters is the primary focus of the Enel Group’s growth strategy. A significant increase in
the customer base on the free market is expected during the five years period of 2015-2019, (expected to rise
by approximately 15%), an increase in volumes sold on the free market(expected to exceed 20% in
electricity and 30% in gas) and a significant expansion in the products and service in the new energy services
segment. The growth strategy is coupled with close attention focused on improved operating efficiency
thanks to the digitalization and innovative data management instruments. Total investments in the retail
business amount approximately to Euro 1 billion for the period 2016-19, of which approximately Euro 0.4
billion for development projects, mainly in the new energy services segment.

6.3.5. Key Estimates and Forward-looking Data

The Strategic Plan 2016-2019, which was prepared on the basis of the assumptions briefly described in the
foregoing paragraphs, includes the following estimates and forward-looking data, with reference to years
2015, 2016, 2017 and average growth data for 2015-2019. It should be pointed out that the preliminary data
related to year 2015 are expected to be disclosed to the market within the first half of February 2016.

2015 2016 2017

Recurring EBITDA (€Mld) ~15.0 ~14.7 ~15.5
oTWRT S SBITOA || a7
Ordinary I%aé)lncome (€ ~3.0 3.1 3.4

Minimum Dividend 0.16 €/sh 0.18 €/sh
Pay-out 50% 55% 60%

Funds from operations

/Net Debt 23% 23% 26%

The foregoing Estimates and Forward-looking Data, as indicated above, are based upon a series of
assumptions concerning the materialization of future events and actions that the Enel Group expects to
undertake, including general and hypothetic assumptions related to future events and actions that may not
necessarily materialize. Therefore, the forward-looking data, since they are based upon assumptions
concerning future events and actions taken or still to be taken by management, are characterized by intrinsic
elements of subjectivity and uncertainty and, in particular, the risk that the events envisaged and actions
expected to give rise to the same may not materialize or may materialize to an extent or over a timeframe
other than those expected while, on the other hand, events and actions not foreseeable at the time of their
preparation may materialize. Therefore, differences between final figures and forecasted figures may turn out
to be significant.

6.4. AUDITING FIRM’S REPORT ON ESTIMATES AND FORWARD-LOOKING DATA
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On December 23, 2015, the Auditing Firm Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A. issued its report on the Enel
Group’s forward-looking data which include, inter alia, the forward-looking data pertaining to the EGP
Group set forth in the Information Document, attached hereto as Schedule 10.
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SCHEDULES

1 - Explanatory Report by the Board of Directors of Enel pursuant to art. 2506-ter of the Civil Code

2 — Explanatory Report by the Board of Directors of Enel Green Power pursuant to art. 2506-ter of the Civil
Code

3 — Demerger Plan pursuant to art. 2506-bis of the Civil Code and schedules to the same, including the
financial statements of Enel and of Enel Green Power, drafted in accordance with art. 2506-ter of the Civil
Code

4 — Report by the expert appointed by the Court of Rome pursuant to art. 2501-sexies of the Civil Code

5 — Report by the independent expert appointed by the Companies Taking part in the Demerger pursuant to
art. 2343-ter, paragraph 2, letter b), of the Civil Code, related to the estimate of the shareholders’ equity of
the Set of Assets Demerged.

6 — Fairness opinion by Credit Suisse and J.P. Morgan, in their capacity as independent financial advisors
appointed by Enel’s Board of Directors.

7 — Fairness opinion by Barclays and Mediobanca in their capacity as independent financial advisors
appointed by Enel Green Power’s Board of Directors.

8 — Fairness opinion by Lazard and Prof. Enrico Laghi, independent financial advisors appointed by Enel
Green Power’s Related Parties Committee.

9 — Reports by the auditing firm on the pro-forma data set forth in the Information Document.
10 — Report of the auditing firm on the forward-looking data set forth in the Information Document.
11 — Opinion by Enel Green Power’s Related Parties Committee on the Transaction.
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EXPLANATORY REPORT BY ENEL S.P.A.’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE PARTIAL
NON-PROPORTIONAL DEMERGER OF ENEL GREEN POWER S.P.A. IN FAVOR OF ENEL
S.P.A.

Dear Shareholders,

This report explains, from a legal and economic standpoint, the partial, non-proportional demerger of Enel
Green Power S.p.A. (“EGP” or the “Demerged Company”) in favor of Enel S.p.A. (“Enel” or the
“Beneficiary Company”), and describes the elements comprising the demerger plan approved by the Boards
of Directors of Enel and EGP on November 17, 2015 (the “Demerger Plan”), in accordance with the
provisions of arts. 2506-fer and 2501-quinquies of the Italian Civil Code and art. 70, paragraph 2, of the
Regulation approved through Consob resolution no. 11971 dated May 14, 1999, as subsequently amended
(the “Issuers Regulation”), and Model No. 1 of Schedule 3A of the Issuers Regulation.

1. INTRODUCTION

The transaction described in this report consists in a partial, non-proportional demerger of EGP in favor of its
controlling shareholder Enel, in accordance with art. 2506-bis, paragraph 4, of the Italian Civil Code (the
“Demerger”), which entails:

- the assignment by EGP in favor of Enel of the Set of Assets Demerged (as defined and described in
detail in Paragraph 5.1 below), essentially consisting of (i) the totalitarian shareholding held by EGP
in Enel Green Power International B.V., a holding company organized and existing under Dutch law
which holds shareholdings in companies operating in the renewable energies sectors in North
America, Central America and South America, Europe, South Africa and India, and (i) assets,
liabilities, agreements, legal relationships pertaining to such shareholding;

- the retention by EGP of all remaining assets and liabilities other than those comprising the Set of
Assets Demerged (and, therefore, essentially, the Italian assets and the limited remaining foreign
shareholdings).

As of the Date of Effect of the Demerger (as defined in Paragraph 8 below), the quota of EGP’s share capital
corresponding to the Set of Assets Demerged will be exchanged on the basis of the Exchange Ratio defined
in Paragraph 6 below; the Enel shares issued to service the Demerger exchange will be assigned to EGP’s
shareholders in accordance with the non-proportional assignment criterion also indicated in Paragraph 6. By
virtue of such non-proportional assignment, all of the EGP shares held by shareholders other than Enel will
be exchanged with Enel shares, while Enel will exchange solely a portion of its shares held in EGP; such
shares will be simultaneously cancelled in accordance with the provisions of art. 2504-fer, paragraph 2, of
the Italian Civil Code, as cited for demergers in art. 2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code, without
proceeding with the assignment of the same. As a result, on the Date of Effect of the Demerger: (i) the
Beneficiary Company will increase its share capital by the amount indicated in Paragraph 6 below; (ii) all of
the EGP shares exchanged with Enel shares will be cancelled, resulting in a reduction of the share capital of
the Demerged Company; and (iii)) Enel will be the sole shareholder of EGP, while all of the other
shareholders of the Demerged Company will become shareholders of Enel. For further information on the
Exchange Ratio and the non-proportional nature of the Demerger, see Paragraphs 4 and 6 below.

The effectiveness of the Demerger is, in any case, conditioned upon, in addition to the completion of the
relevant corporate procedures, satisfaction of the Condition Precedent (as defined in Paragraph 11 below),
consisting in the circumstance that the total liquidation value of the EGP shares with respect to which the
Right of Withdrawal and the Right of Sale (as defined in Paragraph 10 below) are validly exercised does not
exceed Euro 300,000,000 (three hundred million /00).
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The Condition Precedent will be deemed likewise satisfied - even if the above-mentioned limits are exceeded
— if Enel, within 60 calendar days of the last registration with the Companies Register of Rome of
shareholders’ meeting resolutions approving the Demerger pursuant to art. 2502 of the Italian Civil Code,
declares its intention to proceed in any case with the purchase of all shares for which the above-mentioned
rights have been exercised.

As explained in detail below, the transaction is aimed at achieving complete integration of the renewable
energies sector within the Enel Group.

The two figures set forth below illustrate the Enel Group’s corporate structure before and after the
completion of the Demerger, assuming that: (a) the current ownership structure of Enel and EGP remains
unchanged until the perfection of the Demerger; and (b) none of EGP’s shareholders exercises the Right of
Withdrawal or the Right of Sale:

Status Quo Post-Transaction
Free =y s 1
Float | M_EF -ca:arrn.-:e|
F4.5% 25.5%

Free

Float

31 7%

Mz Enel

EGP : EGP ’)t
{ International | International
Green Power

BV | BV

On the Date of Effect of the Demerger, EGP shares will cease to be traded on the Electronic Stock Exchange
(Mercato Telematico Azionario) organized and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. (“MTA”) and on the
Spanish continuous electronic trading system (Sistema de Interconexion Bursatil, SIBE).

2. DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANIES TAKING PART IN THE DEMERGER
2.1. Beneficiary Company: Enel S.p.A.

2.1.1. Company Information.

Enel S.p.A., a joint stock company organized and existing under Italian law whose shares are listed on the
MTA, has its registered office at Viale Regina Margherita 137, Rome, Tax Code and Registration with the
Register of Companies of Rome No. 00811720580; Chamber of Commerce (R.E.A.) No. 756032, VAT
Code No. 00934061003. As of the date of this report, Enel’s share capital amounts to Euro 9,403,357,795,
entirely paid in, comprised of 9,403,357,795 ordinary shares having a nominal value of Euro 1.00 each.

2.1.2. Corporate Purpose.




Enel’s corporate purpose is the acquisition and management of shareholdings and interests in Italian or
foreign companies and firms and the performance in favor of subsidiary companies and firms of functions of
strategic guidance and coordination of their industrial organization structures and business operations.

Enel, through its subsidiaries or affiliates, operates, in particular: a) in the electricity industry, including the
activities of production, importation, exportation, distribution and sale, as well as transmission within the
limits of existing legislation; b) in the energy industry in general, including fuels, and in the field of
environmental protection, as well as in the water sector; ¢) in the communications, telematics and
information-technology industries and those of multimedia and interactive services; d) in network-based
sectors (electricity, water, gas, district heating, telecommunications) or those which, in any case, provide
urban services locally; e) in other sectors in any way related to or connected with the activities carried out in
the sectors mentioned above, allowing the facilities, resources and expertise employed in the sectors
mentoned above and allowing the profitable use of the goods produced and the services provided in the
sectors mentioned above; f) in the carrying out of activities involving systems and installations design,
construction, maintenance and management; the production and sale of equipment; research, consulting and
assistance; as well as the acquisition, sale, marketing and trading of goods and services, all activities
connected with the sectors referred to in letters a), b), ¢) and d) above.

In the interest of its affiliates or subsidiaries, Enel may furthermore carry out directly any activity connected
with or instrumental to its own business or that of its affiliates or subsidiaries themselves. Moreover, in
pursuing its corporate purpose, Enel may also carry out all transactions that are instrumentally necessary or
useful or at any rate related.

2.1.3. Board of Directors

Enel’s Board of Directors, appointed by the shareholders’ meeting held on May 22, 2014 and later
supplemented by the shareholders’ meeting held on May 28, 2015, through the appointment of a new
director to replace a director who had previously resigned, will remain in office until the date of the
shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial statement for year ended December 31, 2016. As of the
date of this report, Enel’s Board of Directors is comprised of the following members:

Name Office

M

Maria Patrizia Grieco

Chairman

Francesco Starace

Chief Executive Officer and General Manager

Alfredo Antoniozzi

Director ?

Alessandro Banchi

Director ?

Alberto Bianchi

Director

Paola Girdinio

Director

Alberto Pera

Director

Anna Chiara Svelto

Director
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Angelo Taraborrelli Director ¥

™ Independent director within the meaning set forth in arts.147-ter, paragraph 4, and 148, paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree No. 58
of February 24, 1998, as subsequently amended (the “Consolidated Finance Act”or “Testo Unico della Finanza™).

@ Independent director within the meaning set forth in arts. 147-ter, paragraph 4, and 148, paragraph 3, of the Consolidated Finance
Act, and art. 3 of the Corporate Governance Code of listed companies.

2.1.4. Committees of the Board of Directors

The Committees established within Enel’s Board of Directors are the Control and Risks Committee, the
Nomination and Compensation Committee, the Related Parties Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee. In particular:

- the Control and Risks Committee is comprised of four independent directors: Angelo Taraborrelli
(Chairman), Paola Girdinio, Alberto Pera and Anna Chiara Svelto. The committee has the task of
supporting, through an adequate review process, the assessments and decisions of Enel’s Board of
Directors regarding the internal control and risk management system and the approval of periodic
financial reports.

- the Nomination and Compensation Committee is comprised of four independent directors: Alessandro
Banchi (Chairman), Paola Girdinio, Alberto Pera and Anna Chiara Svelto. The committee has the task
of supporting Enel’s Board of Directors, through proper enquiry, in its assessments and decisions on

the size and composition of the Board itself, and on the policy on the remuneration of Directors and
key Executives. The committee, in the context of its functions, elaborates, submits to the Board of
Directors and monitors the application of incentive systems directed at management, including any
stock-based remuneration plans.

- the Related Parties Committee is comprised of four independent directors: Alberto Bianchi
(Chairman), Alfredo Antoniozzi, Alessandro Banchi and Angelo Taraborrelli. The committee has the
task of performing the functions provided under the relevant Consob provisions and Enel’s specific
procedure for transactions with related parties, with particular regard to the issuance of a reasoned

opinion on transactions that are relevant for purposes of such procedure.

- the Corporate Governance Committee is comprised of three directors: Maria Patrizia Grieco
(Chairman), Alfredo Antoniozzi, Alberto Bianchi. The committee has the task of assisting Enel’s
Board of Directors through preliminary functions, of a propositive and consultative nature, in its

assessments and decisions related to the corporate governance of Enel and the Group and to corporate
social responsibility issues.

2.1.5. Executive in charge of preparing the corporate accounting documents

The functions of executive in charge of preparing Enel’s corporate accounting documents are performed by
the head of Enel’s “Administration, Finance and Control” function, Alberto De Paoli.

2.1.6. Board of Statutory Auditors

Enel’s Board of Statutory Auditors, appointed by the shareholders’ meeting held on April 30, 2013, will
remain in office until the date of the shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial statement for year
ended December 31, 2015. As of the date of this report, Enel’s Board of Statutory Auditors is comprised of
the following members:



Name Office

Sergio Duca Chairman

Lidia D’Alessio Statutory Auditor
Gennaro Mariconda Statutory Auditor
Giulia De Martino Alternate Auditor
Pierpaolo Singer Alternate Auditor
Franco Tutino Alternate Auditor

2.2. Demerged Company: Enel Green Power S.p.A.

2.2.1. Company Information

Enel Green Power S.p.A., a joint stock company organized and existing under Italian law whose shares are
listed on the MTA and on the Spanish continuous electronic trading system (Sistema de Interconexion
Bursatil, SIBE), subject to guidance and coordination on the part of Enel pursuant to art. 2497 et seq. of the
Italian Civil Code. EGP’s registered office is located at Viale Regina Margherita, 125, Rome, Tax Code and
Register of Companies of Rome No. 10236451000, Chamber of Commerce (R.E.A.) of Rome No.1219253,
VAT Code No. 10236451000. As of the date of this report, EGP’s share capital amounts to Euro
1,000,000,000, entirely paid in, comprised of 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares having a nominal value of Euro
0.20 each.

2.2.2. Corporate Purpose

EGP’s corporate purpose is the conduct and development of activities of production and sale of electric
power generated from renewable sources. To such end, EGP may, either directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries or affiliates, operate both in Italy or abroad and perform any other connected, instrumental,
similar, complementary or however useful activity to the pursuit of its corporate purpose.

EGP may, furthermore, carry out research, consultancy and assistance activities in all sectors pertaining to its
corporate purpose, and any other activity that allows for a better use and valorisation of the assets, resources
and competencies employed.

EGP may furthermore carry out directly, on behalf of its subsidiaries or affiliates, any activity connected
with or instrumental to its activities or those of the subsidiaries or affiliates.

In pursuing its corporate purpose, EGP may, carry out all those operations which are necessary or useful in
an instrumental function or in any way connected.

2.2.3. Board of Directors

EGP’s Board of Directors currently in office was appointed by the shareholders’ meeting held on April 24,
2013 and was later supplemented (i) by the shareholders’ meeting held on May 8, 2015, through the
appointment of three directors previously co-opted by the Board of Directors to replace another three
directors who had resigned and (ii) by the Board of Directors’s meeting held on June 16, 2015, through the
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co-optation of a director, to replace another director who had resigned in May 2015; the appointment of this
latter director will be proposed to the ordinary sharecholders’ meeting called on January 11, 2016. The Board
of Directors will remain in office until the date of the shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial
statement for year ended December 31, 2015. As of the date of this report, EGP’s Board of Directors is
comprised of the following members:

Name Office
Alberto De Paoli Chairman
Francesco Venturini Chief Executive Officer and General Manager
Luca Anderlini Director
Carlo Angelici Director "
Ludovica Parodi Borgia Director
Giovanni Battista Lombardo Director
Giovanni Pietro Malagnino Director
Paola Muratorio Director "
Francesca Romana Napolitano Director
Luciana Tarozzi Director "

D Independent director within the meaning set forth in arts. 147-zter, paragraph 4, and 148, paragraph 3, of the Consolidated Finance
Act, and art. 3 of the Corporate Governance Code of listed companies and art. 37 of Consob resolution No. 16191 dated October 29,
2007 (Markets Regulation).

2.2.4. Committees of the Board of Directors

The Committees established within EGP’s Board of Directors are the Control and Risks Committee, the
Nomination and Compensation Committee and the Related Parties Committee. In particular:

- the Control and Risks Committee, is comprised of three non-executive and independent directors:

Giovanni Battista Lombardo (Chairman), Luciana Tarozzi and Giovanni Pietro Malagnino. The
committee has the task of supporting, through an adequate review process, the assessments and
decisions by the Board of Directors regarding the internal control and risk management system and the
approval of periodic financial reports.

- the Nomination and Compensation Committee, is comprised of three non-executive and independent

directors: Carlo Angelici (Chairman), Luca Anderlini and Paola Muratorio. The committee has the
task of assisting the Board of Directors, through proper enquiry, in its assessments and decisions on
the size and composition of the Board itself, and on the policy on the remuneration of Directors and
key Executives. The committee, furthermore, in the context of its functions, elaborates, submits to the

—9_



Board of Directors and monitors the application of incentive systems directed at management,
including any stock-based remuneration plans.

- the Related Parties Committee is comprised of three non-executive, independent directors: Carlo
Angelici (Chairman), Luca Anderlini and Giovanni Pietro Malagnino. The committee has the task of
performing the functions provided under the relevant Consob provisions and EGP’s specific procedure

for transactions with related parties, with particular regard to the issuance of a reasoned opinion on
transactions that are relevant for purposes of such procedure.

2.2.5. Executive in charge of preparing corporate accounting documents

The functions of executive in charge of preparing EGP’s corporate accounting documents are performed by
the head of EGP’s “Administration, Finance and Control” function, Giulio Antonio Carone.

2.2.6. Board of Statutory Auditors

EGP’s Board of Statutory Auditors, appointed at the shareholders’ meeting held on May 13, 2014, will
remain in office until the shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial statement for the year ended
December 31, 2016. As of the date of this report, the Board of Statutory Auditors is comprised of the
following members:

Name Office

Franco Fontana Chairman

Maria Rosaria Leccese Stautory Auditor
Giuseppe Ascoli Stautory Auditor
Anna Rosa Adiutori Alternate Auditor
Pietro La China Alternate Auditor
Alessio Temperini Alternate Auditor

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESSES OF THE COMPANIES TAKING PART IN THE
DEMERGER

3.1. Enel’s business

Enel operates, through its subsidiaries and companies in which it holds stakes, in particular, in the energy
sector, conducting, as holding company and controlling shareholder, various business operations directly or
indirectly related to such sector.

As of September 30, 2015, the Enel Group operates in over thirty countries, on four continents, and is
endowed with power generation plants (thermoelectric, hydroelectric, nuclear, geothermic, wind,
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photovoltaic plants and other plants fuelled by renewal sources) with net installed capacity of approximately
89 GW, and distributes electricity and gas through a network spanning approximately 1.9 million kilometers.

With 61 million customers throughout the world, the Enel Group has the broadest customer base among its
European competitors and is ranked among the leading electricity operators in Europe, in terms of installed
capacity and reported EBITDA.

3.2. EGP’s business

EGP is the company of the Enel Group that is entirely focused on the development and management of the
generation of electricity using renewable sources at the international level, in Europea, on the American
continent, in Africa and in Asia.

In particular, as of September 30, 2015, EGP operates through 761 plants operating on the European,
American, African and Asian continents, with installed power capacity of 10.6 GW, including wind, solar,
geothermal, hydroelectric and biomass.

4. EXPLANATION OF THE DEMERGER AND REASONS UNDERLYING THE SAME
4.1. Strategic and industrial reasons underlying the Demerger.

A number of phenomena are causing significant changes to the energy paradigm at the worldwide level: a
rise in demand for energy driven by economic growth and the process of urban development in emerging
countries, a high level of volatility in the price of commodities, growing competitiveness in renewable
sources, the development of new technologies, energy efficiency, greater attention and awareness focusing
on environmental issues.

In this new “world”, the renewable energy sector has taken on an increasingly predominant role, as a result
of both growing competitiveness of less mature technologies — wind and solar — brought by rapid
technological advances, and contributions to the energy model with regard to environmental sustainability.

Large utilities operators have taken action to exploit opportunities offered by the renewables business, by
establishing companies entirely dedicated to the development and management of renewable energy plants.
In this context, in 2008, Enel created EGP, a corporate vehicle in which it concentrated its business related to
the production of electricity using renewable sources, and later proceeded to have EGP listed on the stock
exchange in 2010.

Over the last several years, a number of signs of changes have arisen in the above-mentioned energy model,
initially triggered by the rapid large-scale development of renewable sources, resulting in issues related to
the need to adapt grids/networks. This was coupled with the emergence of new phenomena such as, among
others, distributed power generation, energy efficiency, electric cars and energy storage, which are
increasingly determining a radical transformation in behavior of consumers, who are becoming increasingly
active as “producers” and “operators/managers” of their own electricity demand. In addition, the need has
arisen to develop new technologies which allow the electricity system to evolve toward a model that better
integrates traditional generation sources and, therefore, plannable sources, with renewable sources, which
latter sector continues to show a high growth rate at the worldwide level.

Such growth is seen principally in two main areas. Firstly, on emerging markets (characterized by economic
growth and significant urban development), renewable sources constitute the fastest answer to the rise in
electricity demand. Secondly, even on mature markets, there exist development opportunities for renewable
sources, supported by a process toward the gradual dismantling of traditional power generation capacity
(such as, for example, coal-fired plants) and its replacement with new renewable capacity, using, in
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particular, wind and solar sources, characterized by faster commissioning timetables, contained
execution/realization risks and competitive costs.

The increasingly rising need to achieve integration between renewable sources and traditional sources, as
well as between the distribution networks and the market (the “single integrated system”), is swiftly leading
to the modernization of the electricity grid, through digitalization and the “smart meter”, effectively
transforming energy utilities companies like Enel from simple producers and distributors of energy to
services suppliers and systems optimizers. This phenomenon is creating new business opportunities that
utilities operators will be ready to exploit only if they are positioned as global operators that are integrated in
the electricity system.

Within this context, the Enel Group is well-positioned in the main strategic areas of the new model, as one of
the few global operators in the sector, as well as one of the more diversified operators from a technological
standpoint, with a customer base exceeding 60 million. Moreover, the Group is optimally positioned to take
advantage of numerous growth opportunities at the worldwide level, by exploiting its high level of
geographical diversification. Indeed, it is present in all geographical areas featuring significant growth
prospects, most recently the Asian continent, where the Group has recently established a base, entering the
Indian renewable energy market.

In recent years, EGP has achieved significant results, from both an operating and economic-financial
standpoint, achieving its growth and internationalization objectives. Indeed, since its listing until today, it has
achieved growth of 82.7% in its renewable installed capacity, from 5.8 GW to its current 10.6 GW, and 38%
growth in EBITDA, from Euro 1.3 billion in 2010 (8% of the Group’s EBITDA) to Euro 1.8 billion expected
to be achieved in 2015 (12% of the Group’s EBITDA), coupled by an international presence (expressed as a
percentage out of installed capacity) which rose from 54% in 2010 to the current approximately 70%.

In consideration of the significant market opportunities and in line with the growing focus on renewable
energies, over the next timeline of the plan, a rise in investments in the development of renewable energies is
expected, which are expected to account for about 50% of the Enel Group’s investments in growth.

The process aimed at complete integration of the renewable energy business is therefore consistent with the
Enel Group’s development strategy and supported by significant justifications, which are not only strategic
in nature (as described above) but also industrial and financial, offering opportunities for the creation of
value.

The industrial reasons focus on two main objectives: growth and integration, in the strict sense.

The first strategic macro-area would allow for greater creation of value for the Group through the possible
further acceleration of investments, and the implementation of the Active Portfolio Management strategy. In
a context in which EGP’s now proven capacity with regard to both the development of projects and their
realization, exceed its investment capacity from a “stand-alone” perspective (in order to preserve the
company’s capacity solidity) and due to the Enel Group’s financial capacity, the complete integration
between Enel and EGP would enable the latter to realize additional growth initiatives in the renewable
business which are not sustainable in its current structure. The acceleration of investments would consist of a
greater possible allocation of capital to EGP in the range of Euro 1.3 billion over the period from 2018 and
2019, which would be invested in development projects in emerging countries.

The second macro-strategy aimed at the creation of value is that of integration in the strict sense, which
consists of the realization of operational and management synergies attainable through: the capacity to
synergically exploit their respective business expertise/know-how, yielding cost efficiencies; the possibility
of jointly managing various production chains, resulting in risk reduction; the opportunity to benefit from the
Group’s financial solidity.
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Another way to possibly achieve streamlining /optimization would be through the reduction of “merchant”
risk in countries/markets in which both Enel and EGP operate, essentially thanks to a vertical integration and
consequent centralized management of hedging and risk related to the optimization of the maintenance plan
at an integrated level of the renewable and traditional plants and greater commercial competitiveness ensured
by the synergetic management of renewable and traditional assets.

Lastly, the integration between Enel and EGP would be in line with Enel’s goal of gradually reducing and
rationalizing of minority shareholdings in affiliates, also for purposes of achieving greater symmetry
between the financial commitments aimed at the development of EGP and the profitability and cash
generation of the Group.

4.2. Legal aspects of the Demerger
4.2.1 Explanation of the Demerger

In order to achieve the above-mentioned industrial objectives, the Boards of Directors of Enel and EGP, at
the meetings held on November 17, 2015 approved, pursuant to art. 2506-bis and art. 2501-zer of the Italian
Civil Code, the Demerger Plan, which, as already mentioned, envisages the partial, non-proportional
Demerger of EGP in favor of its controlling shareholder/parent company Enel. The Demerger Plan was
prepared on the basis of the financial statements of the companies taking part in the Demerger as of
September 30, 2015, that were drafted and approved — pursuant to and for purposes of art. 2501-quater of the
Italian Civil Code, cited on the matter of demergers under art. 2506-ter, paragraph 1, of the Italian Civil
Code- at the same meetings of the Boards of Directors of Enel and EGP that approved the Demerger Plan.

With regard to the foregoing, it should be noted that, for purposes of determining the Exchange Ratio and the
criterion for the non-proportional assignment of the shares at the time of the exchange (as better described in
Paragraph 6 below), the companies taking part in the Demerger availed themselves of primary independent
financial advisors of proven professional experience and, namely:

- for Enel, Credit Suisse and JP Morgan;
- for EGP, Barclays and Mediobanca.

The Demerger Plan, for both companies taking part in the Demerger, will be filed for registration in the
Register of companies of Rome pursuant to article 2501-zer, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, cited in
article 2506-bis, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code.

The Demerger Plan, the financial statements drafted in accordance with art. 2501-guater of the Italian Civil
Code, this report and the explanatory report by EGP’s Board of Directors drafted in accordance with art.
2501-quinguies of the Italian Civil Code, the expert’s report drafted in accordance with article 2501-sexies of
the Italian Civil Code, and the financial statements for the three years 2014, 2013 and 2012 of the two
companies taking part in the Demerger, will be filed by Enel and EGP, at least thirty days prior to the
extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings of Enel and EGP called to approve the Demerger, at the respective
registered offices and published, by the same deadlines, on the websites www.enel.com and
www.enelgreenpower.com, in accordance with article 2501-septies of the Italian Civil Code, cited in article
2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code, and in the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-
Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com). In addition, in accordance with the provisions of art. 2506-ter,
paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code, an estimate/appraisal report on the Set of Assets Demerged will be
drafted by an independent expert, to be filed with the companies register of Rome and/or published through
filing at the registered offices of Enel and EGP and on the websites www.enelgreenpower.com and
www.enel.com during the 30 days preceding the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings of Enel and EGP
called to approve the Demerger and, lastly, filed with the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-
Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com).
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Enel and EGP will draft the information document provided under article 70, paragraph 6, of the Issuers
Regulation, which will be made public at least fifteen days prior to the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings
of Enel and EGP called to approve the Demerger, in accordance with the same procedures indicated above.

Under art. 57, paragraph 1, letter a) of the Issuers Regulation, the publication of a listing prospectus is not
envisaged in connection with the Demerger since, as specified in Paragraph 5.2 below, the number of Enel
shares issued to service the Demerger exchange represent less than 10% of the values of the Enel shares
issued in the last 12 months.

The above-mentioned extraordinary Shareholders’” Meetings of Enel and EGP, called to approve the
Demerger, are called on January 11, 2016, in a single session.

Starting on the date of registration of the related resolutions with the Register of Companies of Rome, the
following terms will start to run (i) the sixty days within which the corporate creditors of the two companies
may present an opposition to the Demerger in accordance with art. 2503 of the Italian Civil Code, as cited in
art. 2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code, and (ii) the fifteen days within which EGP’s
shareholders who do not take part in the approval of the Demerger may exercise their Right of Withdrawal
and/or Right of Sale (as illustrated in Paragraph 10 below).

In compliance with art. 47 of Law No. 428/1990 as subsequently amended and supplemented, Enel and EGP
will complete the trade union disclosure and consultation procedure with regard to the Demerger.

Upon the completion of the above activities, the deed of Demerger will be executed.

As a result of the Demerger, EGP’s shares will cease to be traded on the MTA, and on the Spanish
continuous electronic trading system (Sistema de Interconexion Bursdtil, SIBE).

4.2.2 Issues related to the existence of a related party relationship between the Demerged Company and the
Beneficiary Company

As regards Enel, the Demerger transaction, while being carried out with a related party, is exempt from the
application of the special Procedure for transactions with related party (adopted in accordance with the
Regulation on related party transactions approved by Consob through resolution no. 17221 dated March 12,
2010, the “RPT Regulation”), since the transaction is being concluded with a subsidiary in which there do
not exist significant interests of other related parties (within the meaning set forth in art. 14, paragraph 2, of
the RPT Regulation and art. 13.3, letter d), of the above-mentioned Procedure). In consideration of the
foregoing, no involvement on the part of Enel’s Related Parties Committee was required for the approval of
the Demerger Plan.

As regards EGP, EGP’s Related Parties Committee was involved for the activities falling under its
responsibility and for the issuance of the necessary binding opinion, since, for EGP, the Demerger
constitutes, under the RPT Regulation, a related party transaction of “major importance” that is not exempt,
since it is concluded with its controlling shareholder. For the activities falling under its responsibility, EGP’s
Related Parties Committee was assisted by independent financial advisors appointed by the Committee, and
namely Lazard and Prof. Enrico Laghi.

The Demerger Plan was therefore approved by EGP’s Board of Directors, following the favorable reasoned
opinion of the Demerged Company’s Related Parties Committee issued on November 16, 2015. The
information document required under the legal framework on related party transactions (art. 5 of the RPT
Regulation) will be made available by EGP, by 24 November 2015, at its registered office, on its website
www.enelgreenpower.com, and on the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-Storage”
(www.emarketstorage.com).
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5. DESCRIPTION OF THE BALANCE SHEET ELEMENTS ASSIGNED TO THE
BENEFICIARY COMPANY

5.1. Balance sheet elements assigned

As already mentioned, the Demerger will be approved by resolution on the basis of the financial statements
of Enel and EGP as of September 30, 2015, attached to the Demerger Plan.

The Demerger will give rise to the assignment of almost all of EGP’s foreign shareholdings and financial
assets in favor of Enel, while EGP will keep its Italian assets and the remaining foreign shareholdings.

In particular, the balance sheet elements and related legal relationships which, as a result of the Demerger,
will be assigned to the Beneficiary Company are the following (the “Set of Assets Demerged”):

1) totalitarian shareholding in the company organized and existing under Dutch law, Enel Green Power
International BV;

2) short-term financial receivable owed by the company Enel Green Power North America Ltd. in
connection with a financial restructuring transaction concluded in 2014; the exchange rate risk
related to such financial receivable is hedged through a currency forward contract;

3) legal relationships related to the long-term credit line with Enel Green Power International BV;

4) legal relationships with the six employees pertaining to the business unit comprising the Set of
Assets Demerged and the consequent asset-side and liability-side balance sheet items referring to the
same;

5) guarantees granted by EGP in the interest of Enel Green Power International BV and its subsidiaries
as security for a number of commitments undertaken.

The detailed description of the asset-side and liability-side balance sheet elements and related legal
relationships comprising the Set of Assets Demerged which will remain assigned to the Beneficiary
Company as a result of the Demerger is set forth in schedule G to the Demerger Plan.

In any case, where the assignment of assets, liabilities, rights or obligations is not discernible from the
Demerger Plan, such elements shall be deemed assigned to the Beneficiary Company where the same pertain
to the Set of Assets Demerged.

It should be further noted that any windfall assets or contingent liabilities that may arise after the Date of
Effect of the Demerger shall remain, respectively, for the benefit of or borne by the Beneficiary Company
provided that they pertain to the Set of Assets Demerged.

The composition of the net shareholders’ equity for accounting purposes of EGP and Enel, after the
Demerger, is set forth in specific tables (respectively called “Composition of the net shareholders’ equity of
the Demerged Company ante and post Demerger” and “Composition of the net shareholders’ equity of the
Beneficiary Company ante and post Demerger”) set forth in Schedules H and I to the Demerger Plan.

It should be noted, in conclusion, that:

- the Set of Assets Demerged includes the contractual relationships pertaining thereto, including the
employment relationships with the six human resources, as indicated in detail in the Demerger Plan;

- the asset-side and liability-side balance sheet elements and the legal relationships comprising the Set
of Assets Demerged will be those existing on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, therefore also taking
into account the changes that will take place between the date of reference of the balance sheet as of
September 30, 2015 of the Demerged Company and the Date of Effect of the Demerger, as a result of
the trends in day-to-day business operations. Therefore, any differences in the value/existence of such
elements and relationships comprising the Set of Assets Demerged, between September 30, 2015 and
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the Date of Effect of the Demerger, shall give rise to the registration of a credit/debit item between the
Demerged Company and the Beneficiary Company.

5.2. Changes in EGP’s net shareholders’ equity, Enel’s capital increase

The changes to the composition of the Net Shareholders’ Equity of the Demerged Company deriving from
the Demerger are attributable to the following:

- decrease in share capital of Euro 728,000,000 (seven hundred twenty eight million/00), corresponding
to the nominal value of the cancelled shares;

- decrease in Other Reserves, including the quota corresponding to the Legal Reserve attributable to the
decree in share capital carried out, in the amount of Euro 2,936,162,218 (two billion nine hundred
thirty six million one hundred sixty two thousand two hundred eighteen/00);

- decrease in Other Reserves, in the amount of Euro 6,784,000 (six million seven hundred eighty four
thousand /00), corresponding to the estimate of costs classified as ancillary costs directly attributable
to the Demerger, net of the related tax effect.

The following table illustrates the composition of EGP’s net shareholders’ equity for accounting purposes
after the Demerger.

Retained
earnings (loss
carried Net Income for
Share Capital  Other Reserves forward) the period Total
Net shareholders equity ante demerger 1,000,000,000  4,637,089,228 1,095,239.874 139,667,460 6,871,996,562
Cancellation of Shares (728,000,000) (2,936,162,218) - - (3,604,162,218)
Entry of ancillary costs related to the demerger - (6,784,000) - - (6,784,000)
Net shareholders’ equity post demerger 272,000,000 1,694,143,010 1,095,239,874 139,667,460 3,201,050,344

The changes in the composition of the Net Shareholders’ Equity of the Beneficiary Company Enel SpA
deriving from the Demerger, asssuming that no sharcholder di Enel Green Power exercises the Right of
Withdrawal or the Right of Sale, are attributable to:

- an increase in the Share Capital, in the amount of Euro 770,588,712 (seven hundred seventy million
five hundred eighty eight thousand seven hundred twelve/00), corresponding to the nominal value of
the newly issued shares attributed to EGP’s shareholders other than Enel;

- an increase in Other Reserves, in the amount of Euro 2,302,519,071 (two billion three hundred two
million five hundred nineteen thousand seventy one /00), corresponding to the excess over the
theoretical issue price of the shares (equal to Euro 3.988 Euro per share corresponding to the Stock
Exchange price quote for the Enel share on September 30, 2015) with respect to their nominal value;

- decrease in the Other Reserves, in the amount of Euro 7,250,000 (seven million two hundred fifty
thousand /00), corresponding to an estimate of the costs qualifiable as transaction costs directly
attributable to the Demerger, net of the related tax effect.

The following table illustrates the composition of Enel’s net shareholders’ equity for accounting purposes
following the Demerger.

Retained Net Income for
Share Capital Other Reserves  earnings (loss . Total
. the period
carried forward)
Net shareholders’ equity ante demerger 9,403,357,795 9,197,808,130 5,303,025,796 1,066,017,771 24,970,209,492
Issuance of new shares 770,588,712 2,302,519,071 - - 3,073,107,783
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Entry of ancillary costs related to the
demerger

Net shareholders’ equity post demerger 10,173,946,507  11,493,077,201 5,303,025,796 1,066,017,771 28,036,067,275

(7,250,000) - - (7,250,000)

5.3. Actual values of the net shareholders’ equity assigned to Enel and of the net shareholders’
equity that will remain with EGP

It is certified, pursuant to art. 2506-fer, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code, that: (i) the actual value of the
net shareholders’ equity assigned to Enel as a result of the Demerger is not lower than the related book value
(which as of September 30, 2015 is equal to Euro 3,664,162,218 (three billion six hundred sixty four million
one hundred sixty two thousand two hundred eighteen /00); and (ii) the actual value of the net shareholders’
equity that will remain with EGP as a result of the Demerger is not lower than the related book value (which
as of September 30, 2015 is Euro 3,201,050,344 (three billion two hundred one million fifty thousand three
hundred forty four/00).

6. EXCHANGE RATIO ESTABLISHED AND CRITERIA FOLLOWED FOR ITS
DETERMINATION

6.1. The assigment criterion and Exchange Ratio

Since this transaction is a demerger with a non-proportional assignment, as of the Date of Effect of the
Demerger, the portion of EGP’s share capital corresponding to the Set of Assets Demerged, consisting of
3,640,000,000 shares of EGP (the “EGP Shares exchanged”), will be exchanged on the basis of the
Exchange Ratio indicated below, in accordance with the following proportions:

(i)  EGP’s shareholders other than Enel will exchange all of their shares in EGP;

(i1)  Enel will exchange only a portion of the shares held in EGP, corresponding to the number of EGP
Shares exchanged, after deducting the EGP Shares exchanged by EGP’s shareholders other than Enel.

As indicated in the Demerger Plan, for purposes of determining the above-mentioned number of EGP Shares
exchanged, respectively, by Enel and EGP’s shareholders other than Enel, and therefore the criterion for the
non-proportional assignment of the newly issued shares of the Beneficiary Company to the shareholders of
the Demerged Company, the Boards of Directors of the companies taking part in the Demerger, after
examining the reports by the respective financial advisors indicated above and with their support, have
assigned to such Set of Assets Demerged a value corresponding to 72.8 percent of the entire value of EGP
before the Demerger.

The Boards of Directors of Enel and EGP, at the meetings held on November 17, 2015, after examining the
reports by the respective financial advisors indicated above and with their support — and, as regards the
Demerged Company, acknowledging the Related Parties Committee’s reasoned favorable opinion —
approved the following Exchange Ratio: 0.486 newly issued Enel shares for each EGP Share exchanged (the
“Exchange Ratio”).

No cash adjustments are envisaged.

As a result, on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the Beneficiary Company will increase its share capital
through the issuance of up to 1,769,040,000 (one billion seven hundred sixty nine million forty thousand)
shares — with regular entitlement and a nominal value of Euro 1.00 each - in favor of the shareholders of the
Demerged Company on the basis of the Exchange Ratio. The amount of Enel’s capital increase to service the
Exchange Ratio may not exceed the value attributed to the Set of Assets Demerged under the appraisal report
by the independent expert drafted in accordance with the provisions of art. 2506-ter, paragraph 2, of the
Italian Civil Code.

In particular:
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a) the shareholders of EGP other than Enel will be assigned — through application of the Exchange
Ratio — a total of up to a maximum of 770,588,712 newly issued Enel shares, in exchange for the
cancellation, at the time of exchange, of a total of 1,585,573,483 EGP shares held by such
shareholders, while

b) Enel will be assigned a total of 998,451,288 Enel shares — with simultaneous cancellation of the
same pursuant to the prohibition provided under art. 2504-ter, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code,
as cited in art. 2506-fer, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code —, in exchange for the cancellation, at
the time of exchange, of 2,054,426,517 EGP shares held by it.

Taking into account the foregoing, on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the share capital of the Beneficiary
Company will be increased by up to a maximum of 770,588,712 newly issued Enel shares, all of which are
destined for the shareholders of the Demerged Company other than Enel.

The number of newly assigned Enel shares may change depending upon the number of EGP shares acquired
by Enel upon the conclusion of the pre-emption offer of the EGP shares that may be subject to the Right of
Sale and Right of Withdrawal (indicated below in Paragraph 10).

Since, as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger, all of the above-mentioned 3,640,000,000 EGP shares
representing the portion of EGP’s share capital corresponding to the Set of Assets Demerged forming the
subject matter of the exchange will be cancelled in their entirety, on such date, the Demerged Company’s
share capital will be reduced from its current total amount of Euro 1,000,000,000.00 (one billion/00) to a
total of Euro 272,000,000 (two hundred seventy two million/00), comprised of 1,360,000,000 (one billion

three hundred sixty million) ordinary shares having a value per share of Euro 0.20 (zero/20) each.

As a result of the exchange by EGP shareholders other than Enel of all shares held by them in EGP, and the
consequent cancellation of the same, Enel — as a result of the Demerger — will be the sole shareholder of the
Demerged Company.

The Exchange Ratio will be subject to a congruousness opinion by one or more independent experts pursuant
to art. 2501-sexies of the Italian Civil Code, as cited in art. 2506-fer, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code.

6.2. Valuation methodologies to determine the Exchange Ratio and the value of the Set of Assets
Demerged

Enel’s Board of Directors retained Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited and J.P. Morgan Limited (the
“Advisors”) as its financial advisers with regard to the economic, financial and valuation aspects of the
Demerger, in line with the international best practices. In particular, on November 17, 2015, the Advisors
delivered to Enel’s Board of Directors specific opinions (so called fairness opinion) on the fairness, from a
financial standpoint, of the Exchange Ratio determined by the Board itself.

The fairness opinions delivered by the Advisors (the “Opinions”) were independently prepared by them on
the basis of several valuation methodologies, in line with market practice, assumptions and parameters, and
reach similar conclusions.

The Opinions will be enclosed to the information document to be prepared in accordance with art. 70,
paragraph 6, of the Issuers Regulation and in accordance with Schedule 3B to such Regulation, to be made
available to the public as provided by the law.

With regard to the determination of the Exchange Ratio specified in section 6.1 and the relative valuation of
the equity value of the Set of Assets Demerged with respect to EGP, reference was made to and took into
account the elements indicated in the valuation methodologies described below and the results deriving from
the application of such methodologies.
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The valuation methodologies described in this document were identified and adopted with the sole objective
calculating a comparative estimate of the equity value of Enel and EGP, on one hand, and of the Set of
Assets Demerged and EGP, on the other, therefore shall only be considered in relative terms, with exclusive
and limited reference to the Demerger; therefore, the same shall not be compared with market values,
disposal prices, or considered representative of an absolute stand-alone valuation of either of the companies
(or of the Set of Assets Demerged) analyzed, nor do they reflect the impact of any operating, financial or
other benefits that are expected as a result of the Demerger.

In addition, the valuation methodologies were applied with the primary objective of allowing consistency
and comparability of each of the criteria applied rather than the determination of an absolute value of the
companies, or of the Set of Assets Demerged, considered individually and, for purposes of preserving such
consistency for valuation purposes, the same valuation methodologies were applied to both companies, and —
as regards the valuation of the Set of Assets Demerged — to such Set of Assets Demerged and EGP, taking
into consideration the specific characteristics of each of them and their status of listed companies on
regulated markets with regard to the valuation of Enel and EGP for the purpose of determining the Exchange
Ratio..

In consideration of the purpose of the valuations, the specific characteristics of the entities being evaluated
and in line with the best valuation practice at national and international level for similar transactions, several
valuation methodologies were undertaken, both analytical and market-based. The application of such
methodologies was carried out under the going concern assumption for both Enel and EGP.

Consideration has been given to the fact that Enel and EGP will not distribute any dividends for fiscal year
2015 before the Demerger effective date and it was deemed appropriate to solely express ranges for the
Exchange Ratio, derived from the homogeneous application of each valuation methodology adopted, and not
the absolute values resulting from them, since only the former are considered representative: fundamental
condition for the definition of the exchange ratio is the quantification of the relative value of the individual
companies taking part in the transaction, with the final goal not to calculate an economic value in absolute
terms for each of them, but rather homogeneous and comparable values in relative terms.

Lastly, in consideration of the procedures and timetable envisaged for the exercise of the Right of
Withdrawal and the Right of Sale, and since it is not possible to quantify their future impact, the effects of
such rights that might potentially be exercised by EGP’s shareholders who do not vote in favor of the
relevant resolutions have not been taken into account.

Reference date and documentation used

The reference date of the valuations carried out to determine the Exchange Ratio coincides with the date of
this report, assuming that for each of the companies participating to the Demerger, no events, facts or acts
have occurred of such a nature to materially affect the assets, liabilities, economic and financial profile of the
companies being analysed or the Set of Assets Demerged, in the period between the last available stand-
alone and consolidated financial statements and the date of this report.

The documentation used to determine the Exchange Ratio includes, for Enel and EGP, the following
documents:

(a)  the stand-alone and consolidated 2014 financial statements of Enel and EGP;

(b)  the consolidated half-yearly and quarterly reports of Enel and EGP as of June 30, 2015 and September
30, 2015, respectively;
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(d)
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(i)
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(k)

presentation of Enel’s Business Plan 2016-2020 dated November 3, 2015 and presentation of Enel’s
Business Plan 2016-2020 approved by Enel’s Board of Directors on November 12, 2015 (collectively,
the “Enel Business Plan”);

presentation of EGP’s Business Plan 2016-2020 dated October 22, 2015 and presentation of EGP’s
Business Plan 2016-2020 approved by EGP’s Board of Directors on November 12, 2015 (collectively,
the “EGP Business Plan”);

forecasts prepared by the management of Enel and EGP for the years 2016-2020 with regard to the
main balance sheet, economic, financial and operating data of the respective groups (including details
for the main divisions/countries);

forecasts prepared by the management of Enel and EGP with regard to the main balance sheet,
economic, financial and operating data of the respective groups (including details for main
divisions/countries) for the year 2015 (“pre-closing”);

long-term economic, financial and operating forecasts prepared by the management of Enel and EGP
for the years following the term of the respective Business Plans;

net debt data and other balance sheet items as of September 30, 2015 and estimates as of December 31,
2015 used to calculate the equity value from the Enterprise Value (referred to as “bridge-to-equity”);

information on the number of Enel and EGP shares as of the date of this report;
evolution of Enel and EGP share prices on the Stock Exchange;

financial research and reports on Enel and EGP published by brokers and investment banks.

Other publicly available information was also taken into account, including the following:

research reports, financial statements and reports, analyses related to companies operating in the energy
and renewable energy sectors; and

share price evolution, downloaded from professional service providers, for the companies previously
mentioned.

As for the valuation of the Set of Assets Demerged, reference was made to the following information:

(@

(b)

(©

(d)

forecasts prepared by EGP’s management for the years 20162020 related to the main balance sheet,
economic, financial and operating data of the Set of Assets Demerged;

forecasts prepared by EGP’s management related to the main balance sheet, economic, financial and
operating data of the Set of Assets Demerged for the year 2015 (“pre-closing”);

EGP’s Business Plan, as indicated above and including the presentation of EGP’s Business Plan 2016-
2020 dated October 22, 2015 and presentation of EGP’s Business Plan 2016-2020 approved by EGP’s
Board of Directors on November 12, 2015;

long-term economic, financial and operating forecasts prepared by EGP’s management for the years
after the termination of the Business Plan.

Limitations of the analysis and valuation difficulties in the determination of the Exchange Ratio

The conclusions of the valuation analysis carried out must, in any case, be considered bearing in mind a
number of limitations and difficulties that are summarized below:
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1. forward-looking data and economic and financial estimates and forecasts used for the purposes of the
relative valuations entail, by their nature, uncertainties with regard to the actual predictability of
expected future operating and financial performance, also in consideration of potential changes in the
reference markets;

2. the high level of volatility in the financial markets; in that respect the international financial context is
currently characterized by an extremely high level of volatility, which can have significant as well as
unpredictable impacts, not only with reference to the share prices of the companies under
consideration, but also on their assets, liabilities and their economic and financial performance;

3. the valuation methodologies based on economic and financial projections refer to the stand-alone
Business Plans approved by the respective Boards of Directors of the two companies that have not
been certified by the relevant audit firm;

4. the application of the DCF methodology, using a “sum of the parts” approach required the use of
economic, financial and balance sheet data for the specific business areas/countries in which the
companies involved operate, requiring a complex allocation exercise of such items to the individual
business units/ countries;

5. different methodologies have been applied, both analytical and market-based, which have required the
use of different data, parameters and assumptions. In applying such methodologies, the Board of
Directors considered the characteristics and limitations inherent in each of them, in accordance with
professional valuation practice followed at national and international level;

6. in the application of the methodology of the target prices included in the research reports published by
financial research community, only such reports published prior to the approval of ENEL’s and EGP’s
new Business Plans were considered. Their estimates and expectations may differ, even significantly,
from the Business Plans recently approved by the respective Boards;

7. the comparable companies trading multiples methodology was considered not relevant and not
applicable given the low level of comparability of the companies being evaluated with other listed
operators, also in consideration of the significant presence of minorities in the case of Enel.

Valuation methodologies used for the determination of the Exchange Ratio

In order to determine the Exchange Ratio, several valuation methodologies and criteria, both analytical and
market-based, have been identified, in light of the specific characteristics of the companies being evaluated
and in line with best valuation practice at national and international level for similar transactions. Such
methodologies, however, should not be analyzed individually, but rather considereded an integral part of a
single and comprehensive valuation process. The analysis of the results achieved using each methodology
individually, without considering the valuation process in its entirety, would result in an overall insignificant
valuation process.

In light of the considerations mentioned above, the following methodologies have been selected individually:
(a) Stock Exchange Share Price Methodology;
(b) the DCF Methodology through a “Sum of the Parts” approach;

(c) analysis of the implied Exchange Ratio derived from Enel and EGP target prices published by brokers
and by the major investment banks.

The following paragraphs provide a summary explanation, from a theoretical standpoint, of the
methodologies used and a summary of the results obtained using each of them to determe the Exchange
Ratio.
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In addition, the impact of potential drivers of value creation expected to derive form the transaction and the
potential impact on the equity value of Enel of those benefits on the basis of the Exchange Ratio has been
analysed and considered.

Stock Exchange Share Price Methodology

The Stock Exchange Share Price Methodology determines the value of a company being evaluated on the
basis of the market capitalization deriving from the trading prices of the related shares exchanged on the
regulated stock markets. In particular, such methodology is considered an important reference point for the
valuation of listed companies where the shares exhibits high level of liquidity. Theory and professional
practice further suggest, in light of the potential short-term volatility, to keep into account the evolution of
the trading prices and calculate the price averages over several timeframes.

In this case, the ratio between the Stock Exchange prices (as provided by the FactSet database) at which Enel
and EGP shares have been trading allows for the determination of an implied Exchange Ratio, based upon
various timeframes. Moreover, it was deemed to consider the Stock Share Price Methodology appropriate in
the case of Enel and EGP, considering their respective capitalizations and level of liquidity, the extensive
research coverage of the companies by brokers and the major investment banks and the presence of a broad
shareholder base including national and international institutional investors.

The application of the Stock Exchange Share Price Methodology has led to an observation of daily exchange
ratios on the basis of the relevant Stock Exchange prices for Enel and EGP.

Such exchange ratios have been observed in the context of various time periods prior to (and including)
September 30, 2015 and October 26, 2015 (included). Such dates are considered the most recent dates
relevant for the analysis of the trading price methodology, since

- on October 1, 2015, Enel’s Board of Directors resolved to start the process of analyzing and studying the
transaction under consideration;

- on October 27, 2015, the Stock Exchange prices of Enel and EGP were significantly influenced by
market speculations on a possible announcement of the transaction under consideration or of a similar
one. It must be noted in such regard that a joint press release was issued by Enel and EGP on October 27,
2015.

With regard to the averages of the daily exchange ratios observed, the averages for the periods of 1, 3, 6, 12
months and starting from the date of EGP’s listing were considered. The selection of such reference periods,
in addition to the observations as of September 30, 2015 and October 26, 2015, is aimed at neutralizing any
short-term volatility in the share prices of the two stocks, while at the same time attributing adequate weight
to the most recent trading prices.

DCF Methodology through “Sum of the Parts”approach

Such valuation methodology was adopted in order to factor into the analysis the operating cash flows that
Enel and EGP may generate in the future, as well as take into account their respective characteristics in terms
of profitability, growth, risk level, capital structure and expected level of investments.

On the basis of this methodology, the equity value of a company is estimated as the algebraic sum of:

1. The net present value of the “unlevered” operating cash flows expected under the respective Business
Plans;

2. Terminal value;
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3. Net financial debt, including TFR and other employees’ benefits, significant items of risks and other
provisions and net deferred taxes (to be deducted);

4. Value of any ancillary, non-operating assets and assets held for sale (to be added)

as expressed by the following formula:

n

W= Ch + i FD,, + 0A
B (14 WACC)t ' (14 WACO)™ to to

t=1

where:

W = Value of economic capital

CF, = annual “unlevered” operating cash flow expected in period t
TV = terminal value

FD = net financial debt, including TFR and other employees’ benefits, significant items of risks and other
provisions and net deferred taxes

OA = Value of ancillary or non-operating assets and assets held for sale
n = Number of periods of explicit forecasts

WACC = weighted average cost of capital

The “unlevered” operating cash flows of the explicit forecast period can be determined in detail as follows:
+ Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT);

- Theoretical taxes on EBIT (net of any non-monetary adjustments considered part of the taxable base for tax
accounting purposes);

+ non cash amortizations/depreciations;
- Fixed investments;

+/- Changes in net working capital.

The terminal value, where relevant, constitutes the remaining value of the business at the end of the forecast
period prepared by the management of Enel and EGP; such terminal value was estimated on the basis of
data, parameters and assumptions discussed and shared with the management of Enel and EGP.

The weighted average cost of capital (WACC) used to calculate the present value of expected cash flows and

terminal value is derived as the weighted average of cost equity and cost of debt using the following formula:

D E
ACC =Kd(1 — K
WACC d( t)D+E+ eD+E

where:

Kd = Cost of debt
Ke = Cost of equity
D = Debt capital

E = Equity capital
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t = Tax rate

In particular, the cost of debt represents the long-term cost of debt funding for companies or assets with
similar level of risk, net of the tax effect.

The cost of equity reflects the return expected by the investor, taking into account the risk related to the
investment, calculated on the basis of the Capital Asset Pricing Model through the following formula:

Ke = Rf + B(Rm — Rf)
where:
Ke = Cost of equity
Rf = Rate of return expected on risk-free investments

B = Coefficient which measures the correlation between returns expected on the investment considered and
returns expected on the reference stock market

Rm = Average return expected on equity investments on the reference stock market (Rm - Rf) = equity
market risk premium of the reference stock market (Rm) compared to risk-free investments (Rf)

In general, the WACC rate used for the purpose of estimating the equity value of Enel and EGP reflects
assumptions consistent with market benchmarks related to the cost of debt and cost of equity (expected rate
of risk-free return, Beta coefficient, market risk premium), as well as with the capital structure of the
assets/businesses being evaluated.

For purpose of the valuation of Enel and EGP using the DCF methodology, a “Sum of the Parts” approach
was followed. The value of Enel and EGP for the purposes of this report is therefore determined as the sum
of the values of the individual assets identifiable for each business area / country as identified by the
management of both companies, considering the same as economic entities that can be evaluated separately.

The valuation of the economic entities in question also entailed the valuation of the same through the
preparation of specific DCFs for each of them using different assumptions and estimates of WACC and
Terminal Value consistent with the profile of the specific assets.

In particular, for Enel, WACCs have been estimated for each business area/country (for which a specific
DCF was prepared) analysed; such differentiation was carried out in consideration of the following:

- The specific rate of return expected on risk-free investments (Rf) and the specific rate of return expected
on equity investments in the relevant stock market of each country (Rm), taking into account the
different risk profile of each country;

- specific tax rate of each country (t);
- specific beta coefficient of each business area (p);

The WACCs estimated in such manner result in a weighted average between approximately 6.6% and 6.8%
for the Advisors.

Similarly, with regard to EGP, WACCs estimates have been differentiated for each country for which a
specific DCF was prepared; in a manner similar to what is described above, such differentiation was carried
out in consideration of the following:

- specific Rf and specific Rm, taking into account the different risk profile of each country;

- specific tax rate of each country.

_ 24—



The WACCs estimated in such manner result in a weighted average of approximately 6.2%.

Also with regard to the estimate of the Terminal Value specific assumptions were used for each business
area / country (in Enel’s case) or for each country (in EGP’s case) for which a specific DCF was prepared.
Such estimates of the Terminal Value were elaborated considering the specific characteristics of each
business / country and on the basis of data, parameters and assumptions discussed and shared with the
management of Enel and EGP and, in particular, the following methodologies were used with reference to
the main business lines /countries:

- Enel: for the distribution business in Italy and Spain, a multiple of the regulatory asset base (“RAB”)
was used, ranging between 1.1x and 1.2x; for the supply business in Italy and Spain, the Annuity method
was used, which assumes that the cash flow generated in the last year is extended for a certain period of
time; for the remaining Enel businesses, with the exception of EGP, the perpetual growth rate
methodology was used, with long-term growth rates ranging between 0.6% and 2.0%.

- EGP: the Salvage Value method was used , that is, the amount recoverable at the end of the concession
or useful lifetime of the a plant. Such value, in practice, is often estimated as a percentage of the initial
investment considered in nominal terms at the relevant date. The methodology was applied on the basis
of the weighted useful life of EGP’s plants in each country.

Analyses of the Exchange Ratio implied in the target prices of Enel and EGP published by brokers and by
the major investment banks

Through such methodology, the valuations of Enel and EGP deriving from the research reports published by
brokers and primary national and international investment banks were analysed in order to compare their
relative target prices and calculate, using such target prices, a range of Exchange Ratios. Only research
reports published until October 26, 2015 for both Enel and EGP were considered, excluding any publications
that made reference to a potential extraordinary transaction involving EGP in order to avoid the risk that
such target prices do not reflect a stand-alone valuation.

Exchange Ratio.: summary of the results

Without prejudice to the considerations, assumptions and limitations described in the foregoing paragraphs,
the following table sets forth a summary of the results achieved through the application of the various
valuation methodologies described above for the purpose of determining the Exchange Ratio, that is the
number of newly issued ordinary Enel shares for each ordinary EGP share.

Methodology Range of Exchange Ratios
Stock Exchange Share Price Methodology 0.42-0.49
Sum of the Parts DCF Methodology 0.42-0.51
Analysis of brokers target prices 0.28 - 0.58
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Enel’s Board of Directors, in light of the foregoing considerations and following the valuation process and
the detailed comparison of the results obtained through the application of the various methodologies applied,
with the support of its Advisors, arrived at the following Exchange Ratio:

0.486 Enel Shares having a nominal value of Euro 1.00

for each EGP share having a nominal value of Euro 0.20.

skeskesieoskosk

Valuation methodologies used to appraise the Set of Assets Demerged

For the purposes of the valuation of the equity value of the Set of Assets Demerged and the comparison of
the same with the overall valuation of EGP’s equity value, we proceeded, in line with the valuation approach
used to determine the Exchange Ratio and taking into consideration the specific characteristics of EGP and
the Set of Assets Demerged — and in particular the fact that the Set of Assets Demerged is not a listed
company and, therefore, it was not possible to apply either the Stock Exchange Share Price Methodology or
the methodology of the target prices published by brokers and the major investment banks — to use the DCF
Methodology.

The assumptions and estimates of the WACCs and Terminal Value for the valuation of the Set of Assets
Demerged using the DCF Methodology were prepared in line with those used for the valuation of EGP using
the DCF Methodology.

Limitations on the analysis and difficulties in appraising the Set of Assets Demerged

The conclusions of the valuation of the equity value of the Set of Assets Demerged and comparison of the
same with the overall valuation of EGP’s equity value must be considered in light of several limitations and
difficulties which may be summarized as follows:

1. the non-listed nature of the Set of Assets Demerged made inapplicable certain valuation methodologies
which have been used for the valuation of EGP, such as the evolution on the Stock Exchange of the
share prices and the research reports and financial analyses published by brokers and investment banks;

2. the inapplicability of certain methodologies effectively reduces the applicable methodologies for the
valuation of the Set of Assets Demerged to the DCF Methodology only.

Valuation ofthe Set of Assets Demerged: summary of the results

Without prejudice to the considerations, assumptions and limitations described in the foregoing paragraphs,
the following table summarizes the result obtained using the valuation methodologies indicated above for the
purposes of the valuation of the Set of Assets Demerged.

Valuation methodologies used to appraise the Set of Assets Demerged

DCF Methodology 71-78%

Enel’s Board of Directors, in light of the considerations developed in the foregoing section and following the
valuation process and the detailed comparison of the results attained through the application of the various
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methodologiess used, with the support of the Advisors, determined that the value of the Set of Assets
Demerged amounts to:

72.8% of EGP’s equity value.

7. PROCEDURE FOR ASSIGNING THE ENEL SHARES TO EGP’S SHAREHOLDERS

The assignment to EGP’s shareholders other than Enel of the newly issued shares of the Beneficiary
Company, under a regime of dematerialization and through authorized intermediaries, starting on the Date of
Effect of the Demerger, with the timing and procedures to be announced to the market through the
publication of a special notice on the Demerged Company’s website and in at least one national newspaper.

The newly issued Enel shares will be listed on the MTA like the shares of the Beneficiary Company already
outstanding.

No charges will be imposed upon EGP’s shareholders in connection with the exchange procedures.

A service will be made available to EGP’s shareholders in order to allow for rounding to the immediately
lower or higher number of Enel shares due upon the application of the Exchange Ratio, without any
additional expenses, stamp duties or fees being charged. Alternatively, different procedures may be activated
in order to ensure the overall successful outcome of the transaction.

Considering that, as already mentioned, the EGP shares are currently admitted to trading on the Spanish
regulated markets and that the Enel shares assigned at the time of the exchange will not be admitted to
trading on such markets, the Spanish Regulatory Authority (Comision Nacional del Mercado de Valores) has
notified that, in line with the previous similar cases that have occurred on the Spanish markets, it is necessary
to appoint a dedicated “connection/reference” intermediary (referred to as the “entidad de enlace”), in order
to enable the shareholders who, as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger, will hold EGP shares admitted to
trading on the above-mentioned Spanish markets (through the Spanish centralized management system,
Iberclear) to sell on the MTA, during the month following the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the Enel
shares received in exchange, without any additional costs related to the sale on a foreign market. After the
above-mentioned one-month period, the above-mentioned shareholders may purchase or sell the Enel shares
in Italy on the MTA through authorized intermediaries, incurring the costs of the transaction.

7.1. Date of entitlement of the shares to be assigned to the shareholders of the Demerged Company

The Enel shares issued to service the Exchange Ratio will have regular entitlement.

7.2. Description of the rights related to the shares to be assigned to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company

The Enel shares issued to service the Exchange Ratio will assign to their holders rights that are identical to
the rights inherent in the Enel shares outstanding at the time of their issuance.

8. DATE ON WHICH THE EFFECTS OF THE DEMERGER WILL START

The start date of the civil law effects of the Demerger will correspond with the date of the last of the
registrations envisaged under art. 2506-quater of the Italian Civil Code, or such other later date that may be
indicated in the deed of Demerger ( “Date of Effect of the Demerger”).

Starting on the same date, the transactions pertaining to the balance sheet elements and the legal
relationships included within the Set of Assets Demerged assigned to the Beneficiary Company will be
entered in the financial statement of the Beneficiary Company, with all related accounting and tax effects
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also starting on the same date.

9. THE COMPANIES FOLLOWING THE DEMERGER
9.1. The ownership structures of Enel and EGP following the Demerger

As of the date of this report, the shareholders who hold, directly or indirectly, voting shares of Enel
exceeding 2% of its share capital, on the basis of the communications received in accordance with art. 120 of
the Consolidated Finance Act and the information available to Enel, are the following:

Shareholder Enel (pre-Demerger)

% of the voting share capital

Ministry of the Economy and Finance

25.500%

People’s Bank of China

2.042%

As of the date of this Report, the shareholders who hold, directly or indirectly, voting shares in EGP
exceeding 2% of its share capital, on the basis of notifications received in accordance with art. 120 of the
Consolidated Finance Act and the information available to EGP, are the following:

Shareholder EGP % of the voting share capital

Ministry of the Economy and Finance 68.29%

() Shareholding held through the subsidiary Enel S.p.A.

The following table indicates, in percentage terms, the expected shareholdings of Enel’s main shareholders
(considering, solely for explanatory purposes, the shareholders who hold, directly or indirectly,
shareholdings exceeding 2% of Enel’s share capital post-Demerger) as of the Date of Effect of the
Demerger, on the basis of the Exchange Ratio. The percentages set forth below have been calculated
assuming that: (a) the current ownership structure of Enel and EGP does not incur any changes until the
perfection of the Demerger; and (b) none of EGP’s shareholders exercises the Right of Withdrawal or the
Right of Sale.

Shareholder Enel (post-Demerger) % of the voting share capital

Ministry of the Economy and Finance 23.569%

Following the Demerger, Enel will directly hold 100% of EGP’s share capital.

9.2. [Effects of the Demerger on Enel’s and EGP’s shareholders’ agreements
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On the basis of the notifications in accordance with art. 122 of the Consolidated Finance Act and the
applicable provisions of the Issuers Regulation, there do not appear to be any sharcholders’ agreements
related to Enel and EGP.

9.3. Amendments to Enel’s by-laws

Following the Demerger, Enel will increase its share capital through the issuance of up to a maximum of
770,588,712 new ordinary shares, with regular entitlement and nominal value of Euro 1.00 each, applying
the Exchange Ratio and procedures for the assignment of the shares referred to in points 4 and 5 of the
Demerger Plan.

The by-laws of the Beneficiary Company post-Demerger are attached to the Demerger Plan as Schedule D.

10. ASSESSMENTS ON THE RIGHT OF WITHDRAWAL AND THE RIGHT OF SALE
10.1. Right of Withdrawal

Any shareholders of EGP who do not take part in the approval of the Demerger will have a Right of
Withdrawal, pursuant to art. 2437, paragraph 1, letter a), of the Italian Civil Code, (the “Right of
Withdrawal”), since Enel, the Beneficiary Company of the Demerger, has a clause in its corporate purpose
that allows for the conduct of business operations that differ significantly from what is described in EGP’s
corporate purpose clause.

10.1.1. Liguidation Value

The Right of Withdrawal may be exercised at the unit settlement value for EGP shares, determined, pursuant
to art. 2437-ter, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, exclusively with reference to the arithmetic average
of closing prices of EGP shares on the MTA over the six months preceding the publication of the notice of
call of EGP’s shareholders’ meeting, which is equal to Euro 1.780 for each EGP share (the “Liquidation
Value”).

10.1.2. Procedures for the exercise of the Right of Withdrawal

In accordance with the provisions of art. 127-bis, paragraph 2, of the Consolidated Finance Act, any person
in whose favor, after the date indicated in art. 83-sexies, paragraph 2, of the Consolidated Finance Act for
the right to take part in EGP’s shareholders’meeting called to approve the Demerger Plan (or, in other words,
after December 29, 2015), but prior to the commencement of works at such Shareholders’ Meeting, a
registration in the relevant accounting records of EGP shares is made, will be deemed included among those
who did not take part in the approve of the resolution and, therefore, will be entitled to exercise the Right of
Withdrawal.

In accordance with art. 2437-bis of the Italian Civil Code, persons entitled to exercise the Right of
Withdrawal may exercise such right, with respect to all or a portion of the shares held, through a registered
letter which must be sent to EGP’s registered office within fifteen calendar days from the date of registration
of the related shareholders’ meeting resolution.

Information on the procedures and deadlines for the exercise of the Right of Withdrawal will be announced
by EGP in accordance with the procedures provided under applicable laws and regulations in force. In
accordance with art. 2437-bis, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, the Right of Withdrawal may not be
exercised and, if already exercised, will be null and void if, within ninety days, EGP were to revoke the
resolution justifying such exercise.
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If one or more of EGP’s shareholders were to exercise the Right of Withdrawal, the liquidation process will
be carried out in accordance with art. 2437-quater of the Italian Civil Code. In particular, the terms of the
pre-empion offer that will be addressed to all of EGP’s shareholders, will be announced in accordance with
the procedures provided under the applicable legal framework, with the clarification in such regard that the
related announcements/notices will be published in at least one national daily newspaper and on EGP’s
website www.enelgreenpower.com, and on the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-Storage”
(www.emarketstorage.com).

10.2. Right of Sale

EGP’s shareholders who do not take part in the approval of the Demerger will be entitled to have their own
EGP shares purchased by Enel pursuant to and for purposes of art. 2506-bis, paragraph 4, of the Italian Civil
Code (the “Right of Sale”).

The Right of Sale may concern all or even only a portion of the EGP shares held by the shareholders of the
Demerged Company who exercise the Right of Sale. The price per share of the EGP share will be equal to
the Liquidation Value determined in accordance with art. 2437-ter, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, on
the basis of the provisions of art. 2506-bis, paragraph 2, second sentence, of the Italian Civil Code.

The Liquidation Value will be announced to the shareholders and the market through a specific press release
viewable on EGP’s website and through the publication of a notice on at least one national daily newspaper.

The Right of Sale may be exercised at the same terms and conditions for the exercise of the Right of
Withdrawal. In any case, the Right of Sale and the Right of Withdrawal may not be exercised for the same
share.

It should be noted in such regard that the process of liquidating the shares for which the Right of Sale is
exercised will take place in the same context as the process of liquidating the shares for which the Right of
Withdrawal is exercised, as governed by art. 2437-quater, of the Italian Civil Code.

% sk sk

With reference to the process of liquidating EGP shares for which the Right of Withdrawal or the Right of
Sale has been exercised, Enel declares its intention to exercise, in full, its option right for the quota to which
it is entitled, and to exercise its right of pre-emption on any EGP shares for which the option right has not
been exercised in accordance with art. 2437-quater, third paragraph, of the Italian Civil Code.

The effect of the Right of Sale and of the Right of Withdrawal, and therefore the related liquidation are
conditioned upon the satisfaction of the Condition Precedent and, in any case, the perfection of the
Demerger.

11. CONDITION PRECEDENT

The effectiveness of the Demerger is conditioned upon the circumstance that the total liquidation of the EGP
shares with respect to which the Right of Withdrawal and the Right of Sale are validly exercised does not
exceed Euro 300,000,000 (three hundred million/00) (the “Condition Precedent”).

Enel and EGP will announce the data related to the satisfaction or the non-satisfaction of the Condition
Precedent, through a notice published on their respective websites and in at least one national daily
newspaper.

The Condition Precedent will be deemed nonetheless satisfied — even in the event that the above-mentioned
limit is exceeded - if Enel, within 60 calendar days of the last registration with the Companies Register of
Rome of the shareholders’ meeting resolutions approving the Demerger pursuant to art. 2502 of the Italian
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Civil Code, declares its intention to proceed with the purchase of all of the shares for which the above-
mentioned rights have been exercised.

12 TAX IMPACTS OF THE DEMERGER ON ENEL AND EGP

For purposes of direct taxes and pursuant to art. 173, paragraph 1, of D.P.R. No. 917 of December 22, 1986,
the (the “Tax Code” or “Tuir”), the Demerger is neutral from tax standpoint for the companies taking part
in it and, therefore, does not give rise to either a realization or a distribution of capital gains or capital losses
of the assets of the Demerged Company being assigned.

The balance sheet/capital elements of the Demerged Company to be assigned to the Beneficiary Company
will maintain the values most recently assigned for tax purposes to the Demerged Company.

The so-called subjective positions of the Demerged Company and the related instrumental obligations will be
assigned the Beneficiary Company and the Demerged Company on a pro-rata basis in proportion to their
respective quotas transferred or maintained of the net shareholders’ equity for accounting purposes, except in
the case of subjective positions specifically or generally related to elements of the demerged assets which, as
such, will follow/remain attached to such elements under their respective holders.

As regards the effects of the Demerger for the shareholders of the Demerged Company, the Demerger is
neutral from a tax standpoint, since it does not constitute either a realization or distribution of capital gains or
capital losses, and does not give rise to the attainment of revenues; as for the tax value of the shares of the
Demerged Company held by shareholders other than Enel, it should be noted that according to the current
opinion expressed by the Revenues Agency, such cost would not change as a result of the transaction and it
would be attributed to the Enel shares acquired as a result of the transaction.

However, with reference to the shareholders of the Demerged Company who are not residents of Italy, we
suggest that they carry out appropriate verifications on the tax regime in force in their respective countries of
residence.

For all matters not expressly indicated herein, for purposes of income taxes, the provisions of art. 173 of the
Tuir shall apply.

Demerger transactions are not specifically subject to the regional tax on productive activities (“IRAP”).
However, as clarified by the Revenues Agency, for such purposes as well, a general principle of tax
neutrality would apply, pursuant to which the Demerger does not give rise to any taxable element, or the
automatic attribution of higher values entered on the financial statement as a result of such transaction.

For purposes of indirect taxation, the Transaction falls outside the scope of application of VAT pursuant to
art. 2, paragraph 3, letter f), of D.P.R. No. 633 of October 26, 1972, and is subject to registry tax in a fixed
amount pursuant to art. 4, letter b), first part, of the Rate attached to D.P.R. No. 131/1986.

% sk sk
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Declaration by the executive in charge of preparing corporate accounting documents pursuant to art.
154-bis, paragraph 2, of the Consolidated Finance Act

The executive in charge of preparing corporate accounting documents, Alberto De Paoli, certifies pursuant to
paragraph 2 of art. 154-bis of the Consolidated Finance Act that the accounting information contained in this
explanatory report corresponds with that contained in the accounting documentation, books and records.

_32_



PROPOSAL OF RESOLUTION

Dear Shareholders,

In light of the above, the Board of Directors therefore submits for your approval the following:
Agenda

“The extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Enel S.p.A. (“Enel” or the “Company”),

- in consideration of the plan for the non-proportional partial demerger of Enel Green Power S.p.A.
(“Enel Green Power”) in favor of Enel approved by the Boards of Directors of Enel and of Enel
Green Power on November 17, 2015, registered in the Companies Register of Rome in accordance
with art. 2501-ter, paragraphs 3 and 4, of the Italian Civil Code, as well as filed with the registered
office of the Company and published on the relevant website in accordance with art. 2501-septies,
paragraph 1, of the Italian Civil Code, as cited, respectively, in arts. 2506-bis, paragraph 5, and 2506-
ter, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code (the “Demerger Plan”);

- having examined the Directors’ explanatory report on the Demerger Plan drafted in accordance with
art. 2501-quinquies of the Italian Civil Code - as cited in art. 2506-fer, paragraphs 1 and 2, of the
Italian Civil Code - and art. 70, paragraph 2, of the Regulation approved through Consob resolution
no. 11971 dated May 14, 1999, as subsequently amended (the “Issuers Regulation”);

- having examined the financial statements of the companies taking part in the demerger as of
September 30, 2015 and drafted pursuant to art. 2501-quater of the Italian Civil Code, as cited in art.
2506-ter, paragraph 1, of the Italian Civil Code;

- having acknowledged the report on the fairness of the exchange ratio, drafted by the joint expert
appointed by the Court of Rome pursuant to art. 2501-sexies of the Italian Civil Code, as cited in art.
2506-ter, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code;

- having acknowledged the report drafted by an independent expert pursuant to art. 2343-fer,
paragraph 2, lett. b) of the Italian Civil Code, regarding the assessment of the value of the Set of
Assets Demerged (as defined in the Demerger Plan) and having acknowledged its publication on the
Company’s website;

- having noted that, by the relevant legal deadlines, the Demerger Plan has been registered with the
Companies Register of Rome in accordance with art. 2501-ter, paragraphs 3 and 4, of the Italian
Civil Code, and the documentation referred to in art. 2501-septies, paragraph 1, of the Italian Civil
Code, as cited, respectively, in arts. 2506-bis paragraph 5, and 2506-fer, paragraph 5, of the Italian
Civil Code has also been published,;

- having examined the information document on the demerger drafted pursuant to art. 70, paragraph 6,
of the Issuers Regulation;

resolves

1. to approve the Demerger Plan without any modifications whatsoever;
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to grant a mandate to the board of directors in order to define, prior to the execution of the deed of
demerger (the “Deed of Demerger”), the entity of the increase in the share capital of Enel and the
number of shares that will comprise the relevant share capital as of the date of effect of the demerger,
in accordance with the principles and criteria described in point 4 and point 10 of the Demerger Plan,
provided that the amount of such capital increase may not exceed the value attributed to the Set of
Assets Demerged under the estimate report drafted by the independent expert in accordance with art.
2343-ter, paragraph 2, lett. b) of the Italian Civil Code;

to grant to the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer, with a release
with regard to any imaginable conflict of interests, including on a several basis and with a power to
sub-delegate, the broadest possible powers to implement the resolutions set forth above and, in
particular, to:

a) enter into and execute the Deed of Demerger - determining all clauses and components of the
same, including the date of effect and the amendment, as a result of the foregoing and with
effect starting from the date of effect of the demerger, to art. 5.1 of the Company’s by-laws,
in accordance with what is envisaged under the Demerger Plan and in accordance with the
resolutions of the board of directors set forth under point 2 above - as well as any deed of
acknowledgment, supplementary deed and/or deed of amendment that may become
necessary or even merely advisable to ensure the successful outcome of the transaction,
defining all conditions, clauses, terms and procedures of the same, all in accordance with the
Demerger Plan and, therefore, first and foremost, the conditions indicated in the same,
including the verification of the realization of the circumstance referred to in point 10 of the
Demerger Plan;

b) to carry out all activities that may be necessary or even merely advisable to ensure the
successful outcome of the procedure involving the liquidation of any share covered by the
Right of Withdrawal and/or the Right of Sale (as defined in the Demerger Plan) and, more
generally, the successful outcome of the demerger transaction;

c) to fulfill all formalities that may be required to ensure that the resolutions passed will obtain
all necessary approvals, with a right to make to such resolutions, the Demerger Plan and the
Company’s by-laws all amendments, additions or deletions that may be requested by the
Authorities or at the time of registration in the Companies Register.
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All. 2

N Enel

Green Power

Enel Green Power S.p.A.
Viale Regina Margherita 125 — 00198 Rome
Share Capital Euro 1,000,000,000 fully paid in
Tax code, VAT and Companies’ Register of Rome no. 10236451000
Chamber of Commerce (R.E.A.) of Rome no. 1219253

EXPLANATORY REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE ONLY ITEM ON THE
AGENDA OF THE EXTRAORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING, CALLED ON JANUARY 11",
2016, ON SINGLE CALL
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EXPLANATORY REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ENEL GREEN POWER S.P.A.
ON THE PARTIAL NON PROPORTIONAL DEMERGER OF ENEL GREEN POWER S.P.A. IN
FAVOR OF ENEL S.P.A.

Dear Shareholders,

this report illustrates, under the legal and economic point of view, the partial non proportional demerger of
Enel Green Power S.p.A. (“Enel Green Power” or the “Demerged Company”) in favor of Enel S.p.A.
(“Enel” or the “Beneficiary Company”), describing the elements that compose the demerger plan approved
by the Boards of Directors of Enel Green Power and Enel on November 17, 2015 (“Demerger Plan™), in
accordance with the provisions of Articles 2506-ter and 2501-quinquies of the Italian Civil Code and of
Article 70, paragraph 2, of Regulation adopted by Consob resolution no. 11971 of May 14" 1999, as
subsequently amended (“Issuer’s Regulation™), as well as the Scheme no. 1 of the Annex 3A of the Issuer’s
Regulation.

1. RECITALS

The transaction described in this report consists in a partial non proportional demerger of Enel Green Power
in favor of the parent company Enel, pursuant to Article 2506-bis, paragraph 4, of the Italian Civil Code (the
“Demerger”), that provides for:

- the assignment by Enel Green Power in favor of Enel of the Set of Assets Demerged (as defined and
described in detail under Section 5.1. below), essentially represented (i) by the totalitarian
shareholding held by Enel Green Power in Enel Green Power International B.V., Dutch holding
Company that holds shareholdings in companies operating in the renewable energy sector in North,
Central and South America, Europe, South Africa and India, and (i) assets, liabilities, contracts, legal
relationships, related to such shareholding;

- the keeping by Enel Green Power of all the remaining assets different from those the belong to the Set
of Assets Demerged (and therefore, essentially, the Italian assets and the remaining limited foreign
shareholdings).

On the Date of Effect of the Demerger (as defined in Section 8 below), the quota of Enel Green Power’s
share capital corresponding to the Set of Assets Demerged will be exchanged on the basis of the Exchange
Ratio indicated in Section 6 below: the Enel shares issued to service the exchange ratio of the Demerger will
be assigned to the shareholders of Enel Green Power on the basis the non-proportional assignation criterion
indicated under Section 6 below. In light of such non-proportional assignation criterion, all the Enel Green
Power shares held by shareholders other than Enel will be exchanged with Enel shares, while Enel will
exchange only a portion of its shares held in Enel Green Power; such latter shares will be simultaneously
cancelled pursuant the provision under Article 2504-fer, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code, as cited in
regard to the demerger in Article 2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code, without proceeding with
the assignation of the same shares. As a result, on the Date of Effect of the Merger: (i) the Beneficiary
Company will increase its share capital in the amount indicated in Section 6 below; (ii) all the Enel Green
Power shares exchanged with Enel shares will be cancelled, with subsequent reduction of the share capital of
the Demerged Company; and (iii) Enel will become the sole shareholder of Enel Green Power, while all the
other Enel Green Power shareholders will become shareholders of Enel. For more information on the
Exchange Ratio and on the non-proportionality of the Demerger please see Sections 4 and 6 below.

The effectiveness of the Demerger is subject to the completion of the corporate activities as well as to the
satisfaction of the Condition Precedent (as defined in Section 11), consisting in the circumstance that the
liquidation value of Enel Green Power shares in relation to which the Right of Withdrawal and the Right of
Sale (as defined in Section Errore. L'origine riferimento non é stata trovata. below) are validly exercised
oes not exceed Euro 300,000,000 (three hundred millions/00).
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The Condition Precedent shall be deemed likewise satisfied - even in case of overtaking of the above
mentioned limit - if Enel, within 60 calendar days from the last enrolment with the Companies’ Register of
Rome of the shareholders’ meeting resolutions approving the Demerger pursuant to Article 2502 of the
Italian Civil Code, declares its intention to purchase all the shares in relation to which the above-mentioned
rights have been exercised.

As widely illustrated below, the transaction is intended to realize a complete integration of the renewable
energies sector within the Enel Group.

The two graphs below show the structure of the Enel Group before and after the implementation of the
Demerger, assuming that: (a) the current ownership structure of Enel Green Power and Enel does not change
until the implementation of the Demerger and (b) none of the shareholders of Enel Green Power exercises
the Right of Withdrawal or the Right of Sale.

Today Post-transaction
Free Float M‘[F rrdpecal Free Float Zor)
5% MEF :::T:r I
“ T ] 35T
=2 Enel
iy % Enel
o | 883 A
:i::& Enel 2 / \ 100%
Green Power

On the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the Enel Green Power shares will cease to be traded on the “Mercato
Telematico Azionario” organized and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. (“MTA”) and on the Spanish
electronic trading system (Sistema de Interconexion Bursatil, SIBE).

2. DESCRIPTION OF THE PARTICIPATING COMPANIES TO THE DEMERGER

2.1. Demerged Company: Enel Green Power S.p.A.

2.1.1. Company data

Enel Green Power S.p.A., a joint stock company organized and existing under Italian law with shares listed
in Italy on MTA and on the Spanish electronic trading system (Sistema de Interconexion Bursatil, SIBE), is
subject to the direction and coordination activity of Enel pursuant to Article 2497 et seq. of the Italian Civil
Code.

Enel Green Power has the registered office in Rome, Viale Regina Margherita, no. 125, tax code and
Companies’ Register of Rome no. 10236451000, Chamber of Commerce (R.E.A.) of Rome no. 1219253,
VAT no. 10236451000. On the date of this report, the share capital of Enel Green Power is equal to Euro
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1,000,000,000 entirely paid-up, comprised of no. 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares having a nominal value
equal to Euro 0.20 each.

2.1.2. Corporate Purpose

The corporate purpose of Enel Green Power consists of the performance and development of activities of
production and sale of electric power generated from renewable sources. To this end, Enel Green Power,
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries or affiliates, may operate both in Italy and abroad and carry out
any other connected, instrumental, similar, complementary or however useful activity to the pursuit of the
company’s corporate purpose.

Enel Green Power may, furthermore, carry out research, consultancy and assistance activities in all sectors
pertaining to the company’s corporate purpose, and any other activity that allows a better utilization and
valorization of the assets, resources and competencies employed.

Enel Green Power may also directly carry out, in the interest of the subsidiaries or affiliates, any activity
connected with or instrumental to its activities or those of the subsidiaries or affiliates.

In order to pursue its corporate purpose Enel Green Power may, ultimately, carry out all those operations
which are necessary or useful in an instrumental function or in any way connected.

2.1.3. The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Enel Green Power currently in office has been appointed by the shareholders’
meeting on April 24" 2013 and has been subsequently implemented (i) by the shareholders’ meeting on
May 8" 2015, through the appointment of three directors, previously co-opted by the Board of Directors in
replacement of as many directors who resigned and (ii) by the Board of Director on June 16", 2015, by co-
option of a director, replacing another director who resigned in May 2015; the appointment of the latter
director will be proposed to the shareholders’ meeting in ordinary session, called on January 11", 2016. The
Board of Directors will remain in office until the shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial
statements for the year ending on December 31%, 2015. At the date of this report, the Board of Directors of
Enel Green Power is composed by the following members:

Name Office

Alberto De Paoli Chairman

Francesco Venturini Chief Executive Officer and General Manager
Luca Anderlini Director

Carlo Angelici Director "

Ludovica Parodi Borgia Director

Giovanni Battista Lombardo Director

Giovanni Pietro Malagnino Director

Paola Muratorio Director "
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Francesca Romana Napolitano Director

Luciana Tarozzi Director "

D Independent director pursuant to Articles 147-zer, paragraph 4, and 148, paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree of February 24™ 1998,
no. 58, and subsequent amendments (“TUF”), as well as to Article 3 of the “Codice di Autodisciplina delle societa quotate” and to
Article 37 of the Consob resolution no. 16191, of October 29", 2007 (“Regolamento Mercati™).

2.1.4. Committees of the Board of Directors

The Committees established within the Board of Directors of Enel Green Power are the Control and Risk
Committee, the Nomination and Compensation Committee and the Related Parties Committee. In particular:

- the Control and Risk Committee, is composed by three non-executive and independent directors:

Giovanni Battista Lombardo (Chairman), Luciana Tarozzi and Giovanni Pietro Malagnino. The
committee has the task of supporting the valuations and the decisions of the Board of Directors
regarding the internal control and risk management system, as well as those regarding the approval of
the periodical financial reports by carrying out preparatory work for the purpose of making proposal
and providing advice.

- the Nomination and Compensation Committee, is composed by three non-executive and independent
directors: Carlo Angelici (Chairman), Luca Anderlini and Paola Muratorio. The committee has the

task of assisting the Board of Directors in the valuations and decisions relating to the size and
composition of the Board itself, as well as expressing proposals concerning the remuneration policy of
the Directors and the Executives with strategic responsibilities by carrying out preparatory work for
the purpose of making proposal and providing advice. The Committee, within its functions also
evaluates, proposes to the Board of Directors and supervises the implementation of the incentives
systems for the management, including any share-based remuneration plan.

- the Related Parties Committee is composed of three non-executive and independent directors: Carlo
Angelici (Chairman), Luca Anderlini and Giovanni Pietro Malagnino. The committee is entrusted with

the tasks provided by the relevant Consob Regulation and by Enel Green Power procedure for
transaction with related parties, with particular regard to the issue of a reasoned opinion about each
relevant related parties transaction for the purpose of such procedure.

2.1.5. Manager responsible for preparing the financial reports

The functions of Manager responsible for preparing the corporate financial reports of Enel Green Power
were held by the Head of the “Administration, Finance and Control” of Enel Green Power, Giulio Antonio
Carone.

2.1.6. The Board of Statutory Auditors

The Board of Statutory Auditors of Enel Green Power, appointed by the shareholders’ meeting of May 13",
2014, will remain in office until the date of the shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial
statements for the year ending on December 31%, 2016. At the date of the current report, the Board of
Statutory Auditors is composed of the following members:

Name Office

Franco Fontana Chairman




Maria Rosaria Leccese Standing Statutory Auditor
Giuseppe Ascoli Standing Statutory Auditor
Anna Rosa Adiutori Substitute Statutory Auditor
Pietro La China Substitute Statutory Auditor
Alessio Temperini Substitute Statutory Auditor

2.2. Beneficiary Company: Enel S.p.A.

2.2.1. Company data

Enel S.p.A., a joint stock company organized and existing under Italian law, whose shares are listed on the
MTA, with registered office in Rome, Viale Regina Margherita 137, tax code and Companies’ Register of
Rome no. 00811720580, Chamber of Commerce (R.E.A.) no. 756032, VAT no. 00934061003. On the date
of this report, the share capital of Enel is equal to Euro 9,403,357,795 entirely paid-up, comprised of no.
9,403,357,795 ordinary shares having a nominal value equal to Euro 1.00 each.

2.2.2. Corporate Purpose

Enel has as its corporate purpose the acquisition and the management of shareholdings and interests in Italian
or foreign companies and enterprises, as well as the performance, in favor of its subsidiary companies and
enterprises, of strategic guidance and coordination functions with regard to their industrial organization and
business activities in which they engage.

Enel, through subsidiaries or otherwise affiliates operates especially: a) in the electricity industry, including
the activities of production, importation and exportation, distribution and sale, as well as transmission within
the limits of legislation in force; b) in the energy industry in general, including fuels, and in the water sector,
as well as in the field of environmental protection; ¢) in the communications, telematics and information-
technology industries and those of multimedia and interactive services; d) in the network-based sectors
(electricity, water, gas, district heating, telecommunications) or those which, in any case, provide urban
services locally; e) in other sectors in any way related or to connected with the activities carried out in the
sectors mentioned above, that allow the facilities, resources and expertise employed in the sectors mentioned
above to be enhanced and better utilized and that allow the profitable use of the goods produced and the
services provided in the sectors mentioned above; f) in the carrying out activities involving systems and
installations design, construction, maintenance and management; the production and sale of equipment;
research, consulting and assistance; as well as the acquisition, sale, marketing and trading of goods and
services, all activities connected with the sectors mentioned above under a), b), ¢), d).

Enel may also directly carry out, in the interest of its affiliates or subsidiaries, any activity that are connected
or instrumental related to its activity or those of its affiliates or subsidiaries. Moreover, for the performance
of its corporate purpose, Enel may also carried out all the transactions that results instrumentally necessary
or useful or at any rate related.

2.2.3. The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Enel, appointed by the shareholders’ meeting on May 22", 2014, and subsequently
amended by the sharcholders’ meeting on May 28" 2015, by the appointment of a new director to replace a
director who previously resigned, will remain in office until the date of the shareholders’ meeting called to
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approve the financial statements for the year ended on December 31%, 2016. On the date of this report, the

Board of Directors of Enel is composed by the following members :

Name Office

Maria Patrizia Grieco Chairman

Francesco Starace Chief Executive Officer and General Manager
Alfredo Antoniozzi Director )

Alessandro Banchi Director )

Alberto Bianchi Director )

Paola Girdinio Director @

Alberto Pera Director @

Anna Chiara Svelto Director ?

Angelo Taraborrelli Director ¥

) Independent director pursuant to Articles 147-fer, paragraph 4, and 148, paragraph 3, of the TUF.

@ Independent director pursuant to Articles 147-ter, paragraph 4, and 148, paragraph 3, of the TUF, as well as Article 3 of the

“Codice di Autodisciplina delle societa quotate”.

2.2.4. Committees of the Board of Directors

The Committees established within the Board of Directors of Enel are the Control and Risk Committee, the
Nomination and Compensation Committee, the Related Parties Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee.

In particular:

the Control and Risk Committee is composed by four independent directors: Angelo Taraborrelli
(Chairman), Paola Girdinio, Alberto Pera and Anna Chiara Svelto. The Committee has the task of
supporting the valuations and the decisions of the Board of Directors of Enel regarding the internal

control and risk management system, as well as those regarding the approval of the periodical
financial reports, by carrying out preparatory work for the purpose of making proposal and providing
advice.

the Nomination and Compensation Committee is composed by four independent directors: Alessandro
Banchi (Chairman), Paola Girdinio, Alberto Pera and Anna Chiara Svelto. The committee has the task
of assisting the Board of Directors of Enel in the valuations and decisions relating to the size and the

composition of the Board itself, as well as to the remuneration policy of Directors and Executives with
strategic responsibilities by carrying out preparatory work for the purpose of making proposal and
providing advice. The Committee, within its functions, devises, proposes to the Board of Directors and




supervises the implementation of the incentive systems for the management, including any for share-
based remuneration plan.

- the Related Parties Committee is composed by four independent directors: Alberto Bianchi
(Chairman), Alfredo Antoniozzi, Alessandro Banchi and Angelo Taraborrelli. The Committee is
entrusted with the tasks provided by the relevant Consob regulation and by Enel procedure for
transactions with related parties, with particular regard to the issue of a reasoned opinion about each
related parties transaction relevant for the purpose of such procedure.

- the Corporate Governance Committee is composed by three directors: Maria Patrizia Grieco
(Chairman), Alfredo Antoniozzi and Alberto Bianchi. The committee has the task of assisting the
Board of Directors of Enel in the valuations and decisions relating to the corporate governance of Enel

and the Group and to corporate governance social responsibility, by carrying out preparatory work for
the purpose of making proposal and providing advice.

2.2.5. Manager responsible for preparing the financial reports

The functions of Manager responsible for preparing the corporate financial reports of Enel were held by the
Head of the “Administration, Finance and Control” of Enel, Alberto De Paoli.

2.2.6. The Board of Statutory Auditors

The Board of Statutory Auditors, appointed by the ordinary shareholders’ meeting of April 30", 2015, will
remain in office until the date of the sharcholders’ meeting called to approve the financial statements for the
year ending on December 31%, 2015. At the date of this report, the Board of Statutory Auditors of Enel is
composed by the following members:

Name Office

Sergio Duca Chairman

Lidia D’ Alessio Standing Statutory Auditor
Gennaro Mariconda Standing Statutory Auditor
Giulia De Martino Substitute Statutory Auditor
Pierpaolo Singer Substitute Statutory Auditor
Franco Tutino Substitute Statutory Auditor

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESSES OF THE PARTICIPATING COMPANIES TO THE
DEMERGER

3.1. Enel Green Power Business

Enel Green Power is the company of the Enel Group entirely dedicated to the development and management
of the activities relating to the energy generation from renewable sources at the international level, active in
Europe, in the Americas, in Africa and in Asia.
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In particular, as at September 30", 2015, Enel Green Power operates with 761 plants located in Europe,
America, Africa and in Asia having an installed capacity of 10.6 GW, divided between wind, solar,
geothermal, hydroelectric and biomass.

3.2. Enel Business

Enel works through its subsidiaries or otherwise affiliates, in particular in the energy sector, carrying out, in
its role of holding company, several activities directly or indirectly related to such sector.

As at September 30", 2015, the Enel Group works in over 30 Countries, in 4 continents, has generating
plants (thermoelectric, hydroelectric, nuclear, geothermal, wind, solar and other renewable sources) with a
net installed capacity of about 89 GW, and distributes electricity and gas on a network of approximately 1.9
million kilometers.

With 61 million worldwide users, Enel records the widest customer base in respect of its European
competitors and is located among the main electricity companies in Europe, in terms of both installed
capacity and reported EBITDA.

4. EXPLANATION OF THE DEMERGER AND REASONS OF THE SAME
4.1. Strategic and industrial reasons of the Demerger

Several phenomena are deeply changing the energy paradigm at the worldwide level: increase of electric
request driven by the economic growth and the urbanization process in the emerging Countries, high
volatility of the commodities prices, growing competitiveness of the renewable sources, development of new
technologies, energy efficiency, greater attention and sensitivity to the environmental issues.

In this “world” the renewable energy’s sector has assumed a more significant role, in light of the growing
competitiveness of less mature technologies - wind and solar - triggered by the rapid technological progress,
as well as of the contribution offered to the energy model in terms of environmental sustainability.

In order to pursue the opportunities offered by the renewable energy business, the big utilities incorporated
companies completely dedicated to the development and management of renewable energy plants. In this
framework, in 2008 Enel incorporated Enel Green Power, a corporate vehicle within which all the activities
for the production of renewable energy have been concentrated, and listing such company on the Stock
Exchange in 2010.

During the last years, many signs of change of that energy model have shown, initially triggered by the rapid
large-scale development of renewable energy sources, with the consequent issues related to the necessity to
adapt the networks. Also other circumstances have occurred, such as, among others, distributed production,
energy efficiency, electric cars and the energy storage, which are more and more leading to a radical
transformation of consumers’ behaviors, that are progressively more active both as energy “producers” and
as “managers” of their electric request. In addition to the above, there is a need to develop new technologies
that allow the electrical system to evolve towards a pattern which better integrates the conventional
production’s sources and therefore programmable, and the renewable ones, sector that continues to be
characterized by a globally high rate growth.

Such growth becomes evident mainly in two manners. On the one hand, in the context of the emerging
markets (characterized by economic growth and a broad process of urbanization) renewables represent the
fastest answer to the increase of electric energy request. On the other hand, also in the context of the mature
markets there are opportunities for the development of renewables, supported by a process of gradual
dismantling of conventional production capacity (which, for example, related to the coal plants) and the
replacement with new renewable capacity, mainly from wind and solar sources, characterized by a rapid
activation, contained risks of execution and competitive costs.
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The increasing need to integrate the renewables and the traditional sources, the distribution systems and the
market (“single integrated system”), is leading to a rapid modernization of the electricity network, through
the digitalization and “smart meters”, transforming the energy utilities as Enel from mere producers and
distributors of energy to suppliers of services and system optimizers. This circumstance is leading to new
business opportunities that the utilities will be ready to pursue only if they become global and integrated
operators in the electrical system.

In this context, Enel Group is well positioned along the guidelines of the new model, being one of the few
global operators in the relevant sector, one of the most diversified in terms of technology and having more
than 60 million customers. Moreover, the Group is able to pursue the many opportunities of global growth,
leveraging its high geographical diversification. In fact, the Group is present in all the geographic areas with
significant growth prospects, at last in order of time the Asian continent, where the Group recently
established a base with the entrance in the Indian renewables market.

In the last years, Enel Green Power achieved important operational and economic-financial results, reaching
its growth and internationalization targets. In fact, from the listing date up to now, there has been a growth of
82.7% of installed renewable capacity, from 5.8GW to the current 10.6GW, and of 38% of EBITDA, from
Euro 1.3 billion in 2010 (8% of Group’s EBITDA) to Euro 1.8 billion expected in 2015 (12% of Group’s
EBITDA), followed by an international presence (expressed in percentage compared to the installed
capacity) which increased from 54% in 2010 to the current approximately 70%.

In light of the substantial market opportunities and in line with the increasing focus on renewable energies, it
is expected an increase of the investments in development of renewable energies for the next time span of
plan, that should be around at the 50% of growth investments of the Enel Group.

The process of full integration of the renewable business is, therefore, consistent with the development
strategy of the Enel Group and presents significant reasons, not only strategic (as said above), but also
industrial and financial, offering opportunities in order to create value.

The industrial reasons follow, therefore, two main guidelines: the growth and the integration strictly
speaking.

The first macro-guideline would permit a greater creation of value for the Group through the possible further
investment acceleration and the implementation of the strategy of the Active Portfolio Management. In a
context in which the capabilities demonstrated by Enel Green Power, both in the field of the development of
plans, and in terms of their realization, exceed its investment capacity in a “stand-alone” view (to preserve
the financial strength of the company) and in light of the financial capacity of the Enel Group, the full
integration between Enel and Enel Green Power would allow the latter to accomplish additional growth
plans in the business of renewables, not sustainable in the current structure. The investments acceleration
would be realized in a possible greater allocation of capital to Enel Green Power of Euro 1.3 billion between
2018 and 2019, that would be used in development projects in emerging Countries.

The second macro-guideline of creation of value is the integration strictly speaking, which involved the
creation of operational and management synergies, achievable through: the ability to pool together the
business skills of both companies, with consequent cost efficiency; the possibility to jointly manage different
production chains, with consequent risk reduction; the opportunity to take advantage of the Group’s financial
strength.

Another area of possible efficiency / optimization would be the reduction of the “merchant” risk in the
Countries / markets in which both Enel and Enel Green Power are present, essentially linked to a vertical
integration and consequent centralized management of the coverage of the volume production and of the
related risk, and the optimization of the integrated maintenance plan of the renewable and conventional
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plants and a greater commercial competitiveness guaranteed by the synergic management of renewable
assets with the conventional ones.

In the Enel Green Power’s view, the Demerger will allow the Demerged Company to benefit of a reduction
of costs and expenses (both in terms of management and in operational terms), as well as greater
organizational and managerial flexibility, also as a result of the loss of the status of listed company. In
particular, Enel Green Power will start a process of simplification of the governance in line with the
objective of major focus on domestic business of renewable energies and subsequent minor complexity —
and, so, more speed and dynamism — in the decision-making process, as well as exercise of the strategic,
managerial and technical-operational control. Similarly, the rationalization of the functions and of the
processes will allow, in any case, the structures and the functions of Enel Green Power to maintain its own
high specialization (both in the production and market), in an harmonic manner and without operational
discontinuity. On the other hand, the separation of the international business will allow Enel Green Power to
concentrate the economic and financial resources of its core business in Italy.

4.2. Legal aspects of the Demerger

4.2.1. Description of the Demerger

In order to achieve the industrial purposes above-mentioned, the Boards of Directors of Enel Green Power
and Enel held on November 17", 2015, approved, pursuant to Article 2506-bis and Article 2506-ter of the
Italian Civil Code, the Demerger Plan, that, as said, provides for the partial non-proportional Demerger of
Enel Green Power in favor of its parent company Enel. The Demerger Plan has been drafted on the basis of
the balance sheets of the participating company to the Demerger as at September 30", 2015, drafted and
approved — pursuant to and in accordance with Article 2501-quater of the Italian Civil Code, cited by Article
2506-ter, paragraph 1 with respect to the demerger, of the Italian Civil Code — by the same Board of
Directors of Enel Green Power and Enel that have approved the Demerger Plan.

In connection with the foregoing, it should be noted that, for the purposes of determining the Exchange Ratio
and the criterion of non-proportional assignation of shares in exchange (as further described in the following
Section 6), the participating companies to the Demerger have recourse to primary independent financial
advisors and of proven professional competence, and in particular:

- for Enel Green Power, Barclays and Mediobanca; and
- for Enel, Credit Suisse and JP Morgan.

The Demerger Plan, for both the participating companies to the Demerger, will be filed for the enrollment
with the Companies’ Register of Rome pursuant to article 2501-fer, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code,
cited by Article 2506-bis, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code.

The Demerger Plan, the balance sheets drafted pursuant to art. 2501-guater of the Italian Civil Code, this
report and the report of the Boards of Directors of Enel drafted pursuant to art. 2501-quinguies of the Italian
Civil Code, the expert’s report drafted pursuant to article 2501-sexies of the Italian Civil Code, as well as the
financial statements for the three years 2014, 2013 and 2012 of both participating companies to the
Demerger, will be filed, by Enel Green Power and Enel, at least thirty days prior the extraordinary
Shareholders” Meetings of Enel Green Power and Enel called to approve the Demerger, at their respective
registered offices, in the same terms, and published on the websites www.enelgreenpower.com and
www.enel.com, in accordance with article 2501-septies of the Italian Civil Code cited in article 2506-ter,
paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code, as well as on the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-Storage”
(www.emarketstorage.com). Moreover, in accordance with the provisions of art. 2506-ter, paragraph 2, of
the Italian Civil Code, an appraisal/estimate report on the Set of Assets Demerged will be drafted by an
independent expert, that will be filed with the companies register of Rome and/or published through filing at
the registered offices of Enel Green Power and Enel, as well as on the websites www.enelgreenpower.com
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and www.enel.com during the 30 days preceding the Shareholders’ Meetings of Enel Green Power and Enel
called to approve this Demerger Plan and, lastly, filed with the authorized storage mechanism called “NIS-
Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com).

Enel Green Power and Enel will also draft an information document pursuant to Article 70, paragraph 6, of
the Issuer’s Regulation, that will be made available at least fifteen days before the extraordinary
Shareholders’ Meetings of Enel Green Power and Enel called to approve the Demerger, pursuant the same
modalities indicated above.

Under Article 57, paragraph 1, lett. a) of the Issuer’s Regulation, it is not provided the publication of the
listing prospectus in relation to the Demerger because, as specified in the following Section 5.2, the number
of Enel shares issued to service the exchange ratio of the Demerger represents less than the 10% of the value
of Enel shares issued in the last 12 months.

The aforementioned extraordinary Shareholders” Meetings of Enel Green Power and Enel, called to approve
the Demerger, are called on January 11", 2016, on single call.

From the date of registration of the relevant resolutions with the Register of Companies of Rome will start (i)
sixty days within which the creditors of the two companies will be able to oppose an objection to the
Demerger pursuant to Article 2503 of the Italian Civil Code, as cited in Article 2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the
Italian Civil Code and (ii) fifteen days within the shareholders of Enel Green Power, that will not concur to
the approval of the Demerger, will may exercise the Right of Withdrawal and/or the Right of Sale (as
described in the following Section 10).

Under Article 47 of Law no. 428/1990 and subsequent amendments and integrations, Enel Green Power and
Enel will carry out the procedure of trade union information and consultation in relation to the Demerger.

Following the completion of the above activities will be drawn up the deed of Demerger.

As a result of the Demerger, the shares of Enel Green Power will cease to be traded on the MTA, as well as
on the Spanish electronic trading system (Sistema de Interconexion Bursatil, SIBE).

4.2.2. Profiles linked to the existence of a relationship of correlation between the Demergered Company and

the Beneficiary Company

Pursuant to the regulation adopted by Consob resolution no. 17221 of March 12", 2010 and amended with
resolution no. 17389 of June 23", 2010 (the “RPT Regulation™), and to the procedure for related party
transactions, approved by the Board of Directors of Enel Green Power on December 1%, 2010, and
subsequently amended lastly on February 3, 2014 (the “RPT Procedure”), the Demerger constitutes for
Enel Green Power a transaction of major importance with related party. In fact, Enel exercises a control on
Enel Green Power pursuant to Article 2359 paragraph 1, no. 1 of the Italian Civil Code and Article 93 of the
TUF. In light of the foregoing, the Board of Directors of Enel Green Power approved the Demerger Plan,
after reasoned favorable opinion of the Related Party Transaction Committee of Enel Green Power on the
interest of the Company (the latter) in the completion of the transaction, as well as the convenience and the
substantial fairness of the relative conditions.

In particular, the Demerger was subject to the Related Party Transaction Committee of Enel Green Power
(the “Related Party Transaction Committee”) which has provided for its exam with the assistance of
independent financial advisors Lazard and Prof. Enrico Laghi, as well as the independent legal advisor Prof.
Agostino Gambino; these have been identified in light of their proven ability, professional competence and
experience in similar transactions.

At the Committee’s meetings, also the independent directors of Enel Green Power (Giovanni Battista
Lombardo, Paola Muratorio e Luciana Tarozzi) have been invited to attend and, usually, were in attendance,
in order to ensure a wide sharing of the evaluations and analyses of the Committee itself.
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The Committee, pursuant to Article 8, paragraph 1, let. b) of the RPT Regulation, as well as pursuant to
Article 6 of the RPT Procedure, has been involved in the negotiations and investigation phase, through a
flow of information, in a timely, full and adequate manner, which has allowed the Committee to be
constantly updated in relation to the development of the activities carried out. The information flows
concerned, among others, the main terms and conditions of the transaction, the expected timing of its
implementation, the evaluation procedure proposed, the reasons underlying the transaction, as well as the
potential risks for Enel Green Power and its subsidiaries. In this context, the Related Party Transaction
Committee exercised its right to ask questions and make comments, receiving prompt response to their
requests and comments by the management involved in the transaction.

At the end of its activities, the Related Party Transactions Committee, taking into account, among others, the
evaluative results carried out by the financial advisors appointed by the Committee, and in particular the
fairness opinions issued by the same on the fairness of the Exchange Ratio, on November 16", 2015 issued
its reasoned favorable opinion on the interest of Enel Green Power in the completion of the transaction, as
well as the convenience and the substantial fairness of the relative conditions, subsequently transmitted to the
Board of Directors of Enel Green Power.

For a complete description of the followed procedure, as well as the activities carried out by the Related
Party Transactions Committee and the contents of the opinion, please refers to the Information Document
provided by Article 5 of the RPT Regulation, made available to the public at the registered office of Enel
Green Power, in Rome, Viale Regina Margherita, no. 125, as well as on the website of the same
(www.enelgreenpower.com) and on  the  authorized mechanism  storage  NIS-Storage
(www.emarketstorage.com).

For completeness, please notes that, with regard to Enel, the Demerger, while being carried out with a related
party, is exempt from the specific procedure for governing the transactions with related parties (adopted in
accordance with RPT Regulation), because it is a transaction carried out by a subsidiary in which there are
no significant interests of other related parties (pursuant to Article 14, paragraph 2, RPT Regulation and
Article 13.3, lett. d), of the aforementioned procedure). In view of the foregoing, Enel’s related party
transactions committee was not involved in the approval of the Demerger Plan.

5. DESCRIPTION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SUBJECT TO ASSIGNMENT TO THE
BENEFICIARY COMPANY

5.1. Assets and liabilities subject to assignment

As said, the Demerger will be approved on the base of the balance sheets of Enel Green Power and Enel as
at September 30" 2015, attached to the Demerger Plan.

The Demerger will give rise to the assignment of almost all the Enel Green Power’s foreign shareholdings
and financial assets of Enel Green Power in favor of Enel, while Enel Green Power will keep its Italian
assets and the remaining foreign shareholdings.

In particular, the related balance sheet elements and legal relationships which, as a result of the Demerger,
will be assigned to the Beneficiary Company are the followings (the “Set of Assets Demerged”):

1)  totalitarian shareholding in the company organized and existing under Dutch law, Enel Green Power
International B.V.;

2)  short-term financial receivable owed by the company Enel Green Power North America Ltd. in
connection with a financial restructuring transaction implemented in 2014; the exchange rate risk
related to such financial receivable is hedged through a currency forward contract;

3)  legal relationships related to the long-term credit line with Enel Green Power International B.V ;
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4)  the legal relationship with the six employees that are part of the business unit comprising the Set of
Assets Demerged and the consequent asset-side liability-side balance sheet items referring to the
same;

5)  guarantees granted by Enel Green Power in the interest of Enel Green Power International B.V. and its
subsidiaries related to the hedging of certain number of commitments undertaken.

The detailed description of the assets and liabilities and related legal relationships comprising the Set of
Assets Demerged that will remain assigned to the Beneficiary Company for the Demerger effect is given in
the Annex G of the Demerger Plan.

In any case, if the assignment of assets and liabilities, rights and obligations cannot be deduced from the
Demerger Plan, the same elements will be considered assigned to the Beneficiary Company if they are
related to the Set of Assets Demerged.

It should also be noted that any the contingent assets and contingent liabilities that may be found after the
Date of Effect of the Demerger will be respectively in advantage or charged to the Beneficiary Company, on
condition that they are related to the Set of Assets Demerged.

The composition of shareholders’ equity of Enel and Enel Green Power, as resulted following the Demerger,
is shown in provided charts (respectively called “Composition of the equity of the Demerged Company
before and after the Demerger” and “Composition of the equity of the Beneficiary Company before and after
the Demerger”) attached in the Annexes H and I to the Demerger Plan.

It should be finally noted that:

- in the context of the Set of Assets Demerged are included the legal relationships relating thereto, including
the working relationship with six resources, as detailed in the Demerger Plan;

- the assets and liabilities and legal relationships included in the Set of Assets Demerged will be those
actually existing on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, taking into account the changes then taking place
between the date of the balance sheet as at September 30™ 2015 of the Demerged Company and the Date of
Effect of the Demerger, as a result of the operative dynamics corporate. Therefore, any differences in the
consistency of these elements and relationships object of the Set of Assets Demerged, between the
September 30", 2015 and the Date of Effect of the Demerger, will determine the entry of a lot of
credit/debit between the Demerged Company and the Beneficiary Company.

5.2. Changes in Enel Green Power assets, the capital increase of Enel

Changes in the composition of the Net Worth of the Demerged Company Enel Green Power deriving from
the Demerger are due to:

- decrease of the share capital of Euro 728,000,000 (seven hundred twenty-eight million/00), corresponding
to the nominal value of the canceled shares;

- decrease of Other reserves, including the portion corresponding to the Legal Reserve attributable to the
decrease of the share capital, of Euro 2,936,162,218 (two billion nine hundred sixty two thousand two
hundred eighteen/00);

- decrease of Other reserves of Euro 6,784,000 (six million seven hundred eighty-four thousand/00),
corresponding to the estimated burdens qualified as incidental costs directly attributable to the Demerger, net
of the relevant tax effect.

The following table shows the composition of the Net Worth of Enel Green Power resulting from the
Demerger.

Profits/(Losses) Profit for the
Share Capital ~ Other Reserves Accrued period Total
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Net Worth before-Demerger 1,000,000,000  4,637,089,228  1,095,239,874 139,667,460  6,871,996,562

Shares cancellation (728,000,000) (2,936,162,218) - - (3,064,162,218)
Detection of incidental costs relating to the Demerger - (6,784,000) - - (6,784,000)
Net Worth after-Demerger 272,000,000  1,694,143,010  1,095,239,874 139,667,460  3,201,050,344

Changes in the composition of the Net Worth of the Beneficiary Company deriving from the Demerger,
assuming that none of the shareholders of Enel Green Power will exercise the Right of Withdrawal or the
Right of Sale, are due to:

- increase of the Share Capital of Euro 770,588,712 (seven hundred seventy million five hundred eighty eight
thousand seven hundred twelve), corresponding to the nominal value of the newly issued shares attributed to
the shareholders of Enel Green Power other than Enel;

- increase in Other Reserves of Euro 2,302,519,071 (two billion three hundred two million five hundred
nineteen thousand seventy one), corresponding to the excess of the issuance price of the shares (equal to
Euro 3.988 per share corresponding to the Borsa’s listing price of the Enel share as of September 30", 2015)
if compared to their nominal value;

- decrease of the Other Reserves of Euro 7,250,000 (seven million two hundred fifty thousand/00),
corresponding to the estimated incidental costs directly attributable to the Demerger, net of the relevant tax
effect.

The following table shows the composition of the Net Worth of Enel resulting from the Demerger:

Profits/(Losses) ~ Profit for the

Share Capital Other Reserves Total

Accumulated period
Net Worth before-Demerger 9,403,357,795  9,197,808,130  5,303,025,796 1,066,017,771 24,970,209,492
Newly issued shares 770,588,712 2,302,519,071 - - 3,073,107,783
Detection of incidental charges costs relating (7,250,000) ) ) (7,250,000)
to the Demerger
Net Worth after-Demerger 10,173,946,507  11,493,077,201 5,303,025,796 1,066,017,771 28,036,067,275

5.3. [Effective values of the net assets assigned to Enel and the net assets remaining to Enel Green
Power

It is certified, pursuant to Article 2506-fer, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code, that: (i) the actual value of
the net assets assigned to Enel as a consequence of the Transaction is not lower than the relevant book value
(which as of September 30" 2015, is equal to € 3,664,162,218 (three billion six hundred sixty four million
one hundred sixty two thousand two hundred eighteen/00); and (ii) the actual value of the net assets that will
remain in Enel Green Power following the Demerger is not lower than the relevant book value (which as of
September 30" 2015 is equal of Euro 3,201,050,344 (three billion two hundred one fifty thousand three
hundred forty four /00).

6. FIXED EXCHANGE RATIO AND CRITERIA FOR ITS DETERMINATION
6.1. The assignation criterion and the exchange ratio

Being a demerger with non-proportional assignation , since to the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the quota
of Enel Green Power’s share capital corresponding to the Set of Assets Demerged, comprised by no.
3,640,000,000 shares in Enel Green Power (the “Shares in Enel Green Power exchanged”), will be
exchanged using the Exchange Ratio indicated below, under the following proportions:

(i)  Enel Green Power’s shareholders other than Enel will exchange all of the shares held in Enel Green
Power;
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(i1)  Enel, on the other hand, will exchange only a portion of its shares held in Enel Green Power,
corresponding to the number of Enel Green Power Shares in exchanged, after deducted the Enel Green
Power shares exchanged by shareholders of Enel Green Power other than Enel.

As pointed out in the Demerger Plan, for purposes of the determination of the above-mentioned number of
shares in Enel Green Power referring to the Set of Assets Demerged pertaining, respectively, to Enel and to
the shareholders of Enel Green Power other than Enel and, therefore, the criterion for the non-proportional
assignment of the newly issued shares in the Beneficiary Company to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company, the Boards of Directors of the participating companies to the Demerger, after examining the
opinions of the respective financial advisors above indicated and with the support of these latter, have
attributed to such Set of Assets Demerged a value corresponding to 72.8 percent of the entire value of Enel
Green Power as a whole prior to the Demerger.

The Boards of Directors of Enel Green Power and Enel on November 17", 2015, after examining the
opinions of the respective financial advisors above indicated and with the support of these latter — and, with
regard to the Demerged Company, noted the reasoned favorable opinion of the Related Party Transactions
Committee - approved the following exchange ratio: no. 0.486 newly issued Enel shares for each Share of
Enel Green Power in exchange (the “Exchange Ratio”).

There are no cash adjustments.

As a result, on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the Beneficiary Company will increase its share capital
by issuing a maximum of no. 1,769,040,000 shares — with regular entitlement and nominal value of Euro
1.00 each — in favor of the sharcholders of the Demerged Company on the basis to the Exchange Ratio. The
amount of the capital increase of Enel to service the Exchange Ratio shall not be exceed the value attributed
to the Set of Assets Demerged by the appraisal/estimate report of the expert drafted in compliance with
Article 2506-ter, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code.

In particular:

a) to the shareholders of Enel Green Power other than Enel will be assigned — through application of
the Exchange Ratio — a total of up to a maximum of 770,588,712 newly issued Enel shares, in
exchange for the cancellation, at the time of exchange, of a total of 1,585,573,483 Enel Green Power
shares held by such shareholders, while

b) in favor of Enel will be assigned — with simultaneous cancellation of the same pursuant to the
prohibition provided under Article 2504-fer, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code, as cited in Article
2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code — a total of 998,451,288 Enel shares, in exchange for
the cancellation, at the time of exchange, of no. 2,054,426,517 Enel Green Power shares held by it.

Considered the foregoing, on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the share capital of the Beneficiary
Company will be increased up to a maximum of no. 770,588,712 newly issued Enel shares, all addressed to
the shareholders of the Demerged Company other than Enel.

The number of Enel shares assigned may change depending upon the number of Enel Green Power shares
acquired by Enel through the procedure involving the offer under an option and pre-emption of the Enel
Green Power shares that may be subject to the Sale and Withdrawal Rights (indicated below in Section 10).

Since, as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger, all the above-mentioned 3,640,000,000 Enel Green Power
shares representing the portion of Enel Green Power’s share capital corresponding to the Set of Assets
Demerged subject to the exchange will be cancelled in their entirety, on such date the Demerged Company’s
share capital will be reduced from its current total amount of Euro 1,000,000,000.00 (one billion/00) to a
total of Euro 272,000,000 (two hundred seventy two million/00), divided into no. 1,360,000,000 (one billion
three hundred sixty million) ordinary shares with nominal value of Euro 0.20 (zero/20) each.
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As a result of the exchange by Enel Green Power shareholders other than Enel of all shares held by them in
Enel Green Power, and the consequent cancellation of the same, Enel — as a result of the Demerger — will be
the sole shareholder of the Demerged Company.

The Exchange Ratio will be subject to a fairness opinion by one or more independent experts pursuant to
Article 2501-sexies of the Italian Civil Code, as referred to by Article 2506-fer, paragraph 3, of the Italian
Civil Code.

6.2. Valuation methodologies used to determine the Exchange Ratio and the value of the Assets
Demerged

For the purpose of the valuation analysis aimed at determining the Exchange Ratio, the Board of Directors,
availed itself, as specified above, of the support of the independent financial advisors Mediobanca and
Barclays. The Board of Directors of Enel Green Power has acknowledged and adopted, in order to determine
such Exchange Ratio, the valuation methodologies used by the aforementioned advisors.

In particular, on November 17" 2015, the advisors provided to the Board of Directors of Enel Green Power
their fairness opinions concerning the fairness, from the financial point of view, of the Exchange Ratio. The
fairness opinions will be attached to the information document that will be published pursuant to Article 70,
paragraph 6, of the Issuers’ Regulation and in accordance with the Annex 3B of the Issuers’ Regulation,
within the applicable terms.

The main assumption of the valuations made has been the identification of the relative and comparable
economic values to be used in order to determine the Exchange Ratio. Therefore, priority was given to the
consistency and comparability of each of the methodologies adopted, rather than to the absolute values of the
companies on a stand-alone basis. In order to ensure the valuation consistency, the uniformity of the analysis
and valuation criteria of the economic value of the companies participating to the Demerger was taken into
account, considering also the specific features of each of such companies, and the circumstance that both of
them are companies whose shares are listed in regulated markets. It has to be noted that the approach used
has not necessarily triggered the use of the same valuation methodologies for Enel Green Power and Enel,
nor the attribution, for a given valuation methodology, of the same relevance for the purposes of evaluating
both the companies; rather, such approach consisted of the adoption of criteria and methodologies based on
the same valuation rationale and deemed the most appropriate in order to propose comparable values for the
determination of the Exchange Ratio, taken into account, in any case, the differences between the two
companies . The methodologies chosen, on the other hand, shall not be considered individually but shall be
treated as part of a sole valuation process.

The valuations have been made with the purpose of providing a comparative estimate of the value of Enel
Green Power and Enel. They shall therefore be interpreted exclusively in relative terms and as referring only
to the Demerger and they do not express, in any manner whatsoever, absolute values of any of the companies
participating to the Demerger, nor they may be considered as representative of current, estimated or future
market prices.

The valuations of the companies participating to the Demerger have been carried out on a stand-alone
perspective, i.e. on the basis of business plans separately elaborated by Enel Green Power and Enel,
irrespective of the outcome of the transaction.

In light of the modalities and timeline foreseen with respect to the exercise of the Right of Withdrawal and of
the Right of Sale, and taken into account that it is not possible to assess their future economic impact, such
rights - that may be exercised by Enel Green Power shareholders not concurring to the approval of the
Demerger - were not considered.
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Reference date and documentation used

The reference date for the valuations made in order to determine the Exchange Ratio is the date of this
report, based on the assumption that, for each of the companies participating to the Demerger, no events,
deeds or acts able to significantly alter the accounting, economic and financial position of the companies

occurred in the period included between the most recent available individual and consolidated accounts and
the date hereof.

The documentation utilized for the purpose of determining the Exchange Ratio consists of the following for

Enel Green Power and Enel:

(a) Enel Green Power and Enel statutory and consolidated financial statements for FY 2014;

(b) Enel Green Power and Enel consolidated interim and quarterly financial statements as at June 30",
2015 and September 30", 2015;

(c) presentation of Enel Green Power 2016-2020 Business Plan dated October 22" 2015 and
presentation of Enel Green Power 2016-2020 Business Plan approved by the Board of Directors of
Enel Green Power on November 122015 (jointly, the “EGP Business Plan”);

(d) presentation of Enel 2016-2020 Business Plan dated November 3™, 2015 and presentation of Enel
2016-2020 Business Plan approved by the Board of Directors of Enel on November 12", 2015
(jointly, the “Enel Business Plan”);

(e) projections prepared by the management of Enel Green Power and Enel for the 2016-2020 period
for the key capital, earnings/financial and operating indicators of the respective groups (including
splits for the main divisions/geographies);

(f) projections prepared by the management of Enel Green Power and Enel for the key capital,
earnings/financial and operating indicators of the respective groups (including splits for the main
divisions/geographies) for FY 2015 (“pre-closing”);

(g) long-term earnings/financial and operating projections prepared by the management of Enel Green
Power and Enel for the years subsequent to the period covered by the respective Business Plans;

(h) data on net debt and other equity items as at September 30™, 2015 used to estimate the value of the
economic capital, starting from the Enterprise Value (“bridge-to-equity”), including the allocation of
such items among geographies and business units;

(i) information regarding the number of Enel Green Power and Enel shares as at the date of this report;
(7)) Enel Green Power and Enel stock market performance;

(k) equity research and financial analysis regarding Enel Green Power and Enel published by brokers
and investment banks.

Other information available in the public domain has also been used, such as:

research, financial statements and analysis on companies operating in the energy and renewable energies
sectors; and

the terms and stock market performances of select companies involved in precedent transactions (in
particular EDF / EDF Energie Nouvelles and Iberdrola / Iberdrola Renovables) deemed to be comparable
to those under review, in the sense that they derive from the integration between companies operating in
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the renewable energies sector and their respective parent companies with diversified activities in the
energy sector.

Limits of the analysis and difficulties in the valuation

The conclusions of the valuation process followed should in any case be considered in the light of certain
limitations and difficulties which are summarized below:

1. the pre-closing data, the estimates and the earnings / financial projections used for the valuations
reflect, by their nature, a degree of uncertainty with reference to the actual predictability of the
operating and earnings performance, due amongst other things to potential changes in the reference
scenario;

2. the high volatility of the current situation of financial markets, which is liable to change significantly
with potential impact on some of the parameters used in the valuation, such as (without limitation),
those used to calculate the WACC;

3. the “sum of the parts” approach used in the Discounted Cash Flow (“DCF”’) methodology required a
complex allocation of certain earnings, financial and capital ratios to the individual parts being
valued;

4. the trading volumes observed for Enel and Enel Green Power reflect different degrees of liquidity,
making the market prices methodology not entirely homogeneous;

5. within the brokers’ target prices methodology, reports published prior to the approval of the new
Enel Green Power and Enel Business Plans were taken into consideration, and the estimates and
expectations included in such reports might differ, even significantly, from those contained in the
Business Plans recently approved by the respective Boards of Directors;

6. the methodologies based on trading multiples or precedent transactions’ multiples have not been
considered relevant, due to the limited comparability of the companies involved in the transaction
driven by differences in the regulatory scenario, in the duration and nature of the incentives, in the
different geographical and technological mix, and in the amount of projects under development
compared to the capacity already installed.

Description of the valuation methodologies adopted

The valuation methodologies adopted take into account the best Italian and international practice in
transactions of this kind, in view of the specific operating and business characteristics of Enel Green Power
and Enel. In this particular case, the following have been identified as the principal valuation methodologies:

e discounted cash flow methodology, applying the “Sum of the Parts” approach, and

e the market prices methodology, considering, for Enel Green Power only, also the premia paid in
precedent transactions in the renewable energies sector.

The analysis of the exchange ratios implied in the target prices published by financial analysts on Enel Green
Power and Enel has been used as a control methodology.

Discounted cash flow methodology

The methodology in exam, also known as DCF, determines the value of a company or of an asset as a whole
based on its capacity to generate cash flows.
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This valuation methodology has been adopted in order to capture the specific characteristics of Enel Green
Power and Enel in terms of profitability, growth, risk profile and capital structure.

The DCF methodology has been applied based on the “sum of the parts” approach, that is the value of each
of the participating companies to the Demerger has been calculated as the sum of the values of each of their
individual parts, considered as economic entities able to be valued on a stand-alone basis.

In particular, such methodology is based on the assumption that the value of a company or of an asset is
equal to the present value of the cash flows that are expected to be generated in the future. The value of the
economic capital of a company or an asset is therefore equal to the sum of the present value of (i) the
expected cash flows, and (ii) the terminal value of the company or the asset, net of (iii) the net financial debt,
minority interests and any further adjustments.

S R .
S (1+WACC Y (1 =WACC)”

Where:

W = value of the economic capital

FCt = yearly cash flow at year t

VT = terminal value

DFt0 = net financial debt, minority interests and other adjustments at the year t=0
N = number of periods of projections considered

WACC = weighted average cost of capital

The terminal value represents the value of the company or of the asset under valuation at the end of the
periods of projections considered.

In calculating the terminal value, in order to capture the specific characteristics of the asset being valued (for
instance, in terms of geography, technology and regulatory framework), different methodologies have been
adopted such as the perpetuity growth rate, the “annuity” (growth assumed for a limited number of years)
and the reference to the Regulated Asset Base (in case of regulated activities).

The terminal value deriving from the above calculation is considered as an additional cash flow and,
therefore, it is discounted at the weighted average cost of capital as all other cash flows.

The weighted average cost of capital represents the weighted average (on the basis of the capital structure of
the company or of the asset) of the cost of the financing sources utilized (equity and debt net of tax effects):

, D E
WACC = Kd(1—-1) - Ke
D-E D-E

Where:

Kd = cost of debt

Ke = cost of equity

D = debt

E = equity

t = marginal tax rate

In particular, the cost of debt used represents the long term cost of debt applicable to companies or assets
which present a similar risk profile, net of tax effects. The cost of equity reflects the return on equity
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expected by an investor, taking into account the risk profile of the investment, calculated according to the
Capital Asset Pricing Model, through the following formula:

K: = R._.- b stll-R-_ - R—_r |

Where:

Rf = expected return on risk-free assets

B = coefficient that measures the correlation between the expected returns from the considered investment
and the expected return of the reference equity index

Rm = expected return of the reference equity index

(Rm — Rf) = extra return expected from the reference equity index compared to the return of risk free assets

In the calculation of the weighted average cost of capital (WACC), the used parameters have been identified
specifically for each country and asset class (i.e. electricity generation, distribution and retail) depending on
the characteristics of the activities being valued.

Market Prices

Market prices allow identifying the value of the equity of a company based on the value attributed by the
stock market in which the company’s shares are traded.

Such methodology consists in valuing the shares of the company on the basis of the market price at a certain
date or of the average of market prices registered in the stock market where the shares are traded, during
certain periods of time.

In particular, the choice of the time period on which the average of market prices are calculated shall reflect
a balance between the mitigation of potential short time volatility effects (that would suggest to consider
longer time horizons) and the necessity to reflect recent conditions of the market and of the company being
valued (that would suggest to consider more recent market prices). In addition, the period of time considered
should include exclusively market prices which are unaffected from press rumors on the potential transaction
or from other information that could have a disturbing effect ( “unaffected”). In this regard, both for Enel and
Enel Green Power, market prices after October 26", 2015, that is the latest date prior to the joint press
release in which both companies — after press rumors - informed the market about a potential integration of
Enel Green Power’s operations in Enel, have not been considered.

In this case, the ratio between market prices of Enel Green Power and Enel allows, therefore, to derive an
implied Exchange Ratio, as a function of market prices observed during the different time horizons
considered.

The application of such methodology has allowed identifying a minimum and maximum market price both
for Enel Green Power and Enel in the last twelve months prior to October 26", 2015.

With reference to Enel Green Power only, in the context of the market prices analysis, premia on market
prices of selected precedent transactions have been taken into consideration (in particular, EDF / EDF
Energie Nouvelles and Iberdrola / Iberdrola Renovables) deemed to be comparable to the transaction under
review, as they refer to companies operating in the renewable energies sector with their respective parent
companies having diversified activities in the energy sector. The premia observed in such precedent
transactions have been applied to the unaffected market prices during certain time horizons, resulting in an
implied market price range for Enel Green Power that has been compared to the closing market price of Enel
as of October 26", 2015, in order to obtain an exchange ratio range.
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Analysis on the target prices of Enel Green Power and Enel shares published by financial analysts on

Such methodology relies on the analysis of Target Prices published by research analysts covering both Enel
Green Power and Enel. As for the market prices, the results of such methodology arise from a process which
is different from the traditional valuation methods, which are based on explicit assumptions regarding future
cash flows, timing and riskiness of such cash flows, as well as on the current and projected capital structure.
However, they represent an indication of the value of companies, whose shares are listed, completing the
sample of reference valuation methodologies. The observation of Target Prices of Enel and Enel Green
Power published by research analysts allow to obtain, for each broker considered, an implied exchange ratio.

Consistently with market prices methodology described above, both for Enel and Enel Green Power,
research reports published after October 26™, 2015 have not been taken into consideration.

Summary of results

On the basis of the considerations and the limits described above, the table below reports the results of the
different valuation methodologies used to calculate the Exchange Ratio:

Calculation of the Exchange Ratio

Exchange Ratio
Valuation Methodology

Minimum Maximum
Discounted Cash Flows 0.37x 0.54x
Market Prices 0.38x 0.51x
Market Prices with Precedent Transactions' Premia 0.47x 0.52x
Brokers’ Target Prices 0.28x 0.57x

The Board of Directors of Enel Green Power, taking into consideration the considerations above as well as
the valuation process adopted, has determined the following Exchange Ratio:

0.486 Enel shares with a nominal value of Euro 1.00
for each Enel Green Power share with a nominal value of Euro 0.20.

skskok

Valuation methodologies used to determine the value of the equity of the Set of Assets Demerged and the

ratio between the value of the equity of Set of Assets Demerged and Enel Green Power (before-demerger)
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In determining the value of the equity of the Set of Assets Demerged, given the non-listed nature of the
entity and the need to indicate (in percentage terms) the relative value compared to the equity value of Enel
Green Power before-demerger, with the purpose to ensure consistency between the criteria used, only the
discount cash flow methodology has been used, applying a “sum of the parts” approach. This same
methodology, when determining the relative valuation compared to Enel Green Power (before-demerger),
has been used also for this latter.

For a detailed description of such methodology, also known as DCF, please refers to the previously detailed.

Reference date and documentation used

For what concerns the reference date, the same considerations expressed above on the Exchange Ratio apply.
With regards to the valuation of Set of Assets Demerged, the following documentation has been utilized:

1. Detailed information prepared by the management of Enel Green Power for the 2016-2020 period
for the key capital, earnings/financial and operating indicators of the Set of Assets Demerged;

2. Detailed information prepared by the management of Enel Green Power for the key capital,
earnings/financial and operating indicators of the Set of Assets Demerged for FY 2015 (“pre-
closing™);

3. long-term earnings/financial and operating projections prepared by the management of Enel Green
Power for the years subsequent to the period covered by the Enel Green Power Business Plan;

4. data on net debt and other balance sheet items as of September 30", 2015 used to estimate the value
of the equity starting from the Enterprise Value (“bridge-to-equity”), including the amount of net
debt to be transferred from Enel Green Power to the Set of Assets Demerged, and the allocation
among the different activities being valued.

Limits of the analysis and difficulties in the valuation

In addition to the points 1-3 indicated as limits with regard to the valuation of the Exchange Ratio, we
highlight also the non-listed nature of the Set of Assets Demerged, that has imposed certain limitations to the
valuation exercise, excluding the possibility to rely upon certain methodologies typically used for entities
listed in regulated markets (as, for example, the methodology of market prices or the analysis of target prices
of research analysts).

Summary of results

On the base of the considerations and the limits previously outlined, we report below the result obtained by
the application of the exclusive above identified valuation methodology for the purpose of determination the
value of the equity of the Set of Assets Demerged and the percentage ratio between the value of the Set of
Assets Demerged and Enel Green Power (before-demerger).

Definition of the percentage ratio between the value of the | Percentage Ratio
equity of the Set of Assets Demerged and of Enel Green
Power (before-demerger) Minimum Maximum
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Discounted cash flows 68% 75%

The Board of Directors of Enel Green Power, in light of the considerations above as well as the valuation
methodologies adopted, has determined the percentage value of the equity of the Set of Assets Demerged in
relation to Enel Green Power (before-demerger) as follows:

72.8% of the value of the equity of Enel Green Power (before-demerger).

7. ASSIGNMENT MODALITIES OF ENEL SHARES TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ENEL
GREEN POWER

The assignment to Enel Green Power’s shareholders other than Enel of the newly issued shares in the
Beneficiary Company will take place, under a regime of dematerialization and through authorized
intermediaries, starting from the Date of Effect of the Demerger, in accordance with the timetable and the
procedures to be announced to the market through the publication of a specific notice on the Demerged
Company’s website and in at least one national daily newspaper.

The newly issued Enel shares will be listed on the MTA like the shares in the Beneficiary Company already
outstanding.

No costs will be imposed upon Enel Green Power’s shareholders in connection with the exchange
transactions

It will be made available to the shareholders of Enel Green Power a service to allow you to round off the unit
immediately above or below the number of Enel shares assigned pursuant the Exchange Ratio, without
charges, stamp duties or commissions. Alternatively, different activities may be started in order to ensure the
overall positive result of the transaction.

Considering that, as already mentioned, the Enel Green Power shares are currently admitted to trading on the
Spanish regulated markets and that the Enel shares assigned at the time of the exchange will not be admitted
to trading on such markets, the Spanish Regulatory Authority (Comision Nacional of the Mercado de
Valores) has notified that, in line with the previous similar cases that have occurred on the Spanish markets,
it is necessary to appoint a dedicated “connection/reference” intermediary (referred to as the “entidad de
enlace”), in order to enable the shareholders who, as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger, will hold shares
of Enel Green Power admitted to trading on the above-mentioned Spanish markets (through the Spanish
centralized management/administration system, Iberclear) to sell on the MTA, during the month following
the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the Enel shares received in exchange, without any additional costs
related to the sale on a foreign market. After the above-mentioned one-month period, the above-mentioned
shareholders may purchase or sell the shares of Enel in Italy on the MTA through authorized intermediaries,
incurring the costs of the transaction.

7.1. Entitlement date of the shares that will be assigned to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company

The shares issued by Enel to service the Exchange Ratio will have regular entitlement.

7.2. Description of the rights linked to the shares that will be assigned to the shareholders of the
Demerged Company
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The shares issued by Enel to service the Exchange Ratio will grant the same dividend rights pertaining to the
other shares of the Beneficiary Company already issued as at the Date of Effect of the Demerger.

8. STARTING DATE OF THE EFFECTS OF THE DEMERGER

The effective date of civil law effects of the Demerger will correspond to the last of the registrations required
by Article 2506-quater of the Italian Civil Code, or from the possible later date that may be indicated in in
the deed of Demerger (the “Date of Effect of the Demerger”).

Starting from the same date, the transactions pertaining to the balance sheet elements and the legal
relationship included in the Set of Assets Demerged assigned to the Beneficiary Company will be entered in
the financial statement of the Beneficiary Company, with all related accounting and tax effects also starting
on the same date.

0. THE COMPANIES AS A RESULT OF THE DEMERGER
9.1. Ownership structure of Enel and Enel Green Power as a result of the Demerger

As of the date of this report, the shareholders holding — directly or indirectly — Enel shares with voting rights
in excess of 2% based on the information received pursuant to Article 120 of the TUF and other information
available to Enel, are the following:

Enel Shareholder (before-Demerger) % of the share capital with voting rights
Ministero dell’Economia e delle Finanze 25.500%
People’s Bank of China 2.042%

As of the date of this report, the shareholders holding - directly or indirectly - Enel Green Power shares with
voting rights in excess of 2%, based on the information received pursuant to Article 120 of the TUF and
other information available to Enel Green Power, are the following:

Enel Green Power Shareholder % of the share capital with voting rights

Ministero dell’Economia e delle Finanze 68.29%

DTotal shareholding held through the subsidiary Enel S.p.A.

The following chart indicates, in percentage, the shareholdings expected for the significant Enel shareholders
(considering, for illustrative purposes only, the shareholders holding — directly or indirectly — stakes in
excess of 2% of the share capital of Enel after-Demerger) on the Date of Effect of the Demerger on the basis
of the Exchange Ratio. Such percentages has been calculated assuming that: (a) the current ownership
structure of Enel and Enel Green Power do not change until the Demerger; and (b) none of the shareholders
of Enel Green Power exercises the Right of Withdrawal or the Right of Sale.

Enel Shareholder (after-Demerger) % of the share capital with voting rights

Ministero dell’Economia e delle Finanze 23.569%

As a result of the Demerger, Enel will hold directly the 100% of the Enel Green Power share capital.
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9.2. Demerger effects on shareholders’ agreements of Enel and Enel Green Power

Based on the information received pursuant to Article 122 of “TUF” and the applicable provisions of the
Issuer’s Regulation, no shareholders’ agreements regarding Enel and Enel Green Power are in force as of the
date hereof.

9.3. Changes to Enel Green Power’s by-laws

As a consequence of the completion of the Demerger, Enel Green Power’s share capital will be reduced from
its current total amount of Euro 1,000,000,000.00 (one billion/00) to a total amount of Euro 272,000,000
(two hundred and seventy two million/00), because no. 3,640,000,000 Enel Green Power shares,
representing the quota of the share capital corresponding to the Set of Assets Demerged, will be fully
canceled on the Date of Effect of the Demerger.

Enel Green Power Shareholders’ Meeting convened for the approval of the Demerger will resolve , among
others, upon the adoption, as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger, of a new by-laws that, in addition to the
above-mentioned decrease of the share capital, contains provisions more appropriate for a non-listed
company, because, as a result of the Demerger, Enel Green Power shares will cease to be traded on the MTA
and on the Spanish stock markets. It has to be noted that the by-laws of Enel Green Power after-Demerger is
substantially in line with the relevant by-laws adopted by other Enel Group companies whose shares are not
listed on regulated markets.

The by-laws of the Demerged Company after-Demerger, annexed to the Demerger Plan as Annex B, will
provide for, among others:

a) the amendment to Article 5 relating to the share capital decrease of the Demerged Company as a
result of the Demerger, to the extent indicated above;

b) the introduction of a new Article 8, pursuant to which, in accordance with the applicable provisions
of law, the domicile of the shareholders with regard to the relationships with the company is the one
indicated in the sharcholders’ ledger;

c) the amendments to Article 16 (formerly Article 15 of the by-laws before-demerger) in order to
provide that the Board of Directors may be called if requested by the majority of its members or by
the Board of Statutory Auditors, and that the meetings of the Board of Directors may be legitimately
held, regardless of the notice of call, with the attendance of all the board members and of all the
members of the Board of Statutory Auditors, or with the attendance of the majority of the members
of both the Board of Directors and the Board of Statutory Auditors, provided that the absent
specifically authorized the discussions of the items on agenda;

d) the following changes due to the circumstances that, as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the
laws and regulation concerning the companies whose shares are listed on regulated markets or
widely distributed among the public, will not anymore apply to Enel Green Power:

1) under Article 9 (formerly Article 8 of the by-laws before-demerger), the introduction of
certain provisions relating to the terms and the modalities of convocation of the
shareholders’ meeting, as well as to the possibility to hold the shareholders’ meetings via
means of telecommunications facilities;

2) under Article 11 (formerly Article 10 of the by-laws before-demerger), the elimination of the
provisions regarding proxy vote, proxy solicitation and exercise of the voting rights via
electronic means;
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3) under Article 13 (formerly Article 12 of the by-laws before-demerger), the elimination of the
sole call of the shareholders’ meeting, unless the Board of Directors considers appropriate to
call the meeting also for subsequent calls;

4) under Article 14 (formerly Article 13 of the by-laws before-demerger), the elimination of the
provisions relating to the slates mechanism for the appointment of Board of Directors’
members;

5) under Article 20 (formerly Article 19 of the by-laws before-demerger), the elimination of the
provisions relating to related party transactions, as well as those concerning the manager
responsible for preparing the corporate accounting documents;

6) under Article 25 (formerly Article 24 of the by-laws before-demerger), the elimination of the
provision relating to the slates mechanism for the appointment of the members of the Board
of Statutory Auditors and the reduction from three to two of the number of Alternate
Auditors; and

e) some minor changes relating to, in particular, the chairmanship of the meeting (Article 12, formerly
Article 11 of the by-laws before-demerger), the company’s body in charge for the determination of
the remuneration to be granted to the members of the Board of Directors (Article 23, formerly
Article 22 of the by-laws before-demerger), the distribution to the shareholders of interim dividends
(Article 26, formerly Article 25 of the by-laws before-demerger) and the provisions regarding the
gender balance (Article 30, formerly Article 29 of the by-laws before-demerger).

9.4. Changes to Enel’s by-laws

As a result of the Demerger, Enel will increase its share capital with issuance of a maximum overall amount
of 770,588,712 new ordinary shares with regular dividend and a nominal value of Euro 1.00 each, pursuant
to the Exchange Ratio and the share assignation criteria referred to under points 4 and 5 of the Demerger
Plan.

The Company’s by-laws after-Demerger is attached to the Demerger Plan as Annex D.

10. VALUATIONS REGARDING THE RIGHT OF WITHDRAWAL AND THE RIGHT OF
SALE

10.1. Right of Withdrawal

Enel Green Power’s shareholders which not supporting the approval of the Demerger will be granted to the
right of withdrawal pursuant to Article 2437, paragraph 1, lett. a), of the Italian Civil Code, (“Right of
Sale”), since Enel, the beneficiary company of the Demerger, has a clause of its corporate purpose that
allows for the conduct of business that differs significantly from that described in Enel Green Power’s
corporate purpose clause.

10.1.1. Liguidation Value

The Right of Withdrawal may be exercised for a net liquidation value of the Enel Green Power share
determined, under art. 2437-ter, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, only referring to the arithmetic
average of the closing price of the Enel Green Power share over the six months preceding the publication of
the notice of the call of Enel Green Power’s Sharecholders’ Meeting (the “Liquidation Value”). The
Liquidation Value has been determined in Euro 1.780 for each share.

10.1.2. Modalities for the exercise of the Right of Withdrawal

In accordance with Article 127-bis, paragraph 2, of the TUF, any person whose registration on the
intermediary’s account has been effected on a date subsequent to the date specified under Article 83-sexies,
paragraph 2, of the TUF as record date relevant for the right to attend the Shareholders’ Meeting of Enel
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Green Power called to approve the Demerger Plan (i.e. after December 29", 2015), but before the opening of
such Shareholders’ Meeting, will be deemed not concurring to the approval of the resolution and, therefore,
will be entitled to exercise the Right of Withdrawal.

Under Article 2437-bis of the Italian Civil Code, the subjects authorized to the exercise the Right of
Withdrawal may exercise such right, for whole or part of the shares held, through registered letter (the
“Declaration of Withdrawal”) to be sent to the registered office of Enel Green Power within fifteen
calendar days from the date of registration of the shareholder’s resolution.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 127-bis of the TUF, the withdrawing shareholder shall send to the
Company, through the same modalities provided for the Declaration of Withdrawal and within the deadline
provided by law, the relevant communication issued by an authorized intermediary certifying that (i) the
ownership of the shares for which the Right of Withdrawal may be exercised, as of the date of the
Shareholders” Meeting called to approve the Demerger, and (if) the ownership of the shares for which the
Right of Withdrawal may be exercised as of the date of the Declaration of Withdrawal.

The Declaration of Withdrawal shall contain the following information:
- The details of the withdrawing shareholder, included the tax code;

- The domicile of the withdrawing shareholder for the communications relating to the liquidation
process of the shares for which the Right of Withdrawal is exercised, including the phone number and
the e-mail address;

- The number of shares for which the Right of Withdrawal is exercised;

- The IBAN code of the bank account on which the liquidation value of the shares for which the Right
of Withdrawal is exercised shall be credited.

The Declaration of Withdrawal shall also indicate the intermediary on whose accounts the shares for which
the Right of Withdrawal are deposited and the certification that such shares are free of any pledge or liens or
other encumbrances in favor of third parties. If the shares for which the Right of Withdrawal is exercised are
pledged or subject to other liens or encumbrances in favor of third parties, the withdrawing shareholder shall
also attach a declaration of the pledgee - or of the person in favor of which the burden is granted — through
which such person provides its irrevocable consent and unconditional release of the shares from the pledge
and/or encumbrance and to the relevant liquidation in accordance with the instructions of the withdrawing
shareholder.

The information relating to the terms and modalities provided in order to exercise the Right of Withdrawal
will be published by Enel Green Power in accordance with the applicable provisions of law. Pursuant to
Article 2437-bis, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, the Right of Withdrawal cannot be exercised, and if
already exercised, will be ineffective if, within 90 days, Enel Green Power should revoke the relevant
resolution giving rise to the Right of Withdrawal.

In the event that, should one or more shareholders of Enel Green Power exercise the Right of Withdrawal,
the liquidation process will carry out in accordance with Article 2437-quater of the Italian Civil Code. In
particular, the terms of the offer in option and in pre-emption, that will be referred to all shareholders of Enel
Green Power, will be announced in the modalities provided by the law in force, specifying in this regard that
the relevant notices will be published in at least one daily national newspaper, on the website of Enel Green
Power www.enelgreenpower.com, as well as on the authorized mechanism storage NIS-Storage

(www.emarketstorage.com).

10.2. Right of Sale
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Enel Green Power’s shareholders who do not support the approval of the Demerger will be entitled to have
their own EGP shares purchased by Enel pursuant to and for purposes of art. 2506-bis, paragraph 4, of the
Italian Civil Code (the “Right of Sale”).

The Right of Sale may concern whole or even only a portion of the Enel Green Power shares held by the
shareholders of the Demerged Company who exercise the Right of Sale; the price per share of the Enel
Green Power share will be equal to the Liquidation Value determined under art. 2437-fer, paragraph 3, of the
Italian Civil Code, in accordance with Article 2506-bis, paragraph 2, second period, of the Italian Civil
Code.

The Liquidation Value will be announced to the shareholders and the market through a specific press release
viewable on Enel Green Power’s website and through the publication of a notice on at least one national
daily newspaper.

The Right of Sale may be exercised under the same terms and conditions for the exercise of the Right of
Withdrawal. In any case, the Right of Sale and the Right of Withdrawal could not be exercised for the same
share.

Please note in this regard that the process of liquidation of the shares for which the Right of Sale is exercised
will take place, in a single context to the process of liquidation of the shares for which were to be exercised
the Right of Withdrawal, in accordance with Article 2437-guater of the Italian Civil Code.

* ok ok

In regard to the process of liquidation of the shares of Enel Green Power subject to the Right of Sale and the
Right of Withdrawal, Enel declared its intention to exercise integrally the right of option for the quota
concerning the competence as well as to exercise the right of pre-emption on the Enel Green Power shares
that eventually have not been sold following the offer under option and pre-emption pursuant Article 2437-
quater, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code.

The effectiveness of the Right of Sale and the Right of Withdrawal, and therefore the relevant liquidation,
are subject to the taken place of the Condition Precedent and, in any way, to the completion of the Demerger.

11. THE CONDITION PRECEDENT

The effect of the Demerger is conditioned upon the circumstance that the total liquidation value of the Enel
Green Power shares in connection with which is validly exercised the Right of Withdrawal and the Right of
Sale does not exceed Euro 300,000,000 (three hundred million/00) (the “Condition Precedent”).

Enel and Enel Green Power will announce the data relating to the occurrence or the non-fulfillment of the
Condition Precedent, through the publication of a specific notice on the respective websites and in at least
one national daily newspaper.

The Condition Precedent shall be deemed likewise satisfied — even in case of the excess of the limits above
indicated - if Enel, within 60 calendar days from the registration with the Companies’ Register of Rome of
the shareholders’ meetings resolutions approving the Demerger pursuant to Article 2502 of the Italian Civil
Code, declares its intention to purchase all of the shares for which the above-mentioned rights have been
exercised.

12. TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE DEMERGER ON ENEL AND ENEL GREEN POWER

For the purposes of direct taxation and in accordance with Article 173, paragraph 1, of the Presidential
Decree no. 917 December 22", 1986 (“Tuir”), the Demerger is a transaction neutral, under a tax
perspective, for both the companies involved, and, therefore, does not give rise to either realization or
distribution of capital gains or losses on the Set of the Demerged Assets.
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The Set of the Demerged Assets assigned to the Beneficiary Company will retain the last tax values existing
in the Demerged Company’s accounts.

The so called personal tax positions of the Demerged Company and the relevant instrumental commitments
will be assigned to the Beneficiary Company and to the Demerged Company in proportion of the respective
quotas of equity transferred or retained, except in case of personal tax positions linked specifically to the Set
of the Demerged Assets and that, as such, will follow these assets to the respective owners.

With reference to the effects of the Demerger for the shareholders of the Demerged Company, the Demerger
is tax-neutral, because it does not constitute either a realization or distribution of gains or losses, nor involves
the achievement of revenues; with respect instead to the tax value of the shares of the Demerged Company
for the shareholders of the same other than Enel, it is highlighted that, in accordance with the current
interpretive position expressed by the “Agenzia delle Entrate”, said cost would not change as a result of the
transaction and it would be attributed to the Enel securities acquired as a result of the transaction.

However, with reference to the shareholders of the Demerged Company not resident in Italy, it is
recommended to carry out the proper analysis taken into account the tax regime in force in their countries of
residence.

Although not explicitly stated, for the purpose of income tax the provisions of Article 173 of TUIR shall
apply.

The demerger transactions are not specifically regulated under the regional tax on the productive activities
(“IRAP”). However, as clarified by the Agenzia delle Entrate, also for such purposes a general principle of

neutrality would apply, so that the Demerger does not involve any taxable component nor the automatic
recognition of any higher values recorded in the financial statements following the transaction.

For the purposes of the indirect taxation, the Transaction is exempted from the VAT pursuant to Art. 2,
paragraph 3, lett. f), of Presidential Decree no. 633, October 26", 1972, and is subject to fix registration tax
in accordance with Article 4, let. b), first part, of the Tariff attached to Presidential Decree no. 131/1986.

k ok sk
Declaration by the manager responsible for preparing the corporate accounting documents pursuant
to Article 154-bis, paragraph 2, of the TUF

The manager responsible for preparing the corporate accounting documents, Giulio Antonio Carone,
declares, pursuant to paragraph 2 of Article 154-bis of the TUF that the accounting information contained in
this explanatory report corresponds to the documental results, accounting books and entries.
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PROPOSAL OF RESOLUTION

Dear Shareholders,

considering the foregoing, the Board of Directors therefore submits to your approval the following:
Agenda

“The extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Enel Green Power S.p.A. (“Enel Green Power” or the
“Company”),

- acknowledged the plan of partial non-proportional demerger of Enel Green Power in favor of Enel
S.p.A. (“Enel”), approved by the Boards of Directors of Enel and of Enel Green Power— previous
reasoned favorable opinion of Company’s Related Parties Transactions Committee — on November 17",
2015, registered in the Register of Companies of Rome pursuant to Article 2501-ter, paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Italian Civil Code, as well as filed with the registered office of the Company and published on the
relevant website pursuant to Article 2501-septies, paragraph 1, of the Italian Civil Code, referred to,
respectively, under Articles 2506-bis, paragraph 5, and 2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code
(the “Demerger Plan”);

- examined the information document relating to the partial non-proportional demerger of Enel Green
Power in favor of Enel, drafted by the Company pursuant to Article 5 of the Consob Regulation
concerning the transactions with related parties, adopted by Consob resolution no. 17221 of March 12,
2010 as subsequently amended, made available to the public on November 24" 2015;

- examined the report of the Board of Directors illustrating the Demerger Plan drafted pursuant to Article
2501-quinquies of the Italian Civil Code - referred to under Article 2506-ter, paragraphs 1 and 2, of the
Italian Civil Code - and Article 70, paragraph 2, of the Regulation approved by Consob resolution no.
11971 of May 14™, 1999, as subsequently amended (the “Issuers’ Regulation™);

- examined the economic/financial situations of the companies participating to the demerger, as of
September 30™, 2015 and drafted pursuant to Article 2501-guater of the Ttalian Civil Code, referred to
under Article 2506-ter, paragraph 1, of the Italian Civil Code;

- acknowledged the report on the fairness of the exchange ratio, drafted by the common expert appointed
by the Court of Rome pursuant to Article 2501-sexies of the Italian Civil Code, referred to under Article
2506-ter, paragraph 3 of the Italian Civil Code;

- acknowledged the report drafted by the independent expert pursuant to Article 2343-fer, paragraph 2,
lett. b) of the Italian Civil Code, relating to the valuation of the value of the Set of Assets Demerged (as
defined in the Demerger Plan) and acknowledged its publication on the Company’s website;

- acknowledged that, in accordance with the relevant legal deadlines, the Demerger Plan has been
registered in the Companies’ Register of Rome pursuant to Article 2501-zer, paragraphs 3 and 4, of the
Italian Civil Code, and also the documentation required pursuant to Article 2501-septies, paragraph 1, of
the Italian Civil Code, referred to, respectively, under Articles 2506-bis, paragraph 5, and 2506-fer,
paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code, has been published;

- examined the information document relating to the demerger drafted pursuant to Article 70, paragraph
6, of the Issuer’s Regulation;

resolves

1. to approve without any amendment the Demerger Plan;
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to acknowledge that:

a.

the Enel Green Power’s shareholders not concurring to the approval of the demerger will be
granted with (i) the right to sell their Enel Green Power shares to Enel pursuant to Article 2506-
bis, paragraph 4, of the Italian Civil Code (the “Right of Sale”) and/or (ii) the right of
withdrawal pursuant to Article 2437, paragraph 1, lett. a) of the Italian Civil Code (“Withdrawal
Right”), it being understood that both the Right of Sale and the Right of Withdrawal in any case
will take effect subject to the completion of the demerger;

the Right of Withdrawal and the Right of Sale will be exercised for a liquidation value,
determined according to Article 2437-ter, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, equal to Euro
1.780 for each Enel Green Power share;

the liquidation process of the shares for which the Right of Sale and/or the Right of Withdrawal
are exercised will take place in a single context, in accordance with Article 2437-quater of the
Italian Civil Code and as provided in the Demerger Plan;

to grant the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer, also severally, with
power to sub-delegate and with release from any conceivable conflict of interests, with any and broadest
powers to implement the resolutions referred to above, and in particular:

a)

b)

to execute and enter into the Demerger Deed - fixing any clause and element, including the date of
effect and the amendment, as a result of the above and with effect from the date of effect of the
demerger, of the Company’s articles of association, in accordance with the Demerger Plan - as well
as any other deed/act of acknowledgement, supplemental and/or amendment deed/act, that may be
necessary or even appropriate in view of the successful completion of the transaction, with power to
define any condition, clause, term and modality, all in accordance with the Demerger Plan and,
therefore, first and foremost, with the conditions specified therein, including the verification of the
occurrence of the circumstance mentioned under the Section 10 of the Demerger Plan;

to carry out all the activities necessary or even appropriate in view of the successful completion of
the liquidation process concerning the shares which may be object of the Right of Withdrawal and/or
the Right of Sale (as defined above) and, more in general, for the successful completion of the
demerger;

to fulfill any formality required in order to procure that the resolutions adopted are granted with all
necessary approvals, with the power to introduce into such resolutions, in the Demerger Plan and in
the articles of association of the Company, amendments, additions, deletions that may be required by
the Authorities or at the time of the registration in the Companies Register;

to draft and execute any possible document addressed to the competent Authorities, and to carry out
any and all activities necessary or appropriate, in connection with the delisting of the Company’s
shares from the “Mercato Telematico Azionario” and from the Spanish electronic trading system
(Sistema de Interconexion Bursatil, SIBE).
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PLAN FOR THE PARTIAL NON-PROPORTIONAL DEMERGER OF

ENEL GREEN POWER S.P.A.

(also referred to hereinafter as EGP or the Demerged Company)

IN FAVOR OF ENEL S.P.A.

(also referred to hereinafter as Enel or the Beneficiary Company)

drafted pursuant to arts. 2506 et seq. of the Italian Civil Code

WHEREAS

- Enel S.p.A. (“Enel”) is a company organized and existing

under Italian law whose shares are listed on the electronic stock

exchange of Borsa Italiana S.p.A. (mercato telematico azionario

or “MTA”), having as its corporate purpose the acquisition and

management of shareholdings and interests in Italian or foreign

companies and enterprises, as well as the performance, in favor

of its subsidiary companies and enterprises, of strategic guidance

and coordination functions with regard to such companies’

industrial structures and business operations;

- Enel, through its subsidiaries or companies in which it holds

equity stakes, operates 1in particular in the energy sector,

engaging in activities that are directly or indirectly related to

such sector;

- Enel is currently the controlling shareholder of Enel Green

All.



Power S.p.A. (“Enel Green Power” or “EGP”), in which company it

holds, as of the date of this demerger plan (the “Demerger Plan”),

a shareholding totaling approximately 68.29% of its share capital,

and exercises over EGP guidance and coordination activities within

the meaning set forth in arts. 2497 et seq. of the Italian Civil

Code;

- EGP is a company organized and existing under Italian law

with shares listed in Italy on the MTA, and admitted to listing

in Spain through the Spanish electronic trading system called

Sistema de Interconexidén Bursdatil “SIBE” (on the stock markets of

Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia), and operates in the

renewable energies sector;

- in order to achieve the industrial objectives illustrated

in the directors’ reports prepared by Enel and by EGP pursuant to

art. 2501-quinquies of the Italian Civil Code, as cited in art.

2506-ter, paragraph 1, of the Italian Civil Code - to which reference

is made with regard to the reasons underlying the demerger, an

illustration and justification of the Demerger Plan from a legal

and economic standpoint, with particular regard to the exchange

ratio and criteria for its determination - the above-mentioned

boards of directors propose the partial, non-proportional demerger

of EGP in favor of Enel, in accordance with art. 2506-bis, paragraph



4, of the Italian Civil Code (the "Demerger"), as described below

in this Demerger Plan;

- as a result of the Demerger and as of the Date of Effect of

the Demerger (as defined below), inter alia, EGP will be delisted

from both the Italian market and the Spanish markets;

- Enel and Enel Green Power, as of the date of this Demerger

Plan, are allowed to take part in the Demerger since they are not

subject to liquidation or insolvency proceedings;

- the Demerger Plan will be filed, for both of the participating

companies, for registration in the companies register of Rome

pursuant to article 2501-ter, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil

Code, cited in article 2506-bis, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil

Code, and registered in the same;

- the Demerger Plan, the financial statements drafted pursuant

to art. 2501-quater of the Italian Civil Code, the reports by the

boards of directors drafted pursuant to art. 2501-quinquies of the

Italian Civil Code, the expert’s report drafted pursuant to article

2501-sexies of the Italian Civil Code, as well as the financial

statements for the three years 2014, 2013 and 2012 of both companies

taking part in the Demerger will be filed with their respective

registered offices and published on the websites

www.enelgreenpower.com and www.enel.com, in accordance with



article 2501-septies of the Italian Civil Code cited in article

2506-ter, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code, as well as on

the authorized storage mechanism called “"NIS-Storage”

(www.emarketstorage.com) ;

- in addition, in accordance with the provisions of art.

2506-ter, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code, an

appraisal/estimate report on the Set of Assets Demerged (as defined

below) will be drafted by an independent expert, and will be filed

with the companies register of Rome and/or published through filing

at the registered offices of the companies taking part in the

Demerger, as well as on the websites www.enelgreenpower.com and

www.enel.com during the 30 days preceding the shareholders’

meetings called to approve this Demerger Plan and, lastly, filed

with the authorized storage mechanism called W“NIS-Storage”

(www.emarketstorage.com) ;

- the two companies taking part in the Demerger have not issued

convertible debt instruments or other equity instruments, or other

financial instruments convertible into shares.

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING

The Boards of Directors of Enel and Enel Green Power, both of which

met on 17 November 2015, have prepared, in accordance with art.

2506-bis and art. 2501-ter of the Italian Civil Code, the Demerger



Plan, which envisages the partial Demerger of EGP in favor of its

controlling shareholder/parent company Enel, with the issuance in

exchange and non-proportional allotment to the shareholders of the

Demerged Company of newly issued shares in the beneficiary Enel.

(1)

TYPE, COMPANY NAME, REGISTERED OFFICE AND OTHER INFORMATION ON THE

DEMERGED COMPANY AND THE BENEFICIARY COMPANY

A. Demerged Company: "Enel Green Power S.p.A.", a company

subject to guidance and coordination activities on the part of Enel

S.p.A., with registered office at viale Regina Margherita, 125,

Rome, share capital of Euro 1,000,000,000.00 (one billion /00)

entirely paid in, comprised of 5,000,000,000 (five billion/00)

ordinary shares having a nominal value of 0.20 (zero/20) Euro each,

registered with the Companies Register of Rome, Tax Code and VAT

Code no. 10236451000, Chamber of Commerce (R.E.A.) no. RM-1219253.

b. Beneficiary Company: "ENEL S.p.A.", with registered office at

viale Regina Margherita, 137, Rome, share capital of Euro

9,403,357,795.00 (nine billion four hundred three million three

hundred fifty seven thousand seven hundred ninety five /00),

entirely paid in, comprised of 9,403,357,795 (nine billion four

hundred three million three hundred fifty seven thousand seven

hundred ninety five) ordinary shares having a nominal value of 1.00



(one/00) Euro each, registered with the Companies Register of Rome,

Tax Code 00811720580, VAT Code 00934061003, Chamber of Commerce

(R.E.A.) no. RM - 756032;

(2)

BY-LAWS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY AND THE BENEFICIARY COMPANY

A. Demerged company:

Attached to this Demerger Plan as schedule A are the by-laws of

the Demereged Company in force as of the date of the Demerger Plan,

and the By-laws of the same Demerged Company in the wversion

reflecting the amendments deriving from the Demerger — related to,

among other things, the share capital and number of shares, and

the amendment of clauses no longer applicable following the

delisting (in particular those related to the delisting set forth

in new art. 8 related to the shareholders’ domicile, as well as

those set forth in the following articles renumbered 9, 10, 11,

12 and 13 related to the Shareholders’ Meeting, 14, 15, 16, 20 and

23 related to the Board of Directors, 25 related to the Board of

Statutory Auditors, 26 related to the dividend advances and 30

related to general provisions) - and that will enter into force

as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger (as defined below), attached

as schedule B, which schedules constitute an integral and

substantive part hereof.



B. Beneficiary Company:

Attached to this Demerger Plan are the by-laws of the Beneficiary

Company in force as of the date of this Demerger Plan as schedule

C and the By-laws of the same Beneficiary Company which reflects

the amendments deriving from the Demerger - related to the capital

and the number of shares referred to in art. 5.1 - and that will

enter into force on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, attached

as schedule D, which schedules constitute an integral and

substantive part hereof.

It should be noted that numerical expressions certifying the

changes in capital and in the number of shares comprising the same

deriving from the Demerger, as set forth in the Beneficiary

Company’s by-laws that will enter into force on the Date of Effect

of the Demerger, attached hereto as schedule D, will be specified

in their final amount in the deed of Demerger, in accordance with

the principles and criteria described in point 4 below of this

Demerger Plan; to this end, the Shareholders’ Meetings of the

Beneficiary Company will grant a specific mandate to its board of

directors to define, on the occasion of the deed of Demerger, the

amounts of capital and number of shares comprising the same.

(3)

BALANCE SHEET ELEMENTS TO BE ASSIGNED TO THE BENEFICIARY COMPANY



The Demerger will be approved on the basis of the financial

statements of EGP and Enel as of 30 September 2015, approved -

pursuant to and for purposes of art. 250l-quater of the Italian

Civil Code cited in art. 2506-ter, paragraph 1, of the Italian Civil

Code - by the meetings of the Boards of Directors of the Demerged

Company and the Beneficiary Company held on 17 November 2015 and

attached hereto, respectively, as schedules E and F.

The Demerger will give rise to the assignment of almost all of EGP’s

foreign shareholdings/subsidiaries and financial assets (the “Set

of Assets Demerged”) in favor of Enel, while EGP will keep its

Italian assets and the remaining foreign shareholdings.

In particular, the Dbalance sheet elements and related legal

relationships which, as a result of the Demerger, will be assigned

to the Beneficiary are the following:

1) totalitarian shareholding in the company organized and

existing under Dutch law, Enel Green Power International BV;

2) short-term financial receivable owed by the company Enel

Green Power North America Ltd. in connection with a financial

restructuring transaction concluded in 2014; the exchange

rate risk related to such financial receivable is hedged

through a currency forward contract;

3) legal relationships related to the long-termcredit line with



Enel Green Power International BV;

4) legal relationships with the 6 employees pertaining to the

business unit comprising the Set of Assets Demerged and the

consequent asset-side and liability-side balance sheet items

referring to the same;

5) guarantees granted by Enel Green Power in the interest of

Enel Green Power International BV and its subsidiaries

related to the hedging of a number of commitments undertaken.

The detailed description of the asset-side and liability-side

balance sheet elements and related legal relationships comprising

the Set of Assets Demerged which will remain assigned to the

Beneficiary Company as a result of the Demerger is set forth in

schedule G and in its sub-schedules and in the respective notes

setting forth details and comments, which constitute an integral

and substantive part of this Demerger Plan.

In any case, where the assignment of assets, liabilities, rights

or obligations is not discernible from the Demerger Plan, such

elements shall be deemed assigned to the Beneficiary Company where

the same pertain to the Set of Assets Demerged.

It should be further noted that any windfall assets or contingent

liabilities that may arise after the Date of Effect of the Demerger

shall remain, respectively, for the benefit of or borne by the



Beneficiary Company provided that they pertain to the Set of Assets

Demerged.

The composition of Enel Green Power’s net shareholders’ equity for

accounting purposes existing following the Demerger will be that

set forth in the Table (called the “Composition of the Demerged

Company’s net shareholders’ equity, ante and post Demerger”)

attached as schedule H to this Demerger Plan, which schedule

constitutes an integral and substantive part hereof.

The composition of Enel’s net shareholders’ equity for accounting

purposes existing following the Demerger will be that set forth

in the Table (called the “Composition of the Beneficiary Company’s

net shareholders’ equity ante and post Demerger”) attached as

schedule I to this Demerger Plan, which schedule constitutes an

integral and substantive part hereof.

It should be noted, in conclusion, that:

- the Set of Assets Demerged includes the contractual relationships

pertaining thereto, including the employment relationships with

the 6 human resources, as better described in the above-mentioned

document attached as schedule G hereto and in the related notes

setting forth details and comments;

- the asset-side and liability-side balance sheet elements and the

legal relationships comprising the Set of Assets Demerged will be



those actually existing on the Date of Effect of the Demerger,

therefore also taking into account the changes that will take place

between the date of reference of the financial statements as of

30 September 2015 of the Demerged Company and the Date of Effect

of the Demerger, as a result of the trends in day-to-day business

operations. Therefore, any differences in the value/existence of

such elements and relationships comprising the Set of Assets

Demerged, between 30 September 2015 and the Date of Effect of the

Demerger, shall give rise to the registration of a credit/debit

item between the Demerged Company and the Beneficiary Company.

The formal registration of the shareholding transferred as a result

of the Demerger from EGP to Enel will be carried out in accordance

with applicable laws and regulations.

Prior to the execution of the deed of Demerger, Enel and Enel Green

Power will complete all actions that may be necessary and/or

advisable for purposes of allowing for Enel’s takeover of

guarantees/security interests falling within the Set of Assets

Demerged set forth in schedule G and sub-schedule 2, with the

consequent release of Enel Green Power from the obligations

provided thereunder, negotiating with the counterparties all

appropriate agreements and/or legal deeds.

For those guarantees with respect to which it is not possible to



perfect the foregoing by the Date of Effect of the Demerger, Enel

and Enel Green Power will take all actions necessary or useful to

ensure that Enel replaces Enel Green Power in the obligations

deriving from such guarantees/security interests. It 1is

nonetheless agreed that if Enel Green Power cannot be released from

the obligations deriving from the above-mentioned

guarantees/security interests, all related costs, charges,

liabilities and responsibilities will be taken over in full by the

Beneficiary Company.

(4)

EXCHANGE RATIO FOR THE SHARES AND

CRITERION FOR THE NON-PROPORTIONAL ASSIGNMENT OF THE SHARES OF THE

BENEFICIARY COMPANY

As of the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the quota of EGP’s share

capital corresponding to the Set of Assets Demerged, comprised of

no. 3,640,000,000 (three billion six hundred forty million) shares

in EGP (“Total shares in EGP exchanged”), will be exchanged using

the Exchange Ratio indicated below, as follows: (1) EGP’s

shareholders other than Enel will exchange all of the shares held

in EGP; (ii) Enel, on the other hand, will exchange only a portion

of its shares held in EGP, corresponding to the above-mentioned

total number of Shares in EGP exchanged, after deducting the EGP



shares exchanged by shareholders of EGP other than Enel.

It is acknowledged that for purposes of the determination of the

above-mentioned number of shares in EGP referring to the Set of

Assets Demerged pertaining, respectively, to Enel and to the

shareholders of EGP other than Enel and, therefore, the criterion

for the non-proportional assignment of the newly issued shares in

the Beneficiary Company to the shareholders of the Demerged Company,

the Boards of Directors of the companies taking part in the Demerger

have attributed to such Set of Assets Demerged a value corresponding

to 72.8 percent of the entire value of EGP as a whole prior to the

Demerger.

The Boards of Directors of Enel and EGP which have drafted this

Demerger Plan have approved the following exchange ratio: no. 0.486

newly issued Enel shares for each EGP share exchanged (the “Exchange

Ratio”) .

The Exchange Ratio will Dbe subject to a congruousness

assessment/opinion by one or more independent experts pursuant to

art. 2501l-sexies of the Italian Civil Code.

No cash adjustments are envisaged.

As a result on the Date of Effect of the Demerger, the Beneficiary

Company will increase its share capital through the issuance of

up to 1,769,040,000 (one billion seven hundred sixty nine million



forty thousand) shares - with regular entitlement and a nominal

value of Euro 1.00 each - in favor of the shareholders of the Demerged

Company on the basis of the Exchange Ratio. The amount of Enel’s

capital increase to service the Exchange Ratio may not exceed the

value attributed to the Set of Assets Demerged under the appraisal

report by the independent expert referred to in the recitals above.

In particular:

a) the shareholders of EGP other than Enel will be assigned — through

application of the Exchange Ratio - a total of up to a maximum of

770,588,712 (seven hundred seventy million five hundred eighty

eight thousand seven hundred twelve) newly issued Enel shares, in

exchange for the cancellation, at the time of exchange, of a total

of 1,585,573,483 (one billion five hundred eighty fivemillion five

hundred seventy three thousand four hundred eighty three) EGP

shares held by such shareholders, while

b) Enel will be assigned a total of 998,451,288 (nine hundred ninety

eight million four hundred fifty one thousand two hundred eighty

eight) Enel shares - with simultaneous cancellation of the same

pursuant to the prohibition provided under art. 2504-ter, paragraph

2, of the Italian Civil Code, as cited in art. 2506-ter, paragraph

5, of the Italian Civil Code —, in exchange for the cancellation,

at the time of exchange, of 2,054,426,517 (two billion fifty four



million four hundred twenty six thousand five hundred seventeen)
EGP shares held by it.

In light of the above, as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger,
the share capital of the Beneficiary Company will be increased of
up to maximum 770,588,712 (seven hundred seventy million five
hundred eighty eight thousand seven hundred twelve) newly issued
Enel shares, entirely assigned to the Shareholders of the Demerged
Company other than Enel.

The number of newly assigned Enel shares may change depending upon
the number of EGP shares acquired by Enel upon the conclusion of
the pre-emption offer of the EGP shares that may be subject to the
sale and withdrawal rights (hereinafter indicated in paragraph 10) .
Since, as of the Date of Effect of the Demerger, all of the
above-mentioned 3,640,000,000 (three billion six hundred forty
million) shares in EGP representing the portion of EGP’s share
capital corresponding to the Set of Assets Demerged forming the
subject matter of the exchange will be cancelled in their entirety,
on such date, the Demerged Company’s share capital will be reduced
from its current total amount of Euro 1,000,000,000.00 (one
billion/00) to a total of Euro 272,000,000 (two hundred seventy
two million/00), comprised of 1,360,000,000 (one billion three

hundred sixty million) ordinary shares having a price per share



of Euro 0.20 (zero/20) each.

As a result of the exchange by EGP shareholders other than Enel

of all shares held by them in EGP, and the consequent cancellation

of the same, Enel - as a result of the Demerger — will be the sole

shareholder of the Demerged Company.

(3)

PROCEDURE FOR THE ASSIGNMENT OF THE SHARES OF THE

BENEFICIARY COMPANY

The assignment to EGP’s shareholders other than Enel of the newly

issued shares of the Beneficiary Company will take place, under

a regime of dematerialization and through authorized

intermediaries, starting from the Date of Effect of the Demerger,

in accordance with the timetable and the procedures to be announced

to the market through the publication of a specific notice on the

Demerged Company’s website (www.enelgreenpower.com), in at least

one national daily newspaper, and on the authorized storage

mechanism called “NIS-Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com).

The newly issued Enel shares will be listed on the MTA like the

shares of the Beneficiary Company already outstanding.

No costs will be imposed upon EGP’s shareholders in connection with

the exchange transactions.

A service will be made available to EGP’s shareholders in order



to allow for rounding to the immediately lower or higher number

of Enel shares due upon the application of the Exchange Ratio,

without any additional expenses, stamp duties or fees being charged.

Alternatively, different procedures may be activated in order to

ensure the overall successful outcome of the transaction.

Considering that, as already mentioned, the EGP shares are

currently admitted to trading on the Spanish regulated markets and

that the Enel shares assigned at the time of the exchange will not

be admitted to trading on such markets, the Spanish Regulatory

Authority (Comisidn Nacional del Mercado de Valores) has notified

that, in line with the previous similar cases that have occurred

on the Spanish markets, it is necessary to appoint a dedicated

“connection/reference” intermediary (referred to as the “entidad

de enlace”), in order to enable the shareholders who, as of the

Date of Effect of the Demerger, will hold EGP shares admitted to

trading on the above-mentioned Spanish markets (through the Spanish

centralized management/administration system, Iberclear) to sell

on the MTA, during the month following the Date of Effect of the

Demerger, the Enel shares received 1in exchange, without any

additional costs related to the sale on a foreign market. After

the above-mentioned one-month period, the above-mentioned

shareholders may purchase or sell the Enel shares in Italy on the



MTA through authorized intermediaries, incurring the costs of the

transaction.

(6)

DATE STARTING ON WHICH THE SHARES ASSIGNED BY THE BENEFICIARY

COMPANY WILL SHARE IN EARNINGS

The shares issued by Enel to service the Exchange Ratio will have

regular entitlement and, therefore, the same rights to share in

earnings of the Beneficiary Company resting with the other shares

of the same Beneficiary Company already outstanding as of the Date

of Effect of the Demerger.

(7)

STARTING DATE OF THE EFFECTS OF THE DEMERGER AND OF THE ENTRY OF

THE TRANSACTIONS PERTAINING TO THE BALANCE SHEET ELEMENTS FORMING

THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THE DEMERGER IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF

THE BENEFICARY COMPANY

The start date of civil law effects of the Demerger will correspond

with the last of the registrations provided under art. 2506-quater

of the Italian Civil Code, or such other later date that may be

indicated in the deed of Demerger (“Date of Effect of the Demerger”) .

To such end, the Shareholders’ Meetings of the companies taking

part in the Demerger will grant a specific mandate to their boards



of directors in order to set the Date of Effect of the Demerger,

if later than the last of the registrations provided under art.

2506-quater of the Italian Civil Code.

Starting on the same date, the transactions pertaining to the

balance sheet elements assigned to the Beneficiary Company will

be entered in the financial statement of the Beneficiary Company,

with all related accounting and tax effects also starting on the

same date.

(8)

TREATMENT (IF ANY) RESERVED TO SPECIAL CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

AND HOLDERS OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN SHARES

The companies taking part in the Demerger have not issued any

particular categories of shares or convertible debt securities or

other equity instruments or financial instruments convertible into

shares.

(9)

PARTICULAR ADVANTAGES IN FAVOR OF THE DIRECTORS

No particular advantages are envisaged in favor of the Directors

of the companies taking part in the Demerger.

(10)

RIGHT OF SALE AND RIGHT OF WITHDRAWAL

EGP’s shareholders who do not take part in the approval of the



Demerger will be entitled to have their own EGP shares purchased

by Enel pursuant to and for purposes of art. 2506-bis, paragraph

4, of the Italian Civil Code (the “Right of Sale”). In such regard,

Enel has declared its intention to purchase all shares subject to

the Right of Sale and the Right of Withdrawal (as defined below)

that have not been sold following the pre-emption offer referred

to below.

The Right of Sale may concern all or even only a portion of the

EGP shares held by the shareholders of the Demerged Company who

exercise the Right of Sale. The price per share of the EGP share

is determined by applying the criterion provided under art.

2437-ter, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, represented by

the arithmetic average of the closing price of the EGP share over

the six months preceding the publication of the notice of call of

EGP’'s extraordinary shareholders’ meeting called to approve the

Demerger (the “Liquidation Value”).

The Liquidation Value will be announced to the shareholders and

the market through a specific press release viewable on EGP’s

website and through the publication of a notice on at least one

national daily newspaper. The procedure for the exercise of the

Right of Sale is the same as that provided under art. 2437-bis of

the Italian Civil Code for the exercise of the Right of Withdrawal



(as defined below) .

In addition, the shareholders entitled to exercise the Right of

Sale may exercise the right of withdrawal, pursuant to art. 2437,

paragraph 1, letter a), of the Italian Civil Code (the “Right of

Withdrawal”), at the same price provided for the Right of Sale

indicated above, since Enel, the Beneficiary Company of the

Demerger, has a clause of its corporate purpose that allows for

the conduct of business that differs significantly from that

described in EGP’s corporate purpose clause. The methods for

exercising the Right of Withdrawal are those provided under

applicable law. In any case, the Right of Sale and the Right of

Withdrawal may not be exercised for the same share.

The process of liquidation of the shares for which the Right of

Sale and/or the Right of Withdrawal are exercised will take place,

in a single context, in accordance with art. 2437-quater of the

Italian Civil Code. In particular, the terms of the pre-emption

offer that will be addressed to all of EGP’s shareholders pursuant

to the above-mentioned provision of law, will be announced in

accordance with the procedures provided under the applicable legal

framework, specifying in such regard that the related notices will

be published a reasonable time in advance on the Demerged Company’s

website (www.enelgreenpower.com), in at least one national daily




newspaper, and on the authorized storage mechanism called

“NIS-Storage” (www.emarketstorage.com). The effect of the Right

of Sale and the Right of Withdrawal is conditioned upon the

perfection of the Demerger.

* kX x kx %

The effect of the Demerger is conditioned upon the circumstance

that the total liquidation value of the EGP shares in connection

with which the Right of Withdrawal and the Right of Sale is validly

exercised does not exceed Euro 300,000,000 (three hundred

million/00) (the “Condition Precedent”).

The Condition Precedent shall be deemed likewise satisfied - even

in the event that the limit indicated above is exceeded - if Enel,

within 60 calendar days from the last registration with the

Companies Register of Rome of the shareholders’ meeting resolutions

approving the Demerger pursuant to art. 2502 of the Italian Civil

Code, declares its intention to purchase all of the shares for which

the above-mentioned rights have been exercised.

The foregoing is subject to possible supplements and/or updates

(including numerical ones) to the Demerger Plan, and to the By-laws

of the Beneficiary Company (post-Demerger) and to the By-laws of

the Demerged Company (post-Demerger) attached hereto, as may be

required or permitted under the legal framework, and/or by the



competent regulatory authorities or public authorities or

companies that manage the regulated markets involved, or at the

time of registration in the companies register of Rome or, lastly,

depending upon the performance/perfection of the Demerger

transaction as structured under this Demerger Plan.

Rome,

On behalf of the Board of Directors

of Enel S.p.A.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

of Enel Green Power S.p.A.

SCHEDULES

A. Enel Green Power S.p.A.’s by-laws as currently in force;

B. Enel Green Power S.p.A.’s by-laws with the amendments deriving

from the demerger;

C. Enel S.p.A.’s by-laws as currently in force;

D. Enel S.p.A.’s by-laws with the amendments deriving from the



demerger;

E. Enel Green Power S.p.A.’s financial statements as of 30 September

2015;

F. Enel S.p.A.’s financial statements as of 30 September 2015;

G. Exact description of the balance sheet elements to be assigned

to the Beneficiary Company;

H. Table setting forth the composition of the Demerged Company’s

net shareholders’ equity ante and post demerger;

I. Table setting forth the composition of the Beneficiary Company’s

net shareholders’ equity ante and post demerger.



Schedule A

ENEL GREEN POWER S.p.A.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
as currently in force



Introduction

Text approved by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on June 10, 2010, as amended:

by the Board of Directors held on November 8, 2010 (through the amendment of articles 10.1, 13.3,
24.2 and the deletion of article 29);

by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 27, 2011 (through the introduction of articles
10.3 and 19.3 and the amendment of articles 12.1 and 12.2);

by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 27, 2012 (through the amendments of articles
of articles 13.3, 13.5, 24.1 and 24.2 and the introduction of article 29);

by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 24, 2013 (through the amendment of article
12.2).



1.1

21

3.1

4.1

SECTION |
INCORPORATION — DENOMINATION — REGISTERED OFFICE AND DURATION OF THE COMPANY

Article 1
A Company denominated “Enel Green Power S.p.A.” (in abbreviated form “EGP S.p.A.”) and governed by

the regulations in these Articles of Association is incorporated.

Article 2

The registered office of the Company is located in Rome.

Article 3
The duration of the Company is established to 31 December 2100 and may be extended, once or more, by

the deliberation of the shareholders’ general meeting.

SECTION Il
COMPANY’S OBJECT

Article 4

The object of the Company is the performance and development of activities of production and sale of

electric power generated from renewable sources. To this end, the Company, directly or indirectly through

subsidiaries or affiliates, may operate both in Italy and abroad and carry out any other connected,
instrumental, similar, complementary or however useful activity to the pursuit of the company’s object,
including, by way of a mere and non exhaustive example:

a) the design, realisation, operation, development and maintenance of electric power plants;

b) the exploration and exploitation of geothermal resources, including valorisation of the derived
products;

c) research and development in the field of exploitation of renewable energies, of rational use of energy
and of energy services;

d) realisation of plants and provision of services connected with the distribution and use of electric power,
including the realisation and management of requalification operations for energy savings by the
clients;

e) the trade of products and services connected with the sale of electric power and gas, directly through
directly owned points of sales and/or through third parties with a franchising network and/or
partnerships.

The Company may further carry out research, consultancy and assistance activities in all sectors pertaining

to the company’s object, and any other activity that allows a better utilisation and valorisation of the assets,

resources and competencies employed.



4.2 The Company may furthermore directly carry out, in the interest of the subsidiaries or affiliates, any activity

4.3

5.1

5.2
5.3

6.1

6.2

7.1

connected with or instrumental to its activities or those of the subsidiaries or affiliates.

To this end the Company will in particular deal with:

» the coordination of the managerial resources of the subsidiaries or affiliates, to be effected also through
suitable training initiatives;

+ the administrative and financial coordination of the subsidiaries or affiliates, performing all appropriate
operations in their favour, including the concession of financing as well as, more in general, the setting
up and management of the financial activities thereof;

» the provision of other services in favour of the subsidiaries or affiliates in areas of specific business
interest.

In pursuit of its object the Company may, ultimately, carry out all those operations which are necessary or

useful in an instrumental function or in any way connected, for example: the provision of collateral and/or

personal guarantees for its own obligations and those of third parties, the completion of movable, real
estate and commercial transactions and whatever may be connected with the company’s object or which
allows a better use of the assets and/or resources thereof and of the subsidiaries or affiliates, with the

exception of collection of public savings and investment services as defined by Legislative Decree No. 58

of 24 February 1998, and of the activities referred to in Article 106 Legislative Decree No. 385 of 1

September 1993, insofar as they are also exercised vis-a-vis the public as well as the activities in general

reserved by the law to professional members enrolled in specific registers.

SECTION Il
CAPITAL - SHARES — WITHDRAWAL - OBLIGATIONS

Article 5
The company share capital is €1,000,000,000, represented by 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a par
value of €0.20 each.
The shares are registered and each share entitles to one voting right.

The quality of shareholder constitutes acceptance of these Articles of Association.

Article 6
Each shareholder has the right to withdraw from the Company in the cases provided for by the law, except
as provided for by Article 6.2.
The right to withdraw does not apply in cases of:
a) extension of the duration of the Company;

b) introduction, modification or removal of the limitations on circulation of share.

Article 7

The issue of bonds is resolved by the Directors in accordance to the law.



8.1

8.2

9.1

SECTION IV
SHAREHOLDERS’ GENERAL MEETINGS

Article 8

The ordinary and extraordinary shareholders’ general meetings are normally held in the municipality where
the registered office of the Company is located, except as otherwise resolved by the Board of Directors and
as long as this is in Italy or in a country where the Company, directly or through its subsidiaries or affiliates,
carries on its business activities.

The ordinary shareholders’ general meetings must be convened a least once a year, to approve the
financial statements, within one hundred and twenty days after the end of the financial year or within one
hundred and eighty days as the Company is required to draw up consolidated financial statements or,

otherwise, as required by particular exigencies relative to the structure and object of the Company.

Article 9
The right to participate and vote in the shareholders’ general meetings are governed by the regulations in

force.

Article 10

10.1 Those who have voting rights may be represented at the shareholders’ general meetings as provided for by

the law, via proxy issued in accordance with the modalities provided for by the regulations in force. The
proxy may be notified to the Company even electronically by sending it to the appropriate section of the
Company’s website specified in the notice of call. The notice of call may also specify in accordance with the
regulations in force further ways of electronic notification of the proxy that may be used for the
shareholders’ general meeting referred to in the aforesaid notice. In order to facilitate the collection of
proxies from shareholders who are employed by the Company and its subsidiaries and participate in
associations of shareholders satisfying the requirements set by the regulations in force, suitable facilities
are made available to the said associations according to the terms and procedures agreed upon from time

to time with their legal representative, for communications and for the completion of collection of proxies.

10.2 The shareholders’ general meeting proceedings are ruled by a specific written regulation approved by a

resolution of the ordinary shareholders’ general meeting of the Company.

10.3 The Board of Directors may provide that, with respect to single Shareholders’ Meetings, those entitled to

attend and to vote in the Shareholders’ Meeting may participate in the Shareholders’ Meeting by electronic
means. In such case, the notice of the Meeting shall detail, also by reference to the Company’s website,

the above methods of participation.

Article 11

11.1 The shareholders’ general meeting is chaired by the chairman of the board of directors or, in the absence

or impediment thereof, by the chief executive officer or, if both are absent, by a person designated by the



board of directors, otherwise the shareholders’ general meeting elects its own chairman.
11.2The chairman of the shareholders’ general meeting is assisted by a secretary, not necessarily a

shareholder, designated by those in attendance and may appoint one or more scrutineers.

Article 12

12.1 Without prejudice to the provisions of Article 19.2, the shareholders’ general meeting resolves on all
matters for which it is competent according to the law, as well as on those provided for by Article 19.3.

12.2 The Shareholders’ Meeting, both in extraordinary and ordinary session, takes place, as a rule, in a single
meeting. The Board of Directors, if it deems it appropriate and by expressly mentioning the relevant
reasons in the notice of meeting, may establish that both ordinary and extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
shall be held on several calls of the Meeting. The resolutions of both ordinary and extraordinary
shareholders’ general meetings are adopted with the majorities required by the law for each case, without
prejudice to the majorities specifically provided for by Article 19.3.

12.3 The resolutions of the shareholders’ general meetings, adopted in compliance with the law and with these

Articles of Association, bind the shareholders whether or not they attend or vote against them.

SECTION V
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Article 13

13.1 The Company is managed by a Board of Directors by a number of members not lower than seven and not
higher than thirteen. The shareholders’ general meeting determines such number within the said limits.

13.2 The Board of Directors is appointed for a period of up to three financial years and may be re-elected.

13.3 The Directors are appointed by the shareholders’ general meeting on the basis of lists presented by the
shareholders and by the outgoing Board of Directors, in which the candidates must be listed with a
progressive number. Each list must include at least two candidates satisfying the requirements of
independence provided for by the law, distinctly mentioning such candidates and listing one of them as first
in the list.

Slates which contain a number of candidates equal to or above three shall include candidates belonging to
different genders, as indicated in the notice of meeting, in order to ensure that the composition of the Board
of Directors is compliant with the applicable laws on balance between genders.

The lists must be lodged at the registered office and published in compliance with the regulations in force.
Each shareholder may present or cooperate in presenting only one list and each candidate may stand in
only one list on pain of non eligibility. Only those shareholders who, alone or together with other
shareholders, own the minimum percentage of the share capital provided for by regulation of the Consob
are entitled to present lists. The declaration of individual candidates in which they accept their candidacies
and certify under their own responsibility the inexistence of any cause of ineligibility or incompatibility, as

well as the satisfaction of the requirements prescribed by applicable law for the respective offices, are to be



lodged together with each list. The appointed Directors must inform the Board of Directors without delay of

the loss of the above mentioned requirements, or of the occurrence of any cause of ineligibility or

incompatibility.

All those entitled to vote may vote for one single list.

The appointment of the Directors is conducted as follows:

a)

seven tenths of the Directors to be elected rounding down, in the case of a fraction inferior to a single
unit, to the inferior unit, shall be drawn from the list that obtained the higher number of votes cast in the
progressive order in which they are listed;

the remaining Directors are taken from the other lists; to this end, the votes obtained by those lists are
divided successively by one, two, three and so on, depending on the number of Directors to be elected.
The quotients obtained are attributed progressively to the candidates on each of these lists, in the order
foreseen thereby. The quotients thus attributed to the candidates of the different lists are arranged in
decreasing order in a single ranking. Those with the highest quotients are those elected. Should more
than one candidate obtain the the same quotient, the candidate from the list with no elected Directors or
with the fewest elected Directors shall be appointed Director. If none of these lists has a Director elected
or they all have the same number of Directors elected, the candidate who obtained the higher number of
votes within such lists is elected. If there is tie in terms of both quotients assigned and votes obtained by
each list, the entire shareholders’ general meeting shall vote again and the candidate obtaining a
simple majority of votes will be elected;

for the purposes of identifying the Directors to be elected, the candidates designated on the lists that
obtain a number votes lower than the half of the percentage required for the presentation of the same

lists shall not be taken into account;

c-bis) if, following the vote and the above procedure, the applicable laws on balance between genders are

not complied with, candidates which would result to be elected in the various slates are disposed in one
single decreasing ranking list, to be formed in compliance with the quotient system indicated under letter
b). The candidate in such ranking list belonging to the most represented gender having the lowest
quotient is therefore replaced with the first candidate of the less represented gender belonging to the
same slate which would result not to be elected. In the event that in such slate there are no other
candidates, the replacement here above is carried out by the Shareholders’ meeting with the majorities
provided for under the law, as provided for under the following point d) and in compliance with the
principle of a proportional representation of minority shareholders in the Board of Directors.

In case of a tie between quotients, the replacement is made in favour of the candidate drawn from the
slate which has obtained the highest number of votes.

If the replacement of the candidate of the most represented gender having the lowest quotient in the
ranking list does not allow, in any case, to reach the minimum threshold provided for under the
applicable laws on balance between genders, the above said replacement procedure is carried out also
with reference to the candidate belonging to the most represented gender having the second last

quotient, and so forth, starting from the end of the ranking list.



c-ter) the president of the meeting, at the end of the above procedures, declares the elected members;

d) for the appointment of Directors who, for any reason, are not elected according to the procedure above,
the shareholders’ general meeting resolves according to the majorities provided for by the law ensuring
in any case, the presence of the necessary number of Directors satisfying the requirements of
independence provided for by the law, and the compliance with the applicable laws on balance between
genders.

The list voting procedure applies only in the case of renewal of the entire Board of Directors.

13.4 The shareholders’ general meeting, even during the term of the Board of Directors, may vary the number of
members of the Board of Directors, always within the limits referred to in Article 13.1 above, and elect
them. The Directors thus elected terminate their mandate with those already appointed.

13.5 Should one or more vacancies occur on the Board during the financial year Article 2386 of the Italian Civil
Code shall apply. If one or more of the Directors no longer available was from a list containing unelected
candidates, the replacement shall be effected appointing, according to the progressive order, persons
drawn from the list whence the Director no longer available was elected provided that they are still eligible
and willing to accept the appointment. In any case, the replacement of ceased Directors is effected by the
Board of Directors assuring the presence of the necessary number of Directors satisfying the requirements
of independence required by the law, and the compliance with the applicable laws on balance between
genders. If the majority of Directors appointed by the shareholders’ general meeting ceases from the office,
the entire Board of Directors is to be deemed to have resigned and the Directors still in office must promptly

call a meeting of the shareholders to elect a new Board.

Article 14
14.1 The Board, if not dealt with by the shareholders’ general meeting, elects one of its members as Chairman,;
it may elect a Deputy Chairman, who stands in for the Chairman in the case of absence or impediment.

14. The Board, upon proposal of the Chairman, appoints a secretary, also external to the Company.

Article 15

15.1 The Board meets at the venue indicated in the notice of call any time the Chairman, or in the case the latter
is absent or unavailable, the Deputy Chairman, deems it necessary. The Board may also be called
according to the modalities provided for by Article 24.5 of these Articles of Association. The Board of
Directors must likewise be called when there is a written request to that effect from at least three Directors
to resolve upon a specific matter considered of particular importance and pertaining to management, the
subject of which shall be specified in the said request.

15.2 Board meetings may also be held by telecommunications media, upon condition that all those attending
can be identified and that such identification is noted in the relevant minutes and they are enabled to follow
the discussion and intervene in real time on the matters debated, exchanging, if necessary, documentation;
in this case, the Board of Directors is considered to be held in the place where the person chairing the
meeting is located and where the secretary must be located as well, in order to permit the drafting and

signature of the relevant minutes.



15.3 Usually, the notice of call is sent at least five days before the date set for the meetings. In cases of
urgency, the term may be shorter. The Board of Directors resolves upon the way of convocation of its

meetings.

Article 16
16.1 The meetings of the Board are chaired by the Chairman or, in the absence or impediment thereof, by the
Deputy Chairman, if elected. In the absence of the latter too, the meetings are chaired by the oldest

Director.

Article 17
17.1 The quorum for meetings of the Board shall be a majority of the Directors in office.
17.2 Resolutions are adopted by an absolute majority of the votes of those present; in case of a tie the vote of

the person chairing the meeting shall prevail.

Article 18
18.1 The resolutions of the Board of Directors are recorded in minutes which, duly signed by the Chairman of
the meeting and the secretary, are transcribed in a book kept according to the law.
18.2 Copies of the minutes are true when signed by the Chairman or who acted on the behalf thereof and by the

secretary.

Article 19
19.1 Management of the company is the exclusive responsibility of the Directors, who shall carry out the actions
necessary to pursue the company’s object.
19.2 Further to exercising the powers assigned by the law, the Board of Directors is competent to resolve upon:

a) merger and demerger, in the cases provided for by the law;

b) the establishment or elimination of secondary offices;

c) which of the Directors is/are the Company representatives;

d) the reduction of company share capital in the case of withdrawal of one or more shareholders;

e) the harmonization of the Articles of Association to the provisions of the law;

f) the transfer of the registered office within Italy.

The attribution of these responsibilities to the Board of Directors does not exclude the concurrent

competency of the shareholders’ general meeting in these matters.

19.3 Pursuant to the procedure for transactions with related parties adopted by the Company:

a) the ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, pursuant to Article 2364, paragraph 1, subsection 5, of the Civil
Code, may authorize the Board of Directors to enter into related parties transactions of major
importance, which do not fall within the competence of the Shareholders’ Meeting, notwithstanding the
negative opinion of the related parties Committee, provided that, without prejudice to the majorities
required by law, bylaws and provisions applicable in cases of conflicts of interest, the Shareholders’

Meeting resolves upon also with the favourable vote of at least half of the voting unrelated shareholders.



In any case, the entering into of the foregoing transactions is prevented only if the unrelated
shareholders attending the Shareholders’ Meeting represent at least 10% of the share capital with
voting rights;

b) in case the Board of Directors intends to submit to the approval of the Shareholders’ Meeting a
transaction with related parties of major importance, which falls within the competence of the
Shareholders’ Meeting, notwithstanding the negative opinion of the related parties Committee, the
transaction may be entered into only if the Shareholder’s Meeting resolves upon with the majorities and
in compliance with the requirements set forth under the previous subsection a);

c) the Board of Directors or the delegated Bodies may resolve upon, applying the exemptions provided for
in the procedure and subject to the conditions indicated therein, the entering into by the Company,
directly or through its subsidiaries, of urgent transactions with related parties which do not fall within the
competence of the Shareholders’ Meeting and which are not subject to the authorization of the
Shareholders’ Meeting itself.

19.4 The delegated bodies shall promptly report to the Board of Directors and to the Board of Auditors — or, in
the absence of delegated bodies, the Directors shall promptly report to the Board of Auditors — at least
quarterly and, in any case, during Board meetings, on the activities carried out, on the general performance
of the period and on the foreseeable evolution as well as on the most significant transactions affecting the
income statement, cash flow and balance sheet or in any case of major importance due to their dimensions
or characteristics, carried out by the Company and by subsidiary companies; in particular, they report on
the transactions in which they have a personal or third party’s interest or that are influenced by the entity
that carries out the activity of management and coordination, if extant.

19.5 The Board of Directors appoints and revokes an executive in charge of preparing the corporate accounting
documents, after seeking the opinion of the Board of Auditors. The executive in charge of preparing the
corporate accounting documents must have acquired a significant experience of no less than two years in
the performance of:

a) executive duties regarding the preparation and/or analysis and/or evaluation and/or checking of
corporate documents that illustrate accounting issues of a complexity comparable to those connected
with the financial documentation of the Company; or

b) auditing of the accounts of companies with shares listed on regulated markets in Italy or in other
countries of the European Union; or

c) professional activities or university teaching as a tenured professor in the field of finance or accounting;
or

d) executive duties in public bodies or government offices involved in the financial or accounting field.

Article 20
20.1 The Board of Directors may delegate, within the limits of which at Article 2381 of the Italian Civil Code, its
attributions to an executive committee and/or to one or more of its members, determining the content, the
limits and the eventual manner of exercising these powers. The Board, upon proposal of the Chairman and

with the agreement of the delegated organs, may assign powers for single activities or categories of



documents to other members of the Board of Directors.
20.2 The powers of the delegated organs include the conferral, within the sphere of the attributions assigned, of
powers for single activities or categories of activities to Company employees and third parties, with the

faculty to sub-delegate.

Article 21
21.1 The legal representation of the Company and relevant signature are granted to the Chairman and to the
person appointed as Chief Executive Officer and, in case of the absence or impediment of the former, to
the Deputy Chairman, if nominated. The signature of the Deputy Chairman demonstrates to third parties in
the absence or impediment of the Chairman.
21.2 The legal representatives as above defined may grant legal representative powers of the Company, also at

trial, also with the faculty to sub-delegate.

Article 22
22.1 The members of the Board of Directors and of the Executive Committee are due an honorarium to be
determined by the shareholders’ general meeting. This deliberation, once made, shall also apply to
subsequent financial years, until determined otherwise by the shareholders’ general meeting.
22.2 The remuneration of Directors with particular duties in compliance with the Articles of Association is

established by the Board of Directors, having heard the opinion of the Board of Auditors.

Article 23
23.1 The Chairman:
a) has the powers to represent the Company as provided for by Article 21.1;
b) chairs the shareholders’ general meeting as provided for by Article 11.1;
c) convenes and chairs the Board of Directors as provided for by Articles 15, 16.1; establishes the
agenda, coordinates the works and ensures that adequate information is provided on the matters on
the agenda to all the Directors;

d) checks the implementation of the resolutions adopted by the Board.

SECTION VI
BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

Article 24
24 .1 The shareholders’ general meeting shall elect the Board of Statutory Auditors, consisting of three effective
auditors and determines the fees thereto. The shareholders’ general meeting shall also elect three
alternate auditors.
The components of the Board of Statutory Auditors are selected from those with the requisites of

professionalism and honour indicated in Ministry of Justice Decree No. 162 of 30 March 2000. For the



purposes of the disposition of which at Article 1, paragraph 2, letters b) and c) of the said Decree, matters
pertaining to commercial and tax law, company economy and finance are considered strictly pertinent
within the sphere of activities of the Company, as well as the matter and activity sectors pertaining to
energy in general, environmental law and environmental economics. As to questions on Board of Statutory
Auditors composition, non eligibility and the limits of the accumulation of administration and control
appointments which may be covered by the components of the Board of Statutory Auditors, the current
dispositions of law and regulation find full application.

24.2 The effective and substitute auditors are nominated by the shareholders’ general meeting on the basis of
lists presented by the shareholders, in which the candidates must be listed with a progressive number and
may not exceed the number of components of the organ to be elected. The right to present the lists is
assigned only to those shareholders who, alone or together other shareholders, are the owners of the
minimum quota for participation in the company share capital established by the National Commission for
Companies and the Stock Exchange (Consob) with the regulations for the presentation of the lists of
candidates for the Board of Directors. The current legislation applies to the presentation, deposit and
publication of the lists. The lists are articulated in two sections: one for the candidates for appointment as
effective auditors and another for candidates for appointment as substitute auditors. The first candidate on
each list must be a member of the rolls of legal auditors and have exercised the activity of legal control of
accounts of a period of no less than three years.

In compliance with the applicable laws on balance between genders, slates which, taking into account both
sections, contain a number of candidates equal or above of three, shall include, both in the first two places
in the section of the slate relating to the regular statutory auditors, and in the first two places in the section
of the slate relating to the substitute auditors, candidates belonging to different gender.

The list obtaining the most votes provides, in the progressive order in which they are listed, two effective
auditors and two substitute auditors. The remaining auditor and substitute auditor are nominated as per the
current regulations and with the manner indicated at Article 13.3, letter b), to be applied separately to each
of the sections in which the other lists are articulated.

For the nomination of auditors outside the hypotheses of renewal of the entire Board of Statutory Auditors,
the shareholders’ general meeting resolves with the majorities of which at the law and without applying
procedure of which here above, but so as to assure a composition of the Board of Statutory Auditors which
is compliant with the dispositions of which at Article 1, paragraph 1, of Ministry of Justice Decree No. 162 of
30 March 2000 and indeed respect for the principle of representation of the minorities, and the applicable
laws on balance between genders.

The chairmanship of the Board of Statutory Auditors is assigned to the auditor nominated with the
modalities established at Article 13.3, letter b); in the case of substitution of the president, the appointment
is taken by the substitute auditor also nominated with the modalities established at Article 13.3, letter b). In
the case of substitution of one of the auditors from the list which obtained the most votes, the replacement
is made in favour of the first of the substitute auditors drawn from that list. In the event that the

replacement, if carried out through the above modalities, does not allow to form a Board of Statutory



Auditors compliant with the applicable laws on balance between genders, the replacement shall be carried
out in favour of the second substitute auditor belonging to the same slate. If, thereafter, it is necessary to
replace the other effective auditor belonging to the slate which has obtained the majority of the votes, the
latter shall in any case be replaced by the substitute auditor belonging to the same slate.

24.3 Auditors whose term has expired shall be eligible for re-election.

24.4 The meetings of the Board of Statutory Auditors may also be held by means of telecommunications, upon
condition that all those attending can be identified and that the said identification is acknowledged in the
relative minutes and they are allowed to follow the discussion and intervene in real time in the discussion of
the matters debated, exchanging, if necessary, documents; in this case, the Board of Statutory Auditors is
considered to be held at the venue where whoever chairs the meeting is.

24.5The Board of Statutory Auditors may, after notifying the Chairman of the Board of Directors, convene the
shareholders’ general meeting, the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee. The powers concerned
may also be exercised by at least two members of the Board of Statutory Auditors in the case of
convocation of the shareholders’ general meeting, and by at least one member of the Committee in the

case of convocation of the Board of Directors or of the Executive Committee.

SECTION VI
FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND PROFITS

Article 25
25.1 The company financial year shall end on December 31 of every year.
25.2 At the end of each financial year, the Board of Directors shall draw up the Company’s financial statements
as required by law.
25.3 The Board of Directors is authorized to distribute interim dividends to shareholders during the course of the

year.

Article 26
26.1 Any dividends not claimed within five years from the day they became payable shall lapse in favour of the

Company and be posted directly to reserves.

SECTION Vil
WINDING UP & LIQUIDATION OF THE COMPANY

Article 27
27.1In the case of winding up of the Company, the shareholders’ general meeting determines the manner of

liquidation and appoints one or more liquidators, establishing their powers and remuneration.



SECTION IX
GENERAL AND TRANSITORY RULES

Article 28
28.1 Any matters not expressly provided for herein shall be governed by the provisions of the Civil Code and

applicable statutes.

Article 29

29.1 The provisions of Articles 13.3, 13.5 and 24.2 aimed at ensuring the fulfilment of the applicable laws on
balance between genders shall apply for the first three appointments, respectively, of the Board of
Directors and of the Board of Statutory Auditors, following the coming into force and the effectiveness of
the provisions of Article 1 of Law 12 July 2011, No. 120, published on the Official Gazette No. 174 of 28
July 2011.

29.2 The composition of the Board of Statutory Auditors indicated under Article 24.1, which is characterized by
the presence of three regular Statutory Auditors and three alternate Statutory Auditors, shall be applied
from the first appointment of the supervisory board following the coming into force and the effectiveness of
the provisions of Article 1 of Law 12 July 2011, No. 120, published on the Official Gazette No. 174 of 28
July 2011. Up to such moment, the Board of Statutory Auditors is composed by three regular Statutory

Auditors and two alternate Statutory Auditors.
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ENEL GREEN POWER S.p.A. Corporate Bylaws

SECTION |
INCORPORATION — DENOMINATION — REGISTERED OFFICE AND DURATION OF THE
COMPANY
Article 1
1.1 A Company denominated “Enel Green Power S.p.A.” (in abbreviated form “EGP S.p.A.”) and
governed by the regulations in these Articles of Association is incorporated.

Article 2
2.1 The registered office of the Company is located in Rome.

Article 3
3.1 The duration of the Company is established to 31 December 2100 and may be extended,
once or more, by a resolution of the shareholders’ general meeting.

SECTION I
COMPANY’S OBJECT

Article 4
4.1 The Company'’s purpose is the performance and development of activities of production and

sale of electric power generated from renewable sources. To this end, the Company, directly

or indirectly through subsidiaries or affiliates, may operate both in Italy and abroad and carry

out any other connected, instrumental, similar, complementary or however useful activity to
the pursuit of the Company’s purposes, including, by way of a mere and non-exhaustive
example:

a) the design, realisation, operation, development and maintenance of electric power
plants;

b) the exploration and exploitation of geothermal resources, including valorisation of the
derived products;

c) research and development in the field of exploitation of renewable energies, of rational
use of energy and of energy services;

d) realisation of plants and provision of services connected with the distribution and use of
electric power, including the realisation and management of requalification operations
for energy savings by the clients;

e) the trade of products and services connected with the sale of electric power and gas,
directly through its own points of sales and/or through third parties with a franchising
network and/or partnerships.

The Company may further carry out research, consultancy and assistance activities in all

sectors pertaining to the Company’s purposes, and any other activity that allows a better

utilisation and valorisation of the assets, resources and competencies employed.
4.2 The Company may furthermore directly carry out, in the interest of the subsidiaries or

affiliates, any activity connected with or instrumental to its activities or those of the




4.3

subsidiaries or affiliates.

To this end the Company may in particular provide:

» the coordination of the managerial resources of the subsidiaries or affiliates, to be
effected also through suitable training initiatives;

+ the administrative and financial coordination of the subsidiaries or affiliates, performing
all appropriate operations in their favour, including the concession of financing as well as,
more in general, the setting up and management of the financial activities thereof;

» the provision of other services in favour of the subsidiaries or affiliates in areas of specific
business interest.

In pursuit of its purposes the Company may, ultimately, carry out all those operations which

are necessary or useful in an instrumental way or in any event connected, such as, for

example: the provision of collateral and/or personal guarantees for its own obligations and
those of third parties, the completion of movable, real estate and commercial transactions
and whatever may be connected with the Company’s purposes or which allows a better use
of the assets and/or resources thereof and of the subsidiaries or affiliates, with the exception
of collection of public savings and investment services as defined by Legislative Decree No.

58 of 24 February 1998, and of the activities referred to in Article 106 Legislative Decree No.

385 of 1 September 1993, insofar as they are also exercised vis-a-vis the public as well as

the activities in general reserved by the law to professional members enrolled in specific

registers.

5.1

5.2
5.3

SECTION il
CAPITAL — SHARES — WITHDRAWAL — OBLIGATIONS

Article 5
The company share capital is Euro 272,000,000, represented by no. 1,360,000,000 ordinary

shares with a par value of Euro 0.20 each.
The shares are registered and each share entitles to one voting right.

The quality of shareholder constitutes acceptance of these Articles of Association.

6.1

6.2

Article 6
Each shareholder has the right to withdraw from the Company in the cases provided for by

law, except as provided for by Article 6.2.
The right to withdraw does not apply in cases of:
a) extension of the duration of the Company;

b) introduction, modification or removal of the limitations on circulation of shares.

7.1

Article 7
The issuance of non-convertible bonds is resolved upon by the Directors in accordance and
with the modalities provided by law.

8.1

Article 8
The shareholders’ domicile, as far as their relationships with the Company is concerned, is
the one resulting from the Shareholders’ Ledger; each shareholder shall notify any change of




its domicile, as well as telephone numbers, fax and e-mail.

SECTION IV
SHAREHOLDERS’ GENERAL MEETINGS
Article 9

9.1 The ordinary and extraordinary shareholders’ general meetings are normally held in the
municipality where the registered office of the Company is located, except as otherwise
resolved by the Board of Directors and as long as this is in Italy or in a country where the
Company, directly or through its subsidiaries or affiliates, carries on its business activities.

9.2 The shareholders’ general meeting is convened by notice of call communicated with any
mean, also computerized, which guarantees the proof of receipt, at least eight days before
the meeting.

9.3 The ordinary shareholders’ general meetings must be convened at least once an year, to
approve the financial statements, within one hundred and twenty days after the end of the
financial year or within one hundred and eighty days in case the Company is required to draw
up consolidated financial statements or, in any event, as required by particular exigencies
relating to the structure and purposes of the Company.

9.4 Shareholders’ meetings may also be held by telecommunications means, provided that:

- the Chairman of the meeting is in a position to ascertain the identity and legitimacy of

those in attendance; govern the course of the meeting; acknowledge and declare the outcome of

the resolution;

- the person drafting the minutes is in a position to duly perceive the discussions during the

meeting;

- those in attendance are in the position to follow the discussion concerning the items on

the agenda and to vote simultaneously, exchanging any documentation necessary;

- the Company indicates in the notice of call the places connected via tele/video

conference, from where the persons may attend, and the meeting will be deemed held in the

place where the Chairman and the secretary are in attendance.

Article 10
10.1 The right to participate and vote in the shareholders’ general meetings are governed by
applicable law.

Article 11
11.1 Those who have voting rights may be represented at the shareholders’ general meetings as
provided for by the law, through written proxy.

Article 12
12.1 The shareholders’ general meeting is chaired by the Chairman of the Board of Directors or,
in the absence or impediment thereof, by the Deputy Chairman, if appointed, or, in lack of
both, by a person designated by the Board of Directors, otherwise the shareholders’ general
meeting elects its own Chairman.
12.2 The Chairman of the shareholders’ general meeting is assisted by a secretary, not
necessarily a shareholder, designated by those in attendance.

Article 13
13.1 Without prejudice to the provisions of Article 20.2, the shareholders’ general meeting
resolves upon all matters for which it is competent according to applicable law.
13.2 The resolutions of both ordinary and extraordinary shareholders’ general meetings are




adopted with the majorities required by the law for each case.

13.3 The resolutions of the shareholders’ general meetings, adopted in compliance with the law
and with these Articles of Association, bind the shareholders whether or not they attend or
vote against them.

SECTION V
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Article 14

14.1 The Company is managed by a Board of Directors composed of a number of members not
lower than three and not higher than ten. The shareholders’ general meeting determines
such number within said limits. The composition of the Board of Directors has to ensure the
fulfilment of the applicable laws on balance between genders.

14.2 The Board of Directors is appointed for a period of up to three financial years and may be
re-elected.

14.3 The shareholders’ meeting, also in the course of the mandate, may vary the number of
members of the Board of Directors, always within the limits set out in the previous 14.1,
providing for the relevant appointments. The directors so elected shall expire with those in
office.

14.4 Should one or more vacancies occur on the Board in the course of the financial year, Article
2386 of the Italian Civil Code shall apply, ensuring the fulfiiment of the applicable laws on
balance between genders. If the majority of the Directors appointed by the shareholders’
general meeting ceases from office, the entire Board of Directors is to be deemed to have
resigned and the Directors still in office must promptly call a meeting of the shareholders to
elect a new Board.

Article 15
15.1 The Board, if not elected by the shareholders’ general meeting, elects one of its members
as Chairman; it may elect a Deputy Chairman, who replaces the Chairman in the case of
absence or impediment.
15.2 The Board, upon proposal of the Chairman, appoints a secretary, also external to the
Company.

Article 16

16.1 The Board meets at the venue indicated in the notice of call any time the Chairman, or in the
case the latter is absent or unavailable, the Deputy Chairman, deems it necessary, or when
there is a written request to that effect from the majority of the members of the Board of
Directors or of the Board of Statutory Auditors.
The Board of Directors must likewise be called when there is a written request to that effect
from at least two Directors — or from one in case the Board of Directors is composed of three
members - to resolve upon a specific matter considered of particular importance and
pertaining to the management, the subject of which shall be specified in the said request.

16.2 Board meetings may also be held by telecommunications means, upon condition that all
those attending can be identified and that such identification is noted in the relevant minutes
and they are enabled to follow the discussion and intervene in real time on the matters
debated, exchanging, if necessary, documentation; in this case, the Board of Directors is
considered to be held in the place where the person chairing the meeting is located and
where the secretary must be located as well, in order to permit the drafting and signature of




the relevant minutes.

16.3 Usually, the notice of call is sent at least five days before the date set for the meeting. In
cases of urgency, the term may be reduced to one day before such date. The Board of
Directors resolves upon the way of convocation of its meetings.

16.4 The Board of Directors is considered validly held, even without formal convocation, if all the
Directors and Statutory Auditors in office have been sufficiently informed with regard to the
meeting and the items to be discussed and:

a) all members attend the meeting, or

b) the majority of the members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board attend
the meeting and the members absent declared to not object to the discussion of the items
on the agenda.

Article 17
17.1 The meetings of the Board are chaired by the Chairman or, in the absence or impediment
thereof, by the Deputy Chairman, if elected. In the absence of the latter too, the meetings
are chaired by the oldest Director.

Article 18
18.1 The quorum for meetings of the Board shall be the majority of the Directors in office.
18.2 Resolutions are adopted by an absolute majority of the votes of those present; in case of a
tie the vote of the person chairing the meeting shall prevail.

Article 19
19.1 The resolutions of the Board of Directors are recorded in minutes which, duly signed by the
Chairman of the meeting and the secretary, are transcribed in a book kept according to law.
19.2 Copies of the minutes are true when signed by the Chairman or who acted on the behalf
thereof and by the secretary.

Article 20
20.1 The management of the Company is exclusive responsibility of the Directors, who shall

carry out the actions necessary to pursue the Company’s purposes.
20.2 Besides exercising the powers assigned by the law, the Board of Directors is competent to
resolve upon:
a) merger and demerger, in the cases provided for by law;
b) the establishment or shutting down of secondary offices;
c) which of the Directors is/are the Company representatives;
d) the reduction of the Company’s share capital in the case of withdrawal of one or more
shareholders;
e) the harmonization of the Articles of Association to the provisions of law;
f) the transfer of the registered office within Italy;
g) the reduction of Company’s share capital, in the cases provided by law.
The assignment of such competences to the Board of Directors does not exclude the
concurrent competence of the shareholders’ meeting on same matters.
20.3 The delegated bodies shall promptly report to the Board of Directors and to the Board of

Statutory Auditors at least every six months on the general performance of the period and




on the foreseeable evolution as well as on the most significant transactions due to their

dimensions or characteristics, carried out by the Company and by subsidiary companies.

Article 21

21.1 The Board of Directors may delegate, within the limits set forth under Article 2381 of the
Italian Civil Code, its attributions to an executive committee and/or to one or more of its
members, determining the content, the limits and the modalities of exercise of these powers,
if any. The Board, upon proposal of the Chairman and with the agreement of the delegated
bodies, may assign powers for single activities or categories of activities to other members
of the Board of Directors.

21.2 The delegated bodies may also grant, within the limits of the powers assigned to same,
powers for single activities or categories of activities to employees of the Company and third
parties, with the faculty of sub-delegation.

Article 22

22.1 The legal representation of the Company and relevant signature are granted to the
Chairman and to the person appointed as Chief Executive Officer and, in case of the
absence or impediment of the former, to the Deputy Chairman, if nominated. The signature
of the Deputy Chairman demonstrates to third parties in the absence or impediment of the
Chairman.

22.2 The legal representatives as above defined may grant legal representative powers of the
Company, also at trial, also with the faculty to sub-delegate.

Article 23
23.1 The members of the Board of Directors and of the executive committee are granted with a
compensation to be determined by the shareholders’ general meeting. This resolution, once
adopted, shall also apply to subsequent financial years, until determined otherwise by the
shareholders’ general meeting.
23.2 The shareholders’ general meeting may determine a total amount for the compensation of all
the directors, included those directors with particular duties.

Article 24
24 .1 The Chairman:

a) has the powers to represent the Company as provided for by Article 22.1;

b) chairs the shareholders’ general meeting as provided for by Article 12.1;

c) convenes and chairs the Board of Directors as provided for by Articles 16, 17.1;
establishes the agenda, coordinates the works and ensures that adequate information
is provided on the matters on the agenda to all the Directors;

d) checks the implementation of the resolutions adopted by the Board.

SECTION VI
BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS
Article 25
25.1 The shareholders’ general meeting shall elect the Board of Statutory Auditors, consisting of
three effective auditors and determines the fees thereto. The shareholders’ general meeting
shall also elect two alternate auditors. The composition of the Board of Statutory Auditors
has to ensure the fulfiiment of the applicable laws on balance between genders. If, during




25.2
253

the mandate, one or more effective auditors cease from office, the alternate auditors take
the place, in order to ensure the fulfilment of the applicable laws on balance between
genders.

Auditors whose term has expired shall be eligible for re-election.

The meetings of the Board of Statutory Auditors may also be held by means of
telecommunications, upon condition that all those attending can be identified and that said
identification is acknowledged in the relevant minutes and they are allowed to follow the
discussion and intervene in real time in the discussion of the matters debated, exchanging, if
necessary, documents; in this case, the Board of Statutory Auditors is considered to be held
at the venue where whoever chairs the meeting is.

26.1
26.2

26.3

SECTION VI
FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND PROFITS
Article 26
The Company financial year shall end on December 31 of each year.
At the end of each financial year, the Board of Directors shall draw up the Company’s
financial statements as required by law.
Where permitted by law, the Board of Directors is authorized to distribute interim dividends
to shareholders during the course of the financial year.

Article 27

27.1 Any dividends not claimed within five years from the day they became payable shall lapse in
favor of the Company and be posted directly to reserves.
SECTION Vil
WINDING UP & LIQUIDATION OF THE COMPANY
Article 28
28.1 In the case of winding up of the Company, the shareholders’ general meeting determines
the modalities of liquidation and appoints one or more liquidators, establishing their powers
and remuneration.
SECTION IX
GENERAL AND TRANSITORY RULES
Article 29
29.1 Any matters not expressly provided for herein shall be governed by the provisions of the
Italian Civil Code and applicable statutes.
Article 30
30.1 The provisions of Articles 14 and 25 aimed at ensuring the fulfiiment of the applicable laws

on balance between genders, shall apply for the first three appointments, respectively, of
the Board of Directors and of the Board of Statutory Auditors, following the entrance into
force and the effectiveness of the provisions of Article 2 of Decree of the President of the
Republic No. 251 of 30 November 2012.
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Introductory Note
Text approved by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 21, 2004, as
amended:

by the Board of Directors on October 21, 2004 (through the amendment of
articles 6.2, 15.1, 18.1, 21.1, and 22.2);

by the Board of Directors on March 30, 2005 (through insertion of article 5.8,
now 5.5);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 26, 2005 (through the
amendment of articles 5 and 14.3);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 26, 2006 (through the
amendment of article 5 and insertion of article 20.4, now 20.5);

by the Board of Directors on April 11, 2007 (through the amendment of article
25.2 and 25.5);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 25, 2007 (through the
amendment of articles 5, 14.3, 14.5, and 20.4, now 20.5);

by the Board of Directors on June 26, 2007 (through the amendment of article
25.1 and 25.2);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of June 11, 2008 (through the
amendment of article 5);

by the Board of Directors on February 3, 2009 (through the amendment of
article 9.2);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of April 29, 2009 (through the
amendment of article 5);

by the Board of Directors on May 6, 2009 (through the amendment of article
3);

by the Board of Directors on May 28, 2009 (through the amendment of article
3);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of April 29, 2010 (through the
amendment of articles 9.2, 13.2, and 14.3, and insertion of article 31.1);

by the Board of Directors on October 21, 2010 (through the amendment of
articles 10.1, 11.1, 14.3, and 25.2 and abrogation of the article 31.1);

by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of April 29, 2011 (through
insertion of articles 11.3 and 20.3, and the amendment of articles 13.1 and
13.2);

by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of April 30, 2012 (through the
amendment of articles 14.3, 14.5, 25.1 and 25.2 and insertion of article 31);
by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 22, 2014 (through the
amendment of articles 13.2 and 14.3 and insertion of article 14-bis);

by the Board of Directors on July 30, 2014 (through the amendment of articles
54,55,56,5.7,5.8,5.9, 6.2, 141, 14.3, 14.5, 151, 17.1, 18.1, 18.2, 21.1
and 22.2);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 28, 2015 (through the
amendment of article 14-bis).
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2.1

3.1

4.1

Title |
Incorporation — Company name — Registered office — Term

article 1
The Company shall be called “ENEL - Societa per azioni” and shall be governed
by the rules of the present bylaws.

article 2
The registered office of the Company shall be located in Rome.

article 3
The Company shall exist until December 31, 2100 and its term shall be extendible
one or more times by resolution of a Shareholders' Meeting.

Title I
Corporate Purpose

article 4

The purpose of the Company shall be to acquire and manage equity holdings in

Italian or foreign companies and firms, as well as to provide such subsidiary

companies and firms with strategic guidelines and coordination with regard to both

their industrial organization and the business activities in which they engage.

Through affiliates or subsidiaries the Company shall operate especially:

a) in the electricity industry, including the activities of production, importation and
exportation, distribution and sale, as well as transmission within the limits of
existing legislation;

b) in the energy industry in general, including fuels, and in the field of
environmental protection, as well as in the water sector;

c) in the communications, telematics and information-technology industries and
those of multimedia and interactive services;

d) in network-based sectors (electricity, water, gas, district heating,
telecommunications) or those which, in any case, provide urban services
locally;

e) in other sectors:

- in any way related to or connected with the activities carried out in the
sectors mentioned above;

- allowing the facilities, resources and expertise employed in the sectors
mentioned above (such as, by way of example and without limitation:
publishing, real estate and services to firms) to be enhanced and better
utilized;

- allowing the profitable use of the goods produced and the services provided
in the sectors mentioned above;

f) in the carrying out of activities involving systems and installations design,
construction, maintenance and management; the production and sale of



4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2
5.3

6.1

equipment; research, consulting and assistance; as well as the acquisition,
sale, marketing and trading of goods and services, all activities connected with
the sectors mentioned above under a), b), c) and d).

In the interest of its affiliates or subsidiaries, the Company may also carry out

directly any activity connected with or instrumental to its own business or that of its

affiliates or subsidiaries themselves.

To this end, the Company shall in particular see to:

» the coordination of the managerial resources of its affiliates or subsidiaries,
including the carrying out of appropriate training initiatives;

* the administrative and financial coordination of its affiliates or subsidiaries,
effecting in their favour all appropriate transactions, including granting loans
and, more in general, the framework and management of their financial
activities;

» the supply of other services in favor of its affiliates or subsidiaries in areas of
specific business interest.

In order to attain its corporate purpose, the Company may also carry out all
transactions that are instrumentally necessary or useful or at any rate related,
such as, by way of example: the provision of collateral and/or personal guarantees
for both its own and third-party commitments; transactions involving movables and
real-estate and commercial operations; and anything else that is connected with
its corporate purpose or that allows better use of its own facilities and/or resources
or those of its affiliates or subsidiaries, with the exception of accepting monetary
deposits from the public and providing investment services as defined by
legislative decree n. 58 of February 24, 1998, as well as the activities referred to in
section 106 of legislative decree n. 385 of September 1, 1993 insofar as they are
also exercised vis-a-vis the public.

Title I
Capital Stock - Shares — Withdrawal — Bonds

article 5
The nominal value of the Company’s share capital amounts to 9,403,357,795
euro, divided into 9,403,357,795 ordinary shares, each with a par value of 1 euro.
The shares shall be registered and every share shall entitle the holder to one vote.
The mere fact of being a shareholder shall constitute acceptance of these bylaws.

article 6

Pursuant to section 3 of decree-law n. 332 of May 31, 1994, converted with
revisions by Law n. 474 of July 30, 1994, no one, in whatever capacity, may own
shares constituting more than 3% of the share capital, subject to the provisions of
the law.

This limit on share ownership shall be calculated taking into account the total
shareholding of a controlling entity, whether a natural or legal person or
corporation; of all directly or indirectly controlled entities, as well as of the entities
under a common control; of affiliates as well as natural persons related by blood or
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7.2

8.1

9.1

marriage until the second decree, including his or her spouse unless legally
separated.

Control shall be deemed to exist, including with regard to persons or entities other
than companies, in the cases provided for by section 2359, paragraphs 1 and 2, of
the Civil Code. Affiliation shall be deemed to exist in the situations mentioned in
section 2359, paragraph 3, of the Civil Code, as well as among persons or entities
that, directly or indirectly, through subsidiaries other than investment management
companies, enter into agreements - including those with third parties - regarding
the exercise of voting rights or the transfer of shares of or interests in other
companies, or any other agreements mentioned in section 122 of legislative
decree n. 58 of February 24, 1998 with respect to third-party companies in the
event that such agreements regard at least 10% of the voting stock if the
companies concerned are listed or 20% if the companies concerned are not listed.
Calculation of the aforesaid limit on stock ownership (3%) shall also take into
account the shares held through fiduciaries and/or nominees, or in general
through intermediaries.

Voting rights attributable to shares held in excess of the aforesaid limit may not be
exercised and the voting rights of each of the parties concerned by the ownership
limit will be reduced pro rata, unless a different prior indication has been jointly
given by the shareholders concerned. A resolution passed with the votes of shares
held in violation of the limit may be challenged in court under section 2377 of the
Civil Code, provided that the resolution would not have been passed without the
votes relating to shares held in violation of the limit.

The shares for which voting rights may not be exercised shall be counted,
however, for the purpose of determining the quorum at Shareholders’ Meetings.

article 7
Each shareholder is entitled to withdraw from the Company in the cases provided
for by the law, except as otherwise provided for by Article 7.2.
There shall be no right of withdrawal in case of:
a) extension of the term of the Company;
b) introduction, modification or removal of limits on the circulation of the shares.

article 8
The issue of bonds shall be resolved by the Directors in accordance with the law.

Title IV
Shareholders’ Meetings

article 9
Ordinary and extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings shall normally be held in the
municipality where the Company’'s registered office is located. The Board of
Directors may determine otherwise, provided the venue is in Italy.



9.2

10.1

12.1

12.2

An ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting must be called at least once a year, to approve
the financial statements, within one hundred and twenty days after the end of the
accounting period, or within one hundred and eighty days, since the Company is
obliged to draw up consolidated financial statements, or, in any case, when
required by particular needs regarding the structure and the purpose of the
Company.

article 10
The right to participate and to vote in Shareholders’ Meetings shall be determined
by the regulations in force.

article 11
All those entitled to vote may appoint a representative to act in their behalf in
Shareholders’ Meetings according to the provisions of law by means of a proxy
issued in accordance with the procedures provided for by the regulations in force.
The proxy may also be reported to the Company electronically by sending it to the
special section of the Company’'s website specified in the notice of the
Shareholders’ Meeting. The same Meeting notice may also specify, in accordance
with the regulations in force, additional ways of reporting the proxy electronically
that may be used for the specific Shareholders’ Meeting referred to in the
aforesaid notice.
In order to facilitate the collection of proxies from the shareholders who are
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and members of shareholder
associations satisfying the requirements set by the regulations in force, facilities
for communication and for the collection of proxies shall be made available to the
aforesaid associations according to the terms and procedures agreed upon each
time with their legal representatives.
Shareholders’ Meetings shall be conducted according to a special regulation
approved by a resolution of an ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting.
The Board of Directors may provide that, with respect to single Shareholders’
Meetings, those entitled to attend and to vote in the Shareholders’ Meeting may
participate in the Shareholders’ Meeting by electronic means. In such case, the
notice of the Meeting shall detail, also by reference to the Company’s website, the
above methods of participation.

article 12

Shareholders' Meetings shall be chaired by the Chairman of the Board of Directors
or, if it happens that he or she is not available, by the Deputy Chairman if one has
been appointed, or if both are absent, the meeting shall be chaired by a person
designated by the Board, failing which the meeting shall elect its Chairman.

The Chairman of a Shareholders' Meeting shall be assisted by a Secretary (who
need not be a shareholder) designated by the participants in the meeting, and may
appoint one or more tellers.
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13.2

13.3
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14.2

14.3

article 13

Excepting as provided for by Article 20.2, meetings shall resolve on all matters
authorized by law, as well as on those provided for by Article 20.3.

The Shareholders’ Meeting, both in extraordinary and ordinary session, takes
place, as a rule, on single call. The Board of Directors, if it deems it appropriate
and by mentioning the reasons in the notice of call, may decide that both ordinary
and extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings be held on several calls. The
resolutions of the ordinary and extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings shall be
passed with the voting majorities provided for by the law in each case, without
prejudice to the majorities specifically provided for by Article 20.3.

The resolutions approved by a Shareholders' Meeting according to the law and
these bylaws shall be binding upon all shareholders, even if they did not attend or
voted against the resolution.

Title V
Board of Directors

article 14
The Company shall be managed by a Board of Directors composed of no fewer
than three and no more than nine members. A Shareholders’ Meeting shall
determine their number within the aforesaid limits.
The Board of Directors shall serve for a term of up to three accounting periods
and its members shall be eligible for re-election.
The Directors shall be elected by a Shareholders’ Meeting on the basis of slates
presented by the shareholders and by the outgoing Board of Directors. Within
each slate, the candidates are to be numbered progressively.
Each slate must include at least two candidates possessing the requirements of
independence established by the law, distinctly mentioning such candidates and
listing one of them first on the slate.
Slates which contain a number of candidates equal to or above three shall include
candidates belonging to different genders, as indicated in the notice of the
meeting, in order to ensure that the composition of the Board of Directors is
compliant with the applicable laws on balance between genders.
The slates are to be lodged at the registered office and published in accordance
with the regulations in force.
Each shareholder may present or participate in presenting only one slate and each
candidate may be presented on only one slate under pain of ineligibility.
Only those shareholders who, alone or together with other shareholders, own the
minimum percentage of the share capital established by a regulation of the
Consob are entitled to present slates.
The declarations of the individual candidates, in which they accept their
candidacies and certify, under their own responsibility, the inexistence of any
cause of ineligibility or incompatibility, as well as the satisfaction of the
requirements prescribed by applicable law and these bylaws for their respective
offices, are to be lodged together with each slate.



The Directors elected must inform the Board of Directors without delay of the loss
of the requirements mentioned at the end of the preceding paragraph, as well as
of the occurrence of causes of ineligibility or incompatibility.

All those entitled to vote may vote for only one slate.

The procedure for electing the Directors is to be as follows:

a) seven-tenths of the Directors to be elected, rounding down any fraction to the
unit, shall be drawn from the slate that has obtained the most votes cast in the
order in which they are listed on the slate;

b) the remaining Directors shall be drawn from the other slates; for this purpose,
the votes obtained by these slates shall be divided successively by one, two,
three and so forth according to the number of Directors to be elected. The
numbers obtained in this way shall be attributed to the candidates of such
slates in the order in which they rank in the slate. The numbers thus attributed
to the candidates of the various slates shall be arranged in decreasing order in
a single ranking. The candidates who have obtained the highest numbers shall
become Directors.

In the event that more than one candidate has obtained the same number, the
candidate of the slate that has not yet elected a Director or that has elected the
fewest Directors shall be appointed Director.

In the event that no Director has been elected yet from any of these slates or
that the same number of Directors has been elected from each slate, the
candidate of the slate that has obtained the most votes shall be appointed
Director. If there is a tie in terms of both numbers assigned and votes obtained
by each slate, the entire Shareholders’ Meeting shall vote again and the
candidate who obtains a simple majority of the votes will be appointed Director;

c) for the purposes of the identifying the Directors to be elected, the candidates
designated on the slates that have obtained a number of votes amounting to
less than half of the percentage required for the presentation of the same
slates shall not be taken into account;

c-bis) if, following the vote and the above procedure, the applicable laws on balance
between genders are not complied with, candidates which would result to be
elected in the various slates are disposed in one single decreasing ranking list,
to be formed in compliance with the quotient system indicated under letter b).
The candidate in such ranking list belonging to the most represented gender
having the lowest quotient is therefore replaced with the first candidate of the
less represented gender belonging to the same slate which would result not
elected. In the event that in such slate there are no other candidates, the
replacement here above is carried out by the Shareholders’ meeting with the
majorities provided for under the law, as provided for under the following point
d) and in compliance with the principle of a proportional representation of
minority shareholders in the Board of Directors.
In case of a tie between quotients, the replacement is made in favour of the
candidate drawn from the slate which has obtained the highest number of
votes.
If the replacement of the candidate of the most represented gender having the
lowest quotient in the ranking list does not allow, in any case, to reach the
minimum threshold provided for under the applicable laws on balance between



14.4

14.5

14-bis.1

genders, the above said replacement procedure is carried out also with
reference to the candidate belonging to the most represented gender having
the second last quotient, and so forth, starting from the end of the ranking list.

c-ter) the president of the meeting, at the end of the above procedures, declares the
elected members;

d) for the appointment of the Directors who, for whatever reason, are not elected
pursuant to the procedures specified above, the Shareholders’ Meeting will
resolve according to the majorities provided for by the law, ensuring in any
case the presence of the necessary number of Directors possessing the
requirements of independence established by the law, and the compliance with
the applicable laws on balance between genders.

The slate-vote mechanism shall apply only when the entire Board of Directors
is being elected.

Even during a Board’s term, a Shareholders’ Meeting may change the number of

the members of the Board of Directors within the limits referred to in 14.1 above

and proceed to elect them. The term of the Directors so elected is to end at the
same time as that of the Directors in office.

Should one or more vacancies occur on the Board during the accounting period,

steps shall be taken in accordance with section 2386 of the Civil Code. If one or

more of the Directors leaving their offices vacant were drawn from a slate also
containing unelected candidates, they shall be replaced by appointing, in
progressive order, persons drawn from the slate to which the Director in question
belonged, provided that said persons are still eligible and willing to accept the
directorship. In any case, in replacing Directors who leave their offices vacant, the

Board of Directors shall ensure the presence of the necessary number of Directors

possessing the requirements of independence established by the law, and the

compliance with the applicable laws on balance between genders. In the event
that the majority of the offices of the Directors elected by the shareholders
becomes vacant, the entire Board is to be deemed to have resigned and the

Directors still in office must promptly call a meeting of the shareholders to elect a

new Board.

article 14-bis

The issue of a judgement, even if not final and without prejudice to the effects of

rehabilitation, convicting a director of any of the offenses indicated below shall

constitute grounds for ineligibility to or disqualification from the office of director,
for cause and without entitlement to damages:

a) offenses provided for under laws on banking, financial, securities, and
insurance business and laws governing financial markets, securities and
means of payment,

b) offenses provided for under Title XI of Book V of the Italian Civil Code and
Royal Decree No. 267 of March 16, 1942,

c) offenses against the public administration, public credit, public property, public
order, public economy or tax offences,

d) offenses provided for under Article 51, paragraph 3-bis, of the Italian Criminal
Procedural Code as well as Article 73 of the Decree of the President of the
Repubilic of Italy No. 309 dated October 9, 1990.



14-bis.2.

14-bis.3
14-bis.4

14-bis.5

14-bis.6

15.1

15.2

16.1

16.2

It also constitutes a ground for ineligibility to or disqualification for cause from the

office of director, without entitlement to damages, the issue of a judgement of final

conviction ascertaining the willful commission of public monetary damage.

Repealed

Repealed

Without prejudice to the provisions of the paragraphs above, the chief executive

officer who is subject to:

a) imprisonment or

b) precautionary measures of preventive custody or house arrest as outcome of a
proceeding started under Articles 309 or 311, second paragraph, of the Italian
Criminal Procedural Code or at the elapse of the relevant time limit to start it,

is automatically disqualified from office, with cause and without any right to be

indemnified, and, as a consequence, his/her relevant delegated powers cease.

Similarly, the chief executive officer is disqualified from office if addressed with

other kind of precautionary measures that can no longer be appealed, if the Board

of Directors believes that such measures make impossible for the chief executive

officer to exercise his/her delegated powers.

For the purposes of this clause, a plea bargain judgment pursuant to Article 444 of

the Italian Criminal Procedural Code shall be equated to a judgment of conviction,

except in case of extinguishment of the offense.

For the purposes of this clause, where foreign laws shall apply, even if partially,

the Board of Directors ascertains the existence of the circumstances mentioned

herein through a judgment of substantial equivalence.

article 15
If a Shareholders' Meeting has not elected a Chairman of the Board, the Board
shall elect one of its members to that position. It may elect a Deputy Chairman,
who shall stand in for the Chairman in the event of his or her unavailability.

Upon the Chairman's proposal, the Board shall appoint a Secretary, who need not
have any connection with the Company.

article 16

The Board shall meet at the place designated in the notice whenever the
Chairman or, in case the latter is unavailable, the Deputy Chairman deems
necessary. The Board may also be convened in the ways provided for in Article
25.5 of these bylaws.

The Board of Directors must also be convened when at least two Directors — or
one if the Board consists of three members — so request in writing to resolve on a
specific matter (to be indicated in the aforesaid request) regarding the
management of the Company that they consider to be of particular importance.
Board meetings may also be held by means of telecommunications provided that
all the participants can be identified and such identification is acknowledged in the
minutes of the meeting, and that they are allowed to follow and participate in real
time in the discussion of the matters considered, exchanging documents if need

10
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17.1

18.1
18.2

19.1

19.2

20.1

20.2

20.3

be; in such case, the meeting of the Board of Directors shall be deemed held in
the place where whoever chairs the meeting is and where the Secretary must
also be in order to allow the related minutes to be drawn up and signed.

The Board shall normally be called at least five days before the date on which the
meeting is to be held. This period may be shorter in urgent cases. The Board of
Directors shall decide the procedures for convening its own meetings.

article 17
Board meetings shall be chaired by the Chairman or, if the latter is absent or
detained, by the Deputy Chairman if one has been appointed. If the latter is also
absent, they are to be chaired by the oldest Director.

article 18
The quorum for meetings of the Board shall be a majority of the Directors in office.
Resolutions shall be adopted by an absolute majority of the Directors present; in
case of a tie, the vote of the person chairing the meeting shall be decisive.

article 19
The resolutions of the Board of Directors shall appear in minutes which, signed by
whoever chairs the meeting and by the Secretary, are to be transcribed in a book
kept according to the law for this purpose.
Copies of the minutes shall be fully certified if signed by the Chairman or whoever
acts in his or her behalf, and by the Secretary.

article 20

Management of the Company is the exclusive responsibility of the Directors, who

shall carry out the actions necessary to achieve the corporate purpose.

In addition to exercising the powers entrusted to it by the law, the Board of

Directors shall have the power to adopt resolutions concerning:

a) mergers and demergers in the cases provided for by the law;

b) the establishment or elimination of secondary headquarters;

¢) which of the Directors shall represent the Company;

d) the reduction of the share capital in case of the withdrawal of one or more
shareholders;

e) the harmonization of the bylaws with provisions of the law;

f) the transfer of the registered office within Italy.

Pursuant to the procedure for transactions with related parties adopted by the

Company:

a) the ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, pursuant to Article 2364, paragraph 1,
subsection 5, of the Civil Code, may authorize the Board of Directors to enter
into related parties transactions of major importance, which do not fall within
the competence of the Shareholders’ Meeting, notwithstanding the negative

11
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20.5

opinion of the related parties Committee, provided that, without prejudice to the
majorities required by law, bylaws and provisions applicable in cases of
conflicts of interest, the Shareholders’ Meeting resolves upon also with the
favourable vote of at least half of the voting unrelated shareholders. In any
case, the entering into of the foregoing transactions is prevented only if the
unrelated shareholders attending the Shareholders’ Meeting represent at least
10% of the share capital with voting rights;

b) in case the Board of Directors intends to submit to the approval of the
Shareholders’ Meeting a transaction with related parties of major importance,
which fall within the competence of the Shareholders’ Meeting, notwithstanding
the negative opinion of the related parties Committee, the transaction may be
entered into only if the Shareholder’s Meeting resolves upon with the majorities
and in compliance with the requirements set forth under the previous
subsection a);

c) the Board of Directors or the delegated Bodies may resolve upon, applying the
exemptions provided for in the procedure and subject to the conditions
indicated therein, the entering into by the Company, directly or through its
subsidiaries, of urgent transactions with related parties which do not fall within
the competence of the Shareholders’ Meeting and which are not subject to the
authorization of the Shareholders’ Meeting itself.

The delegated bodies shall promptly report to the Board of Directors and the
Board of Statutory Auditors — or, absent the delegated bodies, the Directors shall
promptly report to the Board of Statutory Auditors — at least quarterly, and in any
case during the meetings of the Board of Directors, on the activity carried out, the
management of the Company in general and the prospects for the future, as well
as the most important transactions affecting the income statement, cash flow and
the balance sheet, or in any case that are most important because of their size or
characteristics carried out by the Company and its subsidiaries; they shall
specifically report on transactions in which they have an interest themselves or on
behalf of third parties or that are influenced by the entity — if there is one — who
directs and coordinates the Company.

The Board of Directors shall appoint, and revoke the appointment of, an executive

in charge of preparing the corporate accounting documents, after the Board of

Statutory Auditors has expressed its opinion.

The executive in charge of preparing the corporate accounting documents must

have acquired experience for a total of at least three years in the performance of:

a) executive duties regarding the preparation and/or analysis and/or evaluation
and/or checking of corporate documents that present accounting issues of a
complexity comparable to those connected with the Company’s accounting
documents; or

b) auditing of the accounts of companies with shares listed on regulated markets
in Italy or in other countries of the European Union; or

c) professional activities or university teaching as a tenured professor in the field
of finance or accounting; or

d) executive duties in public bodies or government offices involved in the financial
or accounting field.

12
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article 21

Within the limits set forth in section 2381 of the Civil Code, the Board of Directors
may delegate powers to one of its members, determining the content, the limits
and any procedures of exercise of the delegation. Upon proposal by the Chairman
and in agreement with the Chief Executive Officer, the Board may delegate
powers to others among its members for single acts or classes of acts.

Within the limits of the authority conferred on him, the Chief Executive Officer shall
have the power to delegate single acts or classes of acts to employees of the
Company or to third parties, authorizing sub-delegation.

article 22

The legal authority to represent the Company and sign documents on its behalf is
vested in both the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer and, in the event that the former is unavailable, the Deputy Chairman if one
has been appointed. The signature of the Deputy Chairman shall attest vis-a-vis
third parties the Chairman's unavailability.

The above legal representatives may delegate the power to represent the
Company, including in court, to third parties, who may also be authorized to sub-
delegate.

article 23

The members of the Board of Directors shall be entitled to compensation in an
amount to be determined by a meeting of the shareholders. Once adopted, the
resolution shall apply during subsequent accounting periods until a Shareholders'
Meeting determines otherwise.

The compensation of Directors entrusted with specific tasks in accordance with
the bylaws shall be established by the Board of Directors after receiving the
opinion of the Board of Statutory Auditors.

article 24

The Chairman shall:

a) have the power to represent the Company pursuant to Article 22.1;

b) preside at meetings of the shareholders pursuant to Article 12.1;

c) call and preside at meetings of the Board of Directors pursuant to Articles 16
and 17.1, establish the agenda, coordinate the proceedings, and see that
adequate information on the matters on the agenda is provided to all the
Directors;

d) ascertain that the resolutions of the Board are carried out.

13
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Title VI
Board of Statutory Auditors

article 25
A Shareholders’ Meeting shall elect the Board of Statutory Auditors, which is to be
composed of three regular members, and shall determine their compensation.
Three alternate members shall also be elected by a Shareholders’ Meeting.
The members of the Board of Statutory Auditors must possess the requisites of
professionalism and honorableness specified in the Ministry of Justice’s decree n.
162 of March 30, 2000. For the purposes of the provisions of section 1, paragraph
2, b) and c) of this decree, the following are considered closely connected with the
scope of the Company’s business activities: subjects pertaining to commercial law
and tax law, business economics and business finance, as well as subjects and
fields of activity pertaining to energy in general, communications, telematics and
information technology, and network structures.
The composition of the board of statutory auditors, situations of ineligibility and the
limits to the number of offices on boards of directors, boards of statutory auditors,
and similar bodies that the members of the Board of Statutory Auditors may hold
shall be governed by the provisions of the statutes and regulations in force.
Regular members of the Board of Statutory Auditors and alternate members shall
be elected by Shareholders’ Meetings on the basis of the slates presented by the
shareholders, on which the candidates are to be numbered progressively and their
number must not exceed that of the members of the body to be elected.
Only those shareholders who, alone or together with other shareholders, own the
minimum percentage of the share capital established by a regulation of the
Consob for the presentation of slates of candidates for the election of the Board of
Directors are entitled to present slates.
The provisions of law in force shall apply to the presentation, lodgment and
publication of the slates.
The slates are to be divided into two sections: one for the candidates for the office
of regular auditor and the other for candidates for the office of alternate auditor.
The first candidate in each section must be a registered auditor and have
practiced the profession of legal auditor for a period of no less than three years.
In compliance with the applicable laws on balance between genders, slates which,
taking into account both sections, contain a number of candidates equal to or
above three, shall include, both in the first two places of the section of the slate
relating to the regular statutory auditors, and in the first two places of the section
of the slate relating to the alternate statutory auditors, candidates belonging to
different genders.
Two regular members of the Board of Statutory Auditors and two alternate
members are to be drawn, in the numerical order in which they were listed in each
section, from the slate that has obtained the most votes. The remaining regular
member and the remaining alternate are to be elected according to the provisions
of law in force and the procedures specified in Article 14.3, b), to be applied
separately to each of the sections in which the other slates are divided.
When less than the entire Board is being elected, the Shareholders’ Meeting shall
resolve according to the majorities provided for by the law, without following the
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253
254

255

26.1
26.2

26.3

procedure specified above, but in any case in such a way as to ensure that the
composition of the Board of Statutory Auditors is in accordance with the provisions
of section 1, paragraph 1, of the Ministry of Justice’s decree n. 162 of March 30,
2000, as well as with the principle of the representation of minority shareholders
and the applicable laws on balance between genders.

The chairmanship of the Board of Statutory Auditors shall fall to the regular Auditor
elected according to the procedures specified in Article 14.3, b); in the event the
Chairman is substituted, this office shall be filled by the alternate Auditor also
elected according to the procedures specified in Article 14.3, b).

In the event that one of the members drawn from the slate that obtained the most
votes is substituted, his or her place shall be taken by the first of the alternate
members drawn from the same slate. In the event that the replacement, if carried
out through the above modalities, does not allow to form a Board of Statutory
Auditors compliant with the applicable laws on balance between genders, the
replacement shall be carried out in favour of the second alternate Statutory Auditor
belonging to the same slate. If thereafter it is necessary to replace the other
regular Statutory Auditor belonging to the slate which has obtained the highest
number of votes, the latter shall in any case be replaced by the alternate Statutory
Auditor belonging to the same slate.

Auditors whose term has expired shall be eligible for re-election.

The meetings of the Board of Statutory Auditors may also be held by means of
telecommunications provided that all the participants can be identified and such
identification is acknowledged in the minutes of the meeting, and that they are
allowed to follow and participate in real time in the discussion of the matters
considered, exchanging documents if need be; in such case, the meeting of the
Board of Statutory Auditors shall be deemed held in the place where whoever
chairs the meeting is.

Upon notice to the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Board of Statutory
Auditors may call a Shareholders’ Meeting and a Board of Directors’ meeting. The
powers concerned may also be exercised by at least two members of the Board of
Statutory Auditors with regard to Shareholders’ Meetings and by at least one
member of the Board of Statutory Auditors with regard to meetings of the Board of
Directors.

Title VII
Financial Statements and Earnings

article 26
The accounting period shall end on December 31 of every year.
At the end of each accounting period, the Board of Directors shall draw up the
Company’s financial statements as required by law.
The Board of Directors is authorized to distribute interim dividends to shareholders
during the course of the year.

article 27
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27.1

28.1

29.1

30.1

31.1

31.2

Dividends not collected within five years from the day they become payable shall
lapse in favor of the Company and be posted directly to reserves.

Title ViII
Dissolution and Liquidation of the Company

article 28
Should the Company be dissolved, a Shareholders’ Meeting is to determine the
liquidation procedures and appoint one or more liquidators, establishing their
powers and compensation.

Title IX
Transitory and General Rules

article 29
Any matters not expressly provided for herein shall be governed by the provisions
of the Civil Code and applicable statutes.

article 30
The Company is to continue to carry out all the activities that - under legislative
decree n. 79 of March 16, 1999, published in the Gazzetta Ufficiale, issue 75 of
March 31, 1999 - have been temporarily entrusted to it pending their award to
other entities according to the provisions of the legislative decree.

article 31

The provisions of articles 14.3, 14.5, and 25.2 aimed at ensuring the fulfiiment of
the applicable laws on balance between genders shall apply to the first three
appointments, respectively, of the Board of Directors and of the Board of Statutory
Auditors, following the coming into force and the effectiveness of the provisions of
article 1 of Law July 12, 2011, No. 120, published on the Official Gazette No. 174
of July 28, 2011.

The composition of the Board of Statutory Auditors indicated under article 25.1,
which is characterized by the presence of three regular Statutory Auditors and
three alternate Statutory Auditors, shall apply from the first appointment of the
supervisory board following the coming into force and the effectiveness of the
provisions of article 1 of Law July 12, 2011, No. 120, published on the Official
Gazette No. 174 of July 28, 2011. Until such moment, the Board of Statutory
Auditors is composed by three regular Statutory Auditors and two alternate
Statutory Auditors.
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Schedule D

ENEL S.p.A.
CORPORATE BYLAWS
with the amendments deriving from the
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Introductory Note
Text approved by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 21, 2004, as
amended:

by the Board of Directors on October 21, 2004 (through the amendment of
articles 6.2, 15.1, 18.1, 21.1, and 22.2);

by the Board of Directors on March 30, 2005 (through insertion of article 5.8,
now 5.5);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 26, 2005 (through the
amendment of articles 5 and 14.3);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 26, 2006 (through the
amendment of article 5 and insertion of article 20.4, now 20.5);

by the Board of Directors on April 11, 2007 (through the amendment of article
25.2 and 25.5);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 25, 2007 (through the
amendment of articles 5, 14.3, 14.5, and 20.4, now 20.5);

by the Board of Directors on June 26, 2007 (through the amendment of article
25.1 and 25.2);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of June 11, 2008 (through the
amendment of article 5);

by the Board of Directors on February 3, 2009 (through the amendment of
article 9.2);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of April 29, 2009 (through the
amendment of article 5);

by the Board of Directors on May 6, 2009 (through the amendment of article
3);

by the Board of Directors on May 28, 2009 (through the amendment of article
3);

by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of April 29, 2010 (through the
amendment of articles 9.2, 13.2, and 14.3, and insertion of article 31.1);

by the Board of Directors on October 21, 2010 (through the amendment of
articles 10.1, 11.1, 14.3, and 25.2 and abrogation of the article 31.1);

by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of April 29, 2011 (through
insertion of articles 11.3 and 20.3, and the amendment of articles 13.1 and
13.2);

by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of April 30, 2012 (through the
amendment of articles 14.3, 14.5, 25.1 and 25.2 and insertion of article 31);
by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 22, 2014 (through the
amendment of articles 13.2 and 14.3 and insertion of article 14-bis);

by the Board of Directors on July 30, 2014 (through the amendment of articles
54,55,56,5.7,5.8,5.9, 6.2, 141, 14.3, 14.5, 151, 17.1, 18.1, 18.2, 21.1
and 22.2);

by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 28, 2015 (through the
amendment of article 14-bis);

by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of January 11, 2016 (through the
amendment of article 5)



1.1

2.1

3.1

4.1

Title |
Incorporation — Company name — Registered office — Term

article 1
The Company shall be called “ENEL - Societa per azioni” and shall be governed
by the rules of the present bylaws.

article 2
The registered office of the Company shall be located in Rome.

article 3
The Company shall exist until December 31, 2100 and its term shall be extendible
one or more times by resolution of a Shareholders' Meeting.

Title 1l
Corporate Purpose

article 4

The purpose of the Company shall be to acquire and manage equity holdings in

Italian or foreign companies and firms, as well as to provide such subsidiary

companies and firms with strategic guidelines and coordination with regard to both

their industrial organization and the business activities in which they engage.

Through affiliates or subsidiaries the Company shall operate especially:

a) in the electricity industry, including the activities of production, importation and
exportation, distribution and sale, as well as transmission within the limits of
existing legislation;

b) in the energy industry in general, including fuels, and in the field of
environmental protection, as well as in the water sector;

¢) in the communications, telematics and information-technology industries and
those of multimedia and interactive services;

d) in network-based sectors (electricity, water, gas, district heating,
telecommunications) or those which, in any case, provide urban services
locally;

e) in other sectors:

- in any way related to or connected with the activities carried out in the
sectors mentioned above;

- allowing the facilities, resources and expertise employed in the sectors
mentioned above (such as, by way of example and without limitation:
publishing, real estate and services to firms) to be enhanced and better
utilized,;

- allowing the profitable use of the goods produced and the services provided
in the sectors mentioned above;



4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2
5.3

6.1

f) in the carrying out of activities involving systems and installations design,
construction, maintenance and management; the production and sale of
equipment; research, consulting and assistance; as well as the acquisition,
sale, marketing and trading of goods and services, all activities connected with
the sectors mentioned above under a), b), c) and d).

In the interest of its affiliates or subsidiaries, the Company may also carry out

directly any activity connected with or instrumental to its own business or that of its

affiliates or subsidiaries themselves.

To this end, the Company shall in particular see to:

» the coordination of the managerial resources of its affiliates or subsidiaries,
including the carrying out of appropriate training initiatives;

* the administrative and financial coordination of its affiliates or subsidiaries,
effecting in their favour all appropriate transactions, including granting loans
and, more in general, the framework and management of their financial
activities;

+ the supply of other services in favor of its affiliates or subsidiaries in areas of
specific business interest.

In order to attain its corporate purpose, the Company may also carry out all
transactions that are instrumentally necessary or useful or at any rate related,
such as, by way of example: the provision of collateral and/or personal guarantees
for both its own and third-party commitments; transactions involving movables and
real-estate and commercial operations; and anything else that is connected with
its corporate purpose or that allows better use of its own facilities and/or resources
or those of its affiliates or subsidiaries, with the exception of accepting monetary
deposits from the public and providing investment services as defined by
legislative decree n. 58 of February 24, 1998, as well as the activities referred to in
section 106 of legislative decree n. 385 of September 1, 1993 insofar as they are
also exercised vis-a-vis the public.

Title I
Capital Stock - Shares — Withdrawal — Bonds

article 5
The nominal value of the Company’s share capital amounts to [] euro, divided into
[] ordinary shares, each with a par value of 1 euro.
The shares shall be registered and every share shall entitle the holder to one vote.
The mere fact of being a shareholder shall constitute acceptance of these bylaws.

article 6

Pursuant to section 3 of decree-law n. 332 of May 31, 1994, converted with
revisions by Law n. 474 of July 30, 1994, no one, in whatever capacity, may own
shares constituting more than 3% of the share capital, subject to the provisions of
the law.

This limit on share ownership shall be calculated taking into account the total
shareholding of a controlling entity, whether a natural or legal person or
corporation; of all directly or indirectly controlled entities, as well as of the entities



7.1

7.2

8.1

9.1

under a common control; of affiliates as well as natural persons related by blood or
marriage until the second decree, including his or her spouse unless legally
separated.

Control shall be deemed to exist, including with regard to persons or entities other
than companies, in the cases provided for by section 2359, paragraphs 1 and 2, of
the Civil Code. Affiliation shall be deemed to exist in the situations mentioned in
section 2359, paragraph 3, of the Civil Code, as well as among persons or entities
that, directly or indirectly, through subsidiaries other than investment management
companies, enter into agreements - including those with third parties - regarding
the exercise of voting rights or the transfer of shares of or interests in other
companies, or any other agreements mentioned in section 122 of legislative
decree n. 58 of February 24, 1998 with respect to third-party companies in the
event that such agreements regard at least 10% of the voting stock if the
companies concerned are listed or 20% if the companies concerned are not listed.
Calculation of the aforesaid limit on stock ownership (3%) shall also take into
account the shares held through fiduciaries and/or nominees, or in general
through intermediaries.

Voting rights attributable to shares held in excess of the aforesaid limit may not be
exercised and the voting rights of each of the parties concerned by the ownership
limit will be reduced pro rata, unless a different prior indication has been jointly
given by the shareholders concerned. A resolution passed with the votes of shares
held in violation of the limit may be challenged in court under section 2377 of the
Civil Code, provided that the resolution would not have been passed without the
votes relating to shares held in violation of the limit.

The shares for which voting rights may not be exercised shall be counted,
however, for the purpose of determining the quorum at Shareholders’ Meetings.

article 7
Each shareholder is entitled to withdraw from the Company in the cases provided
for by the law, except as otherwise provided for by Article 7.2.
There shall be no right of withdrawal in case of:
a) extension of the term of the Company;
b) introduction, modification or removal of limits on the circulation of the shares.

article 8
The issue of bonds shall be resolved by the Directors in accordance with the law.

Title IV
Shareholders’ Meetings

article 9
Ordinary and extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings shall normally be held in the
municipality where the Company’s registered office is located. The Board of
Directors may determine otherwise, provided the venue is in Italy.



9.2

10.1

12.1

12.2

An ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting must be called at least once a year, to approve
the financial statements, within one hundred and twenty days after the end of the
accounting period, or within one hundred and eighty days, since the Company is
obliged to draw up consolidated financial statements, or, in any case, when
required by particular needs regarding the structure and the purpose of the
Company.

article 10
The right to participate and to vote in Shareholders’ Meetings shall be determined
by the regulations in force.

article 11
All those entitled to vote may appoint a representative to act in their behalf in
Shareholders’ Meetings according to the provisions of law by means of a proxy
issued in accordance with the procedures provided for by the regulations in force.
The proxy may also be reported to the Company electronically by sending it to the
special section of the Company’'s website specified in the notice of the
Shareholders’ Meeting. The same Meeting notice may also specify, in accordance
with the regulations in force, additional ways of reporting the proxy electronically
that may be used for the specific Shareholders’ Meeting referred to in the
aforesaid notice.
In order to facilitate the collection of proxies from the shareholders who are
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and members of shareholder
associations satisfying the requirements set by the regulations in force, facilities
for communication and for the collection of proxies shall be made available to the
aforesaid associations according to the terms and procedures agreed upon each
time with their legal representatives.
Shareholders’ Meetings shall be conducted according to a special regulation
approved by a resolution of an ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting.
The Board of Directors may provide that, with respect to single Shareholders’
Meetings, those entitled to attend and to vote in the Shareholders’ Meeting may
participate in the Shareholders’ Meeting by electronic means. In such case, the
notice of the Meeting shall detail, also by reference to the Company’s website, the
above methods of participation.

article 12

Shareholders' Meetings shall be chaired by the Chairman of the Board of Directors
or, if it happens that he or she is not available, by the Deputy Chairman if one has
been appointed, or if both are absent, the meeting shall be chaired by a person
designated by the Board, failing which the meeting shall elect its Chairman.

The Chairman of a Shareholders' Meeting shall be assisted by a Secretary (who
need not be a shareholder) designated by the participants in the meeting, and may
appoint one or more tellers.



13.1

13.2

13.3

14.1

14.2

14.3

article 13

Excepting as provided for by Article 20.2, meetings shall resolve on all matters
authorized by law, as well as on those provided for by Article 20.3.

The Shareholders’ Meeting, both in extraordinary and ordinary session, takes
place, as a rule, on single call. The Board of Directors, if it deems it appropriate
and by mentioning the reasons in the notice of call, may decide that both ordinary
and extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings be held on several calls. The
resolutions of the ordinary and extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings shall be
passed with the voting majorities provided for by the law in each case, without
prejudice to the majorities specifically provided for by Article 20.3.

The resolutions approved by a Shareholders' Meeting according to the law and
these bylaws shall be binding upon all shareholders, even if they did not attend or
voted against the resolution.

Title V
Board of Directors

article 14
The Company shall be managed by a Board of Directors composed of no fewer
than three and no more than nine members. A Shareholders’ Meeting shall
determine their number within the aforesaid limits.
The Board of Directors shall serve for a term of up to three accounting periods
and its members shall be eligible for re-election.
The Directors shall be elected by a Shareholders’ Meeting on the basis of slates
presented by the shareholders and by the outgoing Board of Directors. Within
each slate, the candidates are to be numbered progressively.
Each slate must include at least two candidates possessing the requirements of
independence established by the law, distinctly mentioning such candidates and
listing one of them first on the slate.
Slates which contain a number of candidates equal to or above three shall include
candidates belonging to different genders, as indicated in the notice of the
meeting, in order to ensure that the composition of the Board of Directors is
compliant with the applicable laws on balance between genders.
The slates are to be lodged at the registered office and published in accordance
with the regulations in force.
Each shareholder may present or participate in presenting only one slate and each
candidate may be presented on only one slate under pain of ineligibility.
Only those shareholders who, alone or together with other shareholders, own the
minimum percentage of the share capital established by a regulation of the
Consob are entitled to present slates.
The declarations of the individual candidates, in which they accept their
candidacies and certify, under their own responsibility, the inexistence of any
cause of ineligibility or incompatibility, as well as the satisfaction of the
requirements prescribed by applicable law and these bylaws for their respective
offices, are to be lodged together with each slate.



The Directors elected must inform the Board of Directors without delay of the loss
of the requirements mentioned at the end of the preceding paragraph, as well as
of the occurrence of causes of ineligibility or incompatibility.

All those entitled to vote may vote for only one slate.

The procedure for electing the Directors is to be as follows:

a) seven-tenths of the Directors to be elected, rounding down any fraction to the
unit, shall be drawn from the slate that has obtained the most votes cast in the
order in which they are listed on the slate;

b) the remaining Directors shall be drawn from the other slates; for this purpose,
the votes obtained by these slates shall be divided successively by one, two,
three and so forth according to the number of Directors to be elected. The
numbers obtained in this way shall be attributed to the candidates of such
slates in the order in which they rank in the slate. The numbers thus attributed
to the candidates of the various slates shall be arranged in decreasing order in
a single ranking. The candidates who have obtained the highest numbers shall
become Directors.

In the event that more than one candidate has obtained the same number, the
candidate of the slate that has not yet elected a Director or that has elected the
fewest Directors shall be appointed Director.

In the event that no Director has been elected yet from any of these slates or
that the same number of Directors has been elected from each slate, the
candidate of the slate that has obtained the most votes shall be appointed
Director. If there is a tie in terms of both numbers assigned and votes obtained
by each slate, the entire Shareholders’ Meeting shall vote again and the
candidate who obtains a simple majority of the votes will be appointed Director;

c) for the purposes of the identifying the Directors to be elected, the candidates
designated on the slates that have obtained a number of votes amounting to
less than half of the percentage required for the presentation of the same
slates shall not be taken into account;

c-bis) if, following the vote and the above procedure, the applicable laws on balance
between genders are not complied with, candidates which would result to be
elected in the various slates are disposed in one single decreasing ranking list,
to be formed in compliance with the quotient system indicated under letter b).
The candidate in such ranking list belonging to the most represented gender
having the lowest quotient is therefore replaced with the first candidate of the
less represented gender belonging to the same slate which would result not
elected. In the event that in such slate there are no other candidates, the
replacement here above is carried out by the Shareholders’ meeting with the
majorities provided for under the law, as provided for under the following point
d) and in compliance with the principle of a proportional representation of
minority shareholders in the Board of Directors.
In case of a tie between quotients, the replacement is made in favour of the
candidate drawn from the slate which has obtained the highest number of
votes.
If the replacement of the candidate of the most represented gender having the
lowest quotient in the ranking list does not allow, in any case, to reach the
minimum threshold provided for under the applicable laws on balance between



14.4

14.5

14-bis.1

genders, the above said replacement procedure is carried out also with
reference to the candidate belonging to the most represented gender having
the second last quotient, and so forth, starting from the end of the ranking list.

c-ter) the president of the meeting, at the end of the above procedures, declares the
elected members;

d) for the appointment of the Directors who, for whatever reason, are not elected
pursuant to the procedures specified above, the Shareholders’ Meeting will
resolve according to the majorities provided for by the law, ensuring in any
case the presence of the necessary number of Directors possessing the
requirements of independence established by the law, and the compliance with
the applicable laws on balance between genders.

The slate-vote mechanism shall apply only when the entire Board of Directors
is being elected.

Even during a Board’s term, a Shareholders’ Meeting may change the number of

the members of the Board of Directors within the limits referred to in 14.1 above

and proceed to elect them. The term of the Directors so elected is to end at the
same time as that of the Directors in office.

Should one or more vacancies occur on the Board during the accounting period,

steps shall be taken in accordance with section 2386 of the Civil Code. If one or

more of the Directors leaving their offices vacant were drawn from a slate also
containing unelected candidates, they shall be replaced by appointing, in
progressive order, persons drawn from the slate to which the Director in question
belonged, provided that said persons are still eligible and willing to accept the
directorship. In any case, in replacing Directors who leave their offices vacant, the

Board of Directors shall ensure the presence of the necessary number of Directors

possessing the requirements of independence established by the law, and the

compliance with the applicable laws on balance between genders. In the event
that the majority of the offices of the Directors elected by the shareholders
becomes vacant, the entire Board is to be deemed to have resigned and the

Directors still in office must promptly call a meeting of the shareholders to elect a

new Board.

article 14-bis

The issue of a judgement, even if not final and without prejudice to the effects of

rehabilitation, convicting a director of any of the offenses indicated below shall

constitute grounds for ineligibility to or disqualification from the office of director,
for cause and without entitlement to damages:

a) offenses provided for under laws on banking, financial, securities, and
insurance business and laws governing financial markets, securities and
means of payment,

b) offenses provided for under Title XI of Book V of the Italian Civil Code and
Royal Decree No. 267 of March 16, 1942,

c) offenses against the public administration, public credit, public property, public
order, public economy or tax offences,

d) offenses provided for under Article 51, paragraph 3-bis, of the Italian Criminal
Procedural Code as well as Article 73 of the Decree of the President of the
Repubilic of Italy No. 309 dated October 9, 1990.



14-bis.2.

14-bis.3
14-bis.4

14-bis.5

14-bis.6

15.1

15.2

16.1

16.2

It also constitutes a ground for ineligibility to or disqualification for cause from the

office of director, without entitlement to damages, the issue of a judgement of final

conviction ascertaining the willful commission of public monetary damage.

Repealed

Repealed

Without prejudice to the provisions of the paragraphs above, the chief executive

officer who is subject to:

a) imprisonment or

b) precautionary measures of preventive custody or house arrest as outcome of a
proceeding started under Articles 309 or 311, second paragraph, of the Italian
Criminal Procedural Code or at the elapse of the relevant time limit to start it,

is automatically disqualified from office, with cause and without any right to be

indemnified, and, as a consequence, his/her relevant delegated powers cease.

Similarly, the chief executive officer is disqualified from office if addressed with

other kind of precautionary measures that can no longer be appealed, if the Board

of Directors believes that such measures make impossible for the chief executive

officer to exercise his/her delegated powers.

For the purposes of this clause, a plea bargain judgment pursuant to Article 444 of

the Italian Criminal Procedural Code shall be equated to a judgment of conviction,

except in case of extinguishment of the offense.

For the purposes of this clause, where foreign laws shall apply, even if partially,

the Board of Directors ascertains the existence of the circumstances mentioned

herein through a judgment of substantial equivalence.

article 15
If a Shareholders' Meeting has not elected a Chairman of the Board, the Board
shall elect one of its members to that position. It may elect a Deputy Chairman,
who shall stand in for the Chairman in the event of his or her unavailability.

Upon the Chairman's proposal, the Board shall appoint a Secretary, who need not
have any connection with the Company.

article 16

The Board shall meet at the place designated in the notice whenever the
Chairman or, in case the latter is unavailable, the Deputy Chairman deems
necessary. The Board may also be convened in the ways provided for in Article
25.5 of these bylaws.

The Board of Directors must also be convened when at least two Directors — or
one if the Board consists of three members — so request in writing to resolve on a
specific matter (to be indicated in the aforesaid request) regarding the
management of the Company that they consider to be of particular importance.
Board meetings may also be held by means of telecommunications provided that
all the participants can be identified and such identification is acknowledged in the
minutes of the meeting, and that they are allowed to follow and participate in real
time in the discussion of the matters considered, exchanging documents if need
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16.3

17.1

18.1
18.2

19.1

19.2

20.1

20.2

20.3

be; in such case, the meeting of the Board of Directors shall be deemed held in
the place where whoever chairs the meeting is and where the Secretary must
also be in order to allow the related minutes to be drawn up and signed.

The Board shall normally be called at least five days before the date on which the
meeting is to be held. This period may be shorter in urgent cases. The Board of
Directors shall decide the procedures for convening its own meetings.

article 17
Board meetings shall be chaired by the Chairman or, if the latter is absent or
detained, by the Deputy Chairman if one has been appointed. If the latter is also
absent, they are to be chaired by the oldest Director.

article 18
The quorum for meetings of the Board shall be a majority of the Directors in office.
Resolutions shall be adopted by an absolute majority of the Directors present; in
case of a tie, the vote of the person chairing the meeting shall be decisive.

article 19
The resolutions of the Board of Directors shall appear in minutes which, signed by
whoever chairs the meeting and by the Secretary, are to be transcribed in a book
kept according to the law for this purpose.
Copies of the minutes shall be fully certified if signed by the Chairman or whoever
acts in his or her behalf, and by the Secretary.

article 20

Management of the Company is the exclusive responsibility of the Directors, who

shall carry out the actions necessary to achieve the corporate purpose.

In addition to exercising the powers entrusted to it by the law, the Board of

Directors shall have the power to adopt resolutions concerning:

a) mergers and demergers in the cases provided for by the law;

b) the establishment or elimination of secondary headquarters;

¢) which of the Directors shall represent the Company;

d) the reduction of the share capital in case of the withdrawal of one or more
shareholders;

e) the harmonization of the bylaws with provisions of the law;

f) the transfer of the registered office within Italy.

Pursuant to the procedure for transactions with related parties adopted by the

Company:

a) the ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, pursuant to Article 2364, paragraph 1,
subsection 5, of the Civil Code, may authorize the Board of Directors to enter
into related parties transactions of major importance, which do not fall within
the competence of the Shareholders’ Meeting, notwithstanding the negative

11



20.4

20.5

opinion of the related parties Committee, provided that, without prejudice to the
majorities required by law, bylaws and provisions applicable in cases of
conflicts of interest, the Shareholders’ Meeting resolves upon also with the
favourable vote of at least half of the voting unrelated shareholders. In any
case, the entering into of the foregoing transactions is prevented only if the
unrelated shareholders attending the Shareholders’ Meeting represent at least
10% of the share capital with voting rights;

b) in case the Board of Directors intends to submit to the approval of the
Shareholders’ Meeting a transaction with related parties of major importance,
which fall within the competence of the Shareholders’ Meeting, notwithstanding
the negative opinion of the related parties Committee, the transaction may be
entered into only if the Shareholder’s Meeting resolves upon with the majorities
and in compliance with the requirements set forth under the previous
subsection a);

c) the Board of Directors or the delegated Bodies may resolve upon, applying the
exemptions provided for in the procedure and subject to the conditions
indicated therein, the entering into by the Company, directly or through its
subsidiaries, of urgent transactions with related parties which do not fall within
the competence of the Shareholders’ Meeting and which are not subject to the
authorization of the Shareholders’ Meeting itself.

The delegated bodies shall promptly report to the Board of Directors and the
Board of Statutory Auditors — or, absent the delegated bodies, the Directors shall
promptly report to the Board of Statutory Auditors — at least quarterly, and in any
case during the meetings of the Board of Directors, on the activity carried out, the
management of the Company in general and the prospects for the future, as well
as the most important transactions affecting the income statement, cash flow and
the balance sheet, or in any case that are most important because of their size or
characteristics carried out by the Company and its subsidiaries; they shall
specifically report on transactions in which they have an interest themselves or on
behalf of third parties or that are influenced by the entity — if there is one — who
directs and coordinates the Company.

The Board of Directors shall appoint, and revoke the appointment of, an executive

in charge of preparing the corporate accounting documents, after the Board of

Statutory Auditors has expressed its opinion.

The executive in charge of preparing the corporate accounting documents must

have acquired experience for a total of at least three years in the performance of:

a) executive duties regarding the preparation and/or analysis and/or evaluation
and/or checking of corporate documents that present accounting issues of a
complexity comparable to those connected with the Company’s accounting
documents; or

b) auditing of the accounts of companies with shares listed on regulated markets
in Italy or in other countries of the European Union; or

c) professional activities or university teaching as a tenured professor in the field
of finance or accounting; or

d) executive duties in public bodies or government offices involved in the financial
or accounting field.

12
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22.1

222

23.1

23.2

241

article 21

Within the limits set forth in section 2381 of the Civil Code, the Board of Directors
may delegate powers to one of its members, determining the content, the limits
and any procedures of exercise of the delegation. Upon proposal by the Chairman
and in agreement with the Chief Executive Officer, the Board may delegate
powers to others among its members for single acts or classes of acts.

Within the limits of the authority conferred on him, the Chief Executive Officer shall
have the power to delegate single acts or classes of acts to employees of the
Company or to third parties, authorizing sub-delegation.

article 22

The legal authority to represent the Company and sign documents on its behalf is
vested in both the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer and, in the event that the former is unavailable, the Deputy Chairman if one
has been appointed. The signature of the Deputy Chairman shall attest vis-a-vis
third parties the Chairman's unavailability.

The above legal representatives may delegate the power to represent the
Company, including in court, to third parties, who may also be authorized to sub-
delegate.

article 23

The members of the Board of Directors shall be entitled to compensation in an
amount to be determined by a meeting of the shareholders. Once adopted, the
resolution shall apply during subsequent accounting periods until a Shareholders'
Meeting determines otherwise.

The compensation of Directors entrusted with specific tasks in accordance with
the bylaws shall be established by the Board of Directors after receiving the
opinion of the Board of Statutory Auditors.

article 24

The Chairman shall:

a) have the power to represent the Company pursuant to Article 22.1;

b) preside at meetings of the shareholders pursuant to Article 12.1;

c) call and preside at meetings of the Board of Directors pursuant to Articles 16
and 17.1, establish the agenda, coordinate the proceedings, and see that
adequate information on the matters on the agenda is provided to all the
Directors;

d) ascertain that the resolutions of the Board are carried out.

13
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252

Title VI
Board of Statutory Auditors

article 25
A Shareholders’ Meeting shall elect the Board of Statutory Auditors, which is to be
composed of three regular members, and shall determine their compensation.
Three alternate members shall also be elected by a Shareholders’ Meeting.
The members of the Board of Statutory Auditors must possess the requisites of
professionalism and honorableness specified in the Ministry of Justice’s decree n.
162 of March 30, 2000. For the purposes of the provisions of section 1, paragraph
2, b) and c) of this decree, the following are considered closely connected with the
scope of the Company’s business activities: subjects pertaining to commercial law
and tax law, business economics and business finance, as well as subjects and
fields of activity pertaining to energy in general, communications, telematics and
information technology, and network structures.
The composition of the board of statutory auditors, situations of ineligibility and the
limits to the number of offices on boards of directors, boards of statutory auditors,
and similar bodies that the members of the Board of Statutory Auditors may hold
shall be governed by the provisions of the statutes and regulations in force.
Regular members of the Board of Statutory Auditors and alternate members shall
be elected by Shareholders’ Meetings on the basis of the slates presented by the
shareholders, on which the candidates are to be numbered progressively and their
number must not exceed that of the members of the body to be elected.
Only those shareholders who, alone or together with other shareholders, own the
minimum percentage of the share capital established by a regulation of the
Consob for the presentation of slates of candidates for the election of the Board of
Directors are entitled to present slates.
The provisions of law in force shall apply to the presentation, lodgment and
publication of the slates.
The slates are to be divided into two sections: one for the candidates for the office
of regular auditor and the other for candidates for the office of alternate auditor.
The first candidate in each section must be a registered auditor and have
practiced the profession of legal auditor for a period of no less than three years.
In compliance with the applicable laws on balance between genders, slates which,
taking into account both sections, contain a number of candidates equal to or
above three, shall include, both in the first two places of the section of the slate
relating to the regular statutory auditors, and in the first two places of the section
of the slate relating to the alternate statutory auditors, candidates belonging to
different genders.
Two regular members of the Board of Statutory Auditors and two alternate
members are to be drawn, in the numerical order in which they were listed in each
section, from the slate that has obtained the most votes. The remaining regular
member and the remaining alternate are to be elected according to the provisions
of law in force and the procedures specified in Article 14.3, b), to be applied
separately to each of the sections in which the other slates are divided.
When less than the entire Board is being elected, the Shareholders’ Meeting shall
resolve according to the majorities provided for by the law, without following the
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26.1
26.2

26.3

procedure specified above, but in any case in such a way as to ensure that the
composition of the Board of Statutory Auditors is in accordance with the provisions
of section 1, paragraph 1, of the Ministry of Justice’s decree n. 162 of March 30,
2000, as well as with the principle of the representation of minority shareholders
and the applicable laws on balance between genders.

The chairmanship of the Board of Statutory Auditors shall fall to the regular Auditor
elected according to the procedures specified in Article 14.3, b); in the event the
Chairman is substituted, this office shall be filled by the alternate Auditor also
elected according to the procedures specified in Article 14.3, b).

In the event that one of the members drawn from the slate that obtained the most
votes is substituted, his or her place shall be taken by the first of the alternate
members drawn from the same slate. In the event that the replacement, if carried
out through the above modalities, does not allow to form a Board of Statutory
Auditors compliant with the applicable laws on balance between genders, the
replacement shall be carried out in favour of the second alternate Statutory Auditor
belonging to the same slate. If thereafter it is necessary to replace the other
regular Statutory Auditor belonging to the slate which has obtained the highest
number of votes, the latter shall in any case be replaced by the alternate Statutory
Auditor belonging to the same slate.

Auditors whose term has expired shall be eligible for re-election.

The meetings of the Board of Statutory Auditors may also be held by means of
telecommunications provided that all the participants can be identified and such
identification is acknowledged in the minutes of the meeting, and that they are
allowed to follow and participate in real time in the discussion of the matters
considered, exchanging documents if need be; in such case, the meeting of the
Board of Statutory Auditors shall be deemed held in the place where whoever
chairs the meeting is.

Upon notice to the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Board of Statutory
Auditors may call a Shareholders’ Meeting and a Board of Directors’ meeting. The
powers concerned may also be exercised by at least two members of the Board of
Statutory Auditors with regard to Shareholders’ Meetings and by at least one
member of the Board of Statutory Auditors with regard to meetings of the Board of
Directors.

Title VII
Financial Statements and Earnings

article 26
The accounting period shall end on December 31 of every year.
At the end of each accounting period, the Board of Directors shall draw up the
Company’s financial statements as required by law.
The Board of Directors is authorized to distribute interim dividends to shareholders
during the course of the year.

article 27
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27.1

28.1

29.1

30.1

31.1

31.2

Dividends not collected within five years from the day they become payable shall
lapse in favor of the Company and be posted directly to reserves.

Title ViII
Dissolution and Liquidation of the Company

article 28
Should the Company be dissolved, a Shareholders’ Meeting is to determine the
liquidation procedures and appoint one or more liquidators, establishing their
powers and compensation.

Title IX
Transitory and General Rules

article 29
Any matters not expressly provided for herein shall be governed by the provisions
of the Civil Code and applicable statutes.

article 30
The Company is to continue to carry out all the activities that - under legislative
decree n. 79 of March 16, 1999, published in the Gazzetta Ufficiale, issue 75 of
March 31, 1999 - have been temporarily entrusted to it pending their award to
other entities according to the provisions of the legislative decree.

article 31

The provisions of articles 14.3, 14.5, and 25.2 aimed at ensuring the fulfiiment of
the applicable laws on balance between genders shall apply to the first three
appointments, respectively, of the Board of Directors and of the Board of Statutory
Auditors, following the coming into force and the effectiveness of the provisions of
article 1 of Law July 12, 2011, No. 120, published on the Official Gazette No. 174
of July 28, 2011.

The composition of the Board of Statutory Auditors indicated under article 25.1,
which is characterized by the presence of three regular Statutory Auditors and
three alternate Statutory Auditors, shall apply from the first appointment of the
supervisory board following the coming into force and the effectiveness of the
provisions of article 1 of Law July 12, 2011, No. 120, published on the Official
Gazette No. 174 of July 28, 2011. Until such moment, the Board of Statutory
Auditors is composed by three regular Statutory Auditors and two alternate
Statutory Auditors.
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SCHEDULE E

Financial statements as of September 30, 2015 of Enel
Green Power S.p.A.



Income statement

Euro First nine months
of which with of which
related with related
2015 parties 2014 parties
Revenues and income 3
640,831,1 633,597,54
Revenues from sales and services 724,843,287 97 633,396,583 1
204,638,0 239,973,12
Other revenues and income 224,021,384 18 343,160,684 5
(Subtota 976,557,26
1) 948,864,671 7
Costs 4
21,903,64
Electricity purchases 22,065,777 9 23,148,353 23,134,280
116,443,5
Services and other materials 289,893,108 18 180,374,475 91,964,839
Personnel 110,374,135 111,627,904
Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses 216,681,714 205,592,450
Other operating expenses 37,188,511 32,685,441
(21,573,129
Capitalized costs (18,178,478) )
(Subtota 531,855,49
1) 658,024,767 4
Net income/(expense) from commodity contracts measured at (10,524, 66,015,08
fair value 5 (10,524,096) 096) 66,015,082 2
510,716,85
Operating income 280,315,808 5
Income from equity investments 6 8,475,648 8,475,648 44,208,735 44,208,735
(54,136,4 (8,495,661
Net financial income/(expense) from derivatives 7 (54,136,461) 61) (8,495,661) )
11,717,75 (79,959,007 (67,240,19
Net other financial income /(expense) 8 (8,214,369) 6 ) 1)
(Subtota (44,245,93
1) (53,875,182) 3)
466,470,922
Income before taxes 226,440,626 2
(162,576,19
Income Taxes 9 (86,773,166) 5)
303,894,722
Net Income from continuing operations 139,667,460 7
(4,950,000
Net Income from discontinued operations - )
298,944,72
Net Income for the period 139,667,460 7




Balance sheet

Euro Notes
of which with of which with
as of related as of related
ASSETS 30.09.2015 parties 31.12.2014 parties
Non-current assets 10
Properties, plants and equipment 4,808,240,886 - 4,847,103,496 -
Intangible assets 22,541,510 - 28,125,101 -
Goodwill 6,370,310 - 6,370,310 -
Deferred tax assets 139,687,906 - 136,035,609 -
Equity Investments 5,328,313,066 = 4,592,561,676 -
Medium/long-term financial receivables and
securities - - - -
Derivatives 4,637,456 2,071,257 2,268,421 2,268,421
Other non-current financial assets 13,998,133 11,673,174 27,208,189 24,655,532
Other non-current assets 9,114,460 2,766,078 8,690,825 2,766,078
(Total) 10,332,903,727 9,648,363,627
Current assets 11
Inventories 107,891,623 = 89,045,755 -
Trade receivables 494,006,034 399,202,456 358,426,735 328,680,940
Receivables for works in progress on order - - - -
Tax receivables 82,866,989 64,897,604 2,625,243 433
Financial receivables and short-term securities - - - -
Derivatives 763,851 763,851 10,539,952 10,539,952
Other current financial assets 480,272,106 479,993,843 792,979,731 792,690,078
Other current assets 121,804,801 74,468,617 208,893,324 118,238,011
Cash and cash equivalents 10,541,459 - 19,020,067 -
(Total) 1,298,146,863 1,481,530,807
TOTAL ASSETS 11,631,050,590 11,129,894,434
of which with of which with
related as of relaetd
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'EQUITY as of 30.09.2015 parties 31.12.2014 parties
Share capital 1,000,000,000 - 1,000,000,000 -
Reserves 4,637,089,228 - 4,642,735,941 -
Retained earnings/(loss carried forward) 1,095,239,874 - 824,202,673 -
Net income for the period 139,667,460 - 431,037,201 -
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12 6,871,996,562 6,897,975,815
Non-current liabilities 13
Long-term borrowings 2,130,286,410 1,420,000,000 1,956,298,130 1,200,000,000
Post-employment and other employee benefits 39,559,782 - 39,219,189 -
Provisions for risks and charges 51,033,465 - 60,256,528 -
Deferred tax liabilities 8,172,426 = 9,475,171 N
Derivatives 43,869,873 43,869,873 51,924,721 47,909,736
Other non-current liabilities 55,179,471 - 55,328,890 -
(Total) 2,328,101,427 2,172,502,629
Current liabilities 14
1,923,054,15 1,562,406,99
Short-term borrowings 1,923,054,422 3 1,567,883,542 8
Current portion of long-term borrowings 71,379,939 = 55,089,067 =
Current portion of long-term provisions and short-
term provisions 8,225,670 = 16,251,888 -
Trade payables 196,630,479 110,828,812 247,129,469 122,259,342
Income tax payables 85,956,862 = 30,844,325 30,527,563
Derivatives 1,238,711 1,238,711 5,171,413 5,171,413
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Other current financial liabilities 53,605,176 47,030,328 30,202,287 27,532,916

Other current liabilities 90,861,342 4,310,850 106,843,999 5,946,308
(Total) 2,430,952,601 2,059,415,990
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,759,054,028 4,231,918,619
11,129,894,43
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 11,631,050,590 4

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Enel Green Power S.p.A.’s business

Enel Green Power SpA, which operates in the production of electricity using
renewable sources, has the legal form of joint stock company, with registered

office at viale Regina Margherita, 125, Rome.

2 Reference accounting standards

The Financial Statements of Enel Green Power S.p.A. as of September 30, 2015
were prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement criteria set
forth in international accounting standards (International Accounting Standards
- IAS and International Financial Reporting Standards - IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the IFRIC and SIC
interpretations, recognized in the European Union pursuant to EC regulation no.
1606/2002 in force as of the close of the period.

In particular, such criteria are in line with those adopted for the preparation
of the Company’s Annual Financial Statement as of December 31, 2014, to which
reference is made for an extensive description of the same. It should be noted
that the application of the accounting standards which became applicable
starting on January 1, 2015 did not have any effect on this Financial

Statements.



These Financial Statements are comprised of the Income Statement, the Balance

Sheet and related notes the purpose of which is to describe the composition of

the main financial statement items as well as the most significant changes that

took place over the course of the first nine months of year 2015. The Financial

Statements as of September 30, 2015 therefore does not contain all of the

information required for the annual Financial Statements and, therefore, must be

read in conjunction with the annual Financial Statement as of December 31, 2014.

The currency used for the presentation of the financial statements is the Euro,

the functional currency of the company, and the amounts set forth 1in the

comments are expressed in Euro millions, except where otherwise indicated.

Under the Consob provisions issued on this matter, the Income Statement and the

Balance Sheet indicate transactions with related parties, identified in

accordance with international accounting standards and the relevant Consob

provisions. It should be noted that such transactions are concluded in the

Company’s interest and are governed at market/arm’s length conditions or, in

other words, at conditions that would apply between two independent parties.



3 Revenues

Revenues from Sales and services

Euro millions First nine months

2015 2014 Change
Energy 567 561 6
Other sales and services 158 72 86
Total 725 633 92

Revenues from sales and services of Euro 725 million (of which Euro 58 million

pertained to Group’s foreign companies), show an increase of Euro 92 million

compared to the first nine months of 2014 (Euro 633 million, of which Euro 55

million pertained to the Group’s foreign companies) mainly due to the increase

in Other sales and services of Euro 86 million (of which Euro 3 million

pertained to the Group’s foreign companies) .

Other Revenues and income

Euro millions First nine months

2015 2014 Change
Green certificates 201 235 (34)
Other revenues and income 23 108 (85)
Total 224 343 (119)

The Other revenues and income of Euro 224 million (of which Euro 3 million

pertained to foreign companies of the Group), show a decrease of Euro 119

million compared to the first nine months of 2014 (Euro 343 million, of which

Euro 4 million pertained to foreign companies of the Group) as a result of the



reduction of green certificates in the amount of Euro 34 million and in the

other revenues and income in the amount of Euro 85 million.

4 Costs
Euro millions First nine months

2015 2014 Change
Electricity purchases 22 23 (1)
Services and other materials 290 180 110
Personnel 110 112 (2)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses 217 206 11
Other operating expenses 37 33 4
Capitalized costs (18) (22) 4
Total 658 532 126

The costs for the electricity purchases, of Euro 22 million (Euro 23 million in

the first nine months of 2014), refer almost entirely to transactions with

related parties. In particular, the item includes:

e with regard to Euro 18 million, the energy purchased from GME Spa (Euro 3

million in the first nine months of 2014);

e with regard to Euro 3 million, the procurement from Terna Spa of resources

necessary for the dispatch service (14 million di euro in the first nine

months of 2014);

e with regard to Euro 1 million, energy purchased from Enel Energia Spa for

the functioning of ancillary power plant services directly or indirectly

connected with power generation, illumination services and motive power

(Euro 4 million in the first nine months of 2014).



The change reflects essentially the lower costs of dispatch by Terna Spa (Euro

11 million) and the higher costs for the purchase of energy from GME.

The costs for Services and other materials, in the amount of Euro 290 million

(Euro 180 million in the first nine months of 2014) refer to costs for services

in the amount of Euro 117 million (Euro 106 million in the first nine months of

2014), costs for the purchase of materials in the amount of Euro 129 million

(Euro 32 million in the first nine months of 2014), costs for the use of third

party assets in the amount of Euro 44 million (Euro 42 million in the first nine

months of 2014). The change is mainly attributable to higher costs for the

purchase of photovoltaic panels (in the amount of Euro 92 million).

The Personnel, in the amount of Euro 110 million (Euro 112 million in the first

nine months of 2014) are substantially in line with those of the corresponding

period in the previous year.

Employees as of September 30, 2015 total 2,045 (1,972 as of December 31, 2014),

up by 73 units compared to the previous year. The average number as of September

30, 2015 is 2,010 units (1,966 units as of September 30, 2014) up by 44 units.

Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, in the amount of Euro 217

million, are up by Euro 11 million over the corresponding period in the previous

year mainly as a result of higher depreciation of tangible assets.

Other operating expenses of Euro 37 million (Euro 33 million in the first nine

months of 2014) include mainly the contributions and association quotas mainly

related to the amounts paid to Municipalities, Provinces and Regions, where

power plants are located, on the basis of specific agreements between the



parties; 1in particular, they include the contributions paid to the Region of
Tuscany in the context of the Voluntary Implementing Agreement of the Protocol
of Understanding entered into between Enel and the Region of Tuscany which
provides for a contribution by Enel Green Power Spa calculated on the basis of
the total production in the previous year in the amount of Euro 22 million
(Euro 21 million in the first nine months of 2014) and taxes and duties that
include essentially IMU totaling Euro 11 million (Euro 8 million in the first
nine months of 2014).

Capitalized Costs, in the amount of Euro 18 million, fall by Euro 4 million with
respect to the first nine months of 2014 (Euro 22 million) and refer mainly to

the cost of employees dedicated to the planning and construction of plants.

5 Net income/ (expense) from commodity contracts measured at fair
value

The net income/(expense) from commodity contracts measured at fair value |,
negative in the amount of Euro 11 million, refer entirely to costs and proceeds
on CFH derivative contracts in place with related parties and unwound as of

September 30, 2015.

6 Income from equity investments

The Income from equity investments, in the amount of Euro 8 million (Euro 44
million in the first nine months of 2014), refer:
e with respect to Euro 4 million, to the subsidiary Maicor Wind (unchanged

with respect to the first nine months of 2014);



e with respect to Euro 3 million, to the subsidiary EGP Calabria (unchanged
with respect to the first nine months of 2014);
e with respect to Euro 1 million, to the subsidiary Energia Eolica Srl
(unchanged with respect to the first nine months of 2014).
The item registers a decrease in the amount of Euro 36 million compared to the
same period in the previous year and relates mainly to dividends of the
affiliate LaGeo, which was sold in the fourth quarter of 2014 (Euro 23 million)
as well as the dividends of the subsidiaries Enel Green Power Cutro and Enel
Green Power Canaro (respectively, Euro 5 million and Euro 1 million) which were

merged by incorporation over the course of 2014.

7 Net financial income/expense from derivatives

Euro millions First nine months

2015 2014 2015-2014

Income from derivatives

Income on trading derivatives and non-IAS hedge derivative 20 2 18

Total income from derivatives 20 2 18

Expense from derivatives

Expense on cash flow hedge derivatives (8) (8) b
Expense on trading derivatives and non-IAS hedge derivatives (66) (2) (64)
Total expense from derivatives (74) (10) (64)
Total income/(expense) from derivatives (54) (8) (46)

The net financial income and costs from derivative contracts, negative in the

amount of Euro 54 million, rose by Euro 46 million compared to the first nine

months of 2014; the change is attributable to the rise in charges from trading

derivatives and non- IAS hedge derivatives, which was partially offset by the

rise in financial income from trading derivatives.
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8 Other net financial income/expense

Euro millions

First nine months

2015 2014 2015-2014
Foreign exchange gains 63 - 63
Interest and other income from financial assets 26 17 9
Total financial income 89 17 72
Foreign exchange losses (11) - (11)
Interest and other chargeson financial liabilities (86) (97) 11
Total financial expense (97) (97) -
Total financial income/(expense) (8) (80) 72

Other net financial expense fall by Euro 72 million wupon

financial income that increase by Euro 72 million,

the registration of

exchange differences and interest income accrued over the period.

9 Taxes

Euro millions

First nine months

related to positive foreign

2015 2014 2015-2014
Current taxes 86 166 (80)
Adjustments for income related to previous years 4 (4) 8
Deferred tax expense/(income) (3) (4)
Total 87 163 (76)

Taxes, in the amount of Euro 87 million,

the same period in the previous year.

10 Non-current assets

Euro millions

fall by Euro 76 million with respect to

11



as of 30.09.2015 as of 31.12.2014 Change
Real estate properties, plants and machinery 4,808 4,847 (39)
Intangible assets 23 28 (5)
Goodwill 6 6 -
Deferred tax assets 140 136 4
Equity Investments 5,328 4,593 735
Derivatives 5 2 3
Other non-current financial assets 14 27 (13)
Other non-current assets 9 9 -
Total 10,333 9,648 685

Non-current assets rise by Euro 685 million compared to the figure as of

December 31, 2014. Such trend was caused essentially by the rise in equity

investments by Euro 735 million, partially offset by the decrease property,

plants and equipment by Euro 39 million and the decrease in other non-current

financial assets.

Over the <course of the first nine months of 2015, the wvalue of equity

investments rose mainly as the result of the following phenomena:

e the recapitalization of the subsidiary Enel Green Power International BV

(EGPI BV) in the total amount of Euro 274 million, to be accounted under the

share premium reserve of EGPI BV that was necessary in order to proceed with

the recapitalization of a number of its subsidiaries;

e the recapitalization of the subsidiary 3Sun Srl in the total amount of

Euro 449 million;

e the purchase of the entire shareholding of Energia Eolica for a total

amount of Euro 9 million.

11l Current assets

Euro millions

as of 30.09.2015 as of 31.12.2014 Change

12



Inventories 108 89 19

Trade Receivables 494 358 136
Tax receivables 83 3 80
Derivatives 1 11 (10)
Other current financial assets 480 793 (313)
Other current assets 122 209 (87)
Cash and cash equivalents 10 19 (9)
Total 1,298 1,482 (184)

The current assets show, compared to December 31, 2014, a decrease of Euro 184
million that 1is mainly attributable to the fall in other current financial
assets (Euro 313 million) and other current assets (Euro 87 million) which
effect is partially offset by the rise in trade receivables (Euro 136 million)

and receivables for income taxes (Euro 80 million).

12 Shareholders’’Equity

The Shareholders’ Equity of Euro 6,872 million (Euro 6,898 million as of
December 31, 2014) is comprised of share capital (Euro 1,000 million), the legal
reserve (Euro 200 million), other reserves (Euro 4,437 million), earnings
carried forward (Euro 1,095 million) as well as earnings registered in the first
nine months of 2015 (Euro 140 million).

The change in Shareholders’ Equity with respect to the previous year mainly
reflects the entry of income for the period (Euro 140 million) and the

distribution of dividends for year 2014 (Euro 160 million).

13 Non-current Liabilities

Euro millions

as of 30.09.2015 as of 31.12.2014 Change
Long-term borrowings 2,130 1,956 174
Post-employment and other employee benefits 40 39 1
Provisions for risks and charges 51 60 (9)
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Deferred tax liabilities 8 9 (1)

Derivatives 44 52 (8)
Other non-current liabilities 55 55 -
Total 2,328 2,171 157

Non-current liabilities register, compared to December 31, 2014, an increase of

Euro 157 million mainly related to the increase in long-term borrowings (Euro

174 million) partially offset by the decrease in the provisions for risks and

charges (Euro 9 million) and the decline in liabilities related to derivative

instruments (Euro 8 million).

Long-term borrowings, up by Euro 174 million, mainly relate to the borrowings

disbursed to the subsidiary 3Sun Srl.

14 Current liabilities

Euro millions

as of

30.09.2015 as of 31.12.2014 Change
Short-term borrowings 1,923 1,568 355
Current portion of long-term borrowings 71 55 16
Current portion of long-term provisions and short-term provisions 8 16 (8)
Trade payables 197 247 (50)
Income tax payables 86 31 55
Derivatives 1 5 4)
Other current financial liabilities 54 30 24
Other current liabilities 91 107 (16)
Total 2,431 2,059 372

Current liabilities show, compared to December 31, 2014, an upward change of

Euro 372 million attributable essentially to the rise in short-term borrowings

(Euro 335 million) and income tax payables (Euro 55 million), partially offset

by a decrease in trade payables (Euro 50 million) and other current liabilities

(Euro 16 million).
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Short-term Borrowings register an increase of Euro 355 million with respect to

December 31, 2014, mainly as the result of an increase in the debt exposure

toward the Parent Company Enel SpA and toward the Italian development companies

(Euro 410 million), which effect was partially offset by a reduction in the debt

position with the Parent Company’s financial company Enel Finance International

(Euro 200 million).

Income tax payables show an increase of Euro 55 million compared to December 31,

2014, as a result of the entry of estimated income taxes for the period.

15 Net Financial Position

Set forth below is the net financial position of Enel Green Power Spa as of

September 30, 2015 and as

instructions dated July 28, 2006,

as provided for in the presentation methods of Enel Green Power:

Euro millions

of December

31, 2014 in 1line

with the CONSOB

reconciled with the net financial indebtedness

as of September 30, 2015

as of December 31, 2014

Liquidity 10 19
Short-term financial receivables 478 791
Short-term portion of non-current financial debts (71) (55)
Other short-term financial payables (1,923) (1,568)
Short-term financial debts (1,994) (1,623)
Net current financial position (1,506) (813)
Non-current bank debt (710) (756)
Other non-current debts (1,420) (1,200)
Non-current financial debt (2,130) (1,956)
Non-current financial position (2,130) (1,956)
NET FINANCIAL POSITION as per CONSOB instructions (3,636) (2,769)
Long-term financial receivables 14 27
NET FINANCIAL DEBT (3,622) (2,742)
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SCHEDULE F

Financial statements as of September 30, 2015

of Enel SpA



Accounting prospectuses

Income statement of Enel SpA as

of September 30, 2015

Euro Notes
2015 2014
of which with of which with
related parties related parties
Revenues
Revenues from services 3.a 165,269,100 165,543,737 194,693,378 194,687,645
Other revenues and income 3.b 3,084,443 2,349,521 4,105,443 3,714,000
(Subtotal) 168,353,543 198,798,821
Costs
Purchases of consumables 4.a 1,070,152 801,938
Leases and rentals 4.b 112,513,109 44,982,817 125,536,464 49,290,336
Personnel 4.c 113,733,823 86,927,555
Depreciation, amortization and impairment
losses 4.d 6,315,935 6,213,122
Other operating expenses 4.e 15,397,914 72,825 13,467,341 88,479
(Subtotal) 249,030,933 232,946,420
Operating income (80,677,390) (34,147,599)
Income from equity investments 5 1,545,362,247 1,545,362,247 1,818,272,847 1,818,272,847
Financial income from derivatives 6 2,733,042,814 399,269,721 1,715,576,800 321,363,910
Other financial income 6 126,261,740 115,709,975 177,177,316 152,622,507
Financial expensefrom derivative 6 2,461,899,727 1,888,810,253 1,493,641,439 873,828,812
Other financial expense 6 957,431,431 1,370,120 1,119,667,345 2,639,873
(Subtotal) 985,335,643 1,097,718,179
Income before tax 904,658,253 1,063,570,580
Income taxes 7 (161,359,518) (111,503,727)
EARNINGS FOR THE PERIOD 1,066,017,771 1,175,074,307




Balance sheet of Enel SpA as of September 30, 2015

Euro Notes
ASSETS as of 30.09.2015 as of 31.12.2014
of which with of which with
related parties related parties
Non-current assets 8
Property, plant and equipment 5,863,673 7,795,187
Intangible assets 8,280,027 11,405,854
Deferred tax assets 410,758,825 382,572,824
Equity investments 38,755,868,086 38,754,068,086
Derivatives 2,477,515,892 342,175,546 1,979,171,296 818,817,602
Other non-current financial assets 141,854,808 104,331,524 146,490,819 116,989,366
Other non-current assets 445,351,976 163,767,000 466,782,285 176,864,784
(Total) 42,245,493,287 41,748,286,351
Current assets 9
Trade receivables 215,645,669 210,618,032 131,944,125 126,901,064
Tax receivables 280,318,472 624,614,245
Derivatives 297,163,865 28,271,036 280,273,785 50,482,464
Other current financial assets 5,165,064,056 4,868,046,722 5,040,376,082 4,222,947,341
Other current assets 314.901,999 176,591,651 243,507,371 208,144,734
Cash and cash equivalent 3,946,564,124 6,972,042,465
(Total) 10,219,658,185 13,292,758,073
TOTAL ASSETS 52,465,151,472 55,041,044,424




Euro

Notes

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

as of 30.09.2015

as of 31.12.2014

of which with
of which with related
related parties parties
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 9,403,357,795 9,403,357,795
Reserves 9,197,808,130 9,113,576,853
Retained earnings (loss carried forward) 5,303,025,796 6,061,293,373
Profit for the period 1,066,017,771 558,202,514
TOTAL SHARHEOLDERS' EQUITY 10 24,970,209,492 25,136,430,535
Non-current liabilities 11
Long-term borrowings 14,489,275,811 17,287,754,222
Post-employment and other employee benefits 295,989,750 301,792,836
Provisions for risks and charges 16,194,318 16,242,515
Deferred tax liabilities 329,905,627 251,979,935
Derivatives 2,622,963,249 1,214,145,628 2,483,607,608 469,314,078
Other non-current liabilities 286,974,758 286,925,885 286,974,494 286,925,885
(Subtotal) 18,041,303,513 20,628,351,610
Current liabilities 12
Short-term borrowings 4,690,069,324 2,995,275,040 4,745,815,106 1,319,403,537
Current portion of long-term borrowing 3,057,820,092 2,362,593,688
Trade payables 117,429,529 41,818,689 138,773,087 54,531,005
Derivatives 369,440,198 273,451,184 359,151,436 233,714,323
Other current financial liabilities 466,021,583 64,919,337 694,402,099 54,139,432
Other current liabilities 752,857,741 576,783,321 975,526,863 396,492,507
(Subtotal) 9,453,638,467 9,276,262,279
TOTAL LIABILITIES 27,494,941,980 29,904,613,889
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 52,465,151,472 55,041,044,424




Comments

1. Enel SpA’s business

Enel SpA which operates in the electricity and gas sector, 1s organized under the
legal form of Jjoint stock company and has its registered office at wviale Regina
Margherita 137, Rome.
Enel SpA, 1in its role as industrial holding company, defines the strategic
objectives at the Group level and that of its subsidiaries and coordinates their
business operations. The activities which Enel SpA, in its role as entity that
provides guidance and coordination, provides to the other companies of the Group,
may be summarized as follows:

e corporate governance;

e extraordinary finance and financial planning;

e tax planning and strategy;

e risk assesment management;

e legal policies;

e guidelines pertaining to mangement training and compensation policies;

e institutional relationships;

e guidelines on the matter of accounting;

e strategic marketing.

In the context of the Group, Enel SpA performs, directly and through its
subsidiary Enel Finance International NV, the function of centralized treasury

(with the exception of the Endesa Group) ensuring access to the money and capital



markets. Moreover, the company provides, directly and through its subsidiary Enel

Insurance NV, coverage for insurance risks.

2. Reference accounting standards

This Financial Statement of Enel SpA as of September 30, 2015 was drafted in
accordance with the determination and measurement criteria set forth in
international accounting standards (International Accounting Standards - IAS and
International Financial Reporting Standards - IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the IFRIC and SIC interpretations,
recognized in the European Union pursuant to EC regulation no. 1606/2002 in force
as of the close of the period.

In particular, such criteria are in line with those adopted for the preparation of
the Company’s Annual Financial Statement as of December 31, 2014, to which
reference 1s made for an extensive description of the same. It should be noted
that the application of the accounting standards which became applicable starting
on January 1, 2015 did not have any effect on this Financial Statement.

This Financial Statement 1is comprised of the Income Statement, the Balance Sheet
(Accounting prospectuses) and explanatory notes the purpose of which 1s to
describe the composition of the main financial statement items as well as the most
significant changes that took place over the course of the first nine months of
year 2015. The Financial Statement as of September 30, 2015 therefore does not
contain all of the information required for the annual Financial Statement and,
therefore, must be read in conjunction with the annual Financial Statement as of

December 31, 2014.



The currency used for the presentation of the financial data 1is the Euro, the

functional currency of the company, and the amounts set forth in the comments are

expressed in Euro millions, except where otherwise indicated.

Under the Consob provisions issued on this matter, the Income Statement and the

Balance Sheet indicate transactions with related parties, identified in accordance

with international accounting standards and the relevant Consob provisions. It

should be noted that such transactions are concluded in the Company’s interest and

are governed at market/arm’s length conditions or, in other words, at conditions

that would apply between two independent parties.



Information on the Income statement

Revenues

3.a Revenues from services - Euro 165 million

The “Revenues from services” are comprised as follows:

Euro millions First nine months

2015 2014 2015-2014
Services
Group companies 165 195 (30)

Third parties - - -

Total revenues from sales and services 165 195 (30)

Revenues for the sale and services as of September 30, 2015 total Euro 165

millions and refer exclusively:

1) to services rendered to the subsidiaries in the context of its guidance and

coordination function;

2) to the charge-back of costs of various types incurred and attributable to the

subsidiaries.

With respect to the same period in the previous year, revenues from the sale and

services, which are affected by the new organizational structure adopted by the

Group and the Parent Company’s new remuneration model, have fallen by Euro 30

million.

3.b Other revenues and income - Euro 3 million



The other revenues and income, totaling Euro 3 million, refer essentially to
seconded personnel and, compared to the first nine months of 2014, have declined

by Euro 1 million.

Costs

4.a Purchases of consumables - Euro 1 million

Costs for “Purchases of consumables” totaling Euro 1 million in 2015, refer to the

purchase from third party suppliers of various types of consumables.

4.b Services, leases and rentals - Euro 113 million

Costs for “Services, leases and rentals” are comprised as follows.

Euro millions First nine months

2015 2014 2015-2014
Services 101 111 (10)
Leases and rentals 12 15 (3)
Total services, leases and rentals 113 126 (13)

The “Services”, totaling Euro 101 million, refer to services rendered by third

parties in the amount of 66 Euro million (75 Euro millions in the first nine

months of 2014) and by companies of the Group totaling 35 Euro million (36 Euro

million in the first nine months of 2014).

In particular, the decrease 1in costs for services rendered by third party

companies, 1in the amount of Euro 9 million, is attributable to the decrease in

advertising, propaganda and press expenses, resulting from the new organizational



structure implemented by the Group, which entailed the transfer of a portion of

communication activities from the Holding to the Countries.

The decline 1in costs for services rendered by companies of the Group, totaling

Euro 1 million, 1s attributable essentially to the decrease in both costs of

personnel seconded from the various companies of the Group and costs for

“miscellaneous services” provided by a number of subsidiaries, in part offset by

the higher costs for information technologies services supplied by the subsidiary

Enel Italia Srl.

The “Leases and rentals” amount to Euro 12 million and have decreased by Euro 3

million compared to the previous period; the change is attributable essentially to

the lower costs for rentals and leases of real estate properties owned by the

subsidiary Enel Italia Srl.

4.c Personnel - Euro 114 million

The cost of labor totals Euro 114 million, up by Euro 27 million compared to the

same period in the previous year, attributable essentially to the rise in the item

“Wages and salaries” and the related social costs (Euro 4 million), as well as the

rise in costs related to the Long Term Incentive plan (Euro 5 million).

It should also be noted that the average number of employees rose by 313 units as

a result of the new organizational structure adopted by the Group.
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Euro millions First nine months

2015 2014 2015-2014
Wages and salaries 69 51 18
Social security costs 21 19
Post-employment benefits 5 3
Other costs and other incentive plans 19 14
Total 114 87 27
4.d Depreciation, amortization and impairment 1losses - Euro 6

million

The item “Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses” totaling Euro 6
million in 2015 is comprised exclusively of amortizations of properties, plants
and equipment and intangible assets and is unchanged compared to the same period

of the previous year.

4.e Other operating expenses - Euro 15 million

The other operating costs, totaling Euro 15 millions, show an increase of Euro 2
million attributable essentially to lower releases (Euro 5 million), compared to
2014, of the fund for litigation, in part offset by the decline (Euro 4 million)
in other operating costs related to non-recurring cost items that arose in the

same period the previous year.

The operating income is negative in the amount of Euro 81 million and, compared to
the same period the previous year, has worsened by Euro 47 million attributable

essentially to the joint effect of lower revenues from the supply of services

11



rendered to the companies of the Group, greater costs of personnel and the

decrease in costs for the leases and rentals.
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5. Income from equity investments - Euro 1,545 million

Income from equity investments, in the amount of Euro 1,545 million,

dividends approved by resolution by the Shareholders’

refer to

Meetings of the subsidiaries

and affiliates in the amount of Euro 1,544.7 million and the other companies in

which equity stakes are held in the amount of 0.7 Euro millions.

Euro millions

First nine months

2015 2014 2015-2014
Dividends from subsidiaries and affiliates: 1,544 1,818 (274)
Enel Produzione SpA - 223 (223)
Enel Distribuzione SpA 1,245 1,373 (128)
Enelpower SpA = 1 (1)
Enel Factor SpA - 3 (3)
Enel Italia Srl 9 7 2
Enel Energia SpA 159 16 143
Enel Servizio Elettrico SpA - 85 (85)
Enel Green Power SpA 109 109 -
Enel Iberoamérica SL 21 - 21
CESI SpA 1 1 -
Dividends from other entities: 1 - 1
Emittenti Titoli SpA 1 - 1
TOTAL PROCEEDS FROM SHAREHOLDINGS 1,545 1,818 (273)
6. Net financial income/ (costs) - Euro (559) million
Net financial costs are summarized below:
Euro millions First nine months
2015 2014 2015-2014
Financial income
interest and other income from non-current financial assets 4 4 -
interest and other income from current financial assets 116 158 (42)
interest income and other income collected 6 6 -
positive exchange rate differences 4 9 (5)
Income from derivatives 2,730 1,716 1,014
income from derivatives related to the Group 2,350 1,325 1,025
income from derivatives related to Enel SpA 380 391 (11)
Total income 2,860 1,893 967
Financial costs
interest and other costs on financial debts (722) (787) 65
negative exchange rate differences (230) (262) 32
Accretion of post-employment and other employee benefit and other funds (4) (7) 3
other interest paid and costs (2) (55) 53

13



write-down of financial assets 1 (9) 10

costs of derivative instruments (2,462) (1,494) (968)
costs of derivatives related to the Group (2,361) (1,336) (1,025)
Costs of derivatives related to Enel SpA (101) (158) 57

Total costs (3,419) (2,614) (805)

TOTAL NET FINANCIAL INCOME/(COSTS) (559) (721) 162

The net financial <costs, totaling Euro 559 million, reflect essentially the
interest paid on the financial indebtedness (Euro 722 million) offset by net
proceeds on derivative instruments hedging interest rates (Euro 43 millions) and
interest earned and other income from financial assets (totaling Euro 120
million).

The decrease in net financial costs compared to the same period in the previous
year, totaling Euro 162 million, was generated essentially by the lower interest
on financial debts (Euro 65 million), the positive net change related to
transactions in derivative instruments related to Enel SpA (Euro 46 million), and

the decrease in other interest payable and costs (Euro 53 million).

7. Income taxes - Euro (161) million

The income taxes accrued as of September 30, 2015 are positive in the amount of
Euro 161 million and are attributable to the balance of the economic items that

are relevant for tax purposes.
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Information on the Balance sheet

Assets

8. Non-current assets - Euro 42.245 million

Non-current assets rise by Euro 497 million compared to the value registered as of

December 31, 2014. Such trend is essentially attributable to the rise in the item

“Derivatives” (Euro 498 million) due to the valuation as of September 30, 2015 of

financial derivative contracts (comprised of derivatives on interest rates in the

amount of Euro 450 million and on exchange rates in the amount of Euro 2,027

million).

Set forth below are the changes in the equity investments over the course of 2015:

(Write- Other changes - Quota Contributions to (Write- Other changes - Quota

Original downs) / IFRIC 11 and IFRS Book held capital account and Original downs)/ IFRIC 11 and IFRS Book held

Euro millions cost appreciations 2 value % to cover losses cost Appreciations 2 value %
as of 31.12.2014 Changes in 2015 as of 30.09.2015

A) idiaries
Enel Produzione SpA 4,892 (512) 4 4,384 100.0 - 4,892 (512) 4 4,384 100.0
Enel Ingegneria e Ricerca SpA 46 (19) 1 28 100.0 - 46 (19) 1 28 100.0
Enel Distribuzione SpA 4,054 - 2 4,056 100.0 - 4,054 = 2 4,056 100.0
Enel Servizio Elettrico SpA 110 - - 110 100.0 - 110 ) ) 110 100.0
Enel Trade SpA 901 - 1 902 100.0 - 901 ) 1 902 100.0
Enel Green Power SpA 3,640 - 2 3642 68.3 - 3,640 - 2 3,642 68.3
Enel Investment Holding BV 8,498 (4,473) - 4,025 100.0 - 8,498 (4,473) = 4,025 100.0
Enelpower SpA 189 (159) - 30 100.0 - 189 (159) = 30 100.0
Enel Energia SpA 1,321 (8) - 1,313 100.0 - 1,321 (8) ) 1,313 100.0
Enel Iberoamérica SL 18,300 - - 18,300 100.0 - 18,300 - - 18,300 100.0
Enel.Factor SpA 18 - - 18 100.0 - 18 = = 18 100.0
Enel Sole Srl 5 - - 5 100.0 - 5] = = 5 100.0
Enel Italia Srl 525 (41) 3 487 100.0 - 525 (41) 3 487 100.0
Enel.NewHydro Srl 70 (54) - 16 100.0 - 70 (54) - 16 100.0
Enel Finance International NV 1,414 - - 1,414 100.0 - 1,414 = = 1,414 100.0
Enel Oil & Gas SpA - - - - - 2 2 = = 2 100.0
Total subsidiaries 43,983 (5,266) 13 38,730 2 43,985 (5,266) 13 38,732
C) Associates
CESI SpA 23 - - 23 42.7 - 23 = = 23 42.7
Total Associates 23 - - 23 - 23 = = 23
D) Other companies
Elcogas SA 5 (5) - - 4.3 - 5 (5) = o 4.3
Emittenti Titoli SpA 1 - - 1 10.0 - 1 = = 1 10.0
Idrosicilia SpA - - - - 1.0 - - - - o 1.0
Total other companies 6 (5) - 1 - 6 (5) - 1
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TOTAL EQUITY INVESTMENTS _ 44,012 (5,271) 13 38,754 2 44,014 (5,271) 13 38,756

Over the course of 2015, the value of investments in subsidiaries, associates and
other companies rose, following the recapitalization of the company Enel 0il & Gas
SpA which took place in January, in the amount of Euro 2 million applied by the
latter to increase the item “Other reserves” of the shareholders’ equity that was

necessary for the same in order to meet its operating and financial requirements.

9. Current assets - Euro 10,220 million

The current assets show, compared to December 31, 2014, a decline of Euro 3,073
million attributable mainly to the decrease in available liquidity (Euro 3,025
million). Reference is made to the comments on the net financial position as

regards such latter change.

Liabilities

10. Shareholders’ equity - Euro 24,970 million

Shareholders’ equity totals Euro 24,970 million and is down by Euro 166 million
compared to December 31, 2014. Such change is attributable to the distribution of
the dividend for year 2014 in the amount of Euro 0.14 per share (totaling Euro
1,316 million), as approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on May 28, 2015, as
well as the total earnings entered in the first nine months of 2015 (Euro 1,150

million).

11. Non-current liabilities - Euro 18,041 million
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Non-current liabilities show, compared to December 31, 2014, a decline of Euro
2,588 million attributable mainly to the decrease in long-term borrowings (Euro
2,799 million), as a result of the redemption, in the first quarter of year 2015,
of two retail debenture borrowings in the amount of Euro 2,300 million, partially
offset by the increase in the item “Derivatives” (Euro 139 million) attributable
to the wvaluation as of September 30, 2015 of the financial derivative contracts
(comprised of derivatives on interest rates in the amount of Euro 568 million and

on exchange rates in the amount of Euro 2,055 million).

12. Current liabilities - Euro 9,454 million

Current liabilities show, compared to December 31, 2014, an upward change of Euro
178 million attributable essentially to the increase in current portion of long-
term borrowing (Euro 695 million), partially offset by the decline in “other
current financial liabilities” resulting from lower interest accruals on debenture
borrowing (Euro 243 million) and the decrease in the other current liabilities

(Euro 222 million).
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13. Net financial position - Euro 13,283 million

Set forth below is a summary of Enel SpA’s net financial position as of September
30, 2015, as compared with the situation determined as of December 31, 2014, in
line with the CONSOB provisions dated July 28, 2006:

Euro millions

as of 30.09.2015 as of 31.12.2014

of which with of which with

related related

parties parties
Bank and post office deposits 3,947 6,972
Liquidity 3,947 6,972

Current financial receivables 4,901 4,723 4,693 4,018
Short-term bank debt (16) (3)
Short-term portion of long-term bank debt (3,058) (2,363)

Other short-term financial payables (4,676) (2,995) (4,743) (4,320)
Short-term financial debts (7,750) (7,109)
Net short-term financial position 1,098 4,556
Bonds (14,489) (17,288)
Long-term borrowings (14,489) (17,288)
Long-term financial position (14,489) (17,288)
NET FINANCIAL POSITION as per CONSOB instructions (13,391) (12,732)

Long-term financial receivables 108 104 121 117
NET FINANCIAL DEBT (13,283) (12,611)

Enel SpA’s net financial debt as of September 30, 2015 totals Euro 13,283 million

and shows an increase of Euro 672 million.

The main transactions concluded in 2015, which impacted upon net financial debt

were:

e the redemption of two retail debenture loans in the amount of Euro 2,300

million;

e the repayment of the Intercompany Short Term Deposit Agreement (short-term

credit line with Enel Finance International NV) 1in the amount of Euro 500

million.
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It should be noted that the cash, totaling Euro 3,947 million, shows, compared to

December 31, 2014, a decrease totaling Euro 3,025 million, due mainly to the

reimbursement of the above-mentioned borrowings, the increase in the net short-

term creditor position on intercompany bank accounts in place with the Companies

of the Group totaling Euro 1,516 million, higher Cash Collateral received in the

amount of Euro 1,256 million for dealings in over-the-counter derivative contracts

on interest rates and exchange rates.
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SCHEDULE G

Detailed description of the balance sheet items to be
assigned to the beneficiary company



Balance sheet of the business unit as of September 30, 2015

ASSETS Amounts in LIABILITIES Amounts in
Euro Euro
ggf:;::dr:?agtaiss:;ts 115,865 | | Shareholders’ Equity 3,664,162,218
Equity Investments 4,458,392,567
Other non-current financial assets 40,570
Total non-current assets 4,458,549,002
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 1,200,000,000
Deferred tax liabilities 4,617
Total non-current liabilities 1,200,228,011
Current assets Current liabilities
Other current financial assets 436,503,629 Derivatives 125,450
Other current assets 1,377 | | Other current financial liabilities 30,241,000
Total current assets 436,505,006 | | Other current liabilities 297,329
Total current liabilities 30,663,779
TOTAL ASSETS 4,895,054,008 |  JOTAL LIABILITIES AND 4,895,054,008

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY




Assets

Non-current Assets

Deferred tax assets - Euro 115,865

The item 1s included in point 4 of paragraph 3 “Balance sheet items to be

4

assigned to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan.

It should be noted that the deferred taxes are calculated on the temporary
differences Dbetween the Dbalance sheet items registered in the financial
statement and the corresponding amounts recognized for tax purposes, applying
the tax rate in force as of the date on which the temporary difference will
emerge, determined on the basis of the tax rates provided under rulings in force
or substantially in force as of the reference date.

The deferred tax assets are registered when their recovery is 1likely and, in
other words, when it is envisaged that in the future taxable income may become
available that is sufficient for purposes of recovering the asset.

The item includes mainly the taxes set aside for provisions not deducted from

the funds related to employee benefits.

The following table sets forth the details on the deferred tax assets:

Amounts in Euro

Taxable base Tax rate %  Amounts
Extra-month’s pay (IMA) provision 7,246 32.16% 2,330
Allowance in lieu of notice (ISP) 2,343 32.16% 753
Loyalty Bonus (PDF) 25,567 32.16% 8,222
ASEM medical care 132,236 32.16% 42,527
Fopen (312) 32.16% (100)
Post-employment benefit 1,716 32.16% 552
MBO 191,480 32.16% 61,580



Total 360,276 115,865

Equity Investments - Furo 4,458,392,567

The item 1s included in point 1 of paragraph 3 “Balance sheet items to be

4

assigned to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan

The item in question includes the shareholding of 100% of the share capital of
the subsidiary Enel Green Power International BV (hereinafter, EGPI BV) a
company organized under Dutch law, the holding of a number of foreign
shareholdings of Enel Green Power Spa.

It should be noted that the term “subsidiary companies” refers to all companies
over which Enel Green Power Spa holds control. The control is obtained when the
company 1is exposed, or 1s entitled to variable returns deriving from the
relationship with the subsidiary/affiliate and has the capacity, through the
exercise of 1its ©power over the subsidiary/affiliate, to influence its
performance/returns. The power is defined as the current capacity to direct the
significant/core business operations of the subsidiary/affiliate by virtue of
existing substantive rights.

Equity Investments in subsidiaries are assessed at cost of purchase. Such cost
includes the fair wvalue attributed at the time of determination of possible
components (contingent considerations). Any subsequent changes in fair value and
in such components are applied to the Income Statement. The cost is adjusted to
reflect any losses in value; such losses are later restored if the conditions
giving rise to them cease to exist; the restoration of value cannot exceed the

original cost.



Over the course of 2015, Enel Green Power Spa proceeded to recapitalize its

subsidiary Enel Green Power International BV (EGPI BV), in a total amount of

Euro 274 million to be registered in the share premium reserve of EGPI BV, as

follows:

FEuro 19 million, in the first quarter of 2015, in order to proceed with the

recapitalization of Enel Green Power Hellas SA and Enel Green Power Brasil

Partecipacoes LTDA;

Euro 75 million in the second quarter of 2015, in order to proceed with the

recapitalization of Enel Green Power Brasil Partecipacoes LTDA and Enel

Green Power Egypt S.A.E;

Euro 180 million, in the third quarter of 2015, in order to proceed with

the recapitalization of Enel Green Power Brasil Partecipacoes LTDA, Enel

Green Power Mexico Srl de Cv , Enel Green Power Turkey Enerji Yatirimlari AS

and Enel Green Power Development BV (the latter in order to acquire the

shareholding in the Indian company BLP Energy Private LTD).

The list of equity investments held directly and indirectly by Enel Green Power

International BV as of September 30, 2015 is that set forth in sub-schedule 1

“Equity Investments”.

Other non-current financial assets - EFuro 40,570

The

item is included in point 4 of paragraph 3 “Balance sheet items to be

assigned to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan.



The item includes the receivables for loans to employees that were disbursed for

the purchase of their first home or for family needs and are reimbursed by the

employees in accordance with pre-established amortization plans.

Current assets

Other current financial assets - Euro 436,503,629

The item 1s dincluded in point 2 of paragraph 3 “Balance sheet items to be

assigned to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan.

The item refers to the short-term financial receivable and the related asset-
side accrual owed by the company Enel Green Power North America Ltd. in
connection with a financial restructuring transaction concluded in 2014;
exchange rate risk related to such financial receivable 1is hedged through a
“currency forward” contract.

Such assets are initially entered at fair value, possibly adjusted to reflect
transaction costs and, later, entered at amortized cost on the basis of the
actual interest rate, adjusted to reflect any losses in wvalue. Such reductions
in value are determined as the difference between the book value and the current
value of future cash flows, discounted at the original actual interest rate.

In the case of renegotiated financial assets, the losses in value are determined
using the original actual interest rate prior to the change in conditions.

The receivable in question derives from the financial restructuring of the North
American companies Enel Green Power North America Inc. (EGP NA) and Enel Green
Power North America Development LLC (EGP NAD), directly and wholly controlled by

Enel Green Power International BV (EGPI BV).



Such transaction was concluded in year 2014 by converting a portion of the net
shareholders’ equity of the two North American companies into debt, using mainly
the short-term credit 1line disbursed by Enel Green Power Spa (through the
execution of two loan agreements for the loan to EGP North America and EGP North
America Development fora total of Euro 535 million as of December 31, 2013).

In particular, such transaction gave rise to, on December 31, 2014:

e the reimbursement by the North American companies to the holding company
EGPI BV of share premium reserves in the amount of Euro 652 million and
the simultaneous reduction of the wvalue of the shareholdings of the
holding company in the two North American companies;

e the reimbursement by EGPI BV to the holding company EGP Spa of share
premium reserves and the simultaneous reduction 1in the wvalue of the
shareholding of the holding company in EGPI BV in the amount of Euro 652

million.

Other current assets - Furo 1,377

The item 1s dincluded in point 4 of paragraph 3 “Balance sheet items to be
assigned to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan.

The item includes essentially the prepaid expenses related to the fourteenth
month pay and the disbursements made, on the basis of company agreements, to

entities that provide assistance services to the personnel.



Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings - Euro 1,200,000,000

The item 1s included in point 3 of paragraph 3 “Balance sheet items to be

assigned to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan.

The item 1is comprised entirely of the long-term credit line with Enel Green
Power International BV.

It should be noted that the financial liabilities other than derivative
instruments are registered when the Company becomes party to the contractual
clauses of the instrument and are assessed initially at fair wvalue net of
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, financial liabilities are

measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Post-employment and other employee benefits - Euro 223,394

The item 1is included in point 4 of paragraph 3 “Balance sheet items to be
assigned to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan.

The liability related to benefits granted to employees and disbursed at the same
time or after the cessation of the employment relationship under defined
benefits plans or other long-term benefits accrued during the employment period,
separately for each plan, on the basis of actuarial assumptions, estimating the
amount of future benefits that the employees have accrued as of the reference
date (the projected unit credit method). More specifically, the present value of
defined benefits plans 1is calculated using a discount rate determinate on the
basis of market vyields at the end of the reporting period on high-quality

corporate boards. The liability is determined by accrual throughout the period

8



in which the right accrues. The valuation of the 1liability is performed by

independent actuaries.

If the assets to be used to service the plan exceed the current value of the

related 1liability for defined Dbenefits, the surplus 1s entered as assets

(subject to the relevant cap, if any).

With reference to the liabilities (assets)related to defined benefits plans, the

actuarial earnings and losses deriving from the actuarial valuation of the

liabilities, the return on the assets dedicated to service the plan (net of the

associated interest earned) and the effect of the asset ceiling - (net of the

related interest earned) are entered as part of the other comprehensive income

(OCI), when they arise. For the other long-term benefits, the related actuarial

earnings and losses are entered in the income statement.

In the event of a change to the benefits plan or introduction of a new plan, any

social security cost related to past work performance (past service cost) 1is

entered immediately in the income statement.

The employees also benefit from defined contribution plans for which Enel Green

Power SpA pays fixed contributions to a separate entity (a fund) and will have

no legal or implicit obligation to pay additional contributions 1if the fund

lacks sufficient resources to pay all benefits for employees related to the work

activities performed during the current year and in past years. Such plans are

generally established for the purpose of increasing pension benefits after the

cessation of the employment relationship. The costs related to such plans are

entered in the income statement on the basis of the contribution made in the

period.



Set forth below are the details on the 6 employees belonging to the business

unit that comprises the demerged set of assets:

CiD

2060889
20739
16082

4026692

5030282

1037623

Set forth below are the items related to Post-employment and other employee

benefits in place as of September 30, 2015:

Amounts in euro

Post-employment benefit 56,315
Extra-month’s pay (IMA) provision 7,246
Allowance in lieu of notice (ISP) 2,343
Loyalty Bonus (PDF) 25,567

Electricity discounts Substitutive Indemnity Fund (ISSE) -

ASEM medical care 132,236
Fopen (312)
Total 223,394

Deferred tax liabilities - Furo 4,617

The item 1s included 1in point 4 of paragraph 3 “Balance sheet items to be
assigned to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan.

The deferred tax liabilities are determined on the basis of the tax rates in
force as of the reference date and are calculated on a number of items referring
to personnel belonging to the business unit comprising the “Demerged Set of

Assets”.

Current liabilities

Derivatives - Euro 125,450
10



The item is included in point 2 of paragraph “Balance sheet items to be assigned
to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan.
It includes solely the “currency forward” derivatives entered into to hedge the

short-term financial receivable owed by Enel Green Power North America.

Other current financial liabilities - EFuro 30,241,000

The item 1is included in point 3 of the paragraph “Balance sheet items to be
assigned to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan.
The item refers entirely to the interest accrued and entered on an accrual basis

on the long-term borrowings described above.

Other current liabilities - Euro 297,329

The item is included in point 4 of paragraph 3 “Balance sheet items to be
assigned to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan.

It includes principally the Payables due to employees essentially related to the
entry of accrued costs, including contribution-related costs, 1linked to the
thirteenth month pay, various forms of individual and collective incentives and

other amounts accrued such as vacations not taken, overtime, etc.

11



Set forth below are the details on the other current liabilities:

Amounts in Euro

Payables due to employees 240,697
Payables due to social security institutions 24,583
Other current liabilities 32,049
Total 297,329
Guarantees

The item 1is included in point 5 of paragraph 3 “Balance sheet items to be

assigned to the beneficiary company” of the Demerger plan.

They are granted by Enel Green Power Spa in the interest of its subsidiaries,

under service agreements and bank guarantees (garanzie bancarie or

fidejussioni) .

The related details are included in sub-schedule 2 “Guarantees”.

12
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